## **INFORMATION TO USERS**

This reproduction was made from a copy of a document sent to us for microfilming. While the most advanced technology has been used to photograph and reproduce this document, the quality of the reproduction is heavily dependent upon the quality of the material submitted.

The following explanation of techniques is provided to help clarify markings or notations which may appear on this reproduction.

- 1. The sign or "target" for pages apparently lacking from the document photographed is "Missing Page(s)". If it was possible to obtain the missing page(s) or section, they are spliced into the film along with adjacent pages. This may have necessitated cutting through an image and duplicating adjacent pages to assure complete continuity.
- 2. When an image on the film is obliterated with a round black mark, it is an indication of either blurred copy because of movement during exposure, duplicate copy, or copyrighted materials that should not have been filmed. For blurred pages, a good image of the page can be found in the adjacent frame. If copyrighted materials were deleted, a target note will appear listing the pages in the adjacent frame.
- 3. When a map, drawing or chart, etc., is part of the material being photographed, a definite method of "sectioning" the material has been followed. It is customary to begin filming at the upper left hand corner of a large sheet and to continue from left to right in equal sections with small overlaps. If necessary, sectioning is continued again—beginning below the first row and continuing on until complete.
- 4. For illustrations that cannot be satisfactorily reproduced by xerographic means, photographic prints can be purchased at additional cost and inserted into your xerographic copy. These prints are available upon request from the Dissertations Customer Services Department.
- 5. Some pages in any document may have indistinct print. In all cases the best available copy has been filmed.



8308960

King, Donna Kay

# COMMUNITY METABOLISM AND AUTOTROPHIC - HETEROTROPHIC RELATIONSHIPS OF WOODLAND STREAM RIFFLE SECTIONS

Michigan State University

Рн.Д. 1982

University Microfilms International 300 N. Zeeb Road, Ann Arbor, MI 48106

## PLEASE NOTE:

In all cases this material has been filmed in the best possible way from the available copy. Problems encountered with this document have been identified here with a check mark  $\sqrt{}$ .

- 1. Glossy photographs or pages \_\_\_\_\_
- 2. Colored illustrations, paper or print\_\_\_\_
- 3. Photographs with dark background \_\_\_\_\_
- 4. Illustrations are poor copy
- 5. Pages with black marks, not original copy \_\_\_\_\_
- 6. Print shows through as there is text on both sides of page\_\_\_\_
- 7. Indistinct, broken or small print on several pages \_\_\_\_\_
- 8. Print exceeds margin requirements
- 9. Tightly bound copy with print lost in spine \_\_\_\_\_
- 10. Computer printout pages with indistinct print \_\_\_\_\_
- 11. Page(s) \_\_\_\_\_\_ lacking when material received, and not available from school or author.
- 12. Page(s) \_\_\_\_\_\_ seem to be missing in numbering only as text follows.
- 13. Two pages numbered \_\_\_\_\_. Text follows.
- 14. Curling and wrinkled pages \_\_\_\_\_
- 15. Other\_\_\_\_\_

## University Microfilms International

## COMMUNITY METABOLISM AND AUTOTROPHIC-HETEROTROPHIC RELATIONSHIPS OF WOODLAND STREAM RIFFLE SECTIONS

By

Donna Kay King

## A DISSERTATION

## Submitted to Michigan State University in partial fulfillment of the requirements for the degree of

#### DOCTOR OF PHILOSOPHY

Kellogg Biological Station and Department of Fisheries and Wildlife

1982

#### ABSTRACT

## COMMUNITY METABOLISM AND AUTOTROPHIC-HETEROTROPHIC RELATIONSHIPS OF WOODLAND STREAM RIFFLE SECTIONS.

By

Donna Kay King

Using an <u>in situ</u> chamber oxygen method at five first through third order riffle sites in Augusta Creek, Michigan, estimates of community metabolism were made on a monthly or seasonal basis (1973 -1975). Combined site, net community productivity (NCP) ranged from -0.25 to 4.03 g  $0_2$  m<sup>-2</sup>d<sup>-1</sup>, community respiration (CR) from 0.24 to 3.67 g  $0_2$  m<sup>-2</sup>d<sup>-1</sup>, and gross community productivity (GCP) from 0.09 to 5.35 g  $0_2$  m<sup>-2</sup>d<sup>-1</sup>. The integrative parameters net daily metabolism (NDM) and ratio of GCP to 24 hour CR (P/R) ranged from -0.72 to 2.68 g  $0_2$  m<sup>-2</sup>d<sup>-1</sup> and -0.017 to 2.5, respectively and remained constant at each site.

Most parameters were consistently low and stable at first order sites, while autotrophic sites varied significantly. Lightsaturated photosynthesis occurred between 15,000 to 24,000 lux; no photoinhibition was evident.

Detrital standing crops were stable at each site and ranged from 146 to 592 g m<sup>-2</sup>. Average ratio of coarse to fine particulate organic matter ranged from 0.12 to 0.4 with an inverse relationship with P/R. Epilithon values ranged from 1480 to 5030 g m<sup>-2</sup>. Detritus averaged 12% of the total particulate organic matter. Epilithon was detrital based at first order riffles; other sites were algal dominated.

Average ratio of epilithon to detritus ranged from 4.5 to 14.8 with greatest seasonal differences at the autotrophic sites.

Stream order was most highly correlated with all dependent variables (NCP, CR, GCP, NDM) followed by light. Temperature and epilithon development were significantly correlated with all dependent variables; non-attached detritus had little correlation.

Particle-sized sediment (4 mm, 1 mm, 250  $\mu$ m, 75  $\mu$ m, 0.45  $\mu$ m) contributions to NCP and CR were highest on 0.45  $\mu$ m detritus and 4 mm (NCP) and 75  $\mu$ m (CR) inorganic sediments on an AFDW basis. Areal estimates indicated highest NCP on larger inorganic and organic particles; highest CR occurred on 0.45  $\mu$ m detritus and 4 mm inorganic particles. CR was highest on all detrital fractions on an AFDW basis; epilithon had higher contributions to NCP and CR on an areal basis. In situ trends were similar to areal particle-sized estimates. The support of woodland stream riffle sections was dependent on epilithon development while the autotrophic-heterotrophic balance was dependent upon the floral composition. This work is dedicated to Matthew H. Hohn.

Who introduced me to the finer (diatomaceous) things of life.

#### ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

λ.

I would like to express sincere appreciation to Ken Cummins, for the atmosphere created in his laboratory, which allowed a technician to "sprout" into a student. His flexibility, enthusiasm, encouragement and friendship are valued. I am also grateful for the Montana "experience" and the opportunity to participate in the comparative methods conference at the Stroud Water Research Laboratory; both were highlights while working on this degree.

This study would not have been completed without the continued interest and support of my guidance committee: Drs. Kenneth W. Cummins, Chairman; Niles R. Kevern; Michael J. Klug; Robert G. Wetzel; and Matthew H. Hohn. To each I am grateful for their contributions to the thesis and my education. Dr. George H. Lauff, Director of the Kellogg Biological Station, deserves special thanks for facilitating the final stages of data analyses through provision of computer facilities and the opportunity to return summers to KBS to teach Freshwater Algae.

Robert H. King's support and encouragement throughout the years are greatly appreciated as well as his technical assistance in the field every sunrise and sunset included in the study period. Thank-you Bob for being you.

Invaluable assistance in computer programming and data output were provided by Steven Weiss, John Gorentz and George Spengler.

iii

Virginia Holt, Roger Ovink, Ken Wiest and LaRaine Wank provided technical assistance at various stages of the study; Arthur Wiest constructed the chambers and Gail Guth did the chamber and site cross sectional drawings. Charlotte Seeley and Alice Gillespie prepared the final manuscript and made the final stages of thesis preparation "enjoyable".

I would also like to thank Karen Dacey, Patricia Gage, Gordon Godshalk, Carolyn Hammarskjold, Virginia Holt, Mary Hughes, Marilyn Jacobs, David Mahan, Rosanna Mattingly, Marjorie Robbins, Steven Robbins, Charlotte Seeley, Mary Shaw, George Spengler, Jay Sonnad, Mary Lynn Teague, Dolores Teller and Arthur Wiest for their individual contributions, encouragement and friendship during the research and/or writing phases of this study.

The financial support for this study was provided by a Department of Energy Grant DE-AT06-79EV1004 for which I am thankful.

iv

## TABLE OF CONTENTS

## Page

List Of Tables	vii
List Of Figures	xii
Introduction	1
Methods	20
Results And Discussion	33
Physical Parameters Temperature Light (Irradiance)	33 33 35
Community Metabolism Gross Community Productivity Net Community Productivity. Community Respiration Net Daily Metabolism. Detrital Standing Crop. Detrital (AFDW) Community Metabolism. Epilithon.	41 49 56 60 72 75 83 88
Factors Affecting Rates Of Community Metabolism Stream Order Light Temperature Detrital Ash-Free Dry Weight Epilithon Ash-Free Dry Weight	98 100 101 108 113 113 117
Particle-Size Community Metabolism Particle-size estimates of Community	118
Metabolism (AFDW basis) Particle-size estimates of community	119
metabolism (Areal basis)	130

## Page

Synthesis		149
Tempera Light. Communa Regress Partic Sites.	ature ity Metabolism sion Analyses le Sized Community Metabolism	149 150 151 156 158 161
Literature	Cited	163
Appendix A	Estimates of community metabolism (g O <sub>2</sub> m <sup>-2</sup> ), Augusta Creek, Michigan	174
Appendix B	Summary of community metabolism estimates, Augusta Creek, Michigan	257
Appendix C	Organic sediment composition (gAFDW) for selected sites on Augusta Creek, Michigan	271
Appendix D	Summary of physical parameters for selected riffle sections of Augusta Creek, Michigan	291
Appendix E	Summary of regression analyses from selected sites of Augusta Creek, Michigan	298
Appendix F	Light saturation curves from selected sites of Augusta Creek, Michigan	305
Appendix G	Community respiration and NCP rates at various temperatures for selected sites of Augusta Creek, Michigan	316
Appendix H	Estimates of particle-sized sediment community metabolism from selected sites of Augusta Creek, Michigan	328

## LIST OF TABLES

Page

Table 1.	Physical parameters of selected study sites, Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan (1973-1977)	9
Table 2.	Percent coverage and abundance of herbaceous plants from ten meter transects established perpendicular to each bank at five sites of Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michiagn, July 1975	14
Table 3.	Abundant and common macroinvertebrates from selected riffle sections of Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan (1974-1975)	19
Table 4.	Comparison of community respiration rates obtained during daylight and dark periods from selected riffle sites of Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan	26
Table 5.	Procedure for estimating parameters of community metabolism experiments	29
Table 6.	Temperature fluctuations at sites of Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan (1973-1975)	36
Table 7.	Light intensity fluctuations (irradiance) at selected sites of Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan (1973-1975)	39
Table 8.	Literature estimates of in situ community metabolism in streams $(g \ 0_2 \ m^{-2}d^{-1})$	44
Table 9.	Average community metabolism parameters for experimental runs completed at five riffle sites of Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan 1973-1975	51

•

Table ]	10.	Annual and seasonal estimates of P/R ratio at two sites of Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan (1973-1975)	68
Table ]	11.	CPOM and FPOM detrital standing crops and CPOM/FPOM ratios from selected sites in Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan (1974-1975)	81
Table 1	12.	Annual average estimates of detrital community metabolism (mg O <sub>2</sub> g <sup>-1</sup> AFDW) for selected sites of Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan (1974-1975)	85
Table ]	13.	Percentage of detritus and epilithon and epilithon/detritus (E/D) ratios of sediments from selected sites of Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan	95
Table 1	14.	Summary of regression data for various dependent variables and the independent variable stream order for all sites of Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan	102
Table 1	15.	Summary of regression analyses involving various dependent variables and the independent variable light at five sites from Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan	104
Table 1	16.	Summary of multiple regressions involving the effects of temperature and light on individual rates of NCP and CR from all sites of Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan	105
Table 1	17.	Summary of regressions involving the effects of temperature on NCP, GCP, CR, and NDM from various sites of Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan	110
Table 1	18.	Regression summary for the relationship between GCP, NCP, CR, and NDM and the independent variable detrital standing crop (AFDW) for five sites of Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan	114

Page

.

Table 19.	Regression summary for the relationship between NCP, GCP, CR, and NDM with the independent variable epilithon for five sites of Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan	16
Table 20.	Comparison of community metabolism parameters from <u>in situ</u> and Gilson Respirometer experiments from five riffle communities of Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan	20
Table 21.	Average particle-sized community metabolism estimates (weight basis) from Gilson Respirometery for five riffle sites of Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan 12	24
Table 22.	Ranked particle-size contributions to various parameters of community metabolism (weight basis) from five riffle communities of Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan	25
Table 23.	Average estimates of community metabolism of various particle-sizes expressed on an areal basis for five riffle sites of Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan 13	31
Table 24.	Ranked particle-size contributions on an areal basis to estimates of community metabolism from five riffle communities of Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan 13	32
Table A-1	Estimates of Community Metabolism (g O <sub>2</sub> /m <sup>2</sup> ), Augusta Creek, Michigan 17	74
Table A-2	Estimates of Community Metabolism/gAFDW Detritus, Augusta Creek, Michigan 21	18
Table B-1	Summary of community metabolism estimates for SMITH SITE, Augusta Creek, Michigan 25	57
Table B-2	Summary of community metabolism estimates for B AVENUE, Augusta Creek, Michigan	58
Table B-3	Summary of community metabolism estimates for UPPER 43, Augusta Creek, Michigan	59

Table B-4	Summary of community metabolism estimates for NAGEL SITE, Augusta Creek, Michigan	261
Table B-5	Summary of community metabolism estimates for KELLOGG FOREST, Augusta Creek, Michigan	263
Table B-6	Summary of community metabolism estimates on a detrital AFDW basis for Smith Site, Augusta Creek, Michigan	264
Table B-7	Summary of community metabolism estimates on a detrital AFDW basis for B Avenue Site, Augusta Creek, Michigan	265
Table B-8	Summary of community metabolism estimates on a detrital AFDW basis for Upper 43rd Site, Augusta Creek, Michigan	267
Table B-9	Summary of community metabolism estimates on a detrital AFDW basis for Nagel Site, Augusta Creek, Michigan	268
Table B-10	Summary of community metabolism estimates on a detrital AFDW basis for Kellogg Forest Site, Augusta Creek, Michigan	270
Table C-1	Organic sediment composition (gAFDW) for selected sites on Augusta Crreek, Michigan	271
Table D-1	Summary of physical parameters for celected riffle sections of SMITH SITE, Augusta Creek, Michigan	291
Table D-2	Summary of physical parameters for selected riffle sections of B AVENUE, Augusta Creek, Michigan	292
Table D-3	Summary of physical parameters for selected riffle sections of UPPER 43, Augusta Creek, Michigan	294
Table D-4	Summary of physical parameters for selected riffle sections of NAGEL SITE, Augusta Creek, Michigan	295
Table D-5	Summary of physical parameters for selected riffle sections of KELLOGG FOREST, Augusta Creek, Michigan	297

Table E	3–1	Regression parameters for average NCP, CR, GCP and NDM versus independent variables from data collected in Augusta Creek, Michigan riffle sections	298
Table E	3-2	Regression parameters for individual rates of NCP and CR versus various independent variables from data collected in Augusta Creek, Michigan riffle sections	299
Table E	2-3	Regression analyses for various sites of Augusta Creek, Michigan	300
Table H	1-1	Estimates of mean hourly rates of community metabolism based on Gilson Respirometery from five riffle sites of Augusta Creek, Michigan	328
Table H	1-2	Areal estimates of community metabolism based on Gilson Respirometery experiments from five riffle sites of Augusta Creek, Michigan	343

## LIST OF FIGURES

Page

Figure	1.	Augusta Creek watershed, Barry and Kalamazoo counties, Michigan (modified from Manny and Wetzel 1973)	6
Figure	2.	Community metabolism study sites selected in the Augusta Creek watershed (Kalamazoo and Barry counties, Michigan)	8
Figure	3.	Woody vegetation profiles of Smith and B Avenue sites, Kalamazoo County, Michigan (1975)	10
Figure	4.	Woody vegetation profiles of Upper 43rd, Nagel, and Kellogg Forest sites, Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County,Michigan (1975)	12
Figure	5.	Percent composition of particle sizes from riffle section inorganic sediments, Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan (1974-1975)	18
Figure	6.	Plexiglas chamber designed for estimating community metabolism in stream riffle sections	21
Figure	7.	Experimental design of in situ community metabolism field experiments	24
Figure	8.	Laboratory procedure for determination of ash-fee dry weight (AFDW) of chamber sediments andmacroinvertebrates	28
Figure	9.	Experimental design for Gilson Respirometer estimates of community metabolism of particle sized substrate	32

Figure 10.	Average daily temperature values for selected sites in the Augusta Creek watershed, Kalamazoo County, Michigan (1973-1975)	34
Figure 11.	Average daily light values for the Smith, B Avenue, and Upper 43 Rd sites of Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan (1973-1975)	37
Figure 12.	Average daily light values for Nagel and Kellogg Forest Sites of Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan (1973-1975	38
Figure 13.	Daily light patterns at Kellogg Forest, Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan on 25 July 1975	42
Figure 14.	Average GCP ( <u>+</u> SE) estimates for selected riffle communities in the Augusta Creek watershed, Kalamazoo County, Michigan (1973-1975)	50
Figure 15.	Average rates ( <u>+</u> SE) of NCP at selected riffle sites in the Augusta Creek watershed, Kalamazoo County, Michigan (1973-1975)	58
Figure 16.	Rates of average CR ( <u>+</u> SE) for selected riffle communities in the Augusta Creek watershed, Kalamazoo County, Michigan (1973-1975)	62
Figure 17.	Average P/R ratios (+ SE) for selected sites in the Augusta Creek watershed, Kalamazoo County, Michigan (1973-1975)	66
Figure 18.	Average values (+ SE) of NDM for selected riffle sites in the Augusta Creek watershed, Kalamazoo County, Michigan (1973-1975)	73
Figure 19.	Average estimates of detrital standing crop (+ SE) from selected riffle communities in Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan (1973-1975)	77

Figure 20.	Seasonal distribution of particle-sized detritus from selected riffle sections of Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan (1973-1975)	78
Figure 21.	Estimates of NCP and CR on a weight basis from selected Augusta Creek riffle sections, Kalamazoo County, Michigan (1973-1975)	86
Figure 22.	Estimates of GCP and NDM on a weight basis from selected Augusta Creek riffle sections, Kalamazoo County, Michigan (1973-1975)	87
Figure 23.	Estimates of eiplithon development, obtained on a seasonal basis from selected riffle sites of Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan (1974-1975)	91
Figure 24.	Seasonal distribution of particle-sized epilithon from selected riffle sections of Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan (1974-1975)	94
Figure 25.	Epilithon/Detritus ratios over an annual period for selected riffle sites of Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan (1974-1975)	97
Figure 26.	Estimates of NCP from particle sized detritus and epilithon communities from Smith, B Avenue and Upper 43rd riffle sites of Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan (1974-1975)	121
Figure 27.	Estimates of NCP from particle sized detritus and epilithon communities from Nagel and Kellogg Forest riffle sites of Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan (1974-1975)	122
Figure 28.	Estimates of CR from particle-sized detritus and epilithon communities from selected riffle sites of Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan (1974-1975)	128

Figure 29.	Estimates of particle sized community metabolism of the detrital component of Smith riffle sediments, Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan (1974-1975)	1 <b>3</b> 5
Figure 30.	Estimates of particle sized community metabolism of the epilithon of Smith riffle sediments, Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan (1974-1975)	136
Figure 31.	Estimates of particle sized community metabolism of the detrital component of B Avenue sediments, Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan (1974-1975)	138
Figure 32.	Estimates of particle sized community metabolism of the epilithon of B Avenue riffle sediments, Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan (1974-1975)	139
Figure 33.	Estimates of particle sized community metabolism of the detrital component of Upper 43rd riffle sediments, Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan (1974-1975)	140
Figure 34.	Estimates of particle sized community metabolism of the epilithon of Upper 43rd riffle sediments, Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan (1974-1975)	142
Figure 35.	Estimates of particle sized community metabolism of the detrital component of Nagel riffle sediments, Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan (1974-1975)	144
Figure 36.	Estimates of particle sized community metabolism of the epilithon of Nagel riffle sediments, Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan (1974-1975)	145
Figure 37.	Estimates of particle sized community metabolism of the detrital component of Kellogg Forest riffle sediments, Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan (1974-1975)	147
Figure 38.	Estimates of particle sized community metabolism of the epilithon of Kellogg Forest riffle sediments, Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan (1974-1975)	148

Figure F-1	Net community productivity at various light intensities for combined sites of Augusta Creek, Michigan (1973-1975)	305
Figure F-2	Net community productivity at various light intensities for Smith Site, Augusta Creek, Michigan (1974-1975)	306
Figure F-3	Net community production at various light intensities for B Avenue Site, Augusta Creek, Michigan (1973-1975)	307
Figure F-4	Net community production at various light intensities for Upper 43rd Site, Augusta Creek, Michigan (1974-1975)	308
Figure F-5	Net community production at various light intensities for Nagel Site, Augusta Creek, Michigan (1973-1975)	309
Figure F-6	Net community production at various light intensities for Kellogg Forest Site, Augusta Creek, Michigan (1974-1975)	310
Figure F-7	Net community productivity within the 0-5C temperature range for combined sites of Augusta Creek, Michigan (1973-1975)	311
Figure F-8	Net community productivity within the 5-10C temperature range for combined sites of Augusta Creek, Michigan (1973-1975)	312
Figure F-9	Net community productivity within the 10-15C temperature range for combined sites of Augusta Creek, Michigan (1973-1975)	313
Figure F-1(	) Net community productivity within the 15-20C temperature range for combined sites of Augusta Creek, Michigan (1973-1975)	314
Figure F-11	Net community productivity within the 20-25C temperature range for combined sites of Augusta Creek, Michigan (1973-1975)	315
Figure G-l	Rates of community respiration at various temperatures for combined sites of Augusta Creek, Michigan (1973-1975)	316

Figure G-2	Rates of community respiration at Smith site, Augusta Creek, Michigan (1974-1975)	317
Figure G-3	Rates of community respiration at B Avenue site, Augusta Creek, Michigan (1973-1975)	318
Figure G-4	Rates of community respiration at Upper 43rd site, Augusta Creek, Michigan (1974-1975)	319
Figure G-5	Rates of community respiration at Nagel site, Augusta Creek, Michigan (1973-1975)	320
Figure G-6	Rates of community respiration at Kellogg Forest site, Augusta Creek, Michigan (1974-1975)	321
Figure G-7	Net community productivity at various temperatures for combined sites of Augusta Creek, Michigan (1973-1975)	322
Figure G-8	Net community productivity at various temperatures for Smith site of Augusta Creek, Michigan (1974-1975)	323
Figure G-9	Net community productivity at various temperatures for B Avenue site of Augusta Creek, Michigan (1973-1975)	324
Figure G-10	Net community productivity at various temperatures for Upper 43rd site of Augusta Creek, Michigan (1974-1975)	325
Figure G-11	Net community productivity at various temperatures for Nagel site of Augusta Creek, Michigan (1973-1975)	326
Figure G-12	Net community productivity at various temperatures for Kellogg Forest site of Augusta Creek, Michigan (1974-1975)	327

#### INTRODUCTION

As the sun proceeds slowly northward warming and lighting the temperate streams, a golden glow results on rocks, stones, and logs, announcing another diatomaceous spring... 20 March 1974 Augusta Creek

Interest in primary production of autotrophic organisms ranges from world wide support of the human population to unraveling the complex functions of ecosystems (MacFaden 1948, Wetzel 1975). Although there was early notice of primary producers and their importance in aquatic systems, it was not until 1944 that in-depth inquiries were begun. These early studies on lakes are summarized by Wetzel (1965, 1975a) and Lieth (1975). Early productivity studies on lotic systems are minimal (Odum 1956). Lotic systems are extremely heterogeneous and dynamic in all aspects. Besides the typical physical, chemical, spacial, and biological variables common in lentic systems, one studying lotic systems encounters variability in canopy cover, substrate distribution, and current; which in turn affect niche availability and distribution of organisms at all levels of food webs. These variables, along with watershed effects through runoff, flooding, and perturbations by man, are reviewed by Hynes (1970) and Whitton (1973), and their applicability to measurement of primary productivity discussed by Hynes (1970) and Wetzel (1975b). Methodology for estimating primary productivity in aquatic systems has been extensively reviewed (Ryther 1956b, Goldman, 1969, Vollenweider 1969,

Hall 1973, Hall and Moll 1975, Bott et al. 1982).

At the time of this investigation (1973 - 1975) no published <u>in situ</u> investigations had been made using chambers under natural field conditions in streams. Since this study, however, <u>in situ</u> measurements of community metabolism have been reported (Göthberg and Karlström 1975, Marker 1976b, Naiman 1976, Litke 1978, Pennak and Lavelle 1979, Sumner and Fisher 1979, Bush and Fisher 1981, Hornick et al. 1981), and a comparative study of three chamber techniques, including the chamber designed for this study (King chamber), and two open water techniques for estimating community metabolism has been completed (Bott et al. 1975). Although <u>in situ</u> chamber methods are beginning to take the forefront in the determination of community metabolism, Pennak and Lavelle (1979) and Rodgers et al. (1980) reinforce the lack of such data and the need to continue with this type of approach to examine ecological questions concerning community metabolism.

It was the purpose of this investigation to estimate in situ levels of community metabolism for selected riffle sections of the Augusta Creek watershed over a two-year period and to examine the autotrophic-heterotrophic relationships within these communities through measurement of autochthonous production and community respiration with subsequent calculation of the integrative parameters the ratio of gross community productivity to 24 hour community respiration ( $P_G/R_{24} = P/R$ ) and net daily metabolism (NDM). First through third order (Strahler 1957) sites were examined to elucidate changes in community metabolism throughout the headwater portion of the watershed and the effects of light and temperature on the rates

of <u>in situ</u> productivity. Relationships of detrital and epilithon standing crops to community metabolism were also examined. The major hypotheses were that the shaded first order sections obtain minimal support through autotrophic pathways, which would indicate a heterotrophic dependence, while the open second and third order reaches would be supported by an autotrophic energy base over the annual period and that clearing of riparian vegetation from third order sections would increase the autotrophic potential of the riffle community.

Estimates of community metabolism have been shown to reflect environmental changes due to pollution (Odum 1956) or short term stress such as application of lampricides (Maki 1974). The P/R ratio and NDM are also of value in characterizing autotrophicheterotrophic relationships in aquatic systems. Odum (1956), using P/R ratios from open water estimates, indicated the significance of this ratio in the classification of stream communities based on their major carbon source. He classified communities which received large amounts of allochthonous carbon in which respiration was greater than gross production (P/R < 1) as heterotrophic, while those in which there was much autochthonous production of carbon (P/R > 1) were termed autotrophic. This relationship has been established as a physiological classifier of streams by Caspers and Karke in 1966 and 1967 as reviewed by Pavletic et al. (1976). Hynes (1970) commented on the little attention that this valuable parameter had received in lotic systems. Fisher and Likens (1973) expanded on this relationship by incorporating estimates of export and import. Minshall (1978) reported P/R < 1 in aquatic plant-dominated lotic reaches, which

indicated the possibility of heterotrophic conditions in communities producing large amounts of autochthonous carbon. This carbon, however, is available to the community mainly when converted to detritus, often downstream, which indicates the heterotrophic nature of the riffle due to low attached algal development from shading by aquatic macrophytes. Estimates of NDM (gross community production minus 24 hour community respiration) yield a valuable quantitative measure of support or dependence of a community on allochthonous carbon sources (Bott et al. 1978, Vannote et al. 1980).

The heterotrophic nature of headwater streams and the importance of allochthonous inputs of organic carbon such as leaves, twigs, flower parts, bark, fine particulate organic matter (FPOM), and dissolved organic matter (DOM) is well documented as is the decomposition of these materials by bacteria, fungi, and macroinvertebrates within the deciduous biome (Minshall 1967; Kaushik and Hynes 1968, 1971; Triska 1970; Hynes 1970; Coffman et al. 1971; Cummins et al. 1973; Suberkropp and Klug 1974; Cummins 1974, 1975a, 1977, 1978, Suberkropp et al. 1976, Bell et al. 1978, Vannote et al. 1980). These studies indicate that heterotrophic stream sections receive as little as one percent of their carbon from autochthonous production.

Observations of forested areas of Augusta Creek, a woodland Michigan stream, indicated epilithic, epipsammic and epipelic algae were present, as well as high populations of algal-feeding aquatic insect larvae (scrapers; Merritt and Cummins 1978) such as <u>Glossosoma</u> and <u>Neophylax</u> (Trichoptera:caddisflies). Wetzel (1975b) and Minshall (1978) emphasized that in order to use an autotrophic-heterotrophic

classification system one must first know the magnitude of community production and not assume autotrophic insignificance. <u>In situ</u> measurements of community metabolism not only estimate productivity, but total community production, which includes both autotroph and heterotroph (bacterial, fungal, and invertebrate) metabolism (Wetzel 1975b, Bott et al. 1978, Pennak and Lavelle 1979). Such estimates are directly dependent on light, temperature, carbon dioxide, and oxygen levels and indirectly on inorganic and organic nutrient availability, which all affect photosynthesis and respiration (Lieth 1975; Wetzel 1975a, 1975b). Intensive investigation of the effects of these parameters on <u>in situ</u> community metabolism has not been completed. The extent to which autotrophic communities develop and contribute to the structure and function of woodland streams needs to be addressed.

#### DESCRIPTION OF STUDY SITE

The pussywillows have popped their bud scales and the <u>Cornus</u> with a blushing glow awakes from it's dull red winter slumber! They now await the stirring of leaf buds... Spring is in the air at Augusta Creek. 5 March 1974

Augusta Creek, a woodland stream located in Barry and Kalamazoo counties, Michigan, was the site of this investigation (Figure 1). This third order (Strahler 1957) stream system joins the Kalamazoo River in Augusta, which in turn flows westerly into Lake Michigan at Saugatuck. The watershed has been described by Mahan and Cummins (1974) as having a total length of 73.3 km (39.3 mi) and a drainage area of 72.3 km<sup>-2</sup> (27.9 mi<sup>-2</sup>). The watershed includes a combination



Figure 1. Augusta Creek watershed, Barry and Kalamazoo counties, Michigan (modified from Manny and Wetzel 1973).

of forested, meadow, and agricultural reaches with approximately 50% of the drainage in agricultural use (King 1979, Mahan 1980). The slope is slight,  $2.03 \text{ m}^{-1}\text{km}^{-1}$  (Manny and Wetzel 1973), and discharge measured at the United States Geological Survey gauging station in Augusta (Figure 2) ranged from  $8.72 \text{ m}^{-3}\text{s}^{-1}$  (308 cfs) in 1975 to 0.27  $\text{m}^{-3}\text{s}^{-1}$  (9.5 cfs) in 1970 and averaged 1.19  $\text{m}^{-3}\text{s}^{-1}$  (42 cfs) (Mahan and Cummins 1974). King (1978) gives weekly velocities and discharge values for the B Avenue, Nagel and Kellogg Forest Sites from 1973 to 1974 and discharge records from 1976 to 1977 at these sites plus Smith and Upper 43rd Sites are cited in Mahan (1980). The range and average discharge values for the sites selected for this investigation are summarized in Table 1.

Augusta Creek is characterized as a hardwater stream with pH values of 7.5 to 8.7, alkalinity of 160 to 230 mg<sup>-1</sup>1<sup>-1</sup>, and total hardness of approximately 280 mg<sup>-1</sup>1<sup>-1</sup> CaCO<sub>3</sub> (Manny and Wetzel 1973, Mahan and Cummins 1974, King 1978). Inorganic nitrogen levels ranged from 2 to 5 mg<sup>-1</sup>1<sup>-1</sup> and orthophosphate from 10 to 40  $\mu$ g<sup>-1</sup>1<sup>-1</sup> during a diel study by Manny and Wetzel (1973).

The present investigation concentrated on riffle sections of two sites in Augusta Creek (B Avenue and Nagel) during 1973-1974, while riffles of five sites (Smith, B Avenue, Upper 43rd, Nagel, and Kellogg Forest) were studied in 1974-1975 (Figures 1 and 2). The Smith Site typifies a natural first order site within the Augusta Creek watershed and joins the B Avenue tributary before confluence with the Upper 43rd reach (Figures 1, 2, 3). The B Avenue first order reach originates in a tamarac (Larix larcina) area, flows southwest through an agriculturally perturbated section where cattle have free access to



Figure 2. Community metabolism study sites selected in the Augusta Creek watershed (Kalamazoo and Barry counties, Michigan).

	TEMPERATURE °C		DISC	DISCHARGE m <sup>3</sup> s <sup>-1</sup>		
ORDER	RANGE	x	MAXIMUM	MINIMUM	x	
1	0-25.6	9.3	0.257	0.004	0.013	
1	0-24.6	8.7	0.400	0.030	0.070	
2	0-29.6	10.7	2.100	0.290	0.643	
3	0-28.4	10.7	3.30	0.400	1.130	
3	0-27.2	10.5	3.470	0.430	1.200	
	ORDER 1 1 2 3 3 3	TEMPERATI   ORDER RANGE   1 0-25.6   1 0-24.6   2 0-29.6   3 0-28.4   3 0-27.2	TEMPERATURE °C   ORDER RANGE x   1 0-25.6 9.3   1 0-24.6 8.7   2 0-29.6 10.7   3 0-28.4 10.7   3 0-27.2 10.5	TEMPERATURE °C DISCU   ORDER RANGE x MAXIMUM   1 0-25.6 9.3 0.257   1 0-24.6 8.7 0.400   2 0-29.6 10.7 2.100   3 0-28.4 10.7 3.30   3 0-27.2 10.5 3.470	TEMPERATURE °C DISCHARGE m <sup>3</sup> s   ORDER RANGE x MAXIMUM MINIMUM   1 0-25.6 9.3 0.257 0.004   1 0-24.6 8.7 0.400 0.030   2 0-29.6 10.7 2.100 0.290   3 0-28.4 10.7 3.30 0.400	

Table 1. Physical parameters of selected study sites, Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan (1973-1977).

\* Data from Mahan (1980)

\*\* Data from King (1978) and Mahan (1980)





## SMITH KEY:

TREES

- P = Prunus sp. (Cherry) U = Ulmus rubra (Slippery Elm)

#### SHRUBS AND VINES (T)

Cernus spp. (Dogwood) Parthenocissus muinguntulla (Virginia Creeper) Bhus hyphiga (Staghorn Sumac) Bosa spp. (Blackberry and Raspberry) Balton Sumach (Blackberry and Raspberry) Salia spp. (Vilow) Salia spp. (Wilow) Sambees canademis (Common Elder) Tasicodendren radicaes (Poison by) Vitus spp. (Wild Grape)

#### **B AVENUE KEY**

TREES

- U = Ulmus sp. (Elm)

SHRUBS AND VINES (T)

Alinus sp. (Alder) Cornus sp. (Dogwood) Lindera berzoln (Spice Bush) Parthenocissus mulnguebila (Virginia Creeper) Rhus hyphina (Staghorn Sumac) Research and the second second

Figure 3. Woody vegetation profiles of Smith and B Avenue sites, Kalamazoo County, Michigan (1975).

the stream, then flows into Hamilton Lake (Figures 1, 2, 3). The second order Upper 43rd meadow reach is within the tributary started by Gilkey and Fair Lakes and is downstream from Lawrence Lake (Figure 1); it joins the B Avenue - Smith tributary to form a third order system. The third order Nagel Site, located near the center of the drainage is an open reach influenced by swimming, fishing and vegetation removal (Figures 1, 2, 4). Along the east bank riparian vegetation was present, but in places the west bank was a mowed lawn (Figure 4). The Kellogg Forest Site is owned and maintained in a "natural" forested condition by Michigan State University and is open to the public for fishing. It is located downstream from the cleared Nagel site and provided a comparison of forested and cleared third order reaches.

Percent cover, as well as the major woody canopy components, determined from transects (30 m x 1 m) established perpendicular to the stream banks are illustrated in Figures 3 and 4. The narrow Smith and B Avenue reaches were heavily shaded and contrast with the open meadow reaches of Upper 43rd and Nagel Sites. The Kellogg Forest Site, was a shaded third order reach along Augusta Creek. An extensive analysis of the woody vegetation for these five sites was made by Mahan (1980). Of the 41 taxa observed in the herbaceous understory of the transects only five had abundant (> 50% occurrence) or common (> 10% occurrence) status (July 1974). Sedges (<u>Carex</u> spp.) were common or abundant at all sites except B Avenue, Grasses (Graminae) were common at Nagel Site, skunk cabbage (<u>Symplocarpus</u> <u>foetidus</u> (L.) Nutt.) was common at B Avenue, goldenrods (<u>Solidago</u> spp.) at Upper 43rd site, and forget-me-knots (Myosotis sp.) were


#### UPPER 43rd KEY

TREES P = <u>Prunuş</u> (Cherry) T = Thuja\_occidenta<u>liş</u> (White Cedar) SHRUBS AND VINES (1) Cretagus sa. (Hawthorn)

Taxicadendron radicans (Poison Ivy) HERBACEOUS VEGETATION ONLY (A.)

#### NAGEL KEY

TREES A = Acer.rebrum (Red Maple) Po = Populus transmission (Trembling Aspen) SHRUBS AND VINES (T)

Cornus spp. (Dogwood) Physocarpus operitorius (Ninebark) Salix spp, (Willow) HERBACEOUS VEGETATION ONLY (A.)

#### KELLOGG FOREST KEY

TREES F = <u>Franking nigra</u> (Black Ash) Po = <u>Populas transloides</u> (Trembling Aspen) S = Salin\_sp, (Willow)

SHRUBS AND VINES (T)

Cernus sup. (Dogwood) Parthenoclasus autonustalia (Virginia Creeper) Physocanus onuliteitus (Ninebark) Ribes sp. (Gooseberry) users and (oursevery) B952 and (Wild Rose) Salia and (Wildow) Sambucus and (Elderberry) Spinsa and

Figure 4. Woody vegetation profiles of Upper 43rd, Nagel, and Kellogg Forest sites, Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan (1975).

common at the Kellogg Forest (Table 2). At Upper 43rd and Nagel Sites emergent vegetation was present as well, including <u>Peltandra virginica</u> (L.) Kunth. and <u>Saggittaria latifolia</u> Willd. During the summer at the Nagel Site, much of the riffle was covered by submergent <u>S. latifolia</u>, Sparganium, Potamogeton pectinatus L., and P. nodosis Poir.

The physical composition of the sediments for the five sites, after Cummins (1962), was determined by particle-sizing into the following categories: pebbles (> 16 mm), gravel (> 4 mm), very coarse sand (> 1 mm), medium sand (> 250  $\mu$ m), and very fine sands (> 75  $\mu$ m). All sites were dominated by the larger particle-sizes with 65 to 81 percent composition of 16 and 4 mm substrates (Figure 5). The Smith and B Avenue Sites were very similar and on the lower end of the average (65 and 66% respectively), while the Upper 43rd (76%), Nagel (81%) and Kellogg Forest (77%) Sites were similar and had a higher proportion of particles greater than 16 mm in diameter. Travertine deposits were noticeable on the rocks at Upper 43rd, and Nagel, which reflected increases in photosynthetic activity and the alkaline nature of the water; travertine was absent at Smith and B Avenue, and intermediate in development at Kellogg Forest.

The macroinvertebrates, which accounted for greater than 10% of the standing crop over an annual period, included 19 taxa: five mayflies (Ephemeroptera), five caddisflies (Trichoptera), one riffle beetle (Coleoptera), six dipterans with a predominance of midges (Diptera), the amphipod Gammarus, and a water mite (Hydracina) (Table 3). The B Avenue Site had the highest number of common taxa (13), although the overall diversity was highest in the open reaches (Table 3).

		SMITH		B	AVEN	UE	UPF	UPPER 43rd		NAGEL			KI F(	KELLOGG FOREST		
TAXON	COMMON NAME	L	R*	TA**	L	R	TA	L	R	TA	L	R	TA	L	R	TA
Bryophyta	moss	8	10	R	3	2	R	-	-	-		1	R	2	4	R
Arthrophyta Equisetum sp.	horsetails	1	-	R	8	1	R	-	7	R	4	1	R	-	-	-
Pterophyta Dryopteris sp. Onoclea sensibilis L.	shieldfern sensitive fern	- 6	- 11	– R		_ 14	– R		-	-	-	4 -	R -	- -	- 17	 R
Magnoliophyta																
Typhaceae Typha latifolia L.	common cattail grasses	<1	- 1	– R	 1	- 2	– R	<1	- 10	– R	2 50	- 4	R C	<1	- 4	– R
Gramineae								-								
Cyperaceae Carex spp. Scirpus atrovirens	sedges	52	33	С	2	12	R	72	28	A	3	54	С	-	44	С
Willd. S. validus Vahl.	great bulrush	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	1 1	-	R R	-	-	-
Araceae Symplocarpus foetidus (L.) Nutt.	skunk cabbage	1	_	R	19	26	С	_	-	_	_	-	-	3	1	R

Table 2. Percent coverage and abundance of herbaceous plants from ten meter transects established perpendicular to each bank at five sites of Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michiagn, July 1975.

# Table 2. (cont'd.)

*,* 

			SMITH B AVENUE UPPER 431			43rd		NAGE	Ľ	K	GG T					
TAXON	COMMON NAME	L	R*	TA**	L	R	TA	L	R	TA	L	R	TA	Ĺ	R	TA
Iridaceae Tris sp.	wild iris	1		R	-		_	1	2	R						
<u></u> opt		-						•	2	ĸ						
Urticaceae Urtica sp.	nettle	-	-	-	2	-	R	-	-	-	-	-	_	-	-	-
Ranunculaceae																
Caltha palustris L.	marsh marigold	1	1	R	1	1	R	-	_	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Ranunculus sp.	buttercup	8	2	R	3	10	R	1	-	R	-	-	_	-	<1	R
Thalictrum sp.	meadow rue	<1	-	R	1		R	3	-	R	-	2	R	-	-	-
Brassicaceae																
(L.) DC	hoary allysum	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	2	R	-	<1	R	-	-	-
Rosaceae																
Fragaria virginiana																
Duchesne.	wild strawberry	<1	-	R	-	-	-	1	-	R	-	-	-	-	-	-
Potentilla sp.	cinquefoil	-	-	-	-	-	-	1	-	R	-	-	-	-	-	-
Fabaceae																
Trifolium pratense L.	red clover	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	9	-	R	-	-	-
Geraniaceae																
Geranium maculatum L.	wild geranium	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	1	R	-	-	-
Balsaminaceae																
Impatiens balsamina L.	jewelweed	2	5	R	1	2	R	-	<1	R	<1	-	R	<1	<1	R

# Table 2. (cont'd.)

		SMITH			B	AVE	NUE	UPI	PER	43rd		NAGEL	<u> </u>	K F	KELLOGG FOREST		
TAXON	COMMON NAME	L	R*	TA <b>**</b>	L	R	TA	L	R	TA	L	R	TA	L	R	TA	
Violaceae Viola sp.	violet	_	1	R		1	R	_			1	_	R	1			
	VIOLEE		•			1	K				-		K	•		K	
Lythraceae Lythrum salicaria L.	purple loostrife	-	_	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	3	<1	R	
Apiaceae Angelica																	
atropurpurea L.	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	2	1	R	-	10	R	-	-	-	
<u>Cicuta</u> <u>bulbifera</u> L. <u>Daucus</u> <u>carota</u> L.	- wild carrot	3	2 _	R -	-	-	-	-	2 1	R R	-	5 -	R -	-	-	-	
Primulaceae Lysimachia ciliata L.	-	_	_	_	_	_	-	1	-	R	-	_	_	_	_	-	
								•									
Asclepidaceae Asclepias sp.	milkweed	-	-	-	-	-	-	1	1	R	1	<1	R	-	-	-	
Boraginaceae																	
Myosotis sp.	forget-me-not	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	53	-	С	
Verbenaceae																	
Verbena sp.	vervain	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	1	1	R	-	-	-	
Lamaraceae	water																
Lycopus americanus Muhl.	horehound	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	<1	<1	R	1	-	R	

.

## Table 2. (cont'd.)

			SMIT	H	B	AVE	NUE	UP	PER	3rd	N	NAGEL		KELLOGG FOREST		GG T
TAXON	COMMON NAME	L	R*	TA**	L	R	TA	L	R	TA	L	R	ТА	L	R	TA
Prunella vulgaris L.	self-heal	<1	_	R	1	_	R	_	<u></u>		1	-	R	<1	-	R
Rubiaceae Galium sp.	bedstraw	10	1	R	1	3	R	<1	<1	R	-	1	R	1	1	R
Lobeliaceae Lobelia sp.	-	-	2	R	-	-	-	1	1	R	5	-	R	-	-	-
Asteraceae Cirsium sp.	thistle	1	1	R	-	_	-	-	_	-	-	-	_	_	_	-
Erigeron sp. Eupatorium	fleabane daisy	2	-	R	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	
maculatum L. E. perfoliatum L.	joe-pye weed boneset	-	1	R -	-	- -	-	3	8 -	R -	4 1	3 -	R R	-	1 -	R -
Rudbeckia hirta L. Solidago sp.	black-eyed susar goldenrod	n – 4	- 1	– R	-	-1	– R	 10	- 28	- c	-	1 3	R R	-1	- 4	– R
officinale Weber	dandelion	<1	-	R	-	-	-	-	1	R	10	-	R	-	-	-
unknowns		5	3	<u>_R</u>	5	1	<u></u>	-	1	<u></u>	-	4	R	1	6	<u></u>
Total Taxa				23			16			21			28			16

\* L = left bank

\*\* TA = total abundance ( $\overline{x}$  percent coverage for the site)

R = right bank

A = abundant = greater than 50% C = common = greater than 10%; less than 50% R = less than 10%



. .

Figure 5. Percent composition of particle-sizes from riffle section inorganic sediments, Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan (1974-1975).

Taxon	Smith	B Avenue	Upper 43rd	Nagel	Kellogg Forest
EPHEMEROPTERA	<del></del>	<u> </u>			
Baetidae	-	с*	-	С	-
Ephemerella	-	С	-	_	С
Stenonema	-	С	С	-	_
Caenis		С	_	-	-
Hexagenia	-	-	С	-	-
TRICHOPTERA					
Hydropsychidae	-	С	С	С	С
Psychomyeiodae	-	-	С	С	С
Neophylax	-	С	-	С	С
Glossosoma		С	-	-	-
Protoptila	-	-	-	С	-
COLEOPTERA					
Elmidae	-	С	C	С	С
DIPTERA					
Chironomidae	A <b>**</b>	Δ	۵	• •	A
Simulidae	A	C	-	-	-
Atherix		Č	-	-	_
Antocha	-	_	С	-	-
Eriocera	-	С	-	-	-
Dicranota	-	C	-	-	-
AMPHIPODA					
Gammarus	A	-	-	-	-
ARCHNIDA					
Hydracina	-	-	-	С	С
TOTAL (C and A) TOTAL SPECIES	3 (15)	13 (19)	7 (30)	8 (30)	 (29)
* C = common ( ** A = abundant	> 10% < 50% (> 50%)	%)			

Table 3. Abundant and common macroinvertebrates from selected riffle sections of Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan (1974-1975).

.

#### METHODS

Indeed the spring diatom bloom is such a pleasant snake free period on Augusta Creek... 5 March 1974

Estimates of community metabolism were measured over a two year period (1973-1975) in five selected riffle sections of Augusta Creek, Michigan, using an <u>in situ</u> chamber technique (Figure 2). Circular chambers, illustrated in Figure 6, were constructed of 3.2 mm (1/8") thickness Plexiglas cylinders of telescoping diameters. The bottoms were 21.5 cm in diameter by five cm deep, while the lids were 22 cm in diameter by approximately 10.2 cm in height. A hole was cut in the lids for the insertion of a stopper in which a YSI (Yellow Springs Instrument Co.) self-stirring oxygen probe (Model 5420-A) was mounted. All bottoms and dark lids were opaqued with Krylon flat black paint and covered with two layers of black electricians tape applied in opposite directions to prevent light penetration (APHA et al. 1971). Chambers were  $0.036 \text{ m}^{-2}$  in area, held approximately 1500 ml of sediment and three liters of water.

Chamber bottoms were filled with natural substrate and buried in riffle sections of Augusta Creek (Figures 1 and 2) where they were allowed to recolonize at least one month prior to experimentation.

Just prior to an experiment YSI oxygen meters (Model 51-A temperature compensating) and oxygen probes were calibrated with oxygen probes in 100% humidity chambers which were submersed in the stream and equilibrated to stream temperature. Water samples were taken with a VanDorn water sampler and fixed in the field for Winkler titration of dissolved oxygen (APHA et al. 1971) at the beginning and



Figure 6. Plexiglas chamber designed for estimating community metabolism in stream riffle sections.

end of each experiment to check probe calibration. An average deviation of  $\pm 0.5 \text{ mg } 0_2 \text{ } 1^{-1}$  (n = 38) was found from Winkler results for initial oxygens, while  $\pm 0.04 \text{ mg } 0_2 \text{ } 1^{-1}$  was the average deviation of final titrations (n = 38). The precision of the YSI probe system was  $\pm 0.2 \text{ mg } 0_2 \text{ } 1^{-1}$  (Yellow Springs Instrument Co.). Checks on probe drift and oxygen consumption of empty chambers were run at room temperature in the laboratory and in temperature controlled experimental stream channels with no significant changes observed ( $\pm$ 0.2 mg 0<sub>2</sub> 1<sup>-1</sup>).

A complete field procedure diagram is illustrated in Figure 7. At the start of an experiment, Plexiglas viewers were used to locate chamber bottoms in the substrate. Markers were not used so the bottoms would remain inconspicuous in the sediments. the first two or three bottoms located in the predawn light were selected as replicates, provided they were not washed out. This method of selection was considered random.

Plexiglas lids were placed over each chamber and due to the closeness of fit, plus layers of electrician's tape, a tight seal was obtained (chambers could be lifted out and set on the stream bank with no water loss). Half-hour changes in oxygen and temperature were monitored using polarographic oxygen sensors equipped with electric stirrers. The stirrer provided a current within the chamber to better simulate stream conditions. although the flow was not laminar, it was sufficient to thoroughly mix the water within the chamber, as evidenced by the almost instantaneous dispersal of test dyes or observations of attached detritus and algae that indicated swaying to be similar to that outside of the chamber. Laboratory and field

Figure 7. Experimental design of <u>in situ</u> community metabolism field experiments.

.

FIELD PROCEDURE



studies have indicated currents of less than 15 to 2 cm s<sup>-1</sup> affect CR and mineral uptake in lotic systems (Odum and Hoskin 1957; Whitford and Schumacher 1961, 1964; Pfeifer and McDiffett 1975). The oxygen-probe stirrer is designed to create a current of at least 10 cm s<sup>-1</sup> over the membrane (YSI Instrument Co.). Estimates of community metabolism obtained with these chambers compared favorably (within expected variation for the reach) with those in which laminar flow was provided (Bott et al. 1978). The stirrer was run in the field using 12 volt car batteries and a Wards Power Verter (Model 2V200B).

Each experiment consisted of a two day sampling period. One day a light lid was placed over each replicate chamber to monitor net community productivity (NCP) from sunrise to sunset and the second day to monitor community respiration (CR) on the same substrate dark lids were employed (days were always consecutive). Dark runs were for variable lengths of time (generally daylength), but continued until an oxygen change of at least 2 mg  $1^{-1}$  occurred, which placed measurement error at 10% ( $\pm$  0.2 mg  $1^{-1}$ ). Dark runs followed by diel light runs were completed at the B Avenue and Nagel sites to compare CR rates obtained during daylight and dark periods. There were no measurable differences in the two rates, therefore daylight monitoring of CR continued (Table 4).

Stream temperatures and levels of incident light were also monitored at half-hour intervals, using a YSI Thermister or a mercury thermometer and a Weston Photometer (Model 756), respectively.

At experiment termination the chamber volumes were measured and the sediments taken back to the laboratory for removal of detrital content through decanting, and sorting of macroinvertebrates (Figure

Table 4. Comparison of community respiration rates obtained during daylight and dark periods from selected riffle sites of Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan.

Date	Site	Dark Chamber x g O <sub>2</sub> /m <sup>2</sup> h <sup>-1</sup> - range	Light Chamber-Night $\overline{x}$ g O <sub>2</sub> /m <sup>2</sup> h <sup>-1</sup> - range
07 June 1973	B Avenue	0.029 (0.021-0.037)	0.028 (0.025-0.031)
29 May 1974	Nagel	0.082 (0.063-0.100)	0.079 (0.068-0.089)

7). During the second year of sampling, the organic content of attached periphyton assemblages, and POM and algae incorporated in the travertine, was determined by ashing and reported as epilithon (g AFDW  $m^{-2}$ ; Figure 8). All POM was oven dried at 52 C to a constant weight (48 hours or greater). Ash free dry weight (AFDW) was obtained by ashing at 550 C for 24 hours (Figure 8). When epilithon AFDW was determined, detritus was gently elutriated from the inorganic sediments; then materials were collected separately, particle sized and AFDW determined for both components.

Macroinvertebrates were removed from either entire chamber sediments or subsamples (40 ml of 500 ml) of a sediment slurry (Figure 8). Using Chi-Square analysis for random distribution of organisms, it was determined that subsampling was adequate (P < 0.05) to estimate this component (Elliott 1971). Macroinvertebrates were dried (52 C) and AFDW determined as for sediments.

Duplicate estimates of community metabolism were completed on a monthly basis at the B Avenue site from January 1973 through May 1974 and at the Nagel site from August 1973 to August 1974. Seasonal estimates were made at five sites (Smith, B Avenue, Upper 43rd, Nagel and Kellogg Forest) from October 1974 through July 1975). Seasons were delineated as follows: Fall - September through November, Winter - December through February, Spring - March through May, and Summer -June through August.

Parameters calculated are listed and defined in Table 5 (Hewlett-Packard 2100A Mini Computer). Regression analyses, involving individual estimates of NCP and CR and averages of the parameters listed in Table 5 with the independent variables light, temperature



\* Wild dissecting microscope model M-5 ( 50x).
\*\* Mettler H-16 (organic) - Mettler P-163 or E-1000 (inorganic).
\*\*\* Thermolyne model F-41730 muffle furnace.

Figure 8. Laboratory procedure for determination of ash-fee dry weight (AFDW) of chamber sediments and macroinvertebrates.

Parameter	Definition
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	ber mit brom
Net Community Productivity (NCP) mg $O_2 m^{-2}d^{-1}$ (hr, month)	O <sub>2</sub> produced during the daylight period (sunrise-sunset) Final O <sub>2</sub> -Initial O <sub>2</sub> x CV <sup>*</sup> x CF <sup>**</sup>
Community Respiration (CR) mg $0_2 m^{-2}h^{-1}$ (day,month)	$0_2$ used by the community-day and night. Initial $0_2$ - Final $0_2$ x CV x CF
Gross Community Productivity (GCP) mg $0_2 m^{-2}d^{-1}$ (hr, month)	NCP + (CR/h <sup>-1</sup> x Daylength)
	"profit or debit"
Net Daily Metabolism (NDM) mg $O_2 m^{-2}d^{-1}$ (hr, month)	GCP m <sup>-2</sup> d <sup>-1</sup> - 24 hour CR m <sup>-2</sup> d <sup>-1</sup>
P/R Ratio	Photosynthesis/Respiration ratio GCP m <sup>-2</sup> d <sup>-1</sup> / 24 hour CR m <sup>-2</sup> d <sup>-1</sup>
Ash Free Dry Weight (AFDW)	Organic content (g) of sample Ashed 550C (24 hours)
Epilithon AFDW	Organic content of inorganic sediment
Total AFDW	AFDW + Epilithon AFDW
<pre>* CV = chamber volume **CF = conversion factor to m<sup>2</sup></pre>	

Table 5. Procedure for estimating parameters of community metabolism experiments.

and AFDW, were completed (Biomedical Computer Programs P-Series (BMDP); Health Sciences Computing Facility, UCLA, NIH Special Research Resources Grant RR-3; Vax-11/780 digital computer, Kellogg Biological Station).

The contribution of the epilithon as well as the detrital flora of various sediment sizes to the NCP and CR during February - March, June and August at these five Augusta Creek sites (Figure 2), was determined using two Gilson Differential Respirometers (Model 20; Gilson 1963, Lawton and Richards 1970). Triplicate samples, picked macroinvertebrate free, of detritus and inorganic sediment particle-sized in 4 mm, 1 mm, 250  $\mu$ m, 75  $\mu$ m, and 0.45  $\mu$ m categories, were run at the ambient stream temperatures under 15,000 lux (GE Power Groove bulbs) for estimates of NCP and in darkness for estimates of CR (Figure 9).

Samples were allowed to equilibrate under the lights for one hour prior to 15 minute estimates over a three hour period. The respirometers were then darkened for an equilibration period (1 hour), and a subsequent three hour dark estimates. All vessel contents were filtered on pre-weighed 0.45  $\mu$ m Millipore filters, dried at 52 C, weighed, and ashed at 550 C for 24 hours for determination of AFDW (Figure 9). Estimates of NCP and CR were expressed as  $\mu$ 1 0<sub>2</sub> g AFDW<sup>-1</sup> and g 0<sub>2</sub> m<sup>-2</sup>d<sup>-1</sup> (G. L. Spengler modification of Petersen's 1974 respiration program; Hewlett-Packard 2100 A Mini Computer at the Kellogg Biological Station Computer Facility).

Figure 9. Experimental design for Gilson Respirometer estimates of community metabolism of particle-sized substrate.



PLEXIGLAS CHAMBER BOTTOMS-FILLED WITH NATURAL SUBSTRATE (21.5 cm diameter x 5 cm height) BURIED IN RIFFLE SECTION COLONIZED 1 MONTH OR MORE EXPERIMENTAL RUN DAY: GENTLY REMOVE CHAMBER BOTTOM-TRANSPORT TO LAB (ice chest) INORGANIC PARTICLES GENTLY RINSED AND PARTICLE SIZED-4 mm 1 mm ORGANIC MATTER + RINSE WATER PARTICLE SIZED: -250 µm. 75 µm. MACROINVERTEBRATES REMOVED FROM SEDIMENTS -FILTRATE (Wild M-5 Dissecting Microscope) RINSE WATER TO 10 1 VOLUME- 3-100 ml SUBSAMPLES FILTERED (0.45 um Millipore filters) AUTOCLAVED REACTION VESSELS 2 ml filtered stream water 0.4 ml 20% KOH in side arm + filter 3 REPLICATE VESSELS/PARTICLE SIZE: 15 ORGANIC + 12 INORGANIC VESSELS 6 or more CONTROL VESSELS (filtered stream water) 2 GILSON MODEL 20 DIFFERENTIAL RESPIROMETERS (set at stream temperature) ONE HOUR EQUILIBRATION PERIOD UNDER LIGHTS LIGHT RUN: (15,000-20,000 lux - GE POWER GROOVE BULBS) CLOSE RESPIROMETER: 3 hr RUN - READINGS/15 min ONE HOUR EQUILIBRATION IN DARKNESS DARK RUN: (opaque cloths cover respirometers + lights out) CLOSE RESPIROMETER: 3 hr RUN - READINGS/15 min RUN TERMINATION: VESSELS FILTERED ON PREWEIGHED 0.45 µm MILLIPORE FILTERS DRIED 52 C > 48 hrs WEIGHED (mettler Balance Model H-16) ASHED (Thermolyne Model F-41730 Muffle furnace) ASH FREE DRY WEIGHT (AFDW)  $\mu 1 \text{ O}_2/\text{mg}^{-1} \text{ AFDW} \longrightarrow \text{G} \text{ O}_2/\text{M}^{-2}$ **RESULTS:** 

Figure 9.

### **RESULTS AND DISCUSSION**

## Sunlight reflecting off Augusta Creek is jubilant in early spring wherein lies a diatomaceous carpet... March 1974

### Physical Parameters

The range and average stream temperatures and incident light based on half-hour interval measurements at each site during the experimental runs, were used to characterize the conditions of metabolic estimates (Appendix D, Tables D 1-5).

### Temperature

Based on weekly maximum-minimum temperature data from Augusta Creek sites (1973-1977; King 1978, Mahan 1980) temperature patterns were similar throughout the drainage with maxima ranging from 24.6 C at B Avenue to 29.6 C at Upper 43rd (Table 1). During this study similar trends were evident with maxima ranging from 19.9 C at B Avenue and Smith Sites to 24.8 C at Upper 43rd Site with Nagel and Kellogg Forest Sites attaining maxima of 23.9 and 22.2 C respectively (Appendix D).

Average daily temperatures exhibited typical temperate region seasonal trends at all sites (Figure 10). Mean daily temperatures ranged from 0.4 C at the Upper 43rd Site in January to 22.6 C at the Nagel Site in August. Maximum daily averages at the other sites were: Smith 17.6 C, B Avenue 17.6 C, Upper 43rd 21.7 C, and Kellogg Forest 19 C. Although large differences in temperatures were not evident, the first order Smith and B Avenue Sites had the lowest temperatures, the open Upper 43rd (second order) and Nagel (third order) the



Figure 10. Average daily temperature values for selected sites in the Augusta Creek watershed, Kalamazoo County, Michigan (1973-1975).

highest, while those of the downstream forested third order Kellogg Forest Site were intermediate (Figure 10, Appendix D).

The greatest daily temperature fluctuations occurred in the first order sections during spring and summer (10.5 C) and were similar to fluctuations reported for an Arizona desert stream by Bush and Fisher (1981). However the greatest average daily fluctuations were at the Upper 43rd Site (4.0 C) followed by the Nagel Site (3.4 C) and indicated the influence of lack of canopy (Table 6). The lower Nagel average emphasized the presence of cold springs and perhaps increased volume at a third order reach (King 1978), while the stability of the Kellogg Forest temperatures probably represented increased discharge and shade effects. Since the metabolism experiments were run on a consecutive day basis such daily fluctuations were important. Consecutive day differences were significantly less than daily differences in range and average and varied from 27 to 50% of the average daily temperature fluctuations (Table 6).

## Light (Irradiance)

Light (= irradiance) patterns at the five sites followed expected temperate region seasonal and site trends (Figures 11 and 12). Shading was indicated at the Smith, B Avenue, and Kellogg Forest Sites with maximum levels at the Upper 43rd and Nagel sites (Figures 11, 12; Table 7). The highest average daily light levels were recorded in May at the Upper 43rd Site (90,213 lux), and the Nagel Site (84,631 lux) and the lowest level was 2,391 lux during January at the B Avenue Site. The highest light levels were recorded at all sites during April, May and June, reflecting the approach of the summer solstice.

	Daily	Daily	Consecut	ive Day	Percent		
Site	Range °C	Average °C	Range °C	Average °C	of Daily		
Smith <sup>*</sup>	0.5-7.1	3.0	0.4-1.5	0.9	30		
B Avenue	0.3-10.5	3.3	0.1-3.0	1.1	33		
Upper 43rd*	0.5-7.2	4.0	0.5-2.7	1.7	42		
Nagel	0.0-6.0	3.4	0.0-5.2	1.7	50		
Kellogg Forest*	0.0-5.8	2.6	0.1-1.2	0.7	27		
* Seasonal estima	ates only (1	1974-1975)					

Table 6. Temperature fluctuations at sites of Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan (1973-1975).



Figure 11. Average daily light values for the Smith, B Avenue, and Upper 43 Rd sites of Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan (1973-1975).



Figure 12. Average daily light values for Nagel and Kellogg Forest Sites of Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan (1973-1975).

Daily Average (Lux)	Annual Fluctuations Daily Average (Lux)	Percent Maximum Lux	Percent Kellogg Forest Lux
12,054	6,268-23,358	28	42
13,213	2,391-47,709	30	46
43,622**	12,208-90,213	100	152
36,959	2,824-84,631	85	128
28,787	6,404-71,840	66	100
	Daily Average (Lux) 12,054 13,213 43,622** 36,959 28,787	Daily         Fluctuations           Average (Lux)         Daily Average (Lux)           12,054         6,268-23,358           13,213         2,391-47,709           43,622**         12,208-90,213           36,959         2,824-84,631           28,787         6,404-71,840	Daily Average (Lux)         Fluctuations Daily Average (Lux)         Percent Maximum Lux           12,054         6,268-23,358         28           13,213         2,391-47,709         30           43,622**         12,208-90,213         100           36,959         2,824-84,631         85           28,787         6,404-71,840         66

Table 7.Light intensity fluctuations (irradiance) at selected sites of<br/>Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan (1973-1975).

Leaf emergence at the shaded sites significantly decreased light levels in June, while abscission increased light in October when incident light is on a gradual decline in the temperate latitudes (Figures 11 and 12). Lower light values at Smith and B Avenue, even during periods when leaves were not present, indicated the shading effect by tree "skeletons".

The annual patterns of average daily lux indicated positive relationships with stream cover and width. Narrow first order reaches had mimimum light, wider unforested reaches had maximum and the 7.0 m shaded Kellogg Forest reach intermediate levels (Figures 3, 4; Table 7). Autotrophic zones, according to the continuum concept, generally will be limited in natural stream reaches of 10 m or less in width (Vannote et al. 1980). Because of canopy alteration at the second order Upper 43rd and third order Nagel Sites, significant light inputs resulted. As well, significant levels occurred at the forested Kellogg Forest Site (66% of the open sites; Table 7).

The percentage of maximum daily light (Upper 43rd) received by each site ranged from 25 to 85% at the Smith and Nagel sites, respectively (Table 7). If the Kellogg Forest is considered a typical shaded third order reach the first order sites received 42 to 46% of maximum light in contrast to 28 to 30% of the open site (Table 7). The difference in light at the two open sites may be accounted for by the orientation of the channel (Upper 43rd E-W and Nagel N-S), as shown by Kobayasi (1961) for a canyon stream; variability in days monitored; or the increased observations at the Nagel Site (n = 8 Upper 43rd, n = 30 Nagel).

The complexity of the light regime at the shaded Kellogg Forest

Site, represented in Figure 13, illustrated the predictable variation in potential autotrophic zones during leaf-out of riparian vegetation and reflected the heterogeneity with which one must contend in estimating <u>in situ</u> metabolic activity, hopefully, viewed as a challenge rather than a deterrent to in situ measurements.

#### Community Metabolism

The interrelationships of autotrophic and heterotrophic components within lotic communities has been of interest for some time. Only recently, concomitant with this investigation and the advent of field chamber techniques, have estimates of community metabolism been made on discrete communities (Bombowna 1972, Pfeifer and McDiffett 1975, Marker 1976b, Bott et al. 1978, Pennak and Lavelle 1979, Sumner and Fisher 1979, Bush and Fisher 1981, Hornick et al. 1981). Such studies allow analyses of the producing or consuming modes of the community and thus, the autotrophic-heterotrophic balance within. Community metabolism studies have followed the approach for studying lotic systems outlined by Shelford and Eddy (1929) with several excellent artificial stream and laboratory chamber studies completed prior to <u>in situ</u> work (Whitford and Schumacher 1961, 1964; Edwards and Rolley 1965; Kevern and Ball 1965; McIntire and Phinney 1965; McIntire 1966; Maki 1974; Pfeifer and McDiffett 1975).

Methods and standardization of data presentation for studies of community metabolism are still in a state of flux. Many methods have been presented, however, often no mention is made of what was measured (i.e. gross versus net community productivity); standardization of units (oxygen, carbon, calories, gram calories, chlorophyll (various



Figure 13. Daily light patterns at Kellogg Forest, Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan on 25 July 1975.

pigments or total), glucose, dry weight, AFDW); or how the results are expressed (m<sup>-2</sup>, m<sup>-3</sup>, mg<sup>-1</sup>chlorophyll, g<sup>-1</sup> dry weight, g<sup>-1</sup> AFDW, per chamber, etc.). Various estimates of PQ (photosynthetic quotient) and RQ (respiratory quotient) also complicate the situation of converting oxygen values to carbon and based on the few studies completed on periphyton communities, these quotients appear to be highly variable (PQ 1.45 to 2.6, RQ 0.85 to 1.1; Schindler et al. 1973, Bott et al 1978, Bott and Ritter 1981). Oxygen and 14C estimates of community metabolism have been shown to measure similar magnitudes of productivity in coral reef communities (Littler 1973) and littoral zones of freshwater lakes (Hunding and Hargrave 1973); yet Schindler et al. (1973) compared four methods (oxygen, dissolved inorganic carbon, 14C uptake and disappearance) and found little agreement other than general trends. They attributed the discrepancies to inappropriate PQ and RQ values for the gaseous methods. Bott and Ritter (1981) compared <sup>14</sup>C and oxygen estimates of community productivity in riffle communities and reported similar patterns of productivity, but lower estimates were obtained using the <sup>14</sup>C method; PQ values varied, which reinforced the necessity of measuring PQ, as values were generally higher than previously reported.

Since the conversion of oxygen uptake to carbon fixation is not reliable, data from this investigation will be presented, as measured, as oxygen and compared with those studies reported in oxygen units. (Table 8). This study, based on intact riffle communities and not isolated substrates, should yield a more realistic estimate of <u>in situ</u> metabolism of riffle reaches in Augusta Creek.

Author/s	Date	System	Period	NCP*	CR	GCP	P/R
CHAMBER ESTIMATES							
Göthberg & Karlström	1975	Rickleån River-N,H Sweden	Fall & Summer		0.5-0.7		
Marker	1976	Bere Stream England	Annual		0.3-7.2	******	
Bott et al.	1978	White Clay Creek-N-3 Pennsylvania	August	0.7-3.5	0.7-3.1	1.5-7.1	0.94-1.05
Litke	1978	Chippewa River-N-4 Michigan	Seasonal		0.5-2.4	0.8-4.6	1.4-1.8
Sumner & Fisher	1979	Fort River-N~3 Massachusetts	Annual		1.5-7.0	0.1-6.5	0.01-0.68
Bush & Fisher	1981	Sycamore Creek-CM Arizona	Summer		5.1	4.4-12.5	0.96-2.3
LIGHT BOTTLE-DARK B	OTTLE						
Bombówna	1972	River Raba-N-2 Poland	April-October			0.96-1.32	
Ertl & Tomajka	1973	Danube River	Annual			0.9-0.55	

Table 8. Literature estimates of in situ community metabolism in streams (g  $0_2 m^{-2}d^{-1}$ ).

# Table 8. (cont'd.)

Author/s	Date	System	Period	NCP*	CR	GCP	P/R
LIGHT BOTTLE-DARK BO	TTLE (Co	nt'd.)					
Helan et al.	1973	Brodská Brook-N Czechoslavakia	June-March		چه می که آنه که که اس که این که این که چه که که که	0.13-11.34	
UPSTREAM-DOWNSTREAM	METHOD						
Butcher et al.	<b>193</b> 0	Itchen River-N England	NovMarch		4.2-20.2	0.04-14.0	0.1-1.1
Butcher et al.	<b>193</b> 0	Lark River-P England	NovMay		35.0-53.0	0.53-0.39	0.01-1.1
Denham	1938	White River-E Indiana	Annual		5.8-18.6	5.5-14.0	0.6-1.1
Hornuff**	1957	Blue River Oklahoma	· 			1.03	
Hornuff	1957	Mountain Fork Oklahoma				2.17	
Hornuff	1957	Honey Creek Oklahoma				2.66	
Hoskin	1959	Neuse River North Carolina					0.2-0.7

•

Table 8. (cont'd.)

Author/s	Date	System	Period	NCP*	CR	GCP	P/R
UPSTREAM-DOWNSTREAM	(Cont'd	<u>.)</u>					<u></u>
Nelson and Scott	1962	Piedomont Stream-N,T Georgia	AugDec.		0.43-2.55	0.7-0.27	0.16-0.26
Noyce***	<b>19</b> 65	Cottonwood River Kansas			0.6-9.6	1.5-7.0	
Baumgardner***	1966	Skeleton Creek-P Oklahoma			0.6-9.6	1.5-7.0	
Duffer & Dorris	1966	Blue River-N-2 Oklahoma	June-August		6.1-19.9	1.5-48.0	
Hannan****	1967	San Marcos River-N,M Texas			4.1-19.9	2.5-27.4	
Stockner	1968	Ohanapecosh-N,H Washington		0.33-8.64	0.56-2.7	0.89-11.3	1.1-5.0
Eley***	1 <b>97</b> 0	Skeleton Creek Pennsylvania	Annual	^	33.5	13.6	
Flemer	1 <b>97</b> 0	Roritan River-N 4-5 New Jersey	May-Sept.	بد الاراد الد اللي	3.7-5.4	2.0-8.8	0.8-1.6
Flemer	1 <b>97</b> 0	Roritan River-E 4-5 New Jersey	OctDec.		0.9-1.9	2.5-16.7	0.9-1.9

Table 8. (cont'd.)

Author/s	Date	System	Period	NCP*	CR	GCP	P/R
UPSTREAM-DOWNSTREAM	(Cont'd	<u>l.)</u>		<u> </u>			·
Flemer	1970	Roritan River-E 4-5 New Jersey	OctDec.	499 table 400 table 700 table 700	7.0-11.3	2.5-25.1	0.7-2.0
Hall	1972	New Hope-N N. Carolina	2 years		0.4-13.0	0.21-9.0	
McDiffett, Carr & Young	1972	Buffalo Creek-N Pennsylvania	August		2.0-2.3	4.9-6.3	2.6
Cole	1973	Spring Creek-N Pennsylvania	Annual		2.0-13.0	2.0-17.0	0.3-2.0
Cole	1973	Spring Creek-E Pennsylvania	Annual		12.0-18.0	4.0-20.0	0.2-0.9
Profet & Ransom	1974	Cedar Creek-N Kansas	Summer		5.52-26.6	1.0-24.2	
Profet & Ransom	1974	Cottonwood River-N~4 Kansas	Summer		19.9-26.4	9.9-32.3	
Profet & Ransom	1974	Walnut River-N Kansas	Summer		7.2-12.0	5.1-5.7	
de la Cruz & Post	1977	Catahoula River-N-2 Mississippi	Seasonal		7.88-50.1	4.1-28.4	0.24-0.57
Table 8. (cont'd.)

Autho	or/s	Date	System	Period	NCP*	CR	GCP	P/R
UPSTR	EAM-DOWNSTREAM	(Cont'd.	<u>)</u>	·····				
Gelro	th & Marzolf	1978	Lost Creek-N-2 Kansas	July		0.54-1.88	0.51-1.21	0.64-0.95
Gelro	th & Marzolf	1978	Lost Creek-C-2 Kansas	July		2.11	4.16	1.97
*	= All values g	0 <sub>2</sub> m <sup>-2</sup> d <sup>-</sup>	<sup>1</sup> except P/R. All stud	ies used oxygen to	echniques.			
**	= Classificatio	on of sys	tem: N = Natural-Order	, Order approxima	ted from i	nformation	in study;	
			P = Polluted; E =	Effluent; M = Mac	crophyte de	ominated; '	T = Turbid;	
			H = Hot Spring; C	= Channelized; C	M = <u>Cladop</u>	hora mat;	H = Headwate	r.
***	= Taken from Pr	ofet and	Ransom, 1974.					
****	= Taken from Ma	athis, Ta	ylor and Myers, 1969.					

### Gross Community Productivity

GCP, the most cited parameter in the productivity literature, indicates the maximum carbon producing capacity of the autotrophic community and is estimated by the addition of NCP plus CR for the photo-period. Much of the GCP may in turn be respired by the autotrophs. Verduin (1956) noted that the autotrophic community respired up to 80% of the GPP in phytoplankton studies while Hargrave (1969) and Hunding (1971) reported 13 to 15% of GCP respired by periphytic algae. In the present study NCP and CR were obtained from the same sediment on consecutive days, therefore it was assumed that similar heterotroph respiration rates were involved in both NCP and CR estimates.

Intrasite seasonal and intersite variations in GCP occurred annually at riffle sites of Augusta Creek (Figure 14). The lowest GCP values were recorded for the first order sections (Smith 0.09 to 0.18 g  $O_2 m^{-2}d^{-1}$  and B Avenue 0.01 to 0.59 g  $O_2 m^{-2}d^{-1}$ ), the open Nagel and Upper 43rd were highest (0.53 to 5.35 and 0.34 to 3.25 g  $O_2 m^{-2}d^{-1}$  respectively), and the shaded third order Kellogg Forest reach was intermediate (0.53 to 2.16 g  $O_2 m^{-2}d^{-1}$ ; Figure 14; Appendices A, B). On an annual average basis they ranked from lowest to highest: Smith, B Avenue, Kellogg Forest, Upper 43rd, and Nagel (Table 9).

Odum (1956) stated that streams may well be among the most productive environments on earth. However, his statement was based on standing crop estimates and ecosystem studies, using the upstreamdownstream oxygen method for estimating productivity, in streams often enriched by organic pollution. Literature GCP values using the



Figure 14. Average GCP (+ SE) estimates for selected riffle communities in the Augusta Creek watershed, Kalamazoo County, Michigan (1973-1975).

	X NCP	X CR	X GCP	X NDM		X DETRITUS	X EPILITHON	$\overline{\mathbf{X}}$ TOTAL
Site	g m <sup>-2</sup> d <sup>-1</sup> g 1	g m <sup>-2</sup> d-1	; m <sup>-2</sup> d <sup>-1</sup> g m <sup>-2</sup> d <sup>-1</sup>	g m <sup>-2</sup> d <sup>-1</sup>	X P/R	gAFDW m <sup>-2</sup>	gAFDW m <sup>-2</sup>	gAFDW m <sup>-2</sup>
Smith	-0.16	0.56	0.13	-0.44	0.21	388.2	1763.2	2151.8
N	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4
S.E.	0.05	0.10	0.02	0.10	0.03	49.4	161.2	202.2
C.V.%	56.3	35.3	30.7	46.1	26.9	25.5	18.3	18.3
B Avenue	-0.02	0.53	0.26	-0.26	0.45	290.4	2306.8	2625.5
N	16	16	16	16	16	14	4	4
S.E.	0.02	0.06	0.05	0.03	0.06	36.7	191.0	204.1
C.V.%	476.5	43.7	73.7	50 <b>.9</b>	53.1	47.4	16.6	15.5
Upper 43rd	1.24	1.79	2.18	0.45	1.20	240.1	3558.5	3503.5
N	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4
S.E.	0.40	0.49	0.63	0.31	0.17	31.5	702.5	417.9
C.V.%	64.0	54.3	58.1	134 <b>.9</b>	27.9	26.3	43.1	41.0
 Nagel	1.80		2.89	1.01	1.57	291.1	3507.5	3850.5
N	15	15	15	15	15	14	4	4
S.E.	0.26	0.26	0.40	0.24	0.12	17.3	658.5	671.2
C.V.%	56.0	53.6	52.9	<b>91.</b> 0	29.1	22.3	37.6	34.9
Kellogg Forest	0.94	 0.75	1.36	0.60	 1.97	282.5	2675.0	2957.0
N	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4
S.E.	0.23	0.25	0.38	0.17	0.15	28.9	378.0	350.5
C.V.%	48.8	65.4	55.0	56.0	55.4	20.5	28.3	23.7

Table 9. Average community metabolism parameters for experimental runs completed at five riffle sites of Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan 1973-1975.

upstream-downstream method (Odum 1956) range from 0.51 g  $0_2 \text{ m}^{-2}\text{d}^{-1}$  in a natural second order creek of the prairie biome in Kansas (Gelroth and Marzolf 1978) to 48.0 g  $0_2 \text{ m}^{-2}\text{d}^{-1}$  in Blue River Oklahoma (Duffer and Dorris 1966; Table 8). Chamber and light-dark bottle estimates ranged from 0.09 g  $0_2 \text{ m}^{-2} \text{d}^{-1}$  on revetments of the Danube River (Ertl and Tomajka 1973) to 12.5 g  $0_2 \text{ m}^{-2} \text{d}^{-1}$  in Cladophora mats of Sycamore Creek, Arizona (Bush and Fisher 1981). Chamber techniques have been developed to monitor rates of community metabolism in environments with low productivity and in riffle sections where more sensitive methods are essential. The rates of GCP from riffle communities in Augusta Creek ranged from 0.09 to 0.59 g  $0_2 \text{ m}^{-2}\text{d}^{-1}$  at the shaded Smith Site to the open Nagel Site, respectively. These rates are in the lower range of those reported for lotic communities (Table 8). Annual rates at the Smith and B Avenue sites are the lowest in situ measurements reported to date (Table 9; Appendix A). The Augusta Creek GCP maxima are similar to GPP rates of phytoplankton communities while the range is equivilent to terrestrial levels of GPP reported for deserts to temperate deciduous forests (Wetzel 1975a).

The narrow, shaded Smith Site had the lowest seasonal GCP values (Figure 14; Table 9). Although, on a qualitative basis algae were never obvious at the Smith Site, maximum GCP rates were recorded in May prior to leaf emergence, which was during the period of visual diatom bloom in the rest of the watershed.

The B Avenue site also exhibited low levels of GCP on an annual basis, but averaged twice those at Smith Site (Figure 14; Table 9). Maximum rates were measured in June, but within the range of variation rates were similar from April through October. Algal growth was never

obvious in the shaded reaches at B Avenue, but microscopic examination revealed a diverse array of pennate diatoms during the summer months. Annual rates of GCP at this site were similar to those obtained by Nelson and Scott in a 60-m wide piedmont stream in Georgia (1962); they attributed their low values to the presence of high silt loads limiting light penetration (Table 8).

The differences in average daily light received by the two first order Augusta Creek study sites was probably insignificant, as both sites were heavily shaded (Figure 3). The averages for the June to October period were 9,055 lux (n=4) and 8,512 (n=15) at Smith and B Avenue, respectively. Estimates of light-saturated photosynthetic rates in periphyton communities range from 8,000 to 62,000 lux (Kobayasi 1961, McIntire et al. 1974, McIntire and Phinney 1965, Adams and Stone 1973, Lester et al. 1974). The averages for Smith and B Avenue Sites indicated potential shading effects with frequently less than light-saturated photoperiods (Appendix D). CR rates were similar at both sites; but, Smith had slightly higher CR rates (0.56 g  $0_2 m^{-2}d^{-1}$ ) compared to B Avenue (0.53 g  $0_2 m^{-2}d^{-1}$ ), therefore, higher estimates of GCP would tend to be at the Smith Site. Greater GCP at the B Avenue site was probably due to increased algal photosynthesis rather than an effect of CR rates.

The Upper 43rd and Nagel Sites were approximately 13 times more productive than the first order reaches (Figure 14). They also received much higher average light inputs (43,622 lux Upper 43rd and 36,959 lux Nagel) and exhibited a definite succession of attached algae. During the spring, diatom blooms, often nearly pure populations of Meridion circulare Agardh, carpeted all available

substrates. Diatoms were followed in late spring by patches of epipsammic <u>Vaucheria</u>, followed by a patchy summer distribution of <u>Cladophora</u> and blue-green mats dominated by <u>Oscillatoria</u>. A second pulse of diatoms, a mixed association of pennate forms, developed in autumn.

At Upper 43rd the rates of GCP increased in May, remained high throughout the summer and fall, and then decreased significantly during winter. Based on chamber estimates from larger order riffle communities (Table 8), the rates of GCP for Upper 43rd Site (0.34 to  $3.25 \text{ g} 0_2 \text{ m}^{-2}\text{d}^{-1}$  were higher than anticipated for a second order reach. By comparison, in a natural shaded second order section of Lost Creek, Kansas, Gelroth and Marzolf (1978) reported rates of 0.51 to  $1.21 \text{ g} 0_2 \text{ m}^{-2}\text{d}^{-1}$ , while in a cleared and channelized section rates of GCP rose to  $4.16 \text{ g} 0_2 \text{ m}^{-2}\text{d}^{-1}$ , similar to maxima for the Upper 43rd reach.

The third order Nagel Site followed the same seasonal trend as Upper 43rd, but maximum productivity was measured during August (Figure 14) and represented the highest GCP values recorded. These high Augusta Creek rates are similar to those reported by authors using the upstream-downstream technique in various systems (Table 8) and chamber techniques on an open third order stretch of White Clay Creek, Pennsylvania (Bott et al. 1978). The range of 0.66 to 5.35 g  $0_2 m^{-2}d^{-1}$  obtained for Nagel Site was similar to the chamber GCP estimates of Marker (1976b), Litke (1978), and Sumner and Fisher (1979) (Table 8). Based on these comparisons, canopy removal at the Nagel Site shifted the position of this site in the theoretical continuum (Vannote et al. 1980) to reflect the primary productivity of a naturally more open fourth order reach.

The shaded third order Kellogg Forest site averaged 47% the GCP of the cleared Nagel site (1.3 g  $0_2 \text{ m}^{-2}\text{d}^{-1}$ ). An increase in spring plateaued to summer values, then decreased during the fall and winter (Figure 14; Appendix A). The range of 0.53 to 2.16 g  $0_2 \text{ m}^{-2}\text{d}^{-1}$  over the annual period was within the range of studies cited in Table 8. Both maximum and minimum values were lower than those obtained at the cleared Nagel Site and from a naturally shaded fourth order Chippewa River, Michigan, riffle section (Litke 1978). Average light at the Kellogg Forest Site was 66% that of the open reaches (Table 7) with patchy algal development that was never as obvious as at the open Nagel Site. Similar differences in shaded versus unshaded reaches of the same order have been reported by Gelroth and Marzolf (1978), Gregory (1980), Hornick et al. (1981).

Maximum levels of GCP occurred during May and June at Smith, B Avenue and Upper 43rd Sites, while the Kellogg Forest maximum was in July, and Nagel in August (Figure 14). Seasonal trends such as these are typical of aquatic systems of the temperate region (Teal 1957, Cushing 1967, Stockner 1968, Hargrave 1969a, Flemer 1970, Gargas 1970, Hunding 1971, Hall 1972, Vannote and Ball 1972, Helan et al. 1973, Schindler 1973, Profet and Ransom 1974, Marker 1976b, de laCruz and Post 1977, Gelroth and Marzolf 1978, Sumner and Fisher 1979, Hornick et al 1981). The lowest GCP occurred during the winter at all sites of Augusta Creek, a pattern also characteristic of studies in which GCP was monitored on an annual basis (Cushing 1967, Stockner 1968, Ertl and Tomajka 1973, Marker 1976b, Sumner and Fisher 1979).

Viewing natural streams as a continuum (Vannote et al. 1980), the

hypothetical Augusta Creek site ranking based on levels of GCP would proceed from headwater downstream (Smith, B Avenue, Upper 43rd, Nagel, Kellogg Forest). Based on increasing <u>in situ</u> estimates of GCP they were: Smith, B Avenue, Kellogg Forest, Upper 43rd, and Nagel (Table 9). The open Upper 43rd and Nagel Sites illustrated the effects of perturbation by man, while the more natural state of a third order reach was shown by the Kellogg Forest results. The occurrence of open areas increases the complexity of community metabolism patterns in temperate woodland stream riffle sections. Natural and man-produced open areas are typical of present day stream systems and must be considered in applying the continuum concept. Such discontinuities in the continuum are treated in the intermediate disturbance hypothesis of Ward and Stanford (1981).

## Net Community Productivity

Net community productivity (NCP), defined as the rate of carbon reduction minus usage in community respiration during the photoperiod, can be measured directly as oxygen gain or loss using the oxygen change technique. Radioactive carbon tracer uptake experiments (14C) approximate NCP rates (Vollenweider 1969, APHA et al 1971, Schindler et al. 1973, Hunding and Hargrave 1973, Matheke and Horner 1974, Bott and Ritter 1981). NCP is of interest from an ecological standpoint since it represents the carbon available for use, storage, or export within a community. Likens (1975) points out that this is the commodity of interest to consumers and would therefore be important in community and ecosystem modeling. Pratt and Burkson (1959) stated that carbon produced in excess of metabolic need is equivalent to that

quantity that can be exported without change in community standing crop. The majority of work on primary productivity in lotic systems has been orientated towards quantitative or distributional studies (GCP) or laboratory experiments examining effects of physical parameters on rates of primary productivity. Few estimates of NCP exist in the literature (Grzenda et al. 1968, Stockner 1968, Hunding 1971, Adams and Stone 1973, Littler 1973, Cadee and Hegeman 1974, Bott et al. 1978, Bott and Ritter 1981) and not all of these cited are from lotic systems.

Estimates of NCP at the five Augusta Creek sites ranged from a miximum of 4.02 g  $0_2$  m<sup>-2</sup>d<sup>-1</sup> at the Nagel Site in August to a low of -0.25 g  $0_2$  m<sup>-2</sup>d<sup>-1</sup> at the Smith Site in October (Figure 15; Appendices A, B). Ranked in increasing order of average NCP m<sup>-2</sup>d<sup>-1</sup> the sites were in the same order as for GCP (Table 9; Figure 14).

Although photosynthesis was taking place at the first order sites, as indicated by the positive annual GCP values, the NCP was zero or less with the strongest negative trend at the Smith Site (Figures 14, 15; Table 9). Dependence of headwater streams on detrital input from the watershed with primary production often responsible for less than one percent of the annual carbon budget has been shown by Minshall (1967), Kaushik and Hynes (1968), Coffman et al. (1971), Fisher and Likens (1973), Sedell et al. (1975), and Bell et al. (1978). The low rates of NCP coupled with the higher detrital standing crops found at the Augusta Creek first order sites indicated a dependence on allochthonous carbon (Table 9). As discussed for GCP, average light inputs on an annual basis and especially during periods of leaf-out, were undoubtedly limiting the autotrophic potential at



Figure 15. Average rates (+ SE) of NCP at selected riffle sites in the Augusta Creek watershed, Kalamazoo County, Michigan (1973-1975.

these sites (Table 7; Appendix D).

In addition to light limitation, grazing may also have accounted for the lowered levels of NCP at Smith and B Avenue Sites. Hargrave (1969a, 1972) reported low production in the littoral sediments of Lake Marion and Lake Esrom which he attributed to grazing. Kesler (1981), documenting significant grazing effects on attached algae, reported grazing pressures by the midge <u>Corynoneura scutellata</u> to account for 3 to 70% of the NCP. Populations of the scraper caddisfly <u>Glossosoma nigor</u> were abundant at the B Avenue site, and occurred at lesser densities at all other locations, therefore, one might speculate that they were influential in reducing the standing crop of algae and NCP.

The open Upper 43rd and Nagel sites had the highest autotrophic potential of the Augusta Creek sites studied with no significant difference in NCP evident between sites (Figure 15; Table 9). Summer rates measured at Upper 43rd and Nagel sites were similar to those reported by Bott et al. (1978) for an open third order reach of White Clay Creek, Pennsylvania.

NCP at the Kellogg Forest Site was significantly lower than the Nagel reach, but similar to Upper 43rd in average NCP (Table 9). The major divergence was notable during the summer leaf-out period (Figure 15). During this period the average light at the Kellogg Forest was 3,493 lux  $d^{-1}$ , similar to January levels at this site (Appendix D), and well below light saturation levels of periphyton communities (8,000 to 62,000 lux).

It has been estimated that in aquatic communities 15 to 80% of the GCP may be respired by the in place community (Verduin 1956,

Hargrave 1969a, Hunding 1971), which leaves a net gain of 20 to 85% as NCP. The average NCP as a percent of average GCP for Augusta Creek sites was highly variable: -128.5% Smith, -7.6% B Avenue, 57% Upper 43rd, 60% Nagel, 69% Kellogg Forest. The shaded first order sites with negative average deficits are unique to the primary productivity literature, while the open sites (Upper 43rd and Nagel) and shaded third order (Kellogg Forest) site, averaging 62% NCP, were similar to the estimated range in the literature. This again illustrates the dependence on allochthonous carbon sources and the heterotrophic nature of shaded first order Augusta Creek sites and obvious shifts in the magnitude of NCP due to clearing illustrated by the comparison of the Nagel and Kellogg Forest Sites.

#### Community Respiration

Community respiration (CR) is the rate of oxidation of organic matter to inorganic carbon dioxide by the autotrophic and aerobic heterotrophic components combined. In this study CR was measured on intact riffle communities including the smaller particle-sizes of sediment and detritus versus selected stream substrates placed in chambers. Intact <u>in situ</u> community simulation must be kept in mind when comparing CR rates of this study with other studies, because inclusion of all particle-sizes may increase CR estimates, since small particles may be heavily colonized by bacteria and to some extent fungi and algae (Suberkropp and Klug 1974, Madsen 1975). However, rates may also be lower due to lack of community disturbance and less exposure of surfaces to higher oxygen levels.

No attempt was made in the present study to partition CR.

Hargrave (1969a) attributed 33% of CR to macroinvertebrates, 45% to bacteria, and 15% to algae and Edwards and Rolley (1965) estimated 40% respired by macroinvertebrates in soft sediments. Both of these studies were from lentic communities. On a biomass basis, the macroinvertebrates were a small percentage of the total organic content of the Augusta Creek substrates and therefore might be expected to account for less than the estimated 40 to 45%.

With early interest in the effects of pollution on oxygen uptake, estimates of CR have been made in lotic systems since the 1930's (i.e. Butcher et al. 1930, Calvert 1933). Since Odum's (1956) introduction of the upstream-downstream procedure for estimating community metabolism in streams, many estimates of CR have appeared in the literature, but few <u>in situ</u> chamber estimates have been made (Table 8).

Rates of CR ranged from 0.24 to 3.67 g  $0_2 \text{ m}^{-2}\text{d}^{-1}$  during January at the B Avenue Site and July at the Nagel Site, respectively (Appendices A, B; Figure 16). The annual averages (g  $0_2 \text{ m}^{-2}\text{d}^{-1}$ ) for each site ranked in increasing order were: B Avenue 0.52, Smith 0.56, Kellogg Forest 0.75, Upper 43rd 1.79, and Nagel 1.88; this pattern was similar to that of ranked sites for GCP and NCP (Table 9).

Smith and B Avenue CR values were very similar, with the lowest rates observed in the winter, followed by significant increases in spring, stable summer values, and decreasing rates from late fall to low winter values (Figure 16). The Smith Site had an autumn maximum in CR during leaf-input, but was only based on four observations. Further, a more comprehensive data set from B Avenue did not show such a maximum (Figure 16). Autumnal peaks in CR have been reported and



Figure 16. Rates of average CR (+ SE) for selected riffle communities in the Augusta Creek watershed, Kalamazoo County, Michigan (1973-1975).

related to increased detrital inputs in various other systems (Teal 1957, Nelson and Scott 1962, Flemer 1970, Hargrave 1972, Maki 1974).

Significantly higher rates of CR were observed at the Upper 43rd and Nagel sites than the first order reaches (Table 9). Based on four observations, the Upper 43rd Site had lowest CR during the winter, but steadily increased to a July maximum and remained high through the fall (Figure 16). Although the Nagel Site illustrated a more irratic pattern, maximum and minimum rates occurred during the same periods as at Upper 43rd. The highest CR for all sites was observed during July at the Nagel site (Appendices A, B; Figure 16), which was also during the period of maximum light, day-length, temperature and <u>Cladophora</u> development (Appendix D). Rates at both the Nagel and Upper 43rd Sites declined in August, possibly due to the decline of the green and blue-green community. Other studies noting summer maxima include Butcher et al. (1930), Stockner (1968), Flemer (1970) Vannote and Ball (1972), de laCruz and Post (1977), and Sumner and Fisher (1979).

The average CR at the Kellogg Forest was intermediate among the sites (Table 9), but most similar to the rates at Smith and B Avenue sites. Only during the summer were CR values for the three sites significantly different (Figure 16; Table 9). Summer increases at the Kellogg Forest were attributed to increased light availability during this period (Appendix D, Figures 11, 12). The similarity between the Kellogg Forest third order reach and the first order sections is the relationship predicted by the continuum concept (Vannote et al. 1980).

In the open reaches increases in CR as well as primary productivity were observed with rates of average CR (1.8 g  $0_2 \text{ m}^{-2}\text{d}^{-1}$ Upper 43rd, 1.9 g  $0_2 \text{ m}^{-2}\text{d}^{-1}$  Nagel) similar to the open third order

White Clay Creek, Pennsylvania (Bott et al. 1978; Tables 8, 9). CR values obtained for riffle communities of Augusta Creek were generally in the low range of upstream-downstream studies reported in the literature and within the ranges reported for chamber estimates (Table 8). Thus, patterns of CR observed in Augusta Creek were not unusual, but reinforced, by <u>in situ</u> measurements, the general magnitude of respiratory activity in natural and perturbed reaches of first through third order riffle sections of temperate streams and specifically illustrated the effects of riparian zone clearing.

Community respiration, ranked as a percentage of GCP (annual average) for Augusta Creek sites was: Smith 445%, B Avenue 200%, Upper 43rd 82%, Nage 60%, and Kellogg Forest 55%. Literature values of CR/GCP as a percent typically range from 13 to 68% (Kobayasi 1961, Pamatmat 1968, Hunding 1971, Gallagher and Daiber 1973); Likens (1975) 0 to 95%. The first order sites did not fit within the latter range, apparently due to low NCP. Such an analysis further indicates the dependency of these first order reaches on allochthonous carbon inputs. A definite and inverse relationship, especially at higher temperatures, was seen between NCP and CR at these two first order sites, and to a lesser extent at Upper 43rd Site.

### P/R Ratio

The ratio of GCP to CR (P/R) over 24 hour periods is a valuable integrator of community metabolism, which allows comparisons and rankings of communities. As Humphrey (1975) noted, Ryther (1954) and Steele (1965) proposed P/R ratios as the main measure of community physiological state and, therefore, useful in studying marine and

lentic freshwater systems. Odum, comparing the magnitude of in-stream photosynthetic production (autotrophy) to the import of organic matter from the landscape (heterotrophy) as energy sources, first applied P/R ratios in flowing water systems. The use of this parameter in stream classification was further reinforced by Hynes (1970) and Pieczynśka (1970). Fisher and Likens (1973) proposed that the P/R ratio should be used in conjunction with the import/export ratio in characterizing a stream reach. Vannote et al. (1980) stated that estimates of P/R allow characterization of the biological processes of a stream reach as to the productive (autotrophic) or consumptive (heterotrophic) mode, thus the present community usage of various inputs is indicated. However, caution must be exercised; if the P/R ratio is <1, the source of carbon (i.e. imported, or stored from earlier autochthonous production) cannot be delineated from the P/R alone. Pavetić et al. (1976) suggested monitoring P/R in running waters in the spring, when light and dark periods are equal, to characterize a reach physiologically, but unfortunately their usage of  $P_{\rm C}/CR$  night caused confusion with the conventional terminology ( $P_G/CR_{24}$ ).

Each Augusta Creek site displayed a constant pattern in P/R (Figure 17). The ratios measured at the Smith and B Avenue sites were consistently below one, but above one at Upper 43rd, Nagel and Kellogg Forest. (Figure 17; Appendices A, B). Such consistency has been reported by other lotic investigators (Stockner 1968, Cole 1973, Sumner and Fisher 1979) and by Ganning and Wulff (1970) in brackish rock pools. Others such as Flemer (1970), Vannote and Ball (1972), Hall (1972), and Bott et al. (1978) reported fluctuations in P/R from greater than to less than one in stream reaches and Mathis et al.



Figure 17. Average P/R ratios (+ SE) for selected sites in the Augusta Creek watershed, Kalamazoo County, Michigan (1973-1975).

.

(1969), investigating a flood plain lake, found P/R greater than one except during turbid periods caused by winds or flooding. It is feasible that those communities, such as the Upper 43rd Site which have stabilized near a P/R = 1, would be more likely to fluctuate above and below one, while distinctly heterotrophic or autotrophic communities would remain as such, unless altered by man.

Based on a comparison of the average P/R ratios at the two sites monitored on a monthly basis for a year with the next years seasonal data for these sites (B Avenue and Nagel), seasonal estimates adequately reflected the autotrophic-heterotrophic nature of the sites (Table 10). The average P/R ratios at all sites ranged from 0.21 at the Smith Site to 1.97 at Kellogg Forest (Table 9; Appendix A). Monthly daily estimates ranged from -0.02 in December at B Avenue to 2.5 during August at Nagel Site (Table 9; Figure 17). Sites ranked by average from lowest to highest were: Smith 0.21, B Avenue 0.45, Upper 43rd 1.2, Nagel 1.57, Kellogg Forest 1.97. This trend corresponds with the continuum hypothesis of increasing autotrophic support as one proceeds from headwaters to sixth order streams (Vannote et al. 1980). P/R ratios compared to leaf processing in Augusta Creek at these sites indicated an inverse relationship between P/R ratio and litter processing (Cummins 1980), and indicates a decreased effect of CPOM from first to third order reaches.

Although the Kellogg Forest Site had lower average GCP than the Upper 43rd and Nagel Sites, the CR was significantly lower (within the confidence limits of Smith and B Avenue Sites) accounting for the increased ratios. Comparing the detrital and epilithon standing crops of Nagel, Upper 43rd and Kellogg Forest the depressed CR at this

Site	Period	x p <sub>g</sub> /r	S.E.	C.V. %
B Avenue	Annual*	0.42	0.07	60.1
B Avenue	Seasonal**	0.52	0.10	36.6
B Avenue	Combined Years	0.45	0.06	53.1
Nagel	Annual	1.65	0.14	27.4
Nagel	Seasonal	1.36	0.23	42.0
Nagel	Combined Years	1.57	0.12	29.1

.

Table 10.	Annual and seasonal estimates of P/R ratio at two sites of
	Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan (1973-1975).

\* Annual (1973-1974)

\*\* Seasonal (1974-1975)

site was probably due to a lesser development of epilithon since the detrital crops were not dissimilar (Appendix C). This relationship was confirmed by visual and qualitative microscopic examination of the algae. The P/R ratios greater than one indicated the importance of algal development and autochthonous production in naturally shaded sections of third order riffle reaches.

The Smith Site, with P/R ratios ranging from 0.19 to 0.29, indicated a consistent lack of primary productivity and therefore a dependence on allochthonous carbon sources. The heterotrophic nature of this site was further documented by the high detrital standing crop throughout the year, low levels of GCP, and negative values of NCP (Appendix C; Table 9). A very slight peak in P/R was noted during May, corresponding to the "highest" period of GCP (Figures 14, 17; Table 9). NCP was always a negative value at Smith as reflected in the low P/R ratios (Table 9, Figures 15, 17). Using the upstream-downstream method, low ratios of P/R have been reported for various stream reaches, especially turbid and polluted systems (Table 8). Chamber estimates of P/R from first order sections are lacking in the literature, and Smith values were lower than most reported values (Table 8).

The B Avenue riffle P/R ratios fluctuated over the annual period from -0.02, the lowest recorded at any site for the entire study (snowy overcast day), to 0.88 (Figure 17, Appendices A, B). These values excepting the lowest values, are within the range reported in the literature (Table 8). The maximum was during the spring when light was increasing and before leaf emergence, and corresponded with the highest GCP levels and the single positive value of NCP (Figures

14, 15, 17). Thus, the first order B Avenue site, based on consistently low P/R ratios, would also be classified as a heterotrophic reach with an annual consuming mode (Figure 17, Appendices A, B).

The second order Upper 43rd Site, had P/R values that ranged from 0.19 to 1.68. This was the only site which obtained a dynamic equilibrium near P/R = 1. These P/R values indicated a self-supporting autochthonous riffle community, with little excess organic matter to export or store. The low values obtained in January (Figure 17), illustrated the possibility of a heterotrophic shift, possibly supported by import or slight storage resulting from the spring maximum. GCP and NCP were high at that time as was CR which remained high throughout the summer (Figures 14, 15, 16). This relationship was reflected in the increasing levels of epilithon at the Upper 43rd Site (Appendix C). P/R values from this meadow reach were in the range found for Cladophora mats in Sycamore Creek, Arizona (Bush and Fisher 1981), fourth and fifth order reaches of the Roritan River, New Jersey (Flemer 1970), and the summer values obtained for a third order reach of White Clay Creek, Pennsylvania (Bott et al. 1978). The openess of the Upper 43rd site enhanced autotrophic production above that reported by others studying naturally wooded second order streams (de laCruz and Post 1977, Gelroth and Marzolf 1978). Presumably the P/R ratio would be lower if measured within the wooded section downstream for the study site.

Consistently autotrophic would characterize the Nagel Site, where P/R ratios ranged from 0.86 during January to 2.59 during August (Figure 17; Appendices A, B). This site remained autotrophic,

although the riffle flora changed drastically from little visible algal growth during the winter, to a carpet of diatoms in spring, through <u>Cladophora</u> and blue-green mats developing in summer along with aquatic macrophytes of the genera <u>Potomogeton</u> and <u>Saggitaria</u>. The March peak coincided with the diatom bloom and the August maximum with maximum <u>Cladophora</u> and blue-green development (Figure 17). Both peaks were also illustrated in the NCP patterns (Figure 15). P/R ratios at the Nagel Site compared most closely with chamber estimates reported by Bush and Fisher (1981) for <u>Cladophora</u> mats during the summer and Litke's natural fourth order riffle section of the Chippewa River, Michigan, (1978); values were within the range of several studies cited in Table 8. Although a consistent autotrophic base was indicated, the P/R values were lower than those of the Kellogg Forest Site (Table 9; Figure 17).

The Kellogg Forest range in P/R was 1.61 during the winter to 2.33 during the spring (Figure 17; Appendices A, B). A more stable type of community development at this site compared to the Nagel Site, was indicated by less variation in P/R. These riffle P/R ratios were higher than generally predicted by the continuum hypothesis (Vannote et al. 1980), which proposed little autotrophic activity in forest covered stream communities less than 10 m in width. Only the higher P/R ratios from other studies approximated the Kellogg Forest Values (Table 8) and illustrate the effects of increased light even for short periods of time on the autotrophic potential of a shaded third order riffle community. Even if the effects of pool metabolism lowered the P/R ratios of the entire reach, it is apparent that the riffles were making a significant contribution to the ecosystem energy flux.

Based on P/R ratios obtained, Upper 43rd, Nagel and Kellogg Forest Sites were characterized as having an annual producing mode (autotrophic), while Smith and B Avenue were in a continuous consumptive mode (heterotrophic).

#### Net Daily Metabolism

NDM ( $P_G - R_{24}$ ) is another integrative measurement which helps delineate the producing or consuming mode of a community. Little attention has been given this quantitative, ecologically important parameter in the literature (Bott et al. 1978). Although the P/R ratio indicates the autotrophic potential of a site, it does not indicate amounts of excess carbon available for storage or export or the magnitude of deficit within a community, which must be compensated for by storage or allochthonous inputs for continued stable community metabolism as does estimates of NDM.

NDM data for Augusta Creek sites mirrored the NCP and P/R curves for each site, but were lower in magnitude (Figures 15, 17, 18). Average NDM (g  $0_2 \text{ m}^{-2}\text{d}^{-1}$ ) when ranked by sites differed from that of P/R (Smith -0.44, B Avenue -0.26, Upper 43rd 0.45, Kellogg Forest 0.60, and Nagel 1.01; Table 9). Ranking by NDM indicated that even through P/R ratios were higher at the Kellogg Forest, the cleared third order Nagel Site produced more carbon over the year and that although open, the Upper 43rd Site produced less excess carbon than the shaded third order Kellogg Forest riffle (Table 9). All average NDM values were within the range reported for White Clay Creek (third order) by Bott et al. (1978). NDM values ranged from -0.72 g  $0_2 \text{ m}^{-2}\text{d}^{-1}$  during the fall at Smith to 2.68 g  $0_2 \text{ m}^{-2}\text{d}^{-1}$  at Nagel in



. .

Figure 18. Average values (+ SE) of NDM for selected riffle sites in the Augusta Creek watershed, Kalamazoo County, Michigan (1973-1975).

August (Appendices A, B; Figure 18).

NDM at B Avenue and Smith sites indicated a dependence on allochthonous sources year around (Table 9; Figure 18). Upper 43rd was self-supporting through spring and summer with potential allochthonous dependence during the fall and winter. Given the magnitude of Upper 43rd spring NDM, stored autochthonous primary production could have supported this riffle (Figure 18). P/R ratios near one also support this hypothesis (Table 9). An increase in detrital standing crop during the fall, especially in the 1 mm and 250 µm particle sizes, with no corresponding decrease in epilithon, also indicated that inputs from upstream or the riparian zone occurred at this time (Appendix D; Figures 18, 19).

The Nagel Site, indicating a positive autotrophic capacity over the year, had the lowest NDM in January and the largest detrital standing crop at that time (Appendix C; Figure 18). Origin of this detrital increase is unknown, since export and import were not measured, but levels of NDM were adequate to support this riffle community on an annual basis (Figure 18; Appendices A, B). The low period in April, during the obvious spring bloom in attached algae, was the result of increased CR of the periphyton assemblage and was probably not supported by increased detrital standing crop (Figure 18). However, the July decrease correlated with decreased epilithon and an increase of small particle sizes of detritus, which indicates possible storage of autochthonously produced organic matter in the detrital pool (Appendix C; Figure 18). From the high NDM in the fall (Figure 18) and overall positive values of NDM it appears that the Nagel riffle section was self-supporting and autotrophic in nature.

Autochthonous organic matter supported the Kellogg Forest riffle section on a yearly basis (Figure 18; Table 9). The lowest values occurred during the winter, as at the other sites, when detritus was abundant and could have been of autochthonous or allochthonous origin. However, from the levels of NDM measured during the spring and summer, if stored as POM, autochthonous production could have supported this riffle community over the year (Appendix C, Figure 18). A stable pattern in NDM was observed at the Kellogg Forest Site with overlapping values at all seasons (Figure 18) and even though the P/R ratios were highest at this site (Figure 17), the NDM was lower than the open Nagel Site, which indicated a greater capacity in the open third order site to support riffle metabolism.

# Detrital Standing Crop

The standing crop of detritus is an indication of the POM base upon which a heterotrophic community develops. Changes in standing crop may indicate shifts in the energy base (i. e. heterotrophicautotrophic); changes in detrital and epilithon particle-size may help delineate origins of detritus or processing trends, and rates of metabolism can be expressed on a  $g^{-1}AFDW$  basis. As evidenced by SEM micrographs, both autotrophic and heterotrophic organisms colonize detritus (Suberkropp and Klug 1976). Visual observations of CPOM such as leaves indicated diatom colonization during the fall. Community metabolism of leaf packs colonized in Augusta Creek and monitored in chambers showed that during fall diatom blooms they may add to the total NCP of the ecosystem (King unpublished data).

Detrital standing crop estimates at the Augusta Creek sites

· 75

studied ranged from 592 g m<sup>-2</sup> at the B Avenue Site during the fall (October) to 145 g m<sup>-2</sup> at B Avenue in the spring (April; Figure 19). On an average basis Smith had the largest standing crop (388 g m<sup>-2</sup>) followed by Nagel (291 g m<sup>-2</sup>), B Avenue (290 g m<sup>-2</sup>), Kellogg Forest (283 g m<sup>-2</sup>), and Upper 43rd (240 g m<sup>-2</sup>; Table 9). As evaluated according to non-overlapping standard errors, values at Smith were significantly greater than all sites; B Avenue, Nagel and Kellogg Forest were essentially the same, while values at Upper 43rd were similar to those at Nagel and Kellogg Forest Sites (Table 9). Overall, these average values were quite similar, especially considering the measured differences in metabolic parameters (Table 9). Data collected from Augusta Creek by Cummins and Petersen (unpublished) and the River Continuum Group (Minshall et al. 1982) indicated similar annual averages and trends (Mahan 1980).

Maximum detrital standing crops occurred at three of the five sites during the fall (Figure 19). Upper 43rd and Kellogg Forest attained maxima in summer and spring, respectively. During the period of algal senesence, smaller particle sizes increased at Upper 43rd, which indicated potential storage of algal detritus (Figure 20). The spring detrital increase at the Kellogg Forest was not significantly different from winter and summer (Figure 19). Thus, the second and third order sites had more stable total standing crops than either of the first order sites.

The autumn input of CPOM was obvious at both Smith and B Avenue Sites (Figures 19, 20). At Smith there was a decrease in spring, probably reflecting the effects of scouring due to flooding. At B Avenue a rapid decrease in standing crop occurred during the autumn to



Figure 19. Average estimates of detrital standing crop (+ SE) from selected riffle communities in Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan (1973-1975).



Figure 20. Seasonal distribution of particle-sized detritus from selected riffle sections of Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan (1973-1975).

low stable values winter and summer (Figure 19). Although variance was high these data suggested a spring input (Figure 19) of CPOM. Mahan (1980) found the highest CPOM inputs at Smith followed by Kellogg Forest, Upper 43rd (wooded section) and Nagel Sites. At all sites leaves were the dominant form of CPOM. The CPOM inputs in Smith Site were significantly higher during autumn and spring, with spring CPOM averaging 56% of the fall input. The quality, however, shifted from a dominance of leaves in fall to wood in spring. The other sites showed no marked fluctuation in inputs. The disturbed Nagel site was by far the lowest in CPOM inputs (Mahan 1980).

The consistency noted in second and third order tributary riffle sections in this study was also reported for a fourth order riffle of the Chippewa River, Michigan (Litke 1978). Such stability probably resulted from more continual autochthonous inputs mediating allochthonous inputs over an annual period. The stability of the community and carbon inputs were indicated by the P/R ratios and NDM of these sites (Figures 17, 18). Naiman and Sedell (1979b) suggested that this stability indicated a balance in processing, storage, export and import. If this is so, changes in P/R would serve an an indication of changes within the communities.

The relatively stable patterns observed for total detrital standing crop (Figure 19) are, however, not indicative of processing, changes in particle-size composition on a seasonal basis, or quality (i.e. labile-refractory nature) or turnover time of particles. Distribution of particle-size on a seasonal basis (Figure 20) illustrated changes occurred within the detrital pool. Although total detrital standing crop levels may be consistent at a site, shifts in

particle-size composition may illustrate dynamic changes within the riffles. All sites were dominated by FPOM with Smith Site having the highest annual average and Upper 43rd the lowest (Figure 20; Table 11). Greater fluctuations were found in the CPOM over the year than in the FPOM standing crop as indicated by the C.V.% ( $\overline{x}$  CPOM 50.6 and FPOM 30.8; Table 11). The most stable and also the lowest CPOM standing crop was found at Upper 43rd, while the FPOM was most consistent at the Nagel site.

Shifts in particle size at Smith were not large, but by spring 16 and 4 mm particles were not observed and the 250 µm size decreased, either by processing or export, which were not monitored in this study. A more marked pattern was seen at B Avenue where the large autumn standing crops were reduced annually, which indicated significant export. However, a study of retention of basswood (<u>Tilia</u>) leaves at this site indicated that CPOM traversed a mean distance of 10 to 30 m before entrainment, and therefore storage and processing would occur within the reach with possible export of finer particles (Cummins et al. 1981). The distribution of FPOM was similar during all seasons with the shifts occurring in the CPOM range where lowest levels occurred during the spring, possibly the result of flooding, since corresponding increases in FPOM did not occur (Figures 19, 20). Spring allochthonous CPOM inputs may have accounted for the observed higher summer values (Figure 20).

The Upper 43rd particle-size specific distribution was more constant than the first order sites with algal inputs probably occurring during the summer as indicated by increases in the FPOM pool (Figure 20). Litke (1978) observed an increase in the detrital pool

Month	Site		CPOM gm <sup>-2</sup>	FPOM gm <sup>-2</sup>	CPOM/FPOM
Oct.	Smith		73.0	406.7	0.18
Jan.	Smith		112.3	327.4	0.34
May	Smith		37.2	279.4	0.13
July	Smith	_	46.4	274.5	0.16
		X	67.2	322.0	0.20
		S.E.	16.8	30.7	0.02
		<u>C.V.%</u>	50.1	19.0	46.3
Oct.	B Avenue		172.0	419-9	0.41
Jan	B Avenue		42.6	134.4	0.32
April	B Avenue		27.5	98.4	0.28
July	B Avenue		83.0	228.7	0.36
July	Dintende	x	81.3	220.4	$\frac{0.30}{0.34}$
		S.E.	32.4	72.0	0.02
		C.V.%	79.8	65.3	16.2
0	Hener ()ad		50.2	168 0	0.20
UCE.	Upper 43rd		50.5	100.0	0.30
Jan. Mari	Upper 43rd		42.4	192.0	0.22
May Tulu	Upper 43rd		22.0	143.9	0.43
July	opper 45rd	$\overline{\mathbf{v}}$	42.3	101 4	0.00
		A S.F	42.02	171.4	0.07
		C.V.%	33.1	34.6	56.9
Nov.	Nagel		100.5	28/./	0.35
Jan.	Nagel		159.4	233.9	0.68
May	Nagel		//•8	194.9	0.40
Jury	Nager	Ŧ	42.9	208.2	$\frac{0.17}{0.40}$
		A C F	90.E	243.7	0.40
		5.E. C.V.%	24•5 51.4	19.0	U+11 52.8
Nov.	Kellogg Forest		29.5	185.3	0.16
Feb.	Kellogg Forest		29.5	259.5	0.11
May	Kellogg Forest		46.6	296.7	0.16
July	Kellogg Forest	_	18.3	267.4	0.06
		X	30.5	252.2	0.12
		S.E.	5.9	23.7	0.02
		<u>C.V.%</u>	38.7	18.8	39.1

Table 11. CPOM and FPOM detrital standing crops and CPOM/FPOM ratios from selected sites in Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan (1974-1975). due to <u>Cladophora</u> inputs in a fourth order riffle during the summers. Such an increase was also observed at the Nagel Site, where CPOM levels were highest during the fall-winter period. The Kellogg Forest had little change in detrital particle-size distribution over the year, which indicated the influence of mainly non-filamentous autochthonous production at this site.

The CPOM/FPOM ratios ranged from 0.06 during the summer at Kellogg Forest to 0.68 in the winter at the Nagel Site. The lowest ratios, indicating the autochthonous energy base, were at the higher order sites during the summer and at B Avenue and Smith during the spring at the time of increased light and GCP "maxima". The highest ratios varied with site, but correlated with depressed P/R ratios (Figure 17; Table 11). The winter-early spring dependence on CPOM at the autotrophic sites correlated with low levels of GCP and NCP, while the automn-winter inputs of CPOM and subsequent processing within the riffles coincided with the high CPOM/FPOM at the heterotrophic sites (Figures 14, 15; Table 11). Therefore, the P/R and CPOM/FPOM ratios can be used in conjunction to elucidate the autotrophic-heterotrophic relationships of stream riffles.

The annual average CPOM/FPOM ratios were highest in the shaded first order reaches (0.2 Smith and 0.34 B Avenue) and lower in the third order reach (0.12 Kellogg Forest). This pattern was in agreement with the continuum concept and reflected a greater dependence on autotrophic production as stream order increased (Vannote et al. 1980). However, the cleared Nagel section had the greatest average CPOM/FPOM ration (0.4) and the highest average CPOM standing crop. When the S.E.'s are considered (Table 11), the Nagel

CPOM standing crop was comparable to those from Smith and B Avenue. Based on their overall productivity differences, the Nagel CPOM resulted from inputs of filamentous algae and aquatic macrophytes and thus, had been autochthonously produced as documented by Minshall (1978) in desert streams. Although the actual origins of allochthonous CPOM were not demonstrated, Mahan (1980) ranked Nagel the lowest in CPOM inputs of the four Augusta Creek sites studied, which supports the autotrophic input hypothesis. The meadow reach, Upper 43rd, average 0.23 CPOM/FPOM ratio, which was not significantly different from that at the Smith Site. Therefore, the generalization of decreasing CPOM/FPOM ratio with increasing order did not hold for open reaches of first through third order streams.

## Detrital (AFDW) Community Metabolism

Little relationship between detrital AFDW and CR has been noted in the literature (Wetzel 1963, Edwards and Rolley 1965, Hargrave 1969b, Pennak and Lavelle 1979). Odum (1956) reported CR to be dependent on the concentrations of organic matter in the sediment, Edberg and Hofsten (1973) found the nature and quality of detritus had a decided effect on oxygen uptake in soft sediments, and Göthberg and Karlström (1975) found CR to be dependent on the amount of detritus present in riffle sections of the Ricklean River, Sweden. These findings contrasted to those of Hargrave (1969b) that organic content and composition appeared to have minor significance in oxygen consumption of littoral sediments. In a later study comparing mud, sand, and detritus in short term experiments Hargrave (1972) found detritus consumed three times more oxygen that sand, and that log
oxygen uptake was inversly related to organic content of sediment. Intuitively, CR would be linked most closely to detrital activity, and most studies have emphasized this relationship. Edberg and Hofsten (1973) indicated that CR of algal detritus was much higher than allochthonous forms, which may account for increases of CR during periods of algal growth and senescence. Detritus (especially CPOM) can also be a substrate for algal colonization and a relationship may exist between AFDW and productivity. Community metabolism estimates expressed on an AFDW basis may reflect changes in the composition of the detrital standing crop; increased productivity  $g^{-1}$  may indicate algal colonization of detrital particles or contribution to the detrital pool through sloughing from inorganic substrates, and increasing CR rates during spring or fall may indicate more labile algal contributions to the detrital pool.

Community metabolism expressed on a biomass basis (g<sup>-1</sup>AFDW; Appendix A; Table 12) indicated the same trends (Figures 21, 22) as measured on an areal basis with the exception of CR (Figures 14, 15, 16, 18; Table 9). Smith and B Avenue were reversed in CR ranking by expression on a weight basis, but there was no significant difference between these values. Since the mean total standing crop estimates at all sites, excepting Smith, were so close one would not anticipate large changes in seasonal trends (Table 11). Periods of maximum and minimum values on an areal or biomass basis for these parameters (NCP, GCP, CR, NDM) were generally similar at all sites. Values at the Smith and B Avenue sites were most stable with only small annual changes. CR varied most of any parameter: summer and spring maxium rates occurred when expressed on an areal basis, while on a biomass

Site		NCP*	CR	GCP	NDM
Smith	X	-0.7	1.8	0.3	-1.5
	C.V.%	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0
B Avenue	x	0.0	2.4	1.2	-1.3
	S.E. C.V.%	0.0 0.0	0.0 0.0	0.0 0.0	0.0 0.0
Upper 43rd	x	5.8	8.0	9.8	2.3
	S.E. C.V.%	0.0 55.0	0.0 39.5	3.2 64.8	0.0 0.0
Nagal	v	67	7 2	10.6	3 /
Nager	S.E. C.V.%	0.0 47.1	0.0 62.0	0.0 66.4	0.0 92.4
	-				
Kellogg Forest	X S.E. C.V.%	3.8 0.0 0.0	2.5 0.0 0.0	5.0 0.0 0.0	2.3 0.0 0.0

Table 12. Annual average estimates of detrital community metabolism (mg  $0_2$  g<sup>-1</sup>AFDW) for selected sites of Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan (1974-1975).



Figure 21. Estimates of NCP and CR on a weight basis from selected Augusta Creek riffle sections, Kalamazoo County, Michigan (1973-1975).



Figure 22. Estimates of GCP and NDM on a weight basis from selected Augusta Creek riffle sections, Kalamazoo County, Michigan (1973-1975).

basis the maximum was in the autumn (Appendix A; Figures 16, 21). At the Upper 43rd and Nagel Sites these increases in CR may have been the result of algal inputs to the detrital pool (Edberg and Hofsten 1973). Calow (1975) reported epilithic detritus was higher in organic matter and protein in comparison to adjacent detritus which was higher in lignin and cellulose. Thus, when periphyton assemblages slough into the detrital pool, higher rates of CR would be expected from the addition of a more labile substrate. It should be noted that in all cases values were low on a biomass basis and there was little difference in seasonal ranges (Table 12; Figures 21, 22).

The autotrophic Nagel Site had high levels of detrital standing crop and also had the highest values of most parameters on a biomass basis (Table 12). The high state of activity  $g^{-1}$  detritus at the Nagel site was also characteristic at Upper 43rd.

Based on average detrital standing crop, Smith was highest followed by Nagel, B Avenue, Kellogg Forest, and Upper 43rd. If metabolic parameters were directly correlated with total detritus the highest activity would have been at Smith Site, which had the lowest activity followed by B Avenue, Kellogg Forest, Upper 43rd and Nagel. Therefore, other factors such as light temperature or epilithon development and composition must be mediating metabolic activity.

#### Epilithon

Epilithon, is here defined as that organic assemblage of algae, bacteria, fungi, protozoans, detritus, and even small macroinvertebrates which colonize this mass, attached to inorganic substrates. This definition is often lumped with the category of

periphyton or Aufwuchs. Round (1965) has long campaigned to characterize the assembladge based on substrate colonized (i.e. epilithon - rocks and stones, epipsammon - sand, epipelon - mud, epiphyton - plants). The term epilithon has been used by Marker (1976a) to describe the biomass of benthic algae on rocks and Calow (1975) has studied epilithic detritus.

Epilithon biomass values (Appendix C) are based on the 550 AFDW of particle-sized inorganic substrates. Nelson and Scott (1962) ashed, rewetted and redried at 63C to attempt rehydration of clay particles. They estimated error due to loss of hydration at 5%. Losses of this type in Augusta Creek sediments to 75  $\mu$ m in size would be small and no corrections were made. The method developed showed comparative differences between sites in Augusta Creek epilithon development.

Sediments throughout the Augusta Creek drainage were similar at all sites; they consisted of granite, basalt and limestone. However, visual differences of sediment surfaces were obvious between autotrophic and heterotrophic sites. Sediments from Nagel and Upper 43rd had obvious travertine deposits, Kellogg Forest intermediate in travertine build up, and Smith and B Avenue were free of visible carbonate deposits. In hardwater streams photosynthesis, shifting the equilibrium, can be responsible for deposition of CaCO<sub>3</sub> on sediments or aquatic macrophytes and subsequent travertine development (Hynes 1970, Wetzel 1975a). Photosynthetic activity was largely responsible for both visual and biomass differences between sites and epilithon development was a more reliable indicator of autotrophic-heterotrophic relationships of riffle sections than was detrital standing crop. Sites ranked according to increasing annual average epilithon development were: Smith, B Avenue, Kellogg Forest, Nagel and Upper 43rd (Table 9; Figure 23). Using overlap of standard errors as a criterion, Nagel and Upper 43rd were essentially the same, Kellogg Forest intermediate, and Smith significantly lower than all other sites in epilithon development. These trends reflected the same pattern as NCP and GCP in Augusta Creek (Table 9).

Epilithon estimates ranged from 1480 g m<sup>-2</sup> at Smith to 5038 g  $m^{-2}$  at Nagel Site during the spring. The maximum at the Nagel Site undoubtedly resulted from the diatom bloom which carpeted the substrate, while the low at Smith Site was attributed to spring scouring effects. These epilithon values from the alkaline Augusta Creek were higher than those obtained using the same method in soft water, turbid riffle sections of the Buttahatchie River Mississippi (Miller and King 1981). Their total AFDW estimates of sediments, characteristic of epilithon weights (Table 9), ranged from 260 to 363  $g m^{-2}$  in August. Development of the autotrophic epilithon component in this system was limited by turbidity, thus, these levels characterize the contribution of the detrital component to the biomass. Epilithon values from six replicate chambers placed in a second order riffle of the west branch of the Clark's Fork of the Yellowstone River, Montana, where primary productivity levels were very low, ranged from 999 to 1892 g m<sup>-2</sup>. The average (1338 g m<sup>-2</sup>) was similar to that of the heterotrophic Smith Site of Augusta Creek (1763 g m<sup>-2</sup>) as were the P/R ratios of approximately 0.3 (Table 9).

The first order detrital based systems of Augusta Creek ranged from 1480 to 2811 g m<sup>-2</sup> epilithon. Both first order sites indicated



Figure 23. Estimates of eiplithon development, obtained on a seasonal basis from selected riffle sites of Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan (1974-1975).

less variance in epilithon estimates over the year with the C.V.% averaging only 18.3% at Smith and 16.6% at B Avenue in contrast to the overall average of 28.7% (Table 9). This consistency, indicating a balance within the riffle sections, was typical of most parameters at these sites.

The highest values of epilithon at Smith Site were during autumn (Figure 23) at the time of significant detrital inputs. The nature and consistency of epilithic detritus has been investigated by Madsen (1972). Using SEM techniques, detritus was the major component, bacteria and fungi were prevalent, with few algae evident. This material may be a rich source of organic matter (protein) to consumer organisms (Calow 1975). Colonization of stones by heterotrophs thus leads to organic accumulation and further entrapment of detritus all of which would be a component of the epilithon as determined by ashing. These levels at Smith Site were significantly different from the autotrophic based sites (Figure 23; Table 9).

Helan et al. (1973) ashed inorganic substrates from mountain streams in Czechoslavakia and found highest amounts of epilithon in the upper reaches during April and June, similar to patterns observed at B Avenue, Augusta Creek (Figure 23). The Kellogg Forest Site, intermediate in epilithon development, had little change in quantity of epilithon, and was consistently higher in values than the first order sites (Table 9: Figure 23). The open sites illustrated more significant seasonal changes, with the Upper 43rd Site maximum attained during the autumn after the autotrophic build up from a spring low (Figure 23). The Nagel site exhibited spring and autumn increases (diatom blooms) much like that reported for the middle

sections by Helan et al. (1973). The lower summer values at Nagel (Figure 23) reflected shading effects of extensive aquatic macrophyte growth during mid to late summer.

On a particle-size specific basis (Figure 24), changes occurred mainly in the 16 and 4 mm size fractions. McConnell and Sigler (1959) found larger substrates (12 cm and greater) to have more chlorophyll a content than smaller sediments, with less than 6% of the chlorophyll a concentration in sediments smaller than 2.5 cm in diameter. In English streams Marker (1976a) found 85% of the algal biomass on substrates greater than 6 cm. This pattern of highest autotrophic colonization on larger substrates was consistent with that in Augusta Creek. Based on productivity levels and visual observations, this assemblage at the autotrophic sites was due to algal development.

Since the epilithon standing crops in Augusta Creek riffles were so high compared to the detrital standing crop, total organic weight of the sediments followed the trends of the epilithon community. Detritus averaged 12% of the total particulate organic matter (TPOM), with the percentages ranging from an average of 18% at Smith to 7.5% at Upper 43rd (Table 13). Detrital percentages indicated a greater importance of detritus at Smith and the autotrophic nature of the Upper 43rd and Nagel riffles. This relationship was consistent over the annual period at all sites, although the magnitude of epilithon and detritus estimates varied. The heterotrophic riffle of the west branch of the Clark's Fork of the Yellowstone River, Montana averaged 4.2% non-attached detritus, which indicated the importance of non-photosynthetic epilithon in this system.

Epilithon/detritus ratios (E/D) establish an index of the



Figure 24. Seasonal distribution of particle-sized epilithon from selected riffle sections of Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan (1974-1975).

	WI	NTER	SPI	RING	SU	MMER	]	FALL	MEAN	ANNUAL	ANNUA	[
Site	% E	% D	% E	% D	<b>%</b> E	% D	% E	% D	% E	% D	range E/D	X E/D
Smith	79	21	85	5	82	18	82	18	82	18	3.7-4.8	4.5
B Avenue	92	8	94	5	89	11	79	21	89	11	3.46-16.5	7.9
Upper 43rd	91	9	91	9	92	8	96	4	93	8	10.2-15.0	14.8
Nagel	91	9	94	6	88	12	89	11	91	10	7.5-15.4	12.0
Kellogg Forest	<b>9</b> 0	10	82	18	92	8	94	6	90	11	4.6-15.8	9.5

Table 13. Percentage of detritus and epilithon and epilithon/detritus (E/D) ratios of sediments from selected sites of Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan.

. \_\_\_\_\_

•

relative importance of the two components within riffles. Based on seasonal data, the average E/D for Smith Site was 4.5, B Avenue 7.9, Upper 43rd 14.8, Nagel 12.0, and Kellogg Forest 9.5 (Table 13). The closer the ratio is to one (E = D), the higher the dependence of the riffle section on non-attached detritus versus an epilithon assemblage. Conversely, the larger the ratio, the greater the dependence on the epilithon organic assemblage. The Smith and B Avenue Sites were more dependent on non-attached detritus than the other reaches. Annual average E/D ratios from Augusta Creek sites followed the patterns of average NCP and GCP (Tables 9, 13), which indicated an algal dominance in the epilithon at the autotrophic sites. The summer data from the west branch of the Clark's Fork of the Yellowstone River, Montana averaged 23.6 E/D; this value, higher than the autotrophic Augusta Creek sites, indicated an epilithon based community, although detrital, since levels of NCP and P/R were low. Rocks from this riffle were slippery to the touch during the study period, but not high in algal content. Therefore, the magnitude of this ratio indicates the importance of epilithon versus non-attached detritus within a system, but not the autotrophic-heterotrophic balance within the assemblage.

Seasonal patterns of E/D ratio exhibited no constant pattern except at the Smith Site (Figure 25). The values of approximately five measured at the Smith Site were indicative of consistent dependence on non-attached detritus as an energy base (heterotrophic). The B Avenue Site, indicating a more complex pattern of E/D, was also low in E/D average, similar to Smith Site. A spring increase in epilithon development concomitant with the spring diatom bloom in



Figure 25. Epilithon/Detritus ratios over an annual period for selected riffle sites of Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan (1974-1975).

Augusta Creek was reflected by an increase in E/D (Figure 25) at the B Avenue Site. The P/R ratio and values of NCP increased at this time as well, which indicated the increase in E/D was of algal origin (Figures 15, 17, 25). The autotrophic sites had an inverse relationship between GCP, NCP, and/or P/R with the E/D ratio. Autotrophic sites remained productive, but as epilithon increased, rates of primary productivity decreased or remained stable at all three sites. This pattern follows the generally accepted trend of decreased rates of primary productivity with periphyton assemblage build-up caused by self-shading and competition for light, carbon dioxide, and nutrients (Goldman 1964, Hynes 1970, Wetzel 1975a).

When one observes riffles within the deciduous blome it is generally the inorganic sediments which predominate and are the major substrates available for colonization, not detritus. Although the scientific literature focuses on water percolation through leaf packs in riffles, a major source of POM might well be the epilithon in many stream riffles. Winterborn et al. (1981) indicated that in New Zealand streams the organic component from inorganic substrates was important to the support of macroinvertebrates and suggested attention be refocused on the organic layer of stones. Therefore, the E/D ratio used with the P/R ratio should be a useful relationship to monitor in ecological investigations involving stream structure and function.

### Factors Affecting Rates of Community Metabolism

Although reseachers engaged in monitoring community metabolism may disagree, Lieth (1975) stated that measurement of primary productivity is not in itself a sufficient goal, but should be used as

a tool for characterization and interpretation of communities and their relationships to the environment. One needs only to scan the periphyton primary productivity literature to note investigations of regulatory factors on rates of community metabolism and contributions of the autotrophs to community structure and function. Most work has been completed in marine and freshwater lentic systems and includes investigations relating physical and chemical parameters to community metabolism of benthic communities from tidal flats (Pamatmat 1968, Ganning and Wulff 1970, Gargas 1970, Gallagher and Daiber 1973, Littler 1973, Cadeé and Hegeman 1974), freshwater littoral zones (Felfoldy 1961, Wetzel 1963, Hargrave 1969a, Hunding 1971, Hunding and Hargrave 1973, Schindler et al. 1973), experimental systems (Odum and Hoskin 1957, Felföldy 1961, Whitford and Schumacher 1961, 1964, Beyers 1962, McIntire et al. 1964, McIntire and Phinney 1965, Kevern and Ball 1965, Lester et al. 1974, Edberg and Hofsten 1973, Pfeifer and McDiffett 1975) and in lotic systems (McConnell and Sigler 1959, Kobayasi 1961, Cushing 1967, Stockner 1968, Brehmer et al. 1969, Hall 1972, Cole 1973, Ertl and Tomajka 1973, Profet and Ransom 1974, Marker 1976b, Pennak and Lavelle 1979, Sumner and Fisher 1979, Gregory 1980). Upstream-downstream techniques were mainly used prior to the collection of data for the present study (1973-1975). The most frequently examined parameters were light and temperature, but included chlorophyll content or AFDW of periphyton, current, organic content of sediments, nutrients, and recently grazing (Hunter 1980, Gregory 1980, Kesler 1981).

In the present study, parameters examined in relation to NCP, GCP, CR, and NDM included stream order, temperature, light, and AFDW

of the sediments (detrital, epilithon and total). Cusing (1967) studied many parameters over an annual period from periphyton communitites developed on artificial substrates, but none of the above studies reported <u>in situ</u> data for as extensive a set of parameters over an extended period. Regression analyses were completed for each parameter listed above against each dependent variable (NCP, GCP, CR, NDM) on an annual average basis, as well as by site. Individual half-hour rates of NCP and CR (parameters measured directly in the field) were matched with corresponding light and temperature intervals and run individually and together in multiple regression. The independent variables are discussed separately, but a summary of the regressions is available in Appendix E.

#### Stream Order

The order system, as defined by Strahler (1957) classifies streams on a physical basis and is convenient for comparison of data particularly within a given watershed. Hynes (1970) suggested heavier usage of this format for characterization of streams. Investigators have begun to relate results on an order basis. Cummins (1974, 1975b, 1977) and Vannote et al. (1980) related various components of stream community structure and function to an order scale. Mahan (1980) found a relationship between amounts of CPOM input to woodland streams, Naiman and Sedell (1979a) investigated benthic organic matter on an order basis and Seyfer and Wilhm (1977) found relationships between periphyton species composition, diversity, and biomass to be a function of stream order.

Regressions with stream order as the independent variable

indicated a significant (P < 0.01) positive relationship for all parameters with n = -100 for each case (Appendix E; Table 14). Multiple correlation coefficients (R) ranged from 0.52 for CR to 0.74 for NCP, and F ratios (test for significance=1; higher, more significant) were high especially for GCP and NCP (Table 14; Appendix E). The correlation between stream order and each dependent variable was always highest, which indicates the importance of geomorphology on the functional aspects of stream communities. It is intuitive that as streams widen they receive more light and higher rates of primary productivity would result unless factors such as turbidity, or chemical/physical perturbations were involved. NCP and GCP had the highest F ratios (Table 14), which would be most directly related to light. Rates of CR, although significant, were least affected by stream order, and illustrated a lesser dependence on location (i.e. light availability) than the photosynthetic processes and a heterotroph dominated CR. NDM, influenced by rates of CR, had a lower F ratio, but still indicated a strong relationship with order (F = 74; Table 14).

## Light

Various authors have eluded to the importance of light on aquatic primary productivity in the field (Butcher et al. 1930, Calvert 1933, McConnell and Sigler 1959, Profet and Ransom 1974, Sumner and Fisher 1979, Hornick et al. 1981), but few studies have carefully examined the relationship (Kobayasi 1961, Stockner 1968, Hunding 1971, Cadeé and Hegeman 1974).

Marker (1976b), using Tygon cloth to shade chambers (9,000 lux

Dependent Variable	N <b>*</b>	R**	F Ratio	P***
X GCP	101	0.72	108.1	<0.001
X NCP	103	0.74	121.9	<0.001
X CR	104	0.52	37.5	<0.001
X NDM	101	0.66	74.2	<0.001
* = Number of values				
<pre>** = Multiple Correlat</pre>	ion Coeff:	lcient		
*** = Level of Signific	ance			

.

Table 14. Summary of regression data for various dependent variables and the independent variable stream order for all sites of Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan.

versus 27,000 lux lighted) illustrated a 30% decrease in primary productivity. Gregory (1980) artificially lighted a section of a wooded stream (10,000 lux) and significantly increased productivity of a riffle section. The effects of clear cutting and channelization on photosynthesis have been shown by Gelroth and Marzolf (1978) and Gregory (1980). Pennak and Lavelle (1979), studying <u>in situ</u> NCP in mountain stream riffles, found no correlation between NCP and light intensity, but the results were probably influenced by very low periphyton standing crops.

Regression analyses from Augusta Creek communities indicated light was the second most important parameter affecting individual NCP and average GCP, NCP, and NDM; outranked only by stream order (Table 15; Appendix E). F ratios and R values were high and significant in all cases ( P < 0.05; Table 15). Average data (n = ~ 100) with correlation coefficients ranging from 0.52 to 0.57 and F ratios ranging from 36 to 46, indicated the importance of light on levels of GCP, NCP, and NDM within the Augusta Creek drainage, GCP had the highest R (0.57) and F ratio (46.0), but all were similar (Appendix E; Table 15). When individual measures of NCP were used in regression analyses (n = 666 and R = 0.6 with a high level of significance; Table 15) and when multiple regression with temperature and light was completed (Table 16) R = 0.6 with light R value = 0.597 and temperature 0.005. The Augusta Creek correlation coefficient for light and NCP, although lower than those of Cushing (1967) and Stockner (1968) for lotic periphyton communities (R=0.8), included values from heterotrophic as well as autotrophic sites. Pamatmat (1968) and Gargas (1970) cited light as the most important factor

Dependent Var:	iable N*	R**	F Ratio	P***
Individual -	NCP 666	0.60	1089.7	<0.001
X GCP	100	0.57	46.0	<0.001
X NCP	101	0.52	36.0	<0,001
X NDM	100	0.53	39.2	<0.001
SMITH	کہ کہ ان خاری ہے جو ہو جو ہے جو ان کے حال کے ان کر ان ہے اور بند ن			
X GCP X NCP X NDM	12 12 12	0.26 0.27 0.23	0.695 0.786 0.573	0.424 0.396 0.467
B AVENUE				
X GCP X NCP X NDM	33 33 33	0.07 0.16 0.23	0.162 0.812 0.573	0.690 0.374 0.467
UPPER 43RD				
X GCP X NCP X NDM	10 10 10	0.48 0.41 0.61	2.444 1.569 4.713	0.157 0.246 0.062
NAGEL	<b>0</b> /		F (0/	0.005
X GCP X NCP X NDM	34 35 34	0.38 0.24 0.26	2.035 2.373	0.025 0.163 0.133
KELLOGG FORESI	ſ			
X GCP X NCP X NDM	11 11 11	0.53 0.42 0.64	3.533 1.984 6.146	0.093 0.193 0.035

Table 15. Summary of regression analyses involving various dependent variables and the independent variable light at five sites from Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan.

R = Multiple Correlation Coefficient

.

\*\*\* P = Level of Significance

Dependent Variable	N <b>*</b>	R**	F Ratio	P***
Individual NCP				
T + L	1957	0.598	544.6	<0.001
L only	1957	0.597		
T only	1957	0.005		
Individual CR				
T + L	1189	0.523	447.1	<0.001
L only	1189	0.241		
T only	1189	0.425		
* N = number of valu	ues			
** R = Multiple Corre	elation Coef	ficient		
*** P = level of Sign	ificance			

. .

Table 16. Summary of multiple regressions involving the effects of temperature and light on individual rates of NCP and CR from all sites of Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan. influencing community metabolism of marine microbenthos (F ratios = 72-98), as did Littler (1973) in coral reef communities, and Hunding and Hargrave (1973) in freshwater littoral zones.

The sites trend in F ratios reflected productive capacity. Lower values were from Smith and B Avenue, while the Upper 43rd, Nagel and Kellogg Forest F ratios were greater than one, however, on a site basis values were not significant in most casts (Table 15). At autotrophic based sites the effects of light were greater on GCP and NDM than NCP (Table 15). Values of GCP and NDM were calculated using estimates of CR; one is a positive influence (GCP) while the other is negative (NDM) and both increased, which indicates some unmeasured parameter such as grazing losses may have been involved. Kesler (1981) reported Chironomus scutellaria may consume 3 to 70% of the NCP, while Hunt (1980) and Gregory (1980) found that snails could effectively reduce periphyton communities. Populations of grazer organisms, including Hydroptila, Neophylax, Glossosoma, Helicopsyche (Trichoptera:caddisflies), Stenonema (Ephemeroptera:mayflies), Psephenus (Coleoptera:beetles) and Ferrissia (Gastropoda:snails) were common, especially at the Nagel Site and observations of grazing rates by D. Hart (personal communication, Kellogg Biological Station) indicated active cropping of periphyton at the Nagel Site.

The relationship between light intensity and rates of photosynthesis is not linear over a large range of light values. Light saturation and photoinhibition often occur at higher light intensities in phytoplankton communities (Ryther 1956a, Verduin 1956, Pamatmat 1968, Marker 1976b, Ganning and Wulff 1970. Light saturation occurred at approximately 20,000 lux for combined sites of Augusta

Creek (Appendix F; Figure F - 1). Except for Smith Site, saturation ranges were very similar: B Avenue (n=677) 20,000 lux, Upper 43rd (n=220) 24,000 lux, Nagel (n=571) 15,000 to 20,000 lux, and Kellogg Forest (n=242) 18,000 to 20,000 lux (Figures F 1-6). Rates of NCP, and likely algal standing crops, were very low at the Smith Site and few measurements of NCP were made above 20,000 lux (Figure F - 2), therefore, resolution of light saturated photosynthesis was not possible. These saturation levels are within the range reported for marine phytoplankton (5,000 to 30,000 lux; Ryther 1956a), and lentic benthic algae (10,000 to 12,000 lux; Hunding 1971, Lester et al. 1974, Colijn and Buurt 1975), and natural and artificial streams (4,000 to 62,000 lux; Kobayasi 1961, McIntire et al. 1964).

Photoinhibition was not observed at any of the sites (Figures F 2-6), which was not surprising, as it has not been reported in lentic periphyton communities (Pamatmat 1968, Ganning and Wulff 1970, Hunding 1971, Gallagher and Daiber 1973, Littler 1973, Cadeé and Hegeman 1974, Colijn and Buurt 1975). In artificial stream developed periphyton communities, McIntire et al. (1964) and McIntire and Phinney (1965) found no photoinhibition and Marker (1976b) noted no photoinhibition from an <u>in situ</u> study. The large number of <u>in situ</u> cases examined from autotrophic and heterotrophic sites in the Augusta Creek watershed reinforced these noted examples.

The effects of temperature on light saturated photosynthesis are illustrated in Appendix F (Figures F 7-11). The most linear of these plots (0 - 5 C) indicated light saturation at 18,000 lux (Figure F -7, n=414). At temperature intervals 5 to 10 C, 10 to 15 C, 15 to 20 C, and 20 to 25 C light saturation occurred between 20,000 to 25,000

lux (Figures F 8-11). Kobayasi (1961) found seasonal shifts in light saturation from 8000 lux in a winter diatom community to 15,000 lux in the summer Cladophora dominated community. As indicated by Ryther (1956a) light saturation levels vary for various algal taxa, and the shift observed by Kobayasi (1961) and the slight increase at 15 - 20 C (Figure F-10) at Augusta Creek sites may have been due to changes in species composition rather than temperature. The influence of temperature on photosynthetic activity, studied by Rabinowich (1951) and Jørgensen and Steemann Nielsen (1965, 1968), discussed in McIntire et al. (1964) and Hunding (1971), indicated the rapid increase portion of the activity curve to be due to photochemical processes independent of temperature, while the saturated portion of the curve fluctuated depending on temperature effects on the photosynthetic enzymes. Although rates of NCP increased with temperature, similar levels of light saturation were indicated over the temperature range naturally encountered by Augusta Creek communities (0 - 25 C) and illustrated the complexity of photosynthetic responses to more than one variable. Light was the primary factor regulating primary productivity in woodland streams and based on light-saturated photosynthesis levels and average daily light of 12,000 to 13,000 lux, amounts of NCP at Smith and B Avenue would be limited. Reduced levels of NCP were documented by in situ measurements at these two sites compared to the open and shaded larger order study reaches (Figure 15).

## Temperature

The effects of temperature on organisms and metabolic processes have been extensively investigated, and  $Q_{10}$  values have been calculated

for process of organisms from bacteria to mammals. The relationship between temperature and community metabolism in streams, however, has not received much attention. In aquatic systems the effects of temperature on CR was investigated in marine tidal flats (Pamatmat 1968, Gallagher and Daiber 1973, Cadeé and Hegeman 1974), and freshwater littoral zones (Hargrave 1969a, 1969b; Edberg and Hofsten 1973) with all investigators reporting temperature to be an important controlling factor. The effects of temperature on community productivity have been studied, but mainly in lentic systems where a positive correlation has been indicated, but of lesser importance than the effects of light (Gargas 1970, Hunding 1971, Adams and Stone 1973, Ertl and Tomajka 1973, Gallagher and Daiber 1973, Cadeé and Hegeman 1974, Colijn and Buurt 1975).

The average data (n=100) indicated a positive relationship between temperature and all parameters with R values ranging from 0.64 for CR to 0.33 for NCP and F ratios of 12 to 70 (Appendix E; Table 17). These values were generally lower than the values for light, but still significant at the P=0.01 level (Tables 15, 17). While CR had the lowest correlation with light, it was most strongly correlated with temperature. Hargrave (1969b), Ertl and Tomajka (1973), and Cadeé and Hegeman (1974) reported positive correlations between levels of GPP and temperature in lentic systems. The R of 0.5 for temperature and GPP from intertidal flats of the Wadden Sea was similar to the 0.41 R for GCP and temperature from Augusta Creek sites (Table 17).

Individual rates of NCP (n=1957) indicated a significant correlation with temperature (R = 0.18; F ratio = 67.1). However,

Dependent Variable	N*	R**	F Ratio	P***
Individual - NCP	1957	0.182	67.1	<0.001
Individual - CR	1189	0.523	447.1	<0.001
X GCP	100	0.414	20.3	<0.001
X NCP	102	0.328	12.0	0.001
X CR	103	0.640	70.0	<0.001
X NDM	100	0.339	12.7	0.001
Smith				
X GCP	12	0.022	0.005	0.946
X NCP	12	0.0003	0.000	0.999
X CR	12	0.013	0.002	0.968
X NDM	12	0.133	0.180	0.680
B AVENUE				
X GCP	34	0.600	17.8	<0.001
X NCP	35	0.047	0.07	0.790
X CR	34	0.785	51.2	<0.001
X NDM	34	0.368	5.00	0.032
UPPER 43RD				
X GCP	10	0.677	6.7	0.032
X NCP	10	0.547	3.4	0.102
X CR	11	0.898	37.6	<0.001
X NDM	10	0 <b>.519</b>	2.9	0.125
NAGEL				
X GCP	34	0.529	12.4	0.001
X NCP	35	0.377	5.5	0.026
X CR	34	0.742	39.3	<0.001
X NDM	34	0.263	2.3	0.133
KELLOGG FOREST				
X GCP	10	0.660	6.2	0.038
X NCP	10	0.361	1.2	0.305
	10	0 765	1 / 1	0 00%

Table 17.Summary of regressions involving the effects of temperature<br/>on NCP, GCP, CR, and NDM from various sites of Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan.

\*\* R = Multiple Correlation Coefficient

\*\*\* P = Level of Significance

this was much less than the regression with light (R = 0.06; F ratio = 4089.7). Individual rates of CR (n=1189) had an R value of 0.52 and F ratio of 447.1, which indicated a highly significant relationship (Table 17). When run with light in multiple regression, temperature had an R = 0.43 in contrast to R = 0.24 for light (Table 16). Together (n=1968), or on a site basis, there was no evident relationship between NCP and temperature (Figures G 7-12).

Considering the 1189 points in Figure G - 1, rates of CR generally increased linearly with increasing temperature, especially if data from Smith and B Avenue Sites are omitted. Both of these sites showed constant CR regardless of temperature (Figures G-2, G-3). The lack of correlation between temperature and CR at Smith Site was evident from the regression analyses (Table 17). Assuming that these communities are heterotrophic, one would expect CR to increase with temperature as reported for bacteria (Brock 1966). The consistency noted at the first order sites was related to the comparatively low epilithon standing crops. Beyers (1962) recorded that in experimental microcosms temperature affected CR until a balanced ecosystem had developed. He related this to the multiciplicity of metabolic pathways at work within the community, which easily adapted to changing conditions. Therefore, the consistency may be related to establishment of a dynamic equilibrium as rates of CR varied little over the seasons.

At the open Upper 43rd and Nagel sites with well developed epilithic communities, a direct relationship existed with temperature (Figures G-4, G-5). Levels of CR correlated with epilithon development, ranking from low to highest rates and development: Smith, B Avenue, Kellogg Forest and Nagel (Kellogg Forest = Nagel) (Table 9). Although temperature was important in controlling rates of CR, a community must be present to respire, and at Smith Site low CR indicated low microbial development.

On a site basis a significant relationship with temperature was not evident for any parameter measured at Smith Site, while at B Avenue CR, GCP and NDM were correlated with temperature (Appendix E, Table 17). Cooler temperatures probably influenced algal development at these sites (Smith  $\overline{x}$  9.5 C, B Avenue  $\overline{x}$  8.7 C), but temperature ranges (0 - 25 C) included periods in which diatom growth abounded (Table 10). The higher temperatures occurred during maximum canopy cover, therefore, complicating interpretation of development patterns. Diatoms were visually present at B Avenue, and GCP and NDM were correlated with temperature at this site.

At the Nagel, Upper 43rd, and Kellogg Forest sites, CR was again the most obviously correlated parameter with temperature; GCP was the only other significantly correlated parameter (P = 0.05; Appendix E; Table 17). NCP levels were more positively influenced by temperature at these open sites (Figures G 10 - 12), as indicated by increased R values and F ratios (Table 17). This relationship indicated that temperature may have been limiting epilithon development at the shaded first order sites when light was available for increased levels of primary productivity. Adams and Stone (1973) reported seasonal differences in NCP of <u>Cladophora</u> to be closely related to temperatures. The importance of temperature on rates of CR, GCP, and NDM, possibly through CR mediation on GCP and NDM, or some unknown influence such as community composition and species temperature

optima, or total epilithon development and stability was evident at sites of Augusta Creek.

## Detrital-Ash-Free Dry Weight

The question of the effects of detrital standing crops on CR of communities has been addressed in lentic and lotic systems (Nelson and Scott 1962, Hargrave 1969b, Edberg and Hofsten 1973, Göthberg and Karlström 1975). Studies relating productivity to AFDW of detritus have not been reported.

The high values of P make it evident that detritus had little effect on community metabolism at sites of Augusta Creek (Table 18). Few of the F ratios were greater than one, which also indicated there was little influence on average rates or on an individual site basis (Table 18; Appendix E). These ratios ranged from 0.01 for average GCP to 1.3 for average NDM and on a site basis from 0.02 for NCP at B Avenue to 3.24 for CR at the Nagel Site. There were no clear patterns established as values greater than one were for different parameters. The correlations between parameters and detritus were weak, and measurement of detrital standing crop was not of value in predicting rates of community metabolism at riffle sites of Augusta Creek.

## Epilithon

Epilithon has been characterized in the literature mainly by estimates of biomass obtained from chlorophyll extraction (McConnell and Sigler 1956, Wetzel 1963, Duffer and Dorris 1966, Grzenda et al. 1968, Bowbówna 1972, Cadeé and Hegeman 1974, Helan et al. 1977, Seyfer and Wilhm 1977, Sumner and Fisher 1979, Bush and Fisher 1981). Dry weight and AFDW determinations on artificial substrates have also been

Dependent Variable	N <b>*</b>	R**	F Ratio	P***
X GCP	94	0.10	0.012	0.900
X NCP	96	0.11	1.300	0.255
X CR	96	0.08	0.600	0.435
X NDM	94	0.12	1.400	0.244
MITH				
X GCP	12	0.32	1.112	0.316
X NCP	12	0.13	0.175	0.694
X CR	12	0.35	1.434	0.259
X NDM	12	0.32	1.126	0.314
3 AVENUE				
X GCP	29	0.12	0.372	0.547
X NCP	30	0.02	0.016	0.900
X CR	29	0.17	0.826	0.372
X NDM	29	0.18	0.917	0.347
IPPER 43RD				
X GCP	10	0.14	0.149	0.710
X NCP	10	0.28	0.687	0.431
X CR	11	0.19	0.351	0.568
X NDM	10	0.34	1.045	0.333
AGEL				
X GCP	32	0.25	2.062	0.161
X NCP	33	0.18	1.031	0.318
X CR	33	0.31	3.243	0.081
X NDM	32	0.13	0.524	0.475
ELLOGG FOREST				
X GCP	11	0.23	0.478	0.507
X NCP	11	0.27	0.711	0.421
X CR	11	0.06	0.029	0.869
X NDM	11	0.47	2.598	0.141

Table 18. Regression summary for the relationship between GCP, NCP, CR, and NDM and the independent variable detrital standing crop (AFDW) for five sites of Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan.

\*\* R = Multiple Correlation Coefficient

\*\*\* P = Level of Significance

used (Cushing 1967, Edberg and Hofsten 1973, Helan et al. 1973, Calow 1975, Naiman 1976, Seyfer and Wilhm 1977). These above studies indicated variable correlation between biomass and community metabolism. However, these studies were aimed at determining autotrophic colonization rather than the entire assemblage including detritus. Madsen (1972) found the epilithon of shaded Denmark streams to be detrital dominated, and Calow (1975) found epilithic detritus to be a high quality food for macroinvertebrates. Perkins and Kaplen (1978), reported epilithon to be 76% detritus and further characterized this segment to be accumulated autochthonously produced diatom stalks. Clearly, detritus is a portion of the epilithon and will be involved in any <u>in situ</u> measurements of community metabolism and the impact of the intact assemblage is of importance in the function of stream ecosystems regardless of the composition.

On an annual average basis, a significant positive relationship existed between epilithon development and all dependent variables (Table 19). F ratios ranged from 7.8 for NDM to 17.6 for NCP (Table 19). The F ratios for epilithon followed stream order and light in order of magnitude (Appendix E); these values were much more significant than estimates of detrital AFDW. Correlations ranging from R = 0.28 to 0.8 have been reported for biomass and primary productivity (Cadeé and Hegeman 1974, Ertl and Tomajka 1973). Augusta Creek values of R = 0.42 NCP and R = 0.39 GCP (Table 19) are within this range. Various relationships have been demonstrated using chlorophyll a extractions as an estimator of biomass (Wetzel 1963, Schindler et al. 1973, Sumner and Fisher 1975, Marker 1976b, de laCruz and Post 1977, Bush and Fisher 1981). While chlorophyll estimates may

Dependent Variable	N <b>*</b>	R**	F Ratio	P***
X GCP	83	0.39	14.8	0,002
X NCP	85	0.42	17.6	0.000
X CR	85	0.31	8.6	0.004
X NDM	83	0.30	7.8	0.007
MITH		، میں ہے جو جی ہی جو جو ند ان		
X GCP	12	0.41	1.966	0.191
X NCP	12	0.76	13.601	0.004
X CR	12	0.38	1.699	0.222
X NDM	12	0.66	7.696	0.020
AVENUE				
X GCP	23	0.24	1.270	0.273
X NCP	24	0.21	0.979	0.333
X CR	23	0.19	0.796	0.382
X NDM	23	0.10	0.215	0.648
PPER 43RD				
X GCP	9	0.00	0.000	0.992
X NCP	9	0.03	0.007	0.935
X CR	10	0.16	0.206	0.662
X NDM	9	0.37	1.126	0.324
AGEL				
X GCP	28	0.07	0.113	0.740
X NCP	29	0.08	0.189	0.667
X CR	29	0.20	1.104	0.303
X NDM	28	0.18	0.881	0.357
ELLOGG FOREST				
X GCP	11	0.19	0.321	0.585
X NCP	11	0.38	1.523	0.248
X CR	11	0.17	0.260	0.622
Ϋ́ΝDΜ	11	0.63	6.254	0.034

Table 19. Regression summary for the relationship between NCP, GCP, CR, and NDM with the independent variable epilithon for five sites of Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan.

\*\* R = Multiple Correlation Coefficient

\*\*\* P = Level of Significance

.

reflect productivity changes, using epiliton estimates the entire community is included and integrated.

The effects of epilithon development on CR and NDM have not been examined by many investigators. However, Bush and Fisher (1981) reported increased CR with increased biomass in a desert stream (Arizona). The relationships indicated by regressions from Augusta Creek riffles were not high, but ranked above detrital standing crop estimates (Table 19). For individual sites several F values were greater than one, but few regressions were significant (P = 0.05). This indicates a stabilization in epilithon development at a site, with site differences reflected in the average epilithon and metabolic capacities. Dynamic changes in biomass per day would not be expected dealing with large initial epilithon weights (compared to cell or detrital weights). Rates of metabolism oscillated with changes in physical factors, therefore, only when averaged over the annual period would these correlations become obvious. Average integration is further supported by the higher correlations at Smith site where epilithon levels were lower and changes were more readily detected.

#### Sites

Examining the regression data (Appendix E) for each dependent variable stream order was the most important factor influencing community metabolism. Of the variable parameters light was by far the most important parameter for all facets of community metabolism except CR where temperature was most important.

At the sites controlling factors varied (Table E - 3). The highest and only significant correlation and F ratio was epilithon at

the Smith Site, which illustrates the importance of even small amounts of detrital or algal accumulation. At the B Avenue Site the only significant relationships were with temperature for CR, GCP, and NDM, which indicated a bacterial dominated community. Upper 43rd Site had significant correlations between GCP and CR with temperature, Nagel had temperature correlating with NCP, CR, GCP and NDM and light with GCP, while the Kellogg Forest had significant regressions for GCP, CR, and temperature and NDM with light and epilithon. Temperature on a site basis was the influencing factor on average rates of community metabolism and only when individual rates were examined was the overwhelming importance of light evident.

## Particle-Size Community Metabolism

The impact of various inorganic and organic particle-size distributions within sediments on community metabolism in lotic systems has received little attention (Minshall et al. 1982). McConnell and Sigler (1959) and Marker (1976b) indicated that the larger inorganic particles contained approximately 95% of the algal biomass based on chlorophyll extractions, which indicated larger particles more suitable for algal colonization. Nelson and Scott (1962) studying CR rates in various sections of the Oconee River, Georgia, using the upstream-downstream technique, found CR to be insignificant on shifting sand substrates. This technique does not allow separation of discrete particle-sizes or detritus from inorganic sediments.

Electron and epiflouresence microscopy of epilithon of small stones indicated a prevalence of detritus (Madsen 1972) and Suberkropp

and Klug (1974) illustrated that as detrital particles decreased in size the major colonization shifts from fungal hyphae to bacteria. In their micrographs algae (diatoms) were also present. It is of both theoretical and applied interest to examine the metabolism of various sediment particle-sizes and their contribution to total community metabolism.

The activity on an AFDW basis ( $\mu 10_2 \text{ g}^{-1}$ ) of various particle sizes may be compared and when converted to g  $0_2 \text{ m}^{-2} \text{d}^{-1}$  the relative contribution of particles to overall community metabolism can be partitioned and the trends compared to in situ measurememnts (Appendix H). Comparisons of Gilson metabolism estimates to in situ rates of NCP, GCP and CR  $m^{-2}$  indicated parameters to generally be greater when estimated by the former method (Table 20). This trend, especially for macroinvertebrate-free sediments, may indicate the inadequacy of short term estimates, extrapolation to an areal basis assuming all layers of epilithon metabolize at equal rates, particle-sizing and assuming all particles behave the same in situ where depth of the particle would be of importance, or exposure through particle-sizing of surfaces to higher oxygen concentrations with subsequent increased activity of the flora, especially facultative anaerobes. However, the Gilson estimates are of value for comparative purposes and particle-size analyses.

# Particle-sized estimates of community metabolism (AFDW basis)

NCP for detritus ranged from  $-319.7 \ \mu 10_2 \ g^{-1}h^{-1}$  at B Avenue in August to  $+1687.6 \ \mu 10_2 \ g^{-1}h^{-1}$  at Upper 43rd in June; 0.45  $\mu$ m particles were always most active (Table H-1; Figures 26, 27). Annual averages
		Annual X Gilson	Annual X <u>in</u> situ
Parameter	Site	$g 0_2 m^{-2}d^{-1}$	$g 0^2 m^{-2}d^{-1}$
NCP	Smith	-0.79	-0.16
NCP	<b>B</b> Avenue	-1.43	-0.02
NCP	Upper 43rd	5.46	1.24
NCP	Nagel	2.77	1.80
NCP	Kellogg Forest	1.39	0.94
GCP	Smith	-0.08	0.12
GCP	B Avenue	0.28	0.26
GCP	Upper 43rd	6.83	2.18
GCP	Nagel	4.53	2.89
GCP	Kellogg Forest	3.01	1.36
CR	Smith	1.24	0.56
CR	<b>B</b> Avenue	2.87	0.53
CR	Upper 43rd	2.27	1.79
CR	Nagel	2.93	1.88
CR	Kellogg Forest	2.84	0.75
NDM	Smith	-1.32	-0.44
NDM	B Avenue	-2.59	-0.26
NDM	Upper 43rd	4.55	0.45
NDM	Nage1	6.60	1.01
NDM	Kellogg Forest	0.17	0.60

Table 20.Comparison of community metabolism parameters from in situ<br/>and Gilson Respirometer experiments from five riffle<br/>communities of Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan.



Figure 26. Estimates of NCP from particle sized detritus and epilithon communities from Smith, B Avenue and Upper 43rd riffle sites of Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan (1974-1975).



Figure 27. Estimates of NCP from particle-sized detritus and epilithon communities from Nagel and Kellogg Forest riffle sites of Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan (1974-1975).

for particle-sizes ranged from -213.3 to +485.3  $\mu$ 10<sub>2</sub> g<sup>-1</sup>h<sup>-1</sup> at B Avenue and Upper 43rd, respectively (Table 21). The striking featurs of detrital NCP included negative values for the majority of particle sizes during all seasons, with least negative values of NCP generally during the February diatom bloom. The only positive value was during June at the Upper 43rd Site. Similar seasonal trends existed for all sizes within sites (Figures 26, 27). Comparing average rates of NCP between sites, B Avenue and Smith values were consistently more negative than the autotrophic sites (Table 21). Ranking the particles on increasing levels of NCP at each site (Table 22) there were no clear patterns within particle-sizes, but ranked by total average NCP, the 0.45 µm detritus had the only positive value, while the others were similar with the 75 µm, which were lowest in autotrophic colonization (Tables 21, 22).

Estimates of epilithon NCP ranged from -321.0 to +2174.2  $\mu 10_2$  g<sup>-1</sup>h<sup>-1</sup> for 75  $\mu$ m mineral sediments in August at Smith and 4 mm sediments in March at the Kellogg Forest Sites, respectively (Appendix H; Figures 26, 27). Averages ranged from -155  $\mu 10_2$  g<sup>-1</sup>h<sup>-1</sup> for 75  $\mu$ m particles to +752.9  $\mu 10_2$  g<sup>-1</sup>h<sup>-1</sup> for 4 mm gravel at Kellogg Forest (Table 21). Based on rates of positive NCP, epilithon of all inorganic fractions at Upper 43rd were colonized by autotrophic organisms during all seasons, as well as the majority of the Nagel and Kellogg Forest particles (Figures 26, 27). Lowest rates of NCP at these sites occurred in August, while maxima were scattered in occurrence (Figures 26, 27). The heterotrophic sites had little algal colonization, but greater NCP occurred on these sediments than the detrital segements, especially in the 4 and 1 mm inorganic fractions.

Site	4mm	lmm	250µm	75µm	0.45µm	x/g
X NCP DETRITUS	μ10 <sub>2</sub>	g-1 <sub>h</sub> -1	<u> </u>			
Smith	-133.9	- 95.2	- 79.0	-116.3	-159.2	-116.7
B Avenue	- 65.2	- 91.1	-133.0	-130.1	-213.3	-124.5
Upper 43rd	- 88.6	- 83.5	- 50.0	- 25.6	+485.3	+ 47.5
Nagel	- 23.1	- 40.3	- 54.2	- 94.8	- 83.9	- 59.3
Kellogg Forest	-107.4	- 60.1	- 62.6	- 86.4	-114.9	- 86.3
x	- 83.6	- 74.0	- 75.8	- 90.6	17.2	
X CR DETRITUS	μ10 <sub>2</sub> ;	g-1 <sub>h</sub> -1				-
Smith	76-5	67.2	42-1	63-0	93_9	68.5
B Avenue	55.1	64.0	94.9	78.5	160-6	90.6
Upper 43rd	140.4	111.9	125.7	129.7	351.0	171.7
Nagel	34.3	34.1	42_0	71.5	157-6	67.9
Kellogg Forest	216.1	124.1	64.3	91.8	262.0	151.7
x	104.5	80.3	73.8	86.9	205.0	
X NCP EPILITH	<u>0N</u> µ102 (	<sub>g</sub> -1 <sub>h</sub> -1				
Smith	- 5.5	- 18.7	-123.4	-155.0		- /5./
Smith B Avenue	- 5.5 - 8.3	- 18.7 - 25.5	-123.4 - 61.4	-155.0 - 96.3		- 75.7
Smith B Avenue Upper 43rd	- 5.5 - 8.3 116.3	- 18.7 - 25.5 75.1	-123.4 - 61.4 215.1	-155.0 - 96.3 386.0		- 75.7 - 47.9 198.1
Smith B Avenue Upper 43rd Nagel	- 5.5 - 8.3 116.3 35.8	- 18.7 - 25.5 75.1 20.0	-123.4 - 61.4 215.1 106.6	-155.0 - 96.3 386.0 205.8		- /5./ - 47.9 198.1 92.1
Smith B Avenue Upper 43rd Nagel Kellogg Forest	- 5.5 - 8.3 116.3 35.8 752.9	- 18.7 - 25.5 75.1 20.0 57.2	-123.4 - 61.4 215.1 106.6 124.2	-155.0 - 96.3 386.0 205.8 214.6		- 75.7 - 47.9 198.1 92.1 287.2
Smith B Avenue Upper 43rd Nagel Kellogg Forest X	- 5.5 - 8.3 116.3 35.8 752.9	- 18.7 - 25.5 75.1 20.0 57.2 	-123.4 - 61.4 215.1 106.6 124.2 	-155.0 - 96.3 386.0 205.8 214.6 		- 75.7 - 47.9 198.1 92.1 287.2
Smith B Avenue Upper 43rd Nagel Kellogg Forest X X CR EPILITHO	$ \begin{array}{c} - 5.5 \\ - 8.3 \\ 116.3 \\ 35.8 \\ 752.9 \\ \hline 178.2 \\ \underline{0N}  \mu 10_2 \\ \mu \end{array} $	$ \begin{array}{r} - 18.7 \\ - 25.5 \\ 75.1 \\ 20.0 \\ 57.2 \\ \hline 21.6 \\ g-1h-1 \\ \end{array} $	-123.4 - 61.4 215.1 106.6 124.2 	-155.0 - 96.3 386.0 205.8 214.6 		- 75.7 - 47.9 198.1 92.1 287.2
Smith B Avenue Upper 43rd Nagel Kellogg Forest X X CR EPILITH( Smith	$ \begin{array}{c} - 5.5 \\ - 8.3 \\ 116.3 \\ 35.8 \\ 752.9 \\ \hline 178.2 \\ \underline{0N}  \mu 10_2 \\ 10.2 \\ \end{array} $	$ \begin{array}{r} - 18.7 \\ - 25.5 \\ 75.1 \\ 20.0 \\ 57.2 \\ \hline 21.6 \\ g-1h-1 \\ 12.1 \\ \end{array} $	-123.4 -61.4 215.1 106.6 124.2 -52.2 61.8	-155.0 - 96.3 386.0 205.8 214.6 		- 75.7 - 47.9 198.1 92.1 287.2
Smith B Avenue Upper 43rd Nagel Kellogg Forest X X CR EPILITHO Smith B Avenue	$\begin{array}{c} - 5.5 \\ - 8.3 \\ 116.3 \\ 35.8 \\ 752.9 \\ \hline 178.2 \\ \hline 0N  \mu 10_2 \\ 10.2 \\ 19.3 \end{array}$	$ \begin{array}{r} - 18.7 \\ - 25.5 \\ 75.1 \\ 20.0 \\ 57.2 \\ \hline 21.6 \\ g-1h-1 \\ 12.1 \\ 26.8 \\ \end{array} $	-123.4 -61.4 215.1 106.6 124.2 -52.2 61.8 74.9	-155.0 - 96.3 386.0 205.8 214.6 		- 75.7 - 47.9 198.1 92.1 287.2 43.3 56.3
Smith B Avenue Upper 43rd Nagel Kellogg Forest X X CR EPILITHO Smith B Avenue Upper 43rd	$\begin{array}{c} - 5.5 \\ - 8.3 \\ 116.3 \\ 35.8 \\ 752.9 \\ \hline 178.2 \\ \hline 0N  \mu 10_2 \\ 10.2 \\ 19.3 \\ 29.0 \end{array}$	$ \begin{array}{r} - 18.7 \\ - 25.5 \\ 75.1 \\ 20.0 \\ 57.2 \\ \hline 21.6 \\ g-1h-1 \\ 12.1 \\ 26.8 \\ 43.0 \\ \end{array} $	-123.4 - 61.4 215.1 106.6 124.2 	-155.0 - 96.3 386.0 205.8 214.6 		- 75.7 - 47.9 198.1 92.1 287.2 43.3 56.3 66.4
Smith B Avenue Upper 43rd Nagel Kellogg Forest X X CR EPILITH( Smith B Avenue Upper 43rd Nagel	$\begin{array}{c} - 5.5 \\ - 8.3 \\ 116.3 \\ 35.8 \\ 752.9 \\ \hline 178.2 \\ \hline 178.2 \\ \hline 0N  \mu 10_2 \\ 10.2 \\ 19.3 \\ 29.0 \\ 18.4 \end{array}$	$ \begin{array}{r} - 18.7 \\ - 25.5 \\ 75.1 \\ 20.0 \\ 57.2 \\ \hline 21.6 \\ g-1h-1 \\ 12.1 \\ 26.8 \\ 43.0 \\ 24.3 \\ \end{array} $	-123.4 - 61.4 215.1 106.6 124.2 	-155.0 - 96.3 386.0 205.8 214.6 		- 75.7 - 47.9 198.1 92.1 287.2 43.3 56.3 66.4 54.6
Smith B Avenue Upper 43rd Nagel Kellogg Forest X X CR EPILITH( Smith B Avenue Upper 43rd Nagel Kellogg Forest	$\begin{array}{c} - 5.5 \\ - 8.3 \\ 116.3 \\ 35.8 \\ 752.9 \\ \hline 178.2 \\ \hline 178.2 \\ \hline 10.2 \\ 19.3 \\ 29.0 \\ 18.4 \\ 39.3 \\ \end{array}$	$ \begin{array}{r} - 18.7 \\ - 25.5 \\ 75.1 \\ 20.0 \\ 57.2 \\ \hline 21.6 \\ g-1h-1 \\ 12.1 \\ 26.8 \\ 43.0 \\ 24.3 \\ 35.8 \\ \end{array} $	-123.4 - 61.4 215.1 106.6 124.2 	-155.0 - 96.3 386.0 205.8 214.6 		- 75.7 - 47.9 198.1 92.1 287.2 43.3 56.3 66.4 54.6 78.6

Table 21. Average particle-sized community metabolism estimates (weight basis) from Gilson Respirometery for five riffle sites of Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan.

**** 4 - / * ***	Particle size rank - Highest to lowest					
Site	Rank 1	2	3	4	5	
X NCP DETRITUS						
Smith	<b>250µm</b>	1mm	75µm	4mm	0.45µm	
B Avenue	4mm	lmm	75µm	250µm	0.45µm	
Upper 43rd	0.45µm	75µm	250µm	1mm	4mm	
Nagel	4mm	1mm	250µm	0 <b>.45</b> µm	75µm	
Kellogg Forest	lmm	<b>25</b> 0µm	75µm	4mm	0.45µm	
Sites Average	0.45µm	1mm	250µm	4mm	75µm	
X CR DETRITUS						
Smith	0.45µm	4mm	Imm	75µm	250µm	
B Avenue	0.45µm	250µm	75µm	lmm	4mm	
Upper 43rd	0.45µm	4mm	75µm	250µm	1mm	
Nagel	0.45µm	75 µm.	250µm	4mm	lmm	
Kellogg Forest	0.45µm	4mm	lmm	75µm	250µm	
Sites Average	0.45µm	4mm	75µm	lmm	250µm	
X NCR EPILITHON	<u>v</u>					
Smith	4mm	lmm	250µm	75µm		
B Avenue	4mm	lmm	250 µm.	75µm		
Upper 43rd	75µm	250µm	4mm	lmm		
Nagel	75µm	250µm	4mm	1mm		
Kellogg Forest	4mm	<b>75µm</b>	250µm	lmm		
Sites Average	4mm	75µm	250µm	<u>1</u> mm		
X CR EPILITHON	<u>1</u>					
Smith	75um	250um	lmm	4mm		
B Avenue	75um	250 um	lmm	4mm		
Upper 43rd	75um	250um	lmm	4mm		
Nagel	75um	250um	lmm	4mm		
Kellogg Forest	250µm	75µm	lmm	4mm		
Sites Average	7511m	250um		1mm		
DILES AVELAGE	γμ <u>μ</u>	2.J0µm	-+uuu	1 11111		

Table 22. Ranked particle-size contributions to various parameters of community metabolism (weight basis) from five riffle communities of Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan.

Sites ranked by average epilithon NCP in increasing order were: Smith, B Avenue, Nagel, Upper 43rd, and Kellogg Forest (Table 21). Obvious differences were evident between the heterotrophic headwater sites and the open sites of Augusta Creek. Ranked particle-sized epilithon NCP (Table 22) showed variable results with larger sizes autotrophically colonized most heavily at Smith, B Avenue, and Kellogg Forest, while smaller particles at Nagel and Upper 43rd had the highest values of NCP. Averaging sites, the two extremes in particle-size had the highest rates of NCP with 1 mm particles lowest in activity (Table 22). Heaviest autotrophic colonization of larger particles has been shown by other investigators (McConnell and Sigler 1959, Duffer and Dorris 1966, Marker 1976b). Although primary productivity has not been reported on discrete particle sizes in the literature, Gargas (1970) reported the epipsammon to contribute 60 to 83% of the primary production of marine littoral sediments as compared to detritus and noted Gronsted (1960, 1962) found similar results in sediments of the Wadden Sea and Danish fjords. These studies, with autotrophic colonization on fine particles (sands) are similar to the increased levels of NCP on the 75  $\mu$ m inorganic sediments reported in this study.

Partitioned CR ( $\mu 10_2 \text{ g}^{-1}\text{h}^{-1}$ ) results for sediments indicated the detrital particles had higher rates of CR than the inorganic sediments. Higher (40 to 90%) detrital than inorganic sediment CR has been reported by Teal (1962) and Hargrave (1972) from lentic systems. The 4 mm and 1 mm inorganic particles from Augusta Creek approximated 35% of the detrital CR, but that of smaller particles (250 and $\mu$ 75 m) was approximately equal (104 and 109% respectively). As particle-size

decreases, surface area to volume increases and floral shifts from fungi to bacteria were noted by Suberkropp and Klug (1974), which may have accounted for increased rates of metabolic activity on the finer particles at Augusta Creek sites. However, Nelson and Scott (1962) found CR to be insignificant on shifting sand bottoms, which indicates a complex relationship between particle-size and CR, dependent on the location and stability of small particles within the sediments. Total inorganic CR averaged 70% of total CR at Augusta Creek riffles.

Detrital CR ranged from 15.1  $\mu$ 10<sub>1</sub> g<sup>-1</sup>h<sup>-1</sup> for 4 mm fractions from Nagel Site in March to 738.8  $\mu 10_2~g^{-1}h^{-1}$  for 0.45  $\mu m$  Upper 43rd detritus in June, while particle-size specific CR averaged over the early spring to late summer period ranged from 34  $\mu$ l0<sub>2</sub> g<sup>-1</sup>h<sup>-1</sup> for 4 and 1 mm detritus to 351  $\mu$ 102 g<sup>-1</sup>h<sup>-1</sup> for 0.45  $\mu$ m components, both at Upper 43rd (Appendix H; Table 21). The lowest rates at all sites were during the early spring; they increased during early summer and generally attained maxima in late summer (Figure 28). The ultrafine particulate organic matter (0.45  $\mu$ m category = UPOM) rates of CR were consistently highest at all sites with most other particles similar and lower in rates of CR (Figure 28). The highest average rates were from Upper 43rd detritus followed by Kellogg Forest, B Avenue, Smith and Nagel (Table 21). The average activity by particle size (Table 22) indicated 0.45  $\mu$ m detrital particles had the highest rates of CR followed by 4 mm particles with 75  $\mu$ m, 1 mm, and 250  $\mu$ m detrital particles similar. These data are unlike those of Fenchel (1970) and Hargrave (1972) who found detritus CR rates inversely related to particle size. Based on surface to volume ratios of particles an inverse relationship may be expected, however, this premise would be



Figure 28. Estimates of CR from particle-sized detritus and epilithon communities from selected riffle sites of Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan (1974-1975).

based on equal colonization of surfaces by a similar flora (i.e. bacteria). In heterogeneous layered substrates differences would be expected in types of colonizers (i.e. autotrophic-heterotrophic components) and particle location (i.e. light availability).

Epilithon CR was also lowest during spring periods; increased during early summer; and remained stable at Smith and B Avenue Sites during the summer, but decreased at the Upper 43rd, Nagel and Kellogg Forest (Figure 28). The decrease at the autotrophic sites resulted during the period of algal senescence; detrital CR increased at the same time indicative of algal inputs to the detrital pool (Edberg and Hofsten 1973).

Rates of epilithon CR ranged from nondetectable for 250  $\mu$ m sands at Smith, Nagel, and Upper 43rd Sites in early spring to 214.4  $\mu$ 10<sub>2</sub> g<sup>-1</sup>h<sup>-1</sup> for 75  $\mu$ m sands in June at the Kellogg Forest (Appendix H). Averaged by site, the highest CR was at the Kellogg Forest and Upper 43rd Sites with B Avenue and Nagel Sites approximately equal and Smith lowest (Table 21). The similarity of B Avenue and Nagel epilithon CR would indicate similar levels of colonization, but the percent composition of autotrophs must have varied significantly based on the NCP values (Tables 9, 21). Ranked by increasing activity, the epilithon CR patterns followed the inverse relationship with particle-size proposed for detritus by Fenchel (1970) and Hargrave (1972). Comparing particle-sizes, a similar trend existed; averages for the 75  $\mu$ m sands were the most active while the 1 mm were lowest at all sites (Table 21). Overall on a weight basis, detritus had higher CR and lower NCP than epilithon.

Particle-sized estimates of community metabolism Areal basis)

On an areal basis, as on a weight basis, the autotrophic colonization was in the epilithon community, but on an areal basis, especially for epilithon, general trends were similar to in situ. This agreement further substantiates the magnitude of epilithon biomass in riffle sections. Average detrital NCP  $m^{-2}$ , as on a weight basis, was generally negative with the highest and only positive value at Upper 43rd for 0.45 um detritus (Table 23). The lowest average values were also for this segment at B Avenue and Smith Sites (Table 23). Averaged for particle-size, the lowest values of NCP were for the UPOM and highest for the CPOM fractions, which differed from a weight basis where UPOM had highest average values (Tables 21, 23). When particles were ranked by site for NCP (Table 24) the averages had a similar pattern to a weight basis, but generally there was direct relationship between rate and particle size not evident on a weight basis (Tables 22, 24). Areal ranked sites were identical to biomass (AFDW) (Tables 22, 24).

The highest average NCP rates were from the epilithon of Upper 43rd 4 mm inorganic sediments, while the lowest rates were from 75  $\mu$ m sands from the Smith site (Table 23). On an average particle-sized basis contributions of the 4 mm stones were highly separated from the other rates of NCP; the 75  $\mu$ m sands had the lowest activity. On the weight basis the 75  $\mu$ m fractions had high levels of activity (Tables 21, 23). Ranking sites by NCP m<sup>-2</sup> (Table 23), Smith was lowest followed by B Avenue, Kellogg Forest, Nagel and Upper 43rd, while on the weight ranking the autotrophic sites shifted to Nagel, Upper 43rd, and Kellogg Forest. This shift illustrates the effects of epilithon

Site	4 <del>mm</del>	1mm	250µm	75µm	0.45µm	Total m <sup>-2</sup>
X NCP DETRITUS	mg O <sub>2</sub> 1	n-2 <sub>d</sub> -1				
Smith	- 32.0	- 42.3	- 48.2	- 50.1	-328.7	-501.2
B Avenue	- 35.6	-131.5	-143.1	-132.4	-341.3	-784.0
Upper 43rd	- 28.2	- 31.3	- 31.8	- 2.2	+225.7	136.7
Nagel	- 11.9	- 14.5	- 26.6	- 34.1	-111.3	-198-3
Kellogg Forest	- 4.1	- 24.9	- 43.6	- 51.9	-141.3	-265.7
x	- 22.4	- 48.9	- 58.7	- 54.1	-132.2	
X NCP EPILITHO	N mg O <sub>2</sub> 1	n <sup>-2</sup> d-1				
Smith	1	- 96.9	-173-6	- 22.3		-292.3
B Avenue	-380.6	-108.3	-138.2	- 15.4		-194.9
Upper 43rd	5046.6	137.4	117.7	23.0		5324.8
Nagel	2446.9	155.3	344.0	22.0		2968.3
Kellogg Forest	1586.0	70.3	87.4	95.6		1654.4
x	1739.7	31.6	46.9	20.6		
X CR DETRITUS	<u>S</u> mg O <sub>2</sub> n	n-2 <sub>d</sub> -1				
Smith	28.3	48.7	45.9	48.2	339.6	510.8
B Avenue	50.6	173.2	189.5	152.5	462.2	1028.0
Upper 43rd	54.7	63.3	73.0	97.7	446.1	748.6
Nagel	22.0	24.9	35.0	44.4	338.2	464.4
Kellogg Forest	14.8	70.4	74.7	99.0	562.3	821.1
x	34.1	76.1	83.6	88.4	429.6	
X CR EPILITHO	ON mg O2m	n-2 <sub>d</sub> -1				
Smith	438.5	105-8	155.7	26.1		726-2
B Avenue	1339.3	188.2	284.5	20.1		1841-8
Unner 43rd	1382.4	70 0	50 A	12 4		1523-8
Nagol	2070 6	200 3	160 0	26.1		2466-0
Nager Vollogg Forest	171/ 0	117 2	107.0	20+1 02 A		2400.0
verrokk totest	1/14•9	11/•2	101-1	03.0		2010+4
x	1389.1	136.3	153.9	35.5		

Table 23. Average estimates of community metabolism of various particle-sizes expressed on an areal basis for five riffle sites of Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan.

	Particle size rank - Highest to lowest					
Site	Rank 1	2	3	4	5	
X NCP DETRITUS						
Smith	4mm	1mm	250µm	75µm	0.45µm	
B Avenue	4mm	1mm	75µm	250µm	0.45µm	
Upper 43rd	0.45µm	75µm	4mm	lmm	250µm	
Nagel	4mm	1mm	250µm	75µm	0.45µm	
Kellogg Forest	4 <u>m</u> m	lmm	250µm	75µm	0.45µm	
Sites Average	0•45µm	lmm	250µm	4mm	75µm	
X NCP EPILITHON						
Smith	4mm	75µm	1mm	250µm		
B Avenue	75 լա ա	lmm	250 µm	4mm		
Upper 43rd	4mm	lmm	250 µm	75սա		
Nagel	4mm	250µm	lmm	75µm		
Kellogg Forest	4mm	75µm.	250µm	lmm		
Sites Average	4mm	250µm	lmm	75µm		
X CR DETRITUS						
Smith	0.45um	lmm	75um	250um	4mm	
B Avenue	0.45um	250um	lmm	75um	4mm	
Upper 43rd	0.45um	75um	250um	lmm	4mm	
Nagel	0.45um	75um	250um	lmm	4mm	
Kellogg Forest	0.45µm	75µm	250µm	1mm	4mm	
Sites Average	0.45µm	75µm	250µm	lmm	4mm	
<b>X</b> CR EPILITHON					_	
Smith	4mm	250um	lmm	75um		
8 Avenue	4mm	250um	lmm	75um		
Jpper 43rd	4mm	lmm	250um	75um		
Nagel	4mm	lmm	250um	7511m		
Kellogg Forest	4mm	lmm	250µm	75µm	سر کے اللہ خلہ نے خلہ	
Sites Average		250um	1 mm	75um		

Table 24. Ranked particle-size contributions on an areal basis to estimates of community metabolism from five riffle communities of Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan.

development and detrital content of the sediments. <u>In situ</u> estimates of average NCP ranked more closely with epilithon than detrital values (Tables 9, 21, 23).

Even though CR estimates  $g^{-1}$  AFDW detritus were consistently higher than for epilithon (Table 21), when expressed on an areal format the reverse was true and the impact of the epilithic community established (Table 23). UPOM for which there is no inorganic counterpart had higher CR than all of the inorganic fractions except 4 mm stones, noting the importance of the two extremes in particle-size and sediment types in the autotrophic-heterotrophic balance of riffle sections. Detrital CR was highest (average m<sup>-2</sup>) at the Kellogg Forest for UPOM and lowest at Nagel Site for 4 mm pieces. Averaged by particle-size the highest and lowest components remained the same and were similar to a weight basis. Areal particle-size ranking indicated the generally accepted trend of CR inversely related to particle-size (Fenchel 1970, Hargrave 1972, Naiman and Sedell 1979b). On a weight basis this pattern was characteristic only of the Nagel site (Table 22).

Epilithon CR was higher than detrital on an area basis, and even the lowest Smith epilithon had higher CR m<sup>-2</sup> than all except B Avenue and Kellogg Forest detrital particles (Table 23). On an average the 4 mm particles dominated CR at all of the sites and 75  $\mu$ m sands contributed the least to epilithon CR. These average trends were characteristic of all sites with a direct relationship noted between particle-size and CR (Table 23). On the weight basis (Tables 21, 23) the reverse was true. This reversal indicated a more active, but lesser developed microflora on the sands.

When extrapolated to an areal basis, negative values of NCP, GCP, and NDM were consistently measured on detritus at the Smith Site with the 0.45  $\mu$ m fraction predictably lowest; the others were significantly different and closely grouped (Figure 29). The 4 mm detritus, indicating some algal colonization, had the highest rates of NCP and the lowest rates of CR. CR was highest in the 0.45  $\mu$ m fractions and increased with seasonal temperatures as did <u>in situ</u> CR (Figure 16). The consistently low NDM and P/R ratios of both detrital and epilithon fractions indicated heterotrophic colnization of all substrates and the heterotrophic character of this first order site (Figures 17, 18, 29, 30).

Within the epilithic community, as well, little autotrophic potential existed (Figure 30). The only positive value for NCP was on 4 mm substrates during the February diatom bloom, which indicated a more diverse flora was present. The 75  $\mu$ m sands had the least negative and most consistent levels of NCP, but as evidenced by GCP values, only in June rose above baseline in primary productivity. The 1 mm and 75  $\mu$ m inorganic sediments had maxima in GCP just after the major diatom bloom which may be the result of diatom community changes within the sediments from the <u>Meridion</u> - <u>Diatoma</u> bloom forms to smaller motile migratory forms which may colonize smaller sediments. However, only taxonomic analyses could substantiate this hypothesis. The comparison of particle-size specific epilithon NCP trends to <u>in</u> <u>situ</u> measurements indicated similar patterns as did the detrital component, which reinforced the dominance of heterotrophic processes with the riffle community.

B Avenue detritus, like Smith, had negative values of NCP, GCP,

NCP GCP NDM 100 0 -100 -1000 SU W SP W SU SP SU W SP mg 02 m -2 d -1 P/R 1 CR 0 1000 Δ 100 -1 4 m m o 1mm ∎ 250 µm 🗅 75 Jm 2 △ 0 . 45 µm 0 W SU SP W SP SU SEASON

Figure 29. Estimates of particle-sized community metabolism of the detrital component of Smith riffle sediments, Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan (1974-1975).

SMITH - DETRITUS



i

Figure 30. Estimates of particle-sized community metabolism of the epilithon of Smith riffle sediments, Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan (1974-1975).

and NDM which mimiced <u>in situ</u> trends (Figues 31, 14-18). On a comparative scale the UPOM particles were lowest and 4 mm detrital particles highest in autotrophic potential. The similarity in rates of NCP and CR of the other particles indicated that after breakdown to 1 mm and finer, detrital particles had a consistent heterotrophic (probably largely bacterial) flora; the UPOM, where increased surface area to particle size was greatest, had maximized colonization and increased rates of CR. P/R ratios, indicating the heterotrophic nature of detritus in the B Avenue riffle sections, were similar in magnitude to those of Smith detritus and all were significantly less than one (Figure 31).

The primary productivity capacity of the inorganic substrates at the B Avenue riffles also depicted a dependence on allochthonous substrates (Figure 32). NDM was below zero for all particles over the sampling period. NCP was positive only for 4 mm and 250  $\mu$ m particles in the spring during the diatom bloom; levels of NCP were highest for most particles during that period. As <u>in situ</u>, the P/R ratios were consistently less than one with the highest levels in spring; patterns of epilithon CR were also similar to <u>in situ</u> (Figures 32, 14-18). When comparing detrital and epilithon autochthonous contributions to riffle community metabolism at this site it was obvious that the little algal colonization which occurred did so in the epilithon community.

As on a weight basis, the small autotrophic potential demonstrated at the Upper 43rd Site in the detrital community, was due to the 0.45  $\mu$ m particulate fraction in June (Figure 33). This June maximum was evident in in situ measurements of NCP, GCP, and NDM as





Figure 31. Estimates of particle-sized community metabolism of the detrital component of B Avenue sediments, Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan (1974-1975).



Figure 32. Estimates of particle-sized community metabolism of the epilithon of B Avenue riffle sediments, Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan (1974-1975).



Figure 33. Estimates of particle-sized community metabolism of the detrital component of Upper 43rd riffle sediments, Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan (1974-1975).

well (Figures 33, 14, 15, 18). Although NCP was positive only during June, GCP in the UPOM fraction was positive from February to August. During February, diatom colonization was evident on all available surfaces and could well have been a part of the FPOM pool. The June increases in the UPOM fraction as well as the 75 um particles were related to periods of algal input. Length measurement of two common diatoms of the spring bloom: Diatoma vulgare Bory (30 to 60  $\mu$ m length) and Meridon circulare (12 to 80 um length) (Hustedt 1930) support this hypothesis. NDM in the 75  $_{\rm U}$ m fraction indicated carbon was produced in excess during June and August, while the other particle sizes were generally below zero in NCP and NDM (Figure 33). GCP was positive for most particles; the 75  $\mu$ m and 0.45  $\mu$ m particles had the highest values. CR was highest for the UPOM with other sizes lower and similar (Figure 33). P/R ratios were generally below one, but much higher than the Smith and B Avenue values. These data suggest algal colonization and autochthonous contributions to the energy base of the Upper 43rd riffle by the detrital community.

Based on levels of particle-sized epilithon primary productivity, the Upper 43rd epilithon community had a definite algal component (Figure 34). The only similarity with detrital contributions was levels of CR (Figure 33); even maxima of productivity occurred at different times with epilithon proceeding detrital, which added support to the algal input hypothesis. NDM and P/R ratios were above one indicating an autotroph dominated system in most cases. The 4 mm inorganic particles had the greatest contributions to the autochthonous organic pool of the riffle section as indicated by values of NCP, GCP, NDM, and P/R (Figure 34). High rates of CR for the larger inorganic



Figure 34. Estimates of particle-sized community metabolism of the epilithon of Upper 43rd riffle sediments, Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan (1974-1975).

substrates indicated higher colonization both heterotroph and autotroph (Figure 34). The smallest sands had the least impact from all standpoints. While detrital patterns in NCP (Figure 33) did not follow <u>in situ</u> trends, the epilithic contributions did, which indicated a dependence on epilithon development for increased NCP.

At the Nagel Site patterns of detrital community metabolism were similar to those of Upper 43rd (Figures 33, 35). NCP values were negative and very similar for all segments, GCP was positive during the February diatom bloom for 4 and 1 mm pieces and 0.45  $\mu$ m detritus in June and August (Figure 35). The summer increases were related to algal sloughing into the detrital pool. CR was also highest for this site in the UPOM with other sizes lower and similar in value. P/R ratios were all less than one and intermediate between the extreme lows of B Avenue and Smith Sites and the higher Upper 43rd values. The only trend similar to <u>in situ</u> measurements was for CR (Figure 35).

Particle-sized estimates of community metabolism at the Nagel site further expanded the importance of the larger stones as substrates for colonization (Figure 36). The patterns and magnitudes of parameters were similar to those of the Upper 43rd epilithon, and reflected <u>in situ</u> trends. This further substantiates the productivity potential of inorganic sediments within autotrophic riffles (Figures 34, 36).

Consistently below zero levels for NCP, NDM and P/R characterized the heterotrophic nature of the Kellogg Forest detritus. The 4 mm fragments had the highest percentage algae/surface area as it yielded the highest estimates of NCP and NDM with the lowest rates of CR (Figures 37). The highest CR and corresponding lowest NCP and NDM



P/R 1 CR 4 mm 1mm ο 0 500 250um 75µm 100 △ 0.45 µm -1 W SU SP 0 SP SU W SEASON

Figure 35. Estimates of particle-sized community metabolism of the detrital component of Nagel riffle sediments, Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan (1974-1975).

NAGEL - DETRITUS



Figure 36. Estimates of particle-sized community metabolism of the epilithon of Nagel riffle sediments, Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan (1974-1975).

were from the UPOM particles. GCP was positive for the UPOM segment which indicated potential algal inputs into this pool, yet NDM remained below zero for all segments. P/R ratios were similar to Nagel (below one) and intermediary to the extremes. The UPOM ratios were again the highest and most consistent (Figure 37). CR patterns were similar for all groups of detritus except 75  $\mu$ m, which may have been increased by algal inputs, as at Upper 43rd. Illustrating the dependence of NDM on CR and in turn amounts of detritus in the sediments, estimates of detrital NDM and <u>in situ</u> NDM indicated similar patterns. General correspondence with <u>in situ</u> trends was seen only for the 0.45  $\mu$ m fraction, which notes the importance of this fraction in the autotrophic-heterotrophic community balance (Figures 37, 14-18).

Autotrophic productivity of the epilithon at the Kellogg Forest was lowest during the early spring, increased in summer and decreased in late August (Figure 38). NCP and GCP values were positive for most particles over the experimental period and were similar to <u>in situ</u> (Figures 14, 15). CR rates followed the same pattern as NCP, GCP and <u>in situ</u> except 4 mm epilithon which remained high and stable (Figures 16, 38). NDM was characteristically above zero and was similar to <u>in</u> <u>situ</u> patterns (Figures 18, 38). In all cases 4 mm particles had the highest impact on overall NCP, GCP, CR, and NDM others were similar in levels of activity. The P/R ratios of 1 mm sands were consistently above one, while each of the others at some period fell below the compensation point (Figure 38). The only inorganic particles which followed <u>in situ</u> P/R trends were the 4 mm stones (Figures 17, 38). This site indicated a photosynthetically active community with all





P/R CR 1000 4 m m 100 1 mm 0 0 250 µm ۲ □ 75µm △ 0.45µm 0 -1 SP SU SU SEASON W SP W

Figure 37. Estimates of particle-sized community metabolism of the detrital component of Kellogg Forest riffle sediments, Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan (1974-1975).



Figure 38. Estimates of particle-sized community metabolism of the epilithon of Kellogg Forest riffle sediments, Augusta Creek, Kalamazoo County, Michigan (1974-1975).

inorganic sediments contributing to the autotrophic potential of the riffle reach. However, the majority of colonization occurred on 4 mm and larger particles.

## SYNTHESIS

Babbling brooks won't tell... Sunlight dappling jubilantly won't tell... Neither will the stately adjacent tree or jewelweed glistening in a patch of sunlight bankside... Of the complexity within. February 1982

Using a chamber method, <u>in situ</u> measurements of community metabolism, light, temperature, and substrate composition were monitored over a two year period in five riffle sections of Augusta Creek, Michigan. These included the first order shaded Smith and B Avenue Sites, meadow second order Upper 43rd Site, cleared third order Nagel Site, and the shaded third order section in the Kellogg Forest. During 1973-1974 daily estimates were made each month at B Avenue and Nagel Sites and daily seasonal estimates were made at the five sites during 1974-1975.

Physical and biological differences between sites were illustrated and reinforced the complexity of patterns of stream metabolism and productivity potential of woodland stream riffle sections.

## Temperature

Typical temperate region seasonal patterns of temperature occurred at each site with maximum temperatures during the summer and minima during the winter. Maxima at the sites ranged from 19.9 C at Smith and B Avenue Sites to 24.8 at Upper 43rd Site. Average daily temperatures ranged from 0.4 C at Upper 43rd in winter to 22.6 C at Nagel in August. First order sites were lowest, open sites highest, and shaded Kellogg Forest intermediary. Average daily temperatures plateaued at maximum temperatures in June and remained high until September at both shaded and open sections.

Greatest daily temperature fluctuations ranged from 5.8 to 10.5 C with the highest fluctuations occurring at first order sites during spring and fall. Indicating the importance of canopy in maintaining cooler conditions, the largest annual averages were for the open sites.

## Light

Average daily light measured at the riffle sections was highest (90,213 lux) at Upper 43rd in May and lowest (2,391 lux) at B Avenue in January, while averages over the study period ranged from 12,054 lux at Smith to 43,622 lux at Upper 43rd. First order sites were lowest, open sites highest and Kellogg Forest intermediary.

Smith and B Avenue sites received only 45% of the illumination of the shaded third order Kellogg Forest and only approximately 30% of the open sites. Open sites received approximately 140% of the shaded third order sites and Kellogg Forest approximately 66% of the light at open sites. Open sites displayed light patterns typical of temperate regions with spring-summer maxima and winter minima. June through September (leaf-out) light reductions were evident at Smith and B Avenue sites as were increases in light after canopy abscission. Even though complex dappled light patterns were evident at the Kellogg Forest site, significant light inputs were evident. On a comparative scale lower light values were evident due to shading at these three sites even during winter.

Ranking by average light input Smith was lowest followed by B Avenue, Kellogg Forest, Nagel, and Upper 43rd. Thus, light trends indicated the diversity of light patterns natural and man made along a continuum.

## Community Metabolism

GCP values, ranging from 0.09 to 5.35 g  $0_2 \text{ m}^{-2} \text{d}^{-1}$  at Smith Site in winter and Nagel Site in August, respectively, varied seasonally and between sites over the annual period. Highest values were during the spring at naturally shaded sites and summer at open sites. On an average the lowest levels were at Smith followed by B Avenue, which had a wider channel and approximately two times the GCP of Smith; Kellogg Forest; Upper 43rd; and Nagel. Levels of GCP from the first order sites were lower than reported literature values. Open sites had approximately 13% higher GCP than the first order reaches. Clearing shifted the autotrophic capacity to values typical or larger rivers.

NCP values followed the seasonal trends displayed by GCP and ranged from -0.25 g  $0_2$  m<sup>-2</sup>d<sup>-1</sup> at Smith during the fall to 4.03 g  $0_2$  m<sup>-2</sup>d<sup>-1</sup> at Nagel Site in August. The low value, during the fall, may have been the effect of leaf inputs into the shaded Smith reach and the maximum value correlated with luxuriant algal development at Nagel Site. Indicating heterotrophic conditions and a dependence on allochthonous or stored organic matter, negative NCP values were consistent at the first order sites. Open sites and the Kellogg Forest Site indicated positive NCP values, thus, autotrophic bases. Sites ranked by average NCP were identical to GCP trends with the effects of clearing obvious from comparison of Kellogg Forest and Nagel Sites. Light saturated NCP occurred within the range of 15,000 to 24,000 lux at sites of Augusta Creek and combined sites indicated a saturation level of approximately 20,000 lux. Smith exhibited no saturation plateau, but light values rarely exceeded 20,000 lux at this site. Temperature did not affect light saturation thresholds. No photoinhibition was indicated at either autotrophic or heterotrophic sites.

Rates of CR varied significantly between shaded and open sites. The range of values was 0.24 g  $0_2$  m<sup>-2</sup>d<sup>-1</sup> during January at B Avenue to 3.67 g  $0_2$  m<sup>-2</sup>d<sup>-1</sup> during July at Nagel Site. On an average basis B Avenue and Smith were similar and low, Kellogg Forest was intermediate, and Nagel and Upper 43rd were similar and higher in values. Kellogg Forest rates approximated rates of the heterotrophic sites with the only significant deviation occurring during periods of leaf-out when CR levels increased at Kellogg Forest corresponding with increased epilithon development. Seasonal patterns were similar at most sites with lowest rates during the winter and highest values during spring or summer. An inverse relationship was noted between CR and NCP at heterotrophic sites. CR as a percent of GCP varied from 445% at Smith to 55% at Kellogg Forest. Autotrophic sites averaged 65% while heterotrophic sites averaged 322%, which indicated a considerable deficit of organic carbon from autochthonous organisms at B Avenue and Smith Sites. Effects of clearing at Nagel compared to

the shaded Kellogg Forest indicated increased CR with greater epilithon development at the Nagel Site.

P/R ratios at the five sites indicated consistent consuming modes at B Avenue and Smith and producing modes at the open and Kellogg Forest Sites over the year. Upper 43rd, closest to P/R = 1, indicated little excess autochthonous production for export or storage. Lowest P/R ratios were obtained on a snowy overcast day at B Avenue (-0.017) and highest (2.5) at the Nagel Site in August. Average P/R ratios ranked sites in increasing order: Smith, B Avenue, Upper 43rd, Nagel, Kellogg Forest. A trend of increasing P/R with increased stream order was noted. The high levels at Kellogg Forest were attributed to lesser development of epilithon with increased light availability maximizing efficiency and, thus, indicated the autotrophic potential of shaded third order reaches. Highest ratios corresponded with trends of GCP and NCP with spring peaks at all sites and maximum in summer at the cleared Nagel site. Low values were during the winter at all sites. The low ratios obtained at Smith and B Avenue were similar to those reported from turbid or polluted systems and the open sites approximated values of larger rivers. Average P/R ratios from monthly estimates at B Avenue and Nagel Sites were not significantly different from averages obtained on a seasonal basis, which indicated seasonal monitoring was sufficient to characterize the autotrophicheterotrophic capacity of a riffle.

NDM values were similar to NCP and P/R trends, but were lower in magnitude. Values ranged from -0.72 g  $0_2 \text{ m}^{-2}\text{d}^{-1}$  in fall at Smith to 2.68 g  $0_2 \text{ m}^{-2}\text{d}^{-1}$  in August for Nagel. Lowest NDM values were in the winter, and at B Avenue and Smith consistent negative values indicated

dependence on allochthonous POM since no pool of autochthonous carbon was present. Lowest values, during fall at Smith, indicated the effects of increased CR concominant with CPOM inputs. Open sites and the Kellogg Forest Site were autotrophic in nature as indicated by positive NDM values with Nagel and Kellogg Forest capable of storage or export of autochthonous carbon and Upper 43rd Site was basically self-supporting with periods of potential dependence on the slight storage capacity or POM or allochthonous carbon corresponding to periods of low NCP and NDM. Average NDM was lowest at Smith followed by B Avenue, Upper 43rd, Kellogg Forest and Nagel, which indicated that even though the highest P/R ratios were at Kellogg Forest, actual carbon production was greatest at Nagel and that the shaded Kellogg Forest produced more excess carbon than the open Upper 43rd Site.

Detrital standing crop analyses indicated stable levels of detritus at each site with all but the extremes (Smith high and Upper 43rd low) similar in amounts. Standing crops ranged from 592 to 145 g  $m^{-2}$ . No consistent seasonal trends were found between sites. First order sites had greater variance in standing crop levels while open and Kellogg Forest Sites remained stable. Average detrital standing crops for sites ranked in decreasing order were Smith, Nagel, B Avenue, Kellogg Forest and Upper 43rd. The high levels of detritus at Nagel were attributed to inputs of filamentous algae and aquatic macrophytes as were the high average CPOM/FPOM ratios. This ratio varied from 0.06 during summer at Kellogg Forest to 0.68 at Nagel Site in winter with an inverse relationship between CPOM/FPOM and P/R. On an average basis sites ranked in CPOM/FPOM ratio in increasing order were Kellogg Forest, Smith, Upper 43rd, B Avenue, Nagel.

Patterns of community metabolism expressed on a  $g^{-1}AFDW$  detritus basis did not reflect levels of standing crop, as values varied in activity differently from detrital ranking. CR maxima were highest during the fall in contrast to spring and summer on an area basis, which was attributed to a more labile (algal) input to the riffles at that time. First order sites were more stable in rates of community metabolism per gram detritus over the year which indicated a bacterial metabolic base. NDM values, indicating a dynamic equilibrium with each community of either an autotrophic or heterotrophic energy base, were consistent at each site. Since standing crop levels were not significantly different at most sites, little change in community metabolism trends were expected expressed on a weight basis.

The concept of use of epilithon development (AFDW) as a mechanism to monitor autotrophic-heterotrophic capacities of riffle reaches was introduced. Values, obtained by ashing inorganic substrates including detrital and algal biomass, ranged from 1480 g m<sup>-2</sup> at Smith during spring to 5030 g m<sup>-2</sup> at Nagel during the same period. Obvious visual differences as well as biomass values varied with site and followed patterns of NCP and GCP in the riffles. Sites ranked Smith, B Avenue, Kellogg Forest, Nagel and Upper 43rd in average epilithon development. Seasonal variation was greatest at the open sites (C.V.%), while first order heterotrophic sites remained low and stable indicative of a bacterial base. Kellogg Forest was also stable, but had higher levels of epilithon development than the first order riffles. Even at Smith Site epilithon was a significant component of the total organic standing crop. Based on the low rates of NCP and GCP at this site it was detrital based epilithon, while open and shaded third order sites
had algal based epilithon. Peaks of epilithon occurred in fall at Smith during CPOM inputs and at open sites during spring and fall. which correlated with the diatom blooms. Major changes occurred on the larger substrates. Detritus averaged 12% of the TPOM; the range was 18% at Smith Site to 7.5% at Upper 43rd Site. Differences existed between autotrophic and heterotrophic sites. Use of the E/D ratio for characterization of riffle reaches was proposed. Average E/D ranged from 4.5 at Smith to 14.8 at Upper 43rd with increased importance of the epilithon (Algal and detrital) at the open sites. E/D had a direct relationship with NCP, GCP, and P/R for sites of Augusta Creek. However, higher values of E/D were obtained on an extremely heterotrophic riffle reach of a branch of the Yellowstone River, Montana, which indicates E/D indicative of the epilithon to non-attached detritus contribution to riffle energy bases, but NCP, P/R, and NDM estimates indicate the detrital-algal (autotrophicheterotrophic) contributions of the components. E/D ratios used with P/R and NDM were of value in characterization of riffle sections.

### Regression Analyses

Regression analyses involving the independent variables stream order light, temperature, detritus AFDW, epilithon AFDW, and total particulate organic matter and the dependent variables NCP, GCP, CR, and NDM indicated stream order to be the most highly correlated parameter with all dependent variables (R = 0.52 to 0.74; F = 37 to 122). Therefore, the importance of geomorphology was evident from a functional standpoint.

Light was also highly significant (P < 0.01) in cases of NCP,

GCP, and NDM based on average values (R = 0.52 to 0.57; F = 36 to 46) and on an individual basis (R = 0.6; F = 1090). In multiple regression with temperature R = 0.597 for light while the temperature R value was only 0.005. Compared with other variable independent variables monitored, light was the most important factor influencing NCP, GCP and NDM. On a site basis positive relationships were evident with light, but not as highly correlated. Significance increased with increasing order which indicated the increasing importance of light on open sites.

Temperature had a positive significant relationship with all average parameters with CR highest (R = 0.65; F = 70) and NCP lowest (R = 0.33; F = 12). As CR varied little over the annual period in headwater first order streams, the relationship was less clear which indicated a stable community in dynamic equilibrium. Temperature was most strikingly related to NCP at open sites; on a site basis the most significant relationships were with temperature.

The detrital content of the sediments had little effect on averaged or site basis community metabolism. Average NCP, and NDM were most highly correlated (R = 0.12; F = 1.3 and R = 0.12; F = 1.4), but not highly significant (P = 0.26, 0.24).

Epilithon development was highly significant with all averaged dependent variables with NCP correlating most closely (R = 0.42; F = 17.6). Although on a site basis significance levels decreased, a much stronger relationship existed for epilithon and rates of community metabolism than detritus.

Total AFDW correlations were slightly reduced by addition of detritus in most cases, but were close to the values for epilithon.

#### Particle Sized Community Metabolism

The impact of various particle sizes (4 mm, 1 mm, 250  $\mu$ m, 75  $\mu$ m, 0.45  $\mu$ m) for detritus and epilithon (Excepting 0.45  $\mu$ m) was determined. Activity g<sup>-1</sup>AFDW and areal estimates based on standing crop data were compared to examine the size acitvity and ecological impact respectively. All estimates were higher than <u>in situ</u> which indicated the inadequacy of short term estimates at light saturation levels for estimation of community metabolism, the possibility of disturbing particles in separation, or the potential of maximizing surface in Gilson vessels versus the packed condition typical of <u>in</u> <u>situ</u> conditions. However, relative comparisons may be made between particle sizes and sites.

Absolute rates of detrital NCP ranged from -318 to 1688  $\mu 10_{I} \text{ g}^{-2}\text{h}^{-1}$  for 0.45  $\mu\text{m}$  detritus at B Avenue and Upper 43rd respectively. At all sites most particle sizes were similar and negative in NCP except the 0.45  $\mu\text{m}$  fraction, which was generally most negative in value. Average rates at Smith and B Avenue were considerably lower than the autotrophic sites and average particle size rates were highest for 0.45  $\mu\text{m}$  followed by 1 mm, 250  $\mu\text{m}$ , 4 mm, and 75  $\mu\text{m}$ .

CR of detritus particles ranged from 15 to 739  $\mu$ 10<sub>2</sub> g<sup>-1</sup>h<sup>-1</sup> for 4 mm particles at Nagel in March and 0.45  $\mu$ m detritus at Upper 43rd in June. On an average 4 and 1 mm particles had lowest CR and 0.45  $\mu$ m particles highest CR, but particles were mainly similar except for high rates in the 0.45  $\mu$ m fraction. On a site basis 0.45  $\mu$ m was highest at all sites, but no inverse trend was indicated in CR and particle size. Sizes ranked from lowest to highest CR were Upper

43rd, Kellogg Forest, B Avenue, Smith and Nagel. Detritus CR was higher for all fractions than epilithon on a weight basis. Inorganic sediment CR average 70% the rates of detritus with 4 and 1 mm particles about 35% their detrital counterparts and 250 and 75  $\mu$ m were nearly equal; a similar, probably bacterial dominated flora, developed on both inorganic and organic substrates.

On epilithon, CR ranged from undetectable for 250  $\mu$ m sizes at Smith, Nagel, and Upper 43rd to 215  $\mu$ 10<sub>2</sub> g<sup>-1</sup>h<sup>-1</sup> for 75  $\mu$ m sands in June at the Kellogg Forest Site. Rates exhibited an inverse relationship with particle size. Sites ranked Kellogg Forest, Upper 43rd, B Avenue = Nagel, and Smith in increasing levels of CR. Epilithon CR values were similar at B Avenue and Nagel Sites, but a different floral composition was evident based on levels of primary productivity; B Avenue was bacterial dominated and Nagel algal dominated.

Epilithon NCP had a greater range than detritus (-321 to +2174  $\mu 10_2 \text{ g}^{-1}\text{h}^{-1}$ ) for 75  $\mu$ m Smith sands to 4 mm Kellogg Forest gravel. Averages for particle-sizes indicated 1 mm to be lowest in NCP and 4 mm highest. All inorganic sediment sizes were colonized by autotrophs at Upper 43rd and the majority at Nagel and Kellogg Forest on an annual basis. Heterotrophic sites had little algal colonization indicated, but 4 and 1 mm fractions exhibited weak autotrophic potentials. Sites ranked Smith, B Avenue, Nagel, Upper 43rd, and Kellogg Forest in average increasing NCP.

Since particle-size distribution affects total sediment community metabolism, estimates were calculated on an areal basis. Detrital NCP was generally highest on 4 mm particles with a direct inverse relationship evident between NCP and particle size. On an average

site basis 0.45  $\mu$ m detritus was highest in NCP with no trend following for other particle-sizes. CR averages had an inverse relationship between particle size and CR, which was not evident on a weight basis.

Epilithon NCP and CR on an areal basis were dominated by 4 mm stones followed by 250  $\mu$ m, 1 mm, and 75  $\mu$ m size. GCP, calculated only on an areal basis, indicated the detrital segement to be in a comsuming mode with positive values only for 4 mm detritus at B Avenue in the fall, 0.45  $\mu$ m seasonally, and all segements periodically at Upper 43rd, Nagel and Kellogg Forest. NDM remained below zero for all particle sizes except 0.45  $\mu$ m in spring and summer at the Kellogg Forest, which indicated algal inputs to the FPOM pool. P/R ratios were all below one except for 0.45  $\mu$ m particles in spring at Upper 43rd.

Epilithon patterns were more complex with GCP from 4 mm, 1 mm, and 75  $\mu$ m inorganic sediments contributing periodically at Smith; 4 mm annually and all other periodically at B Avenue; 4 and 1 mm and 250  $\mu$ m sediments generally contributing annually at Upper 43rd; all sizes positive annually at Nagel; and Kellogg Forst had all except 75  $\mu$ m sizes in a contributing mode annually. NDM was annually below zero for all particles at Smith and B Avenue and above for the majority of particles at the autotrophic sites. P/R ratios were below one for all sizes at heterotrophic sites and above one for most particles at autotrophic sites with exceptions in the smaller particle sizes.

Overall, 0.45 µm detritus had the greatest CR and all sizes illustrated little productive capacity on a weight basis, while inorganic sediments had greatest NCP on larger substrates and CR in the smaller fractions. On an areal basis productivity was highest on

larger fractions of both detritus and inorganic sediments; the majority of NCP occurred on the inorganics. CR was highest on smaller detritus and larger inorganics.

#### Sites

Smith, a first order site, was heterotrophic in nature, detrital based, dependent mainly on epilithic detritus for organic support with little autochthonous production. What little GCP took place did so on the larger substrates. P/R ratios were less than one, NDM below zero and E/D ratios constant and low (3.7 to 4.8), which indicated the impact of allochthonous inputs to the riffle community.

B Avenue, a slightly larger first order reach, was also heterotrophic dependent on allochthonous detritus trapped in the epilithon, but greater autochthonous activity was evident, which was at times contributing to the community support. Based on NDM and P/R ratios not enough NCP occurred for the riffle to be self-supporting. E/D ratios, averaging 7.9, and ranging from 3.5 to 16.5 indicated greater variability and changes in the epilithon flora compared to Smith Site and illustrated the periodic productive potential of the site.

Upper 43rd, an open second order meadow reach, was annually self-supporting, thus, considered an autotrophic site. Indicating the autotrophic dominance in the epilithon community, P/R ratios were near one and NDM was consistently positive. Epilithon development was high at this site as was CR which continually mediated P/R and NDM. E/D ratios were highest at this site averaging 14.8, which emphasized the importance of the epilithic community to riffle sections. Storage was

indicated at this site in the FPOM pool as high rates of NCP occurred as well as increased CR during summer and fall. High rates of NCP at Upper 43rd indicated the effects of lack of canopy at a second order site.

The open third order Nagel Site illustrated the effects of clearing on rates of third order riffle NCP as rates approximated those of larger rivers and were significantly higher than the shaded Kellogg Forest Site.

P/R and NDM indicated a producing mode to be characteristic of both sites, but at Nagel higher epilithon development occurred and subsequently increased CR, while autotrophic colonization was greater as indicated by increased rates of NCP. Indicating continued autochthonous support P/R ratios were well above one over annual periods and E/D ratios were similar to Upper 43rd at Nagel ( $\overline{x} = 12$ ) and intermediary at Kellogg Forest ( $\overline{x} = 9.5$ ).

The shaded Kellogg Forest third order riffle was also autotrophic in nature, lesser in productivity than the open site, but also lesser in CR and epilithon development. This riffle section was self-supporting on an annual basis as indicated by the P/R ratios greater than one and positive NDM. E/D ratios ranging from 4.6 to 15.8 indicated the diverse base of this riffle.

The autotrophic-heterotrophic balance in riffle sections was dependent on the epilithon component both in development, which was mediated by light availability, and composition which would also be affected by light, and on a species level temperature dictated.

LITERATURE CITED

-

.

#### LITERATURE CITED

- Adams, Michael S. and Walter Stone. 1973. Field studies on photosynthesis of <u>Cladophora glomerata</u> (Chlorophyta) in Green Bay Lake Michigan. Ecology 54:853-862.
- American Public Health Association. 1971. Standard Methods for the examination of water and wastewater. 13th edition. American Public Health Association, Washington D.C. 874 p.
- Anderson, N. H. and K. W. Cummins. 1979. Influence of diet on the life histories of aquatic insects. J. Fish. Res. Bd. Can. 36:335-342.
- Baker, Alan L. and Kathleen Kromer Baker. 1979. Effects of temperature, current, and discharge on the concentration and photosynthetic activity of the upper Mississippi River. Freshwater Biology 9:191-198.
- Bell, David T., Forrest L. Johnson and A. R. Gilmore. 1978. Dynamics of litter fall, decomposition, and incorporation in the streamside forest ecosystem. Oikos 30:76-82.
- Beyers, Robert J. 1962. Relationship between temperature and the metabolism of experimental ecosystems. Science 136:980-982.
- Bombówna, Maria. 1972. Primary production of a montane river. Proceedings of IBP-UNESCO Symposium 662-671 p.
- Bott, T. L., J. R. Brock, C. E. Cushing, S. V. Gregory, D. King, and R. C. Petersen. 1978. A comparison of methods for measuring primary productivity and community respiration in streams. Hydrobiologia 60:3-12.

, and Floyd P. Ritter. 1981. Benthic algal productivity in a Piedmont stream measured by 14 C and dissolved oxygen change procedures. J. Freshwater Ecology 1:267-278.

, J. R. Brock, R. J. Naiman, R. W. Ovink, R. C. Petersen and C. Stark. 1982. A Comparison of benthic community metabolism on four stream systems: A test of the river continuum hypothesis. (In Preparation).

- Brehmer, Morris L., Robert C. Ball and Niles R. Kevern. 1969. Nutrients and primary production in a warm-water stream. Tech. Rep. #4. Red Cedar River Series. Institute of Water Research. Michigan State University. 87 p.
- Brock, Thomas D. 1966. Principles of microbial ecology. Prentice Hall, Inc., Englewood Cliffs, N. J. 306 p.
- Bush, David E. and Stuart G. Fisher. 1981. Metabolism of a desert stream. Freshwater Biology 11:301-307.
- Butcher, R. W., F.T.K. Pentelow and J.W.A. Woodley. 1930. Variations in composition of river waters. Int. Rev. Hydrobiol. 24:47-80.
- Cadee, G. C. and J. Hegeman. 1974. Primary production of the benthic microflora living on tidal flats in the Dutch Wadden Sea. Netherlands J. of Sea Res. 8:260-291.
- Calow, P. 1975. On the nature and possible utility of epilithic detritus. Hydrobiologia 46:131-139.
- Calvert, C. 1933. Effects of sunlight on dissolved oxygen in White River. Sewage Works J. 55:658-694.
- Coffman, William P., Kenneth W. Cummins and John C. Wuycheck. 1971. Energy flow in a woodland stream ecosystem. I. tissue support trophic structure of the autumnal community. Arch. Hydrobiol. 68:232-276.
- Cole, Richard A. 1973. Stream community response to nutrient enrichment. J. Water Poll. Cont. Fed. 45:1874-1888.
- Colijn, F. and G von Buurt. 1975. Influence of light and temperature on the photosynthetic rate of marine benthic diatoms. Mar. Biol. 31:209-214.
- Cummins, K. W. 1962. An evaluation of some techniques for the collection and analysis of benthic samples with special emphasis on lotic waters. Am. Midl. Nat. 67:477-504.

. 1974. Structure and function of stream ecosystems. Bioscience. 24:631-641.

. 1975a. The importance of different energy sources in freshwater ecosystems. In: Productivity of World Ecosystems. Nat. Acad. Sciences. Washington, D.C. 50-54 p.

. 1975b. The ecology of running waters, theory and practice. In: Int. Joint Commission on the Great Lakes. Sandusky River Basin. 278-293 p.

. 1977. From headwater streams to rivers. The Amer. Biol. Teacher. 39:305-312. , M. J. Klug, R. G. Wetzel, R. C. Petersen, K. F. Suberkropp, B. A. Manny, J. C. Wuycheck and F. O. Howard. 1972. Organic enrichment with leaf leachate in experimental lotic ecosystems. Bioscience. 22:719-720.

, R. C. Petersen, F. O. Howard, J. C. Wuycheck, and V. I. Holt. 1973. The utilization of leaf litter by stream detritivores. Ecology 54:336-345.

, G. L. Spengler, G. Milton Ward, Robert M. Speaker, Roger W. Ovink, David C. Mahan, and Rosanna Mattingly. 1980. Processing of confined and naturally entrained leaf litter in a woodland stream ecosystem. Limnol. Oceanogr. 25:952-957.

, M. J. Klug, G. M. Ward, G. L. Spengler, R. W. Speaker, R. W. Ovink, D. C. Mahan, and R. C. Petersen. 1982. Trends in particulate organic matter fluxes, community processes and macroinvertebrate functional groups along a Greak Lakes drainage basin river continuum. Verh. Int. Veren. Limnol. 21:841-849.

- Cushing, C. E. 1967. Periphyton productivity and radionuclide accumulation in the Columbia River, Washington, U.S.A Hydrobiologia 29:125-139.
- de la Cruz, Armando and Henry A. Post. 1977. Production and transport of organic matter in a woodland stream. Arch. Hydrobiol. 80:227-238.
- Denham, Stacey C. 1938. Limnological investigation of the west fork and common branch of White River. Investigations of Indiana Lakes and Streams 1:17-72.
- Duffer, William R. and Troy C. Dorris. 1966. Primary productivity in a southern Great Plains stream. Limnol. and Oceanogr. 11:143-151.
- Edberg, Nils and Bengt v. Hofsten. 1973. Oxygen uptake of bottom sediments studied in situ and in the laboratory. Water Res. 7:1285-1294.
- Edwards, R. W. and H.L.J. Rolley. 1965. Oxygen consumption of river muds. J. of Ecol. 53:1-19.
- Elliott, J. M. 1971. Some methods for the statistical analysis of samples of benthic invertebrates. Scientific Publication No. 25. Freshwater Biological Association. The Ferry House, Ambleside, Westmorland. 148 p.
- Ertl, Milan and Josef Tomajka. 1973. Primary production of the periphyton in the littoral of the Danube. Hydrobiologia 42:429-444.
- Felföldy, Lajos. 1961. Effects of temperature on the photosynthesis of a natural diatom population. Annal. Biol Tihany 28:95-98.

- Fenchel, T. 1970. Studies on the decomposition of organic detritus derived from the turtle grass <u>Thalassia testudinum</u>. Limnol. Oceanogr. 15:14-20.
- Fisher, S. G. and G. E. Likens. 1973. Energy flow in Bear Brook, New Hampshire: an integrative approach to stream ecosystem metabolism. Ecol. Monogr. 43:421-439.
- Flemer, David A. 1970. Primary productivity of the north branch of the Roritan River, New Jersey. Hydrobiologia 35:273-296.
- Fogg, G. E. 1963. The role of algae in organic production in aquatic environments. British Phycol. Bull. 2:195-205.
- Gallagher, John L. and Franklin C. Daiber. 1973. Diel rhythms in edaphic community metabolism in a Delaware salt marsh. Ecology 54:1160-1163.
- Ganning, Bjorn and Fredrik Wulff. 1970. Measurement of community metabolism in some Baltic brackish water rock pools by means of diel oxygen curves. Oikos 21:292-298.
- Gargas, Elvind. 1970. Measurements of primary production, dark fixation, and vertical distribution of the microbenthic algae in the Oresund. Ophelia 8:221-253.
- Gelroth, J. V. and G. R. Marzolf. 1978. Primary production and litter decomposition in natural and channelized portions of a Kansas stream. Am. Midl. Nat. 99:238-243.
- Gilson, W. E. 1963. Differential respirometer of simplified and improved design. Science 141:531-532.
- Goldman, C. R. (editor). 1969. Primary productivity in aquatic environments. University of California Press. Berkley, California. 464 p.
- Gothberg, Anders and Ulf Karlstrom. 1975. Ecological research in running waters in northern Sweden. Rapport from the Richlea Field Station. Nr 64. 30 p.
- Gregory, Stanley Vincent. 1980. Effects of light, nutrients and grazing on periphyton communities in streams. Ph.D. Thesis. Oregon State University. 151 p.
- Grzenda, Alfred R., Robert C. Ball and Niles R. Kevern. 1968. Primary production, energetics, and nutrient utilization in a warm-water stream. Tech. Rep. #2. Institute of Water Research. Michigan State University. 77 p.
- Hall, Charles A.S. 1972. Migration and metabolism in a temperate stream ecosystem. Ecology 53:585-604.

, and Russel Moll. 1975. Methods of assessing aquatic primary productivity. In: Primary Productivity of the Biosphere. Lieth and Whittaker, Editors. Springer-Verlag. 350 p.

Hargrave, Barry T. 1969a. Epibenthic algal production and community respiration in the sediments of Marion Lake. J. Fish. Res. Bd. of Canada. 26:2003-2026.

. 1969b. Simularity of oxygen uptake by benthic communities. Limnol and Oceanogr. 14:801-805.

. 1972. Aerobic decomposition of sediment and detritus as a function of particle size and organic content. Limnol. and Oceanogr. 17:583-596.

- Helen, J., F. Kubiček, B. Losos, E. Sedlák and M. Zelinka. 1973. Production conditions in the trout brooks of the Berskydy Mountains. Universita. J. E. Purkyne v. Brne. Research Report. 105 p.
- Hornick, L. E., J. R. Webster and E. F. Benfield. 1981. Periphyton production in an appalachian mountain trout stream. Amer. Midl. Nat. 106:22-35.
- Hoskin, C. M. 1959. Studies of oxygen metabolism of streams of North Carolina. Publ. Inst. Mar. Sci. Texas. 6:186-192.
- Humphrey, G. F. 1975. The photosynthesis:respiration ratio of some unicellular marine algae. J. Exp. Mar. Biol. Ecol. 18:111-119.
- Hunding, C. 1971. Productivity of benthic microalgae in the littoral zone of a eutrophic lake. Oikos. 22:389-397.

and B. T. Hargrave. 1973. A comparison of benthic microalgal production measured by C14 and oxygen methods. J. of Fish. Res. Bd. of Canada. 30:309-312.

- Hunter, R. D. 1980. Effects of grazing on the quantity and quality of freshwater aufwuchs. Hydrobiologia 69:251-259.
- Husted, Fredrich. 1930. Die Usswasser Flora Mitteleuropas: Bacillariophyta (Diatomeae). Jena Verlag von Gustove Fsher. 466 p.
- Hynes, H.B.N. 1970. The ecology of running waters. Liverpool University Press. Liverpool. 555 p.
- Kaushik, N. K. and H.B.N. Hynes. 1968. Experimental study on the role of autumn shed leaves in aquatic environments. J. Ecol. 52:229-243.

. 1971. The fate of dead leaves that fall into streams. Arch. Hydrobiol. 68:465-515.

- Kesler, David H. 1981. Grazing rate determinations of <u>Corynoneura</u> <u>scutellata</u> Winnertz (Chironomidae:Diptera). Hydrobiologia 80:63-66.
- Kevern, N. R. and R. C. Ball. 1965. Primary productivity and energy relationships in artificial streams. Limnol and Oceanogr. 10:74-87.
- Kobayasi, Hiromu. 1961. Productivity in sessile algal community of a Japanese mountain river. Bot. Mag. Tokyo 74:331-341.
- Lawton, J. H. and J. Richards. 1970. Comparability of Cartesian Diver, Gilson, Warburg and Winkler methods of measuring the respiratory rates of aquatic invertebrates in ecological studies. Oecologia 4:319-324.
- Lester, William W., Michael S. Adams, and Edward H. Dettmann. 1974. Light and temperature effects on photosynthesis of <u>Cladophora</u> <u>glomerata</u> (Chlorophyta) from Green Bay, Lake Michigan: Model anaylsis of seasonal productivity. Eastern Deciduous Forest Biome, US-IBP unpublished. 42 p.
- Lieth, Helmut. 1975. Some prospects beyond production measurements. In: Primary productivity of the biosphere. Lieth and Whittaker, Editors. Springer-Verlag. New York. 350 p.
- Likens, Gene E. 1975. Primary production of inland aquatic ecosystems. In: Primary productivity of the biosphere. Lieth and Whittaker, Editors. Springer-Verlag. New York. 350 p.
- Litke, Richard T. 1978. An investigation of stream continuum theory on the Chippewa River, north of Lake Isabella, in Isabella County, Michigan. M.S. Thesis. Central Michigan University. 103 p.
- Littler, Mark M. 1973. The productivity of Hawaiian fringing-reef crustose Corallinaceae and an experimantal evaluation of production methodology. Limnol and Oceanogr. 18:946-952.
- Lock, M. A. and Dudley D. Williams. 1981. Perspectives in Running Water Ecology. Plenum Press, N. Y. 430 p.
- Lyford, J. H. Jr. 1972. A study of the algal community by chlorophyll extraction in three Cascade streams of the H. J. Andrews Experimental Forest. Annual Progress Report. Coniferous Forest Biome IBP.
- MacFadyn, A. 1948. The meaning of productivity in biological systems. J. Animal Ecol. 17:75-80.

- Madsen, B. L. 1972. Detritus on stones of small streams. Mem. Inst. Ital. Idrobiol. 29:385-403.
- Mahan, D. C. 1980. Land-cover and coarse particulate organic influxes to a small stream. Ph.D. Thesis. Michigan State University. 121 p.
- , and K. W. Cummins. 1974. A profile of Augusta Creek in Kalamazoo and Barry Counties, Michigan. Tech. Rep. No. 3. W. K. Kellogg Biological Station, Michigan State University. 12 p.
- Maki, Alan Walter. 1974. The effects and fate of lampricide TFM (Tri-fluormethyl-4-Nitrophenol) in model stream communities. Ph.D. Thesis. Michigan State University. 162 p.
- Manny, B. A. and R.G. Wetzel. 1973. Diurnal changes in dissolved organic and inorganic carbon and nitrogen in a hard-water stream. Freshwater Biol. 3:31-43.
- Marker, A.F.H. 1976a. The bethic algae of some streams in southern England. I. Biomass of the epilithon in some small streams. The J. of Ecol. 64:343-358.

. 1976b. The benthic algae of some streams in southern England. II. The primary production of the epilithon in a small chalk stream. J. Ecol. 64:359-373.

- Matheke, G.E.M. and Rita Horner. 1974. Primary productivity of the benthic microalgae in the Chukcki Sea near Barrow Alaska. J. Fish. Res. Ed. Can. 31:1779-1786.
- Mathis, B. J., J. Z. Taylor, and S. A. Myers. 1969. Primary productivity in an Illinois River flood plain lake. Illinois State Academy of Sciences 62:362-371.
- McConnell, William J. and William F. Sigler. 1959. Chlorophyll and productivity in a mountain river. Limnol. and Oceanogr. 4:335-351.
- McDiffett, W. F., A. E. Carr and D. L. Young. 1972. An estimate of primary productivity in a Pennsylvania trout stream using a diurnal oxygen curve technique. Amer. Midl. Nat. 87:564-570.
- McIntire, C. David. 1966. Some factors affecting respiration of periphyton communities in lotic environments. Ecology 47:919-930.

, Robert L. Garrison, Harry K. Phinney and Charles E. Warren. 1964. Primary production in laboratory streams. Limnol. and Oceanogr. 9:92-102. , and Harry K. Phinney. 1965. Laboratory studies of periphyton production and community metabolism in lotic environments. Ecol. Monogr. 35:237-256.

- Merrit, R. W. and K. W. Cummins. 1978. An introduction to the aquatic insect of North America. Kendall Hunt Publishers. Dubuque, Iowa. 441 p.
- Miller, A. C., R. H. King and E. Glover. 1982. Design of a gravel bar habitat on the Tombigbee River near Columbus, Mississippi. Unpublished Report. U.S. Army Engineers Waterways Experiment Station, Vicksburg, Mississipp. 141 p.
- Minshall, G. W. 1967. Role of allochthonous detritus in the trophic structure of a woodland spring brook community. Ecology 48:139-149.
- . 1978. Autotrophy in stream ecosystems. Bioscience 28:767-771.
- , R. C. Petersen, K. W. Cummins, T. L. Bott, J. R. Sedell, C. E. Cushing and R. C. Vannote. 1982. Interbiome comparisons of stream ecosystem dynamics. Ecol. Monogr. (in review).
- Naiman, Robert J. 1976. Primary production, standing stock, and export of organic matter in a mohave desert stream. Limnol. and Oceanogr. 21:60-73.

and J. R. Sedell. 1979a. Benthic organic matter as a function of stream order in Oregon. Arch. Hydrobiol. 87:404-422.

. 1979b. Characterization of particulate organic matter transported by some Cascade mountain streams. J. Fish. Res. Bd. Canada 36:17-31.

Odum, Howard T. 1956. Primary production in flowing waters. Limnol. and Oceanogr. 1:102-117.

, and C. M. Hoskin. 1957. Metabolism of a laboratory stream microcosm. Publ. Inst. Mar. Sci. Texas 4:115-133.

- Pavetić, Zlatko, Ivo Matoničkin, Božidar Stilinović, and Ivan Habdija. 1976. A method for determining the P/R ratio in running waters. Hydrobiologia 48:51-57.
- Pennak, Robert W. and James W. Lavelle. 1979. In <u>situ</u> measurements of net primary production in a Colorado mountain stream. Hydrobiologia 66:227-235.

- Perkins, Michael A. and Louis A. Kaplan. 1978. Epilithic periphyton and detritus studies in a subalpine stream. Hydrobiologia 57:103-109.
- Petersen, R. C. and K. W. Cummins. 1974. Leaf processing in a woodland stream. Freshwater Biology 4:343-368.
- Pieczyńska, E. 1970. Periphyton in the trophic structure of freshwater ecosystems. Pol. Arch. Hydrobiol. 17:141-147.
- Pamatmat, Mario M. 1968. Ecology and metabolism of a benthic community on a intertidal sandflat. Int. Revue. ges Hydrobiol. 53:211-298.
- Pratt, David M. and Harold Berkson. 1959. Two sources of error in the oxygen light and dark bottle method. Limnol. and Oceanogr. 4:328-334.
- Profet, Carl W. and John D. Ransom. 1974. Summer stream metabolism values for Cedar Creek, Kansas. The Southwestern Natur. 19:305-308.
- Rodgers, J. H., Jr., K. L. Dickson and John Carins Jr. 1980. A review and analysis of some methods used to measure functional aspects of periphyton. Special Tec. Publ. 690. American Society for testing and materials. Philadelphia, Pa. 142-167 p.
- Round, F. E. 1965. The biology of the algae. Arnold Press, London. 278 p.
- Ryther, John H. 1956a. Photosynthesis in the ocean as a function of light intensity. Limnol. and Oceanogr. 1:61-71.
- \_\_\_\_\_\_. 1956b. The measurement of primary production. Limnol. and Oceanogr. 1:72-84.
- and R. F. Vaccaro. 1954. A comparison of the oxygen and 14 C methods for measuring marine photosynthesis. J. Cons. Perma. Inst. Exp. Mer. 20:25-34.
- Schindler, D. W., V.E.F. Frost and R. V. Schmidt. 1973. Production of the epilithiphyton in two lakes of the experimental lakes area, northwestern Ontario. Jour. Fish. Res. Bd. Canada 30:1511-1524.
- Sedell, J. R., F. J. Triska, J. D. Hall, N. H. Anderson, and J. H. Lynford. 1973. Sources and fates of organic inputs in coniferous streams. Contribution 66, Coniferous Forest Biome, IBP, Oregon State University. 23 p.

- Seyfer, James R. and Jerry Wilhm. 1977. Variations with stream order in species composition, diversity, biomass, and chlorophyll of periphyton in Otter Creek, Oklahoma. The Southwestern Naturl. 22:455-467.
- Shelford, V. E. and Samuel Eddy. 1929. Methods for the study of stream communities. Ecology 10:382-391.
- Stockner, John G. 1968. Algal growth and primary productivity in a thermal stream. J. Fish. Res. Bd. Canada 25:2037-2058.
- Strahler, A. N. 1957. Quantitative analyses of watershed geomorphology. Trans. Amer. Geophys. Union 38:913-920.
- Sumner, William T. and Stuart G. Fisher. 1979. Periphyton production in Fort River, Massachusetts. Freshwater Biology 9:205-212.
- , and C. D. McIntire. 1982. Grazer-Periphyton Interactions in Laboratory Streams. Arch. Hydrobiol. (In Press).
- Suberkropp, K. F. and M. J. Klug. 1974. Decomposition of deciduous leaf litter in a woodland stream. I. A scanning electron microscope study. Microbial Ecology 1:96-103.

. 1976. Fungi and bacteria associated with leaves during processing in a woodland stream. Ecology 57:707-719.

, G. L. Godshalk and M. J. Klug. 1976. Changes in the chemical composition of leaves during processing in a woodland stream. Ecology 57:720-727.

- Teal, John M. 1957. Community metabolism in a temperate cold spring. Ecol. Monogr. 27:283-302.
- Triska, F. J. 1970. Seasonal distribution of aquatic hyphomycests in relation to disappearance of leaf litter from a woodland stream. Ph.D. Thesis. University Pittsburgh, 189 p.
- Vannote, Robin L. and Robert C. Ball. 1972. Community productivity and energy flow in an enriched warm-water stream. Tech. Rep. No. 27. Institute of Water Research. Michigan State University. 156 p.
- , Kenneth W. Cummins, G. Wayne Minshall, James R. Sedell and C. E. Cushing. 1980. The river continuum concept. Can. J. Fish. Aquatic. Sci. 37:130-137.

Verduin, J. 1965. Primary production in lakes. Limnol. and Oceanogr. 1:85-91.

- Vollenweider, R. A. (ed.). 1969. A manual on methods for measuring primary production in aquatic environments. IBP Handbook No. 12. Balckwell Scientific Publications, Oxford. 225 p.
- Ward, J. and J. Stanford (editors). 1981. Ecology of Regulated Streams. Plenum Publishing Corporation. 412 p.
- Wetzel, R. G. 1963. Primary productivity of periphyton. Nature 197:1026-1027.

. 1965. Techniques and problems of primary productivity measurement in higher aquatic plants and periphyton. Mem. Inst. Ital. Idrobiol. Suppl. 18:249-267.

. 1975a. Limnology. W. B. Saunders Co., Philadelphia, Pa. 743 p.

. 1975b. Primary production. In: River Ecology. Blackwell Scientific Publications. Oxford. 230-247 p.

Whitford, L. A. and G. J. Schumacher. 1961. Effect of current on mineral uptake and respiration by a freshwater alga. Limnol. and Oceanogr. 6:423-425.

. 1964. Effect of current on respiration and mineral uptake in <u>Spirogyra</u> and <u>Oedogonium</u>. Ecology 45:168-170.

- Whitton, Bruce A. (ed.). 1975. River Ecology. Blackwell Scientific Publications. Oxford. 725 p.
- Winterbourn, M. J., J. S. Rounick and B. C. Cowie. 1981. Are New Zealand Streams really different? New Zealand J. of Marine and Freshwater Research 15:321-328.
- Wolfe, E. G., C. E. Cushing and F. W. Rabe. 1971. An automated system for multiple recording of diurnal pH. Limnol. and Oceanogr. 16:557-580.
- Wright, John C. and I. K. Mills. 1967. Productivity studies on the Madison River, Yellowstone National Park. Limnol. and Oceanogr. 12:568-577.

APPENDIX A

.

		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
NET COMMUNITY	Rep 1	018	195	-6.059
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	034	360	-11.16
	Rep 3	018	193	-5.993
	mean	023	250	-7.736
	se	.005	:055	1.711
	cv (%)	38.300	38.300	38.300
		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
COMMUNITY	Rep 1	.031	.751	23.287
RESPIRATION	Rep.2	.038	.910	28.198
	Rep 3	.036	.876	27.156
	mean	.035	. 846	26.214
	se	.092	.048	1.494
	cv (%)	9.870	9.870	9.870
		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
ROSS COMMUNITY	Rep 1	.013	. 139	4.304
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	. 004	. 045	1.391
	Rep 3	.018	. 197	6.092
	mean	.012	. 127	3.929
	se (T)	.094	.044	1.379
	ev (%)	00.400	00.400 	
		g 02/m2.da	1	PG/R24
NET DAILY	Rep 1	612	GROSS COMMUNITY Rep 1	. 185
METABOLISM	Rep 2	865	I PRODUCTION/ Rep 2	.049
	Rep 3	679	24 HR RESPIRATION Rep 3	.224
	mean	719	mean	. 153
	Se (T)	.075	Se in the second s	.053
	CV (%)	18.178	i cv (%)	00.063

.

.

Table A-1.Estimates of Community Metabolism (g 02/m2), Augusta Creek, Michigan.24 October 1974 (light), 25 October 1974 (dark), SMITH SITE, STANDARD RUN

		g 02/m2.hr	g 02./m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
NET COMMUNITY	Rep 1	097	064	-1.988
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	008	073	-2.251
	Rep 3	006	060	-1.871
	mean	007	066	-2.037
	se	.000	.004	. 1 1 2
و الم الله الله الله الله الله الله الله	ev (%)	9.557	9.557	9.557
		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
COMMUNITY	Rep 1	.011	.271	8.407
RESPIRATION	Rep 2	.019	.461	14.285
	Rep 3	. 020	.473	14.657
	mean	.017	. 402	12.450
	se	.003	.065	2.024
	cv (%)	28.169	28.169	28.160
		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
GROSS COMMUNITY	Rep 1	.004	.042	1.315
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	.011	. 108	3.362
	Rep 3	.013	. 125	3.888
	mean	.010	.092	2.855
	se	.003	. 025	.785
میں میں براہ اور نہیں ہیں ہیں جوہ میں میں میں اور کر کا ت	ev (%)	47.601	47.601	47.601
		g 02/m2.da	!	PG/R24
NET DAILY	Rep 1	229	GROSS COMMUNITY Rep 1	. 157
METABOLISM	Rep 2	353	1 PRODUCTION/ Rep 2	.225
	Rep 3	347	1 24 HR RESPIRATION Rep 3	.265
	mean	310	mean	.219
	se	.040	se	.032
	ev (7)	22.602	ev (%)	25.656

Table A-1 (con't). Estimates of Community Metabolism (g O2/m2), Augusta Creek, Michigan. 15 January 1975 (light), 16 January 1975 (dark), SMITH SITE, STANDARD RUN

		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da		g 02/m2.mo
NET COMMUNITY	Rep 1	~,007	· 100		-3,109
PRODUCTIVITY	Ben 2	004	062		-1.920
	Rep 3	010	143		-4.435
	-				
	mean	007	102	•	-3.155
	se	.002	.023		.726
	ev (%)	39.875	39.875		39.875
		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da		g 02/m2.mo
COMMUNITY	Ren 1	. 021	.492	•	15.252
RESPIBATION	Ben 2	.028	.677		20.981
	Rep 3	.009	.211		6.547
		010	460		14 960
	mean	. 017	. 700		4 106
	ar (%)	50 066	50 966		50 966
		@2∕m2.hr	e 02/m2.da		g 02/m2, mo
ROSS COMMUNITY	Rep 1	.014	. 292		6.264
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	.024	.354		10.974
	Rep 3	001	013		412
	mean	.012	. 181		5.609
	se	.007	. 107		3.303
	cv (%)	192.00	102.00		102.00
		g 02/m2.da	1		PG/R24
NET DAILY	Rep 1	290	CROSS COMMUNITY	Rep 1	.411
METABOLISM	Rep 2	323	PRODUCTION/	Rep 2	.523
-	Rep 3	225	24 HR RESPIRATION	Rep 3	063
	mean	279	1	mean	. 290
	se	.029	1	se	. 180
	cv (%)	17,930		v (%)	107.13

## Table A-1 (con't).Estimates of Community Metabolism (g 02/m2), Augusta Creek, Michigan.20 May 1975 (light), 21 May 1975 (dark), SMITH SITE, STANDARD RUN

		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
NET COMMUNITY	Rep 1		287	-8.886
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	012	175	-5.415
	Rep 3	015	225	-6.989
	mean	015	229	-7.097
	se	. 002	. 032	1.004
	cv (%)	24.492	24.492	24.492
		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
COMMUNITY	Rep 1	.028	.662	20.534
RESPIRATION	Rep 2	.016	.379	11.755
	Rep 3	. 023	.564	17.484
	mean	. 022	.535	16.591
	se	.003	.083	2.573
	ev (%)	26.865	26 . 865	26.865
		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
CROSS COMMUNITY	Rep 1	.908	. 125	3.888
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	.004	.061	1.898
	Rep 3	. 008	. 125	3.888
	mean	.007	. 104	3.224
	se	.001	.021	.663
	ev (%)	35.635	33.036	
		g 92/m2.da	!	PG/R24
NET DAILY	Rep 1	537	GROSS COMMUNITY	Rep 1 .189
METABOLISM	Rep 2	318	I PRODUCTION/	Rep 2 . 161
	Rep 3	439	24 HR RESPIRATION	Rep 3 .222
	mean	431	i	mean .191
	se	.063		se .018
	ev (%)	25.438	i c	ev (%) 15.985

Table A-1 (con't). Estimates of Community Metabolism (g 02/m2), Augusta Creek, Michigan. 17 July 1975 (light), 18 July 1975 (dark), SMITH SITE, STANDARD RUN

		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
NET COMMUNITY	Rep 1	002		728
	mean se cv (%)	002	023	728
		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
COMMUNITY RESPUBATION	Rep 1	.011	.274	8.482
RESPIRATION	mean se cv (7)	.011	. 274	8.482
		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
GROSS COMMUNITY	Rep 1	.009	.988	2.729
	mean se cv (%)	.009	. 088	2.729
		g 02/m2.da		PG/R24
NET DAILY	Rep 1	186	GROSS COMMUNITY Rep	1 .322
METABOLISA	mean se cv (%)	186	24 HR RESPIRATION mean   se   cv (%	.322

#### Table A-1. Estimates of Community Metabolism (g 02/m2), Augusta Creek, Michigan. 26 January 1973 (light), 25 January 1973 (dark), B AVENUE, STANDARD RUN

.

.

•

		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
NET COMMUNITY	Rep 1	.016	.247	7.423
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	.003	. 046	1.366
	mean	.010	. 146	4.395
	se cv (%)	.007 97.456	. 101 97.456	3.028 97.456
		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
COMMUNITY	Rep 1	.037	.890	26.712
RESPIRATION	Rep 2	.021	.511	15.336
	mean	. 029	.701	21.024
	se cv (%)	.008 38.261	. 190 38. 26 1	5.688 38.261
GROSS COMMUNITY PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 1 Beb 2	g C2/m2.hr .053	g 02/m2.da 	g 02/m2.mo  24.318 11.966
			800	17 600
	se	.039	.221	6.626
ر میں بنان میں اور	cv (%)	52.965	52.965	52.965
		g 92/m2.da	I I	PG/R24
NET DAILY	Rep 1	080	GROSS COMMUNITY Rep 1	.910
METABOLISM	Rep 2	142	PRODUCTION/ Rep 2   24 HR RESPIRATION	.722
	mean	111	mean	.816
	se cv (%)	.031	se ov (7)	.094

Table A-1 (con't).Estimates of Community Metabolism (g 02/m2), Augusta Creek, Michigan.07 June 1973 (light), 06 June 1973 (dark), B AVENUE, STANDARD RUN

$\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	میں بی مسلم اور جند ماہ کہ کہ منہ منہ کے کر بی مسلم کی ک	ي يو ي ي ي ي ي ي ي				
$\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $			g 02/m2.hr	g O2/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo	
$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	NET COMMINITY	Ben 1	- 007	- 106	-3 202	
INSTRTATION       Rep 1       1010       1211       1011         mean      012      175       -5.432         se       .003       .069       2.140         cv (7)       55.711       55.711       55.711         g 02/m2.hr       g 02/m2.da       g 02/m2.mo         COMMUNITY         RESPIRATION       Rep 2       .021       .492       15.252         mean       .039       .216       6.696       6.696         se       .009       .708       21.948       6.696         se       .009       .216       43.146       43.146         g 02/m2.hr       g 02/m2.da       g 02/m2.mo         g 02/m2.hr       g 02/m2.da       g 02/m2.mo         g 02/m2.hr       g 02/m2.da       g 02/m2.mo         g 02/m2.hr       g 02/m2.da       14.814         PRODUCTIVITY       Rep 1       .031       .478       14.814         g 02/m2.da       .206       6.372         e .014       .206       6.372         e .021       .436       196.76       196.76         MET DAILY <td col<="" td=""><td>PRODUCTIVITY</td><td>Ben 2</td><td>- 016</td><td>- 744</td><td>-0.272</td></td>	<td>PRODUCTIVITY</td> <td>Ben 2</td> <td>- 016</td> <td>- 744</td> <td>-0.272</td>	PRODUCTIVITY	Ben 2	- 016	- 744	-0.272
$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	INODULIVIII	nep a	.010	• • • •	-1.011	
se         .005         .005         2.140 $e^{v(7)}$ 55.711         55.711         55.711         55.711           g 02/m2.hr         g 02/m2.da         g 02/m2.mo         .28.644           RESPIRATION         Rep 1         .039         .924         28.644           RESPIRATION         Rep 2         .021         .492         15.252           mean         .036         .706         21.948           se         .0099         .216         6.696           ev (73)         43.145         43.146         43.146           g 02/m2.hr         g 02/m2.da         g 02/m2.mo           GROSS COMMUNITY         Rep 1         .031         .4768           rean         .018         .272         8.441           se         .014         .206         6.372           ev (73)         196.76         196.76         196.76           mean         .018         .272         8.441           .206         6.372         .136           se         .014         .206         6.372           ev (73)         196.76         196.76         196.76           MET DAILY         Rep 1        4425		me a n	012	175	-5.432	
$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$			.005	. 069	2.140	
$ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$		cv (%)	55.711	55.711	55.711	
$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$						
$\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $			g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo	
COMMUNITY       Rep 1       .039       .924       28.644         RESPIRATION       Rep 2       .021       .492       15.252         mean       .030       .708       21.948         se       .009       .216       6.696         cv (7)       43.145       43.146       43.146         g 02/m2.hr       g 02/m2.da       g 02/m2.mo         g 02/m2.hr       g 02/m2.da       g 02/m2.mo         g 02/m2.da       g 02/m2.da       g 02/m2.mo         g 02/m2.da       g 02/m2.da       g 02/m2.mo         g 02/m2.da       g 02/m2.da       g 02/m2.mo         mean       .018       .272       8.441         se       .014       .2206       .6372      .006       .6372         mean       .018       .272       8.441         se       .014       .2066       .372         MET DAILY       Rep 1 <th colsp<="" td=""><td></td><td>_</td><td></td><td></td><td></td></th>	<td></td> <td>_</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>		_			
RESP RATION       Rep 2       .021       .492       15.252         mean       .030       .708       21.948         se       .009       .216       6.696         cv (7)       43.145       43.146       43.146         g 02/m2.hr       g 02/m2.da       g 02/m2.mo         GROSS COMMUNITY Rep 1       .031       .478       14.814         mean       .018       .272       8.441         se       .014       .206       6.372         cv (7)       196.76       196.76       196.76         MET DAILY       Rep 1      446       GROSS COMMUNITY Rep 1       .517         MET DAILY       Rep 1      446       GROSS COMMUNITY Rep 1       .517         mean       .018       .272       8.441         cv (7)       106.76         PG/m2.4a         PG/m2.4a         PG/m2.4a         PG/m2.4a         PG/m2.4a         PG/m2.4a         PG/m2.4a         PG/m2.4a         PG/m2.4a <th colspan<="" td=""><td>COMMUNITY</td><td>Rep 1</td><td>.039</td><td>.924</td><td>28.644</td></th>	<td>COMMUNITY</td> <td>Rep 1</td> <td>.039</td> <td>.924</td> <td>28.644</td>	COMMUNITY	Rep 1	.039	.924	28.644
$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	RESPIRATION	Rep 2	.021	. 492	15.252	
Intern		<b>MA 0 M</b>	020	700	91 049	
g (Z)       43.145       43.146       43.146 $g$ (Z/m2.hr $g$ (02/m2.da $g$ (02/m2.mo         GROSS COMMUNITY       Rep 1       .031       .478       14.814 $g$ (Z)       .094       .067       2.069         mean       .018       .272       8.441 $g$ (Z)/m2.da       .014       .206       6.372 $cv$ (Z)       106.76       106.76       106.76         g (Q2/m2.da       .014       .206       .372 $g$ (Q)/m2.da       .014       .206       .372 $cv$ (Z)       106.76       106.76       106.76         metrial control (C) $r.4425$ PRODUCTION/       Rep 1       .517         MET DAILY       Rep 1 $r.436$ GROSS COMMUNITY       Rep 1       .517         MET ABOLISM       Rep 2 $r.436$ GROSS COMMUNITY       Rep 1       .517         Metrial (C) $ge$ $ge$ $ge$ $ge$ .191       .24       HR RESPIRATION $ge$ .010		mean ee	. 434	- 100	6 606	
g $02/m2$ . hr       g $02/m2$ . da       g $02/m2$ . da         GROSS COMMUNITY       Rep 1       .031       .478       14.814         PRODUCTIVITY       Rep 2       .094       .067       2.069         mean       .018       .272       8.441         se       .014       .206       6.372         cv<(3)       106.76       106.76       106.76         g $02/m2. da$ .206       6.372         mean       .018       .272       8.441         se       .014       .206       6.372         cv<(3)       106.76       106.76       106.76         metr       DAILY       Rep 1      446       GROSS COMMUNITY       Rep 1       .517         MET BAILY       Rep 2      425       PRODUCTION/       Rep 2       .136         mean      436       get 0.10       get 0.137       .326       .191         se       .010       get 0.376       get 0.376       .226       .3376		se ov (%)	. UU7 A2 145	.210 A9 146	0.090 Ag 146	
$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$						
GROSS COMMUNITY PRODUCTIVITY       Rep 1       .031       .478       14.814         Mean       .094       .067       2.069         mean       .018       .272       8.441         se       .014       .206       6.372         cv (7)       106.76       106.76       106.76         PG/R24         MET DAILY       Rep 1      446         g 02/m2.da       PRODUCTION/ Rep 1       .517         METABOLISM       Rep 2      425       PRODUCTION/ Rep 2       .136         mean      436       24 HR RESPIRATION       mean       .326         se       .010       se       .191       .266         cv (7)       3.376			g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo	
GROSS COMMUNITY       Rep 1       .031       .478       14.814         PRODUCTIVITY       Rep 2       .004       .067       2.069         mean       .018       .272       8.441         se       .014       .206       6.372         cv (7)       106.76       106.76       106.76         PG/R24         MET DAILY       Rep 1      446         MET ABOLISM       Rep 2      425       PRODUCTION/       Rep 1       .517         METABOLISM       Rep 2      425       PRODUCTION/       Rep 2       .136         24       HR RESP IRATION       se       .191       .326         se       .010       se       .191       .326         cv (73)       3.376       cv (73)       82.635		<b>D</b> . 1				
Inductivitient       Rep 2       .004       .007       2.009         mean       .018       .272       8.441         se       .914       .206       6.372         cv (7)       196.76       196.76       196.76         MET DAILY       Rep 1      446         MET ABOLISM       Rep 2      425       PRODUCTION/       Rep 1       .517         METABOLISM       Rep 2      425       PRODUCTION/       Rep 2       .136         se       .010       se       .191       .326         se       .010       se       .191       .2635		Rep I	.931	.478	14.814	
$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	TRODUCTIVITI	nep 2	. 994	.007	2.009	
se       .014       .206       6.372 $cv(\pi)$ 196.76       196.76       106.76         g 02/m2.da       Image: se		mean	. 018	.272	8.441	
$cv(\pi)$ 196.76       196.76       196.76         g 02/m2.da       pc/R24         NET DAILY       Rep 1      446       GROSS COMMUNITY       Rep 1       .517         METABOLISM       Rep 2      425       PRODUCTION/       Rep 2       .136         mean      436       mean       .326       .191 $se$ .010       se       .191 $cv(\pi)$ 3.376       ev(\pi)       82.635		se	.914	.206	6.372	
$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$		cv (%)	106.76	196.76	106.76	
$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$				والوي واختاك بجمارك بككر مطاقات الي والي أحجا ساحات معاد والمحاف المالي والم		
NET DAILY         Rep 1        446         GROSS COMMUNITY         Rep 1         .517           METABOLISM         Rep 2        425         PRODUCTION/         Rep 2         .136           mean        436         24 HR RESPIRATION         mean         .326           se         .010         se         .191           cv (%)         3.376         ev (%)         82.635			g 02/m2.da	I.	PG/R24	
NET DAILY       Rep 1      446       GROSS COMMUNITY       Rep 1       .517         METABOLISM       Rep 2      425       PRODUCTION/       Rep 2       .136         mean      436       1       mean       .326         se       .010       1       se       .191         cv (%)       3.376       1       ev (%)       82.635		-				
METABOLISM     Rep 2    425       PRODUCTION/     Rep 2     .136       mean    436       24 HR RESPIRATION       se     .010       se     .191       cv (%)     3.376       ev (%)     82.635	NET DAILY	Rep 1	446	GROSS COMMUNITY Rep 1	.517	
mean        436         mean         .326           se         .010         se         .191           cv (%)         3.376         ev (%)         82.635	METABOLISM	Rep 2	425	PRODUCTION/ Rep 2	. 136	
mean $430$ i         mean $.326$ se         .010         i         se         .191 $cv(\pi)$ $3.376$ i $ev(\pi)$ 82.635			100	1 24 HR RESPIRATION	007	
$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$		mean	436	mean	.326	
		se or (7)	.010		• 171 90 405	
			v,√(U		04.033	

Table A-1 (con't). Estimates of Community Metabolism (g 02/m2), Augusta Creek, Michigan. 05 July 1973 (light), 04 July 1973 (dark), B AVENUE, STANDARD RUN

.

. . ...

------

		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
NET COMMUNITY	Rep 1	.006	.032	2.548
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	.006	.082	2.548
	mean se cv (%)	. 006	· :082	2.548
		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
COMMUNITY	Rep 1	. 025	.600	18.600
RESPIRATION	Rep 2	. 037	.893	27.677
	mean	.031	.746	23.138
	se	.006	.146	4.538
	cv (%)	27.739	27.739	27.739
		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
GROSS COMMUNITY	Rep 1	. 03 1	. 443	13.724
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	. 043	. 6 19	19.177
	mean	. 037	.531	16.450
	se	. 006	.068	2.727
	cv (%)	23 . 442	23.442	23.442
		g 02/m2.da	1	PG/R24
NET DAILY METABOLISM	Rep 1 Rep 2	~.157 274	GROSS COMMUNITY Rep 1 PRODUCTION/ Rep 2 1 24 HB BESPIBATION	.738 .693
	meen	216	mean	.715
	se	.058	se	.022
	cv (%)	38.313	cv(%)	4.433

Table A-1 (con't).Estimates of Community Metabolism (g 02/m2), Augusta Creek, Michigan.02 August 1973 (light), 01 August 1973 (dark), B AVENUE, STANDARD RUN

		g 02/m2.hr	g O2/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
NET COMMUNITY	Rep 1	004	053	
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	012	166	
	mean	008	-:110	-3.401
	se	.004	.057	1.752
	cv (%)	72.853	72.853	72.853
		g 02/m2.hr	g 02∕m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
COMMUNITY	Rep 1	.018	.439	13.615
RESPIRATION	Rep 2	.931	.742	22.990
	mean	.025	.590	18.302
	se	.006	.151	4.687
	cv (%)	36.218	36.218	36.218
		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
CROSS COMMUNITY	Rep 1	.014	. 190	5.896
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	.018	. 245	7.586
	mean	.016	.217	6.741
	se	.002	.027	.845
	cv (%)	17.732	17.732	17.732
		g 02/m2.da		PG/R24
NET DAILY METABOLISM	Rep 1 Rep 2	249 497	GROSS COMMUNITY Rep PRODUCTION/ Rep : 24 BR RESPIENTION	1 . 433 2 . 330
	mean	373	mean	.382
	se	.124	se	.052
	cv (%)	47.001	cv (%	) 19.091

Table A-1 (con't). Estimates of Community Metabolism (g 02/m2), Augusta Creek, Michigan. 29 August 1973 (light), 39 August 1973 (dark), B AVENUE, STANDARD RUN •

·		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
NET COMMUNITY PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 1 Rep 2	011 014	131 167	 -3.944 ~5.019
	mean Se cv (%)	013 .001 16.971	149 .018 16.970	-4.481 .538 16.971
		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
COMMUNITY RESPIRATION	Rep 1 Rep 2	.032 .039	.775 .941	23.256 28.224
	mean Se cv (%)	.036 .003 13.643	.858 .083 13.648	25.740 2.484 13.648
		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
GROSS COMMUNITY PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 1 Rep 2	.021 .025	.255 .301	7.636 9.034
	mean se cv (%)	.023 .092 11.361	.278 .023 11.861	8.335 .699 11.861
		g 02/m2.da	1	PG/R24
NET DAILY METABOLISM	Rep 1 Rep 2	521 640	CROSS COMMUNITY Rep 1 PRODUCTION/ Rep 2	 . 328 . 320
	mean se cv (%)	580 .059 14.503	mean mean se cv(%)	.324 .004 1.788

Table A-1 (con't).Estimates of Community Metabolism (g 02/m2), Augusta Creek, Michigan.27 September 1973 (light), 26 September 1973 (dark), B AVENUE, STANDARD RUN

		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
NET COMMUNITY	Rep 1	005	054	-1.619
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	004	039	-1.161
	mean	005	046	-1.390
	se	.001	.008	.229
	cv (%)	23.311	23.311	23.311
		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
COMMUNITY	Rep 1	.015	.358	10.728
RESPIRATION	Rep 2	.014	.326	9.792
	mean	.014	.342	10.260
	se	.001	.016	.468
	cv (%)	6.451	6.451	6.451
		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
CROSS COMMUNITY	Rep 1	.010	.098	2.932
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	.010	.100	2.993
	mean	.010	.099	2.962
	se	.000	.001	.031
	cv (%)	1.459	1.457	1.456
		g 02/m2.da		PG/R24
NET DAILY METABOLISM	Rep 1 Rep 2	260 227	GROSS CONTRUNITY Rep 1 PRODUCTION/ Rep 2 24 HB RESPIRATION	.273 .306
	mean	243	mean	.289
	se	.017	se	.016
	cv (%)	9.680	cv (%)	7.891

Table A-1 (con't). Estimates of Community Metabolism (g 02/m2), Augusta Creek. Michigan. 05 November 1973 (light), 06 November 1973 (dark), B AVENUE, STANDARD RUN

		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
NET COMMUNITY	Rep 1	019	172	-5.333
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	004	032	993
	mean	011	102	-3.163
	se	.098	.070	2.170
	cv (%)	97.029	97.029	97.029
		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
COMMUNITY	Rep 1	.011	.266	8.258
RESPIRATION	Rep 2		.214	6.622
	mean	.010	.240	7.440
	se	.001	.026	.818
	cv (7)	15.556	15.556	15.556
		g_02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
GROSS COMMUNITY PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 1 Rep 2	008 .005	 070 .049	-2.184 1.532
	mean	001	011	326
	se	.007	.060	1.858
	cv (%)	805.49	805.49	805.49
		g 02/m2.da	1	PG/R24
NET DAILY METABOLISM	Rep 1 Rep 2	337 164	GROSS COMMUNITY Rep 1 PRODUCTION/ Rep 2 24 HB RESPIRATION	263 .231
	mean	-,251	mean	017
	se	,086	se	.248
	cv (%)	48.740	cv (%)	2111.9

# Table A-1 (con't).Estimates of Community Metabolism (g 02/m2), Augusta Creek, Michigan.11 December 1973 (light), 12 December 1973 (dark), B AVENUE, STANDARD RUN

		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
NET COMMUNITY PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 1 Rep 2	.000	.002	.060 .000
	mean	.000	.001	.030
	se	.000	.001	.030
	cv (%)	141.42	141.42	141.42
		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
COMMUNITY	Rep 1	.011	.259	8.035
RESPIRATION	Rep 2	.012	.298	9.226
	mean	.012	.278	8.630
	se	.001	.019	.595
	cv (%)	9.753	9.753	9.753
		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
CROSS COMMUNITY	Rep 1	.011	. 106	3.301
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2		. 129	3.721
	mean	.012	. 113	3.511
	se	.001	. 007	.210
	cv (7)	8.461	8. 461	8.461
		g 92/m2.da	1	PG/R24
NET DAILY	Rep 1	153	GROSS COMMUNITY Rep 1	.411
METABOLISM	Rep 2	178	PRODUCTION/ Rep 2	.403
	mean	165	i mean	.407
	se	.012	se	.004
	cv (%)	10.661	cv (%)	1.303

Table A-1 (con't).	Estimates of Community Metabolism (g 02/m2), Augusta Creek,	Michigan.
	23 January 1974 (light). 22 January 1974 (dark), B AVENUE, S	STANDARD RUN

		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
NET COMMUNITY PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 1 Rep 2	004 .002	051 .027	-1.593 .850
	mean se cv (%)	001 .003 464.67	012 .039 464.67	372 1.221 464.67
		g_02/m2.hr	g O2∕m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
COMMUNITY RESPIRATION	Rep 1 Rep 2	.011	.266	8.258
	mean se cv (%)	. 91 I	.266	8.258
		g 02/m2.hr	g O2/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
CROSS COMMUNITY PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 1 Rep 2	.007	.075	2.337
	mean se cv (%)	. 007	.075	2.337
		g 02/m2.da	1	PG/R24
NET DAILY METABOLISM	Rep 1 Rep 2		GROSS COMMUNITY Rep 1 PRODUCTION/ Rep 2	.283
	mean se cv (%)	191	1 24 HR RESPIRATION 1 mean 1 se 1 cv (7)	. 283

Table A-1 (con't).Estimates of Community Metabolism (g 02/m2), Augusta Creek, Michigan.05 March 1974 (light), 04 March 1974 (dark), B AVENUE, STANDARD RUN

		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
NET COMMUNITY	Rep 1		078	-2.354
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	011	149	-4.473
				0 414
	теал	009	114	-3.414
	se	.993 49 590	.UJJ 49 DDD	47 880
	ev (///	*0 · 007		70.007
		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
COMMUN 1 TY	Rep 1	.025	.593	17.784
RESPIRATION	Rep 2	. 027	.638	19.152
	mean	. 026	.616	18.468
	se	.001	. 023	.684
	cv (%)	5.238	5.238	5.237
		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
ROSS COMMUNITY	Rep 1	.019	.245	7.338
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	.015	. 199	5.964
	mean	.017	. 222	6.651
	se	. 902	. 023	.687
	cv (%)	14.601	14.601	14.601
		g 02/m2.da	<u>!</u>	PG/R24
NET DAILY	Rep 1		I GEOSS COMMUNITY Rep 1	413
METABOLISM	Rep 2	440	PRODUCTION/ Rep 2	.311
	-		1 24 HR RESPIRATION	
	mean	394	mean	.362
	se	.946	se	.051
	ev (%)	16.407	i ev (%)	19.768

Table A-1 (con't). Estimates of Community Metabolism (g 02/m2), Augusta Creek, Michigan. 09 April 1974 (light), 10 April 1974 (dark), B AVENUE, STANDARD RUN

		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
NET COMMUNITY	Rep 1	.001	.018	.543
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	.014	.212	6.563
	mean	.008	.115	3.553
	se	.007	.097	3.010
	cv (%)	119.80	119.80	119.80
		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
COMMUNITY	Rep 1	.025	.598	18.526
RESPIRATION	Rep 2	.017	.410	12.722
	mean	.021	.504	15.624
	se	.004	.094	2.902
	cv (%)	26.264	26.264	26.264
		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
GROSS COMMUNITY	Rep 1	. 026	.381	11.813
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	. 032	.461	14.302
	mean	. 029	.421	13.058
	se	. 003	.040	1.245
	cv (%)	13 . 480	13.480	13.480
		g 02/m2.da	1	PG/R24
NET DAILY METABOLISM	Rep 1 Rep 2	217 .051	GROSS COMMUNITY Rep 1 PRODUCTION Rep 2 24 HR RESPIRATION	.638 1.124
	mean	083	l mean	.881
	se	.134	l se	.243
	cv (%)	228.58	l cv(%)	39.050

Table A-1 (con't).Estimates of Community Metabolism (g 02/m2), Augusta Creek, Michigan.15 May 1974 (light), 16 May 1974 (dark), B AVENUE, STANDARD RUN
		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
NET COMMUNITY	Rep 1	007	076	-2.357
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	.005	.054	1.674
	Rep 3	003	036	-1.127
	mean	002	019	604
	se	.003	.038	1.193
و چرو برو بروی با کار کار کار اور کارو کارو	ev (%)	342.32	342.32	342.32
		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
COMMUNITY	Rep 1	.020	.490	15.178
RESPIRATION	Rep 2	.022	.523	16.219
	Rep 3	.024	. 574	17.782
	mean	.022	.529	16.393
	se	. 00 1	. 024	.757
	cv (%)	7.995	7.995	7.995
		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
GROSS COMMUNITY	Rep 1	.013	. 149	4.612
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	. 027	. 294	9.121
	Rep 3	.021	. 227	7.037
	mean	.020	.223	6.923
	se	.004	.042	1.303
	ev (%)	32,377	32.397	32.397 
		g 02/m2.da	1	PG/R24
NET DAILY	Rep 1		I GROSS COMMINITY Ben 1	
METABOLISM	Rep 2	229	I PRODUCTION/ Ben 2	.562
	Rep 3	347	1 24 HR RESPIRATION Rep 3	.396
	mean	~.305	l mean	. 421
	se	.033	l se	.076
	cv (%)	21.700	l cv (%)	31.147

.

#### Table A-1 (con't). Estimates of Community Metabolism (g 02/m2). Augusta Creek, Michigan. 17 October 1974 (light). 18 October 1974 (dark), B AVENUE, STANDARD RUN

		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da		g 02/m2.mo
NET COMMUNITY	Rep 1	001	010		316
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	004	035		-1.093
	Rep 3	091	011		345
	mean	<b>092</b>	019		585
	se	. 00 1	.008		.254
	cv (%)	75.285 ·	75.285		75.285
		g_02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da		g 02/m2.mo
<b>COMMUNITY</b>	Rep 1	.004	. 103		3.199
RESPIRATION	Rep 2	.015	.365		11.309
	Rep 3	.010	.240		7.440
	mean	.010	.236		7.316
	se	. 003	. 076		2.342
	cv (%)	55.443	55.443		55.443
		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da		g 02/m2.mo
GROSS COMMUNITY	Rep 1	. 003	. 030		.921
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	.011	. 106		3.280
	Rep 3	.009	.062		2.532
	mean	. 998	.072		2.244
	se	.002	. 022		.696
	cv (%)	53.724	53.724		53.724
		g 02/m2.da			PG/R24
NET DAILY	Bep 1	074	GEOSS COMMUNITY	Rep 1	.288
METABOLISM	Rep 2	259	PRODUCTION/	Rep 2	.290
	Rep 3	158	1 24 HR RESPIRATION	Rep 3	.340
	mean	- 164	1 1	mean	. 306
	Se	.054		se	.017
	ev (%)	56.763	1	cv (7)	9.704

Table A-1 (con't). Estimates of Community Metabolism (g 02/m2), Augusta Creek, Michigan. 09 January 1975 (light), 08 January 1975 (dark), B AVENUE, STANDARD RUN

NET COMMUNITY PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 1 Rep 2 Rep 3 mean	g 02/m2.hr .015 002 .011 .008 .003	g 02/m2.da .202 034 .150 .106	g 02/m2.mo 6.070 -1.005 4.502 3.189 2.145
	cv (%)	116.52	116.52	116.52
		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
COMMUNITY	Rep 1	.030	.722	21.672
RESPIRATION	Rep 2 Rep 3	.022	.523	15.096
	mean se cv (%)	. 025 . 003 19. 086	.592 .065 19.086	17.760 1.957 19.086
		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
GROSS COMMUNITY PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 1 Rep 2 Rep 3	.045 .019 .033	.606 . .259 .446	18.170 7.759 13.387
	mean Se CV (%)	.033 .007 39.767	.437 .100 39.767	13.105 3.009 39.767
		g 02/m2.da	1	PG/R24
NET DAILY METABOLISM	Rep 1 Rep 2 Rep 3	117 265 084	GROSS COLMUNITY Rep 1 PRODUCTION/ Rep 2 24 FR RESPIRATION Rep 3	. 838 . 494 . 841
	mean se cv (%)	155 .036 61.969	mean se cv(%)	.725 .115 <b>27</b> .531

Table A-1 (con't). Estimates of Community Metabolism (g 02/m2), Augusta Creek, Michigan. 16 April 1975 (light), 17 April 1975 (dark), B AVENUE, STANDARD RUN

\_\_\_\_

And the second sec

		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
NET COMMUNITY	Rep 1	001	009	279
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	.001	.016	.512
	Rep 3	001	013	419
	mean	000	002	062
	se	.001	.009	.290
	cv (%)	808.93	<b>808.93</b>	808.93
		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
COMMUNITY	Rep 1	.040	.970	30.058
RESPIRATION	Rep 2	.037	.866	27.454
	Rep 3	.038	.917	28.421
	mean	. 039	.924	28.644
	se	.001	. 025	.760
	cv (%)	4.595	4.595	4.595
		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
GROSS COMMUNITY	Rep 1	.040	.597	18.507
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	.038	.570	17.670
	Rep 3	.037	. 559	17.344
	mean	.038	. 576	17.840
	se	.001	.011	. 346
	cv (%)	3.361	3.362	3.362
		g 02/m2.da		PG/R24
NET DAILY	Rep 1	373	GROSS COMMUNITY Rep 1	.616
METABOLISM	Rep 2	316	PRODUCTION/ Rep 2	.644
	Rep 3	357	24 HR RESPIRATION Rep 3	.610
	mean	349	mean.	. 623
	se	.017	l se	.010
	cv (%)	8.465	ev (%)	2.868

#### Table A-1 (con't). Estimates of Community Metabolism (g O2/m2), Augusta Creek, Michigan. 14 July 1975 (light), 15 July 1975 (dark), B AVENUE, STANDARD RUN

		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
NET COMMUNITY	Rep 1	. 114	. 1.193	<b>36.989</b>
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	. 187	1.947	<b>60.</b> 366
	mean	.151	1.570	48.677
	se	.036	.377	11.688
	cv (%)	33.958	33.958	33.958
		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
COMMUNITY	Rep 1	.099	2.374	73.582
RESPIRATION	Rep 2		2.395	74.251
	mean	.099	2.384	73.916
	se	.000	.011	.334
	cv (%)	.641	.640	.638
		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
GROSS COMMUNITY	Rep 1	.213	2.225	68.966
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	.286	2.988	92.634
	mean	.250	2.606	80.800
	se	.037	.362	11.834
	cv (%)	20.712	20.712	20.712
		g 02/m2.da		PG/R24
NET DAILY	Rep 1	149	CROSS COMMUNITY Rep 1	.937
METABOLISM	Rep 2	.593	PRODUCTION/ Rep 2	1.248
	mean	. 222	mean	1.092
	se	. 37 1	se	.155
	cv (%)	206 . 25	cv (%)	20.085

# Table A-1 (con't). Estimates of Community Metabolism (g 02/m2), Augusta Creek, Michigan. 30 October 1974 (light), 31 October 1974 (dark), UPPER 43, STANDARD RUN

		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
NET COMMUNITY	Rep 1	. 029	.281	8.729
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	.013	. 122	3.780
	Ben 3	.017	. 166	5.148
	INCP O	.011		01110
	mean	.020	. 190	5.883
	se	. 995	.048	1.473
	cv (%)	43.358	43.358	43.358
		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
COMMINITY	Ben 1	. 021	.514	15.923
BESPIBATION	Bop 2	008	107	6 101
idol heriton	Bop 2	610	. 171	19 019
	hep o	• 917	, 777	10.710
	mean	.916	.386	11.978
	se	.004	.097	2.995
	cv (%)	43.314	43.314	43.314
		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
GROSS COMMUNITY	Rep 1	.051	. 487	15.088
PRODUCTIVITY	Ben 2	.021	. 291	6.220
	Ben 3	.036	.346	10.714
	nop o			
	mean	. 936	.344	10.674
	se	. 009	. 933	2.560
	ev (%)	41.544	41.544	41.544
		g 02/m2.da		PG/R24
NET BALLY	Ben 1	- 027	CROSS COMMENTER Box 1	948
METABOLISM	Rep 1		$\begin{array}{cccc} \mathbf{I} & \mathbf{O} &$	• 75U
TRETADULISH	Rep 2	. 524		1.929
	nep 3	103	I 24 HK RESPIRATION Rep 3	.770
	mean	042	neon	.912
	se	.032	SA SA	.074
	cv (%)	130 37	, ee (2)	14.071

Table A-1 (con't). Estimates of Community Metabolism (g 02/m2), Augusta Creek, Michigan. 21 January 1975 (light), 22 January 1975 (dark), UPPER 43, STANDARD RUN

-----

		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
NET COMMUNITY	Rep 1	.228	3.403	105.48
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	.111	1.656	51.350
	Rep 3	. 076	1.132	35.083
	mean	. 138	2.064	63.972
	se	.046	.686	21.279
	cv (%)	57.615	57.615	<b>57.</b> 615
		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
COMMUNITY	Rep 1	.089	2.141	66.365
RESPIRATION	Rep 2	. 069	1.656	51.336
	Rep 3	.080	1.915	59.371
	mean	. 079	1.904	59.024
	se	. 006	. 140	4.342
	cv (%)	12.741	12.741	12.741
		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
CROSS COMMUNITY	Rep 1	.317	4.736	146.82
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	. 180	2.668	83.328
	Rep 3	. 155	2.325	72.066
	mean	.217	3.250	100.74
	se	.050	.751	23,269
	ev (%)	40.008 	40.008	40.008
		g 02/m2.da	1	PG/R24
NET DAILY	Rep 1	2.595	GROSS COMMUNITY Rep 1	2.212
METABOLISM	Rep 2	1.032	I PRODUCTION/ Rep 2	1.623
	Rep 3	.410	1 24 HR RESPIRATION Rep 3	1.214
	mean	1.346	nean.	1.683
	se	.659		.290
	CV (%)	83.693	I CV (%)	29.822

Table A-1 (con't). Estimates of Community Metabolism (g 02/m2). Augusta Creek, Michigan. 27 May 1975 (light), 28 May 1975 (dark), UPPER 43, STANDARD RUN \_\_\_\_\_

\_\_\_\_\_

		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
NET COMMUNITY	Rep 1		.657	20.352
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	. 110	1.633	50.628
	Rep 3		* * * * * *	
		077	1 145	95 <i>4</i> 00
	теац		1.145	15 138
	se cv (%)	60.321	69.321	60.321
		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
<b>COMMUNITY</b>	Rep 1	. 985	2.030	62.942
RESP IRATION	Rep 2	. 102	2.450	75.962
• <u>-</u>	Rep 3	. 126	3.026	93.818
	-			
	mean	. 104	2.502	77.574
	se	.012	.289	8.949
	cv (%)	19.982	19.982	19.982
		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
GROSS COMMUNITY	Rep 1	. 129	1.910	59.219
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	.212	3.146	97.535
	Rep 3	• • • • •		• • • • • •
	mean	. 171	2.528	78.377
	se	.042		19.158
	cv (%)	34.568	34.568	34.568
		g 02/m2.da		PG/R24
NET DAILY	Rep 1	120	GROSS COMMUNITY Rep 1	.941
METABOLISM	Rep 2	.696	PRODUCTION/ Rep 2	1.284
	Rep 3	• • • • •	1 24 HR RESPIRATION Rep 3	• • • • •
	• -		1	
	mean	.288	mean	1.112
	se	.408	se	. 172
	ev (%)	200.42	1 ev (%)	21.816

### Table A-1 (con't).Estimates of Community Metabolism (g 02/m2), Augusta Creek, Michigan.21 July 1975 (light), 22 July 1975 (dark), UPPER 43, STANDARD RUN

----

		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
NET COMMUNITY	Rep 1	.350	4.977	154.29
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	.217	3.077	95.391
	mean	.284	4.027	124.84
	se	.067	.950	29.449
	ev (%)	33.30I 		
		g 02/m2.hr	g 02∕m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
COMMUNITY	Ben 1	. 072	1.735	53,791
RESPIRATION	Rep 2	. 115	2.748	85.188
	mean	.093	2.242	69.490
	se	.021	.506	15.698
	cv (%)	31.948	31.949	31.948 
		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
GROSS COMMUNITY	Rep 1	.423	6.004	186.12
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	.331	4.703	145.79
	mean	. 377	5.353	165.96
	se	. 046	.650	20.161
	cv (%)	17.180	17.181	17.181
		g 02/m2.da	!	PG/R24
NET DAILY	Rep 1	4.269	GROSS COMMUNITY Rep 1	3.460
METABOLISM	Rep 2	1.955	PRODUCTION/ Rep 2	1.711
	mean	3.112	mean	2.586
	se	1.157	l se	.874

#### Table A-1 (con't). Estimates of Community Metabolism (g 02/m2), Augusta Creek, Michigan. 08 August 1973 (light), 09 August 1973 (dark), NAGEL SITE, STANDARD RUN

\_\_\_\_

		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
NET COMMUNITY	Rep 1	. 201	2.613	78.375
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	. 250	3.261	97.842
	mean	.225	2:937	88.109
	se	.925	.324	9.733
	cv (%)	15.623	15.623	15.623
		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
COMMUNITY	Rep 1	. 113	2.712	81.360
RESPIRATION	Rep 2	. 107	2.561	76.824
	mean	.110	2.636	79.092
	se	.003	.076	2.268
	cv (%)	4.055	4.055	4.056
		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
CROSS COMMUNITY	Rep 1	.313	4.085	122.55
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	.357	4.652	139.55
	mean	. 335	4.368	131.05
	se	. 022	.283	8.502
	cv (%)	9. 175	9.175	9.175
		g 02/m2.da	1	PG/R24
NET DAILY METABOLISM	Rep 1 Rep 2	1.373 2.091	GROSS COMMUNITY Rep 1 PRODUCTION/ Rep 2 24 HR RESPIEATION	1.506 1.816
	mean	1.732	mean	1.661
	se	.359	se	.155
	cv (%)	29.315	cv (%)	13.207

Table A-1 (con't). Estimates of Community Metabolism (g 02/m2). Augusta Creek, Michigan. 04 September 1973 (light). 05 September 1973 (dark), NAGEL SITE, STANDARD RUN

		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
NET COMMUNITY	Rep 1	. 115	1.334	41.353
Productivity	Rep 2	. 123	1.432	44.379
	mean	.119	1.353	42.866
	Se	.004	.049	1.513
	CV (%)	4.991	4.991	4.991
		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
COMMUNITY	Rep 1	. 05 1	1.229	38.093
RESPIRATION	Rep 2	. 059	1.421	44.045
	mean	.055	1.325	41.069
	se	.004	.096	2.976
	cv (%)	10.248	10.248	10.248
		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
GROSS COMMUNITY	Rep 1	. 166	1.929 2.119	59.797
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	. 182		65.704
	mean	.174	2.024	62.730
	se	.008	.095	2.954
	cv (%)	6.657	6.657	6.657
		g 02/m2.da		PG/R24
NET DAILY METABOLISM	Rep 1 Rep 2	.700 .699	GROSS COMMUNITY Rep 1 PRODUCTION/ Rep 2 24 HR RESPIRATION	1.570 1.492
	mean	.699	mean	1.531
	se	.001	se	.039
	cv (%)	.148	cv (%)	3.603

Table A-1 (con't). Estimates of Community Metabolism (g 02/m2), Augusta Creek, Michigan. 04 October 1973 (light), 03 October 1973 (dark), NAGEL SITE, STANDARD RUN

		g 02/m2.hr	g O2/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
NET COMMUNITY	Rep 1	.252	2.501	75.025
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	.238	2.362	70.859
	mean	.245	2.431	72.942
	se	.007	.069	2.083
	cv (%)	4.039	4.039	4.039
		g 02/m2.hr	g O2/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
COMMUNITY	Rep 1	.079	1.884	56.520
RESPIRATION	Rep 2	.061	1.469	44.064
	mean	.070	1.676	50.292
	se	.009	.208	6.228
	cv (%)	17.513	17.513	17.513
		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
GROSS COMMUNITY	Rep 1	. 33 l	3.280	98.387
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	. 299	2.969	89.072
	mean	.315	3.124	93.729
	se	.916	.155	4.657
	cv (%)	7.027	7.027	7.027
		g 02/m2.da		PG/R24
NET DAILY METABOLISM	Rep 1 Rep 2	1.396 1.500	GROSS COMMUNITY Rep 1 PRODUCTION/ Rep 2 24 HB RESPIRATION	1.741 2.021
	mean	1.448	mean	1.881
	se	.052	se	.140
	cv (%)	5.113	cv (%)	10.552

Table A-1 (con't). Estimates of Community Metabolism (g 02/m2), Augusta Creek, Michigan. 12 November 1973 (light), 13 November 1973 (dark), NAGEL SITE, STANDARD RUN

		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
NET COMMUNITY	Rep 1	. 139	1.262	39.127
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	. 076	.690	21.383
	mean	.107	.976	30.255
	se	.031	.286	8.872
	cv (%)	41.470	41.479	41.470
		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
COMMUNITY	Rep 1	. 036	.876	27.156
RESPIRATION	Rep 2	. 025	.588	18.228
	mean	.031	.732	22.692
	se	.006	.144	4.464
	cv (%)	27.821	27.820	27.821
		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
GROSS COMMUNITY	Rep 1	. 175	1,594	49.424
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2		.913	· 28.295
	mean	.138	1.254	38.859
	se	.037	.341	10.565
	cv (%)	38.448	38.4 <del>1</del> 8	38.448
		g 03/m2.da		PG/R24
NET DAILY	Rep 1	.718	GROSS COMMUNITY Rep 1	1.820
NETABOLISM	Rep 2	.325	PRODUCTION/ Rep 2	1.552
	mean se cv (%)	. 521 . 197 53. 369	i mean i se i cv(%)	1.686 .134 11.226

.

#### Table A-1 (con't). Estimates of Community Metabolism (g 02/m2), Augusta Creek, Michigan. 18 December 1973 (light), 19 December 1973 (dark), NAGEL SITE, STANDARD RUN

202

		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
NET COMMUNITY	Ben 1	. 177	2, 142	66.407
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	. 141	1.705	52.870
		•••		02:010
	mean	. 159	1.924	59.638
	se	.018	.218	6.769
	cv (%)	16.030	16.050	16.050
		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
COMMUNITY	Ben 1	. 973	1.762	54.610
RESPIRATION	Rep 2	. 054	1.289	39,953
	mean	.064	1.525	47.281
	se	.010	. 236	7.328
	ev (%)	21.920	21.920	21.920
		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
GROSS COMMUNITY	Rep 1	. 250	3.032	94,007
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	. 194	2.357	73.063
	mean	. 222	2.695	83.535
	se	. 028	.338	10.472
	cv (%)	17.729	17.729	17.729
		g 02/m2.da	!	PG/R24
NET DAILY	Rep 1	1.271	I GROSS COMMUNITY Ben	1 1.721
METABOLISM	Rep 2	1.068	FRODUCTION/ Rep	2 1.829
	-		24 HR RESPIRATION	
	mean	1.170	( mean	1.775
	se	. 101	l se	.054
	cv (%)	12.262	l cv (%	) 4.274

# Table A-1 (con't). Estimates of Community Metabolism (g 02/m2), Augusta Creek, Michigan. 20 March 1974 (light), 21 March 1974 (dark), NAGEL SITE, STANDARD RUN

203

		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
NET COMMUNITY	Rep 1	. 155	2.122	63.675
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	. 082	1.122	33.669
	mean	.118	1.622	48.672
	se	.036	.500	15.003
	cv (%)	43.592	43.592	43.592
		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
COMMUNITY	Rep 1	. 127	3.038	91.152
RESPIRATION	Rep 2	. 151	3.634	109.01
	mean	.139	3.336	100.08
	se	.012	.298	8.928
	cv (%)	12.616	12.616	12.616
		g 02/m2.hr	g 02∕m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
GROSS COMMUNITY	Rep 1	. 281	3.859	115.78
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	. 233	3.200	95.985
	mean	.257	3.529	105.88
	se	.024	.330	9.899
	cv (%)	13.221	13.221	13.221
		g 02/m2.da	1	PG/R24
NET DAILY METABOLISM	Rep 1 Rep 2	.821 434	GROSS COMMUNITY Rep 1 PRODUCTION/ Rep 2 24 HB RESPIRATION	1.270 .689
	mean	.193	mean	1.075
	se	.628	se	.195
	cv (%)	458.77	cv (%)	25.625

Table A-1 (con't).Estimates of Community Metabolism (g 02/m2), Augusta Creek, Michigan.23 April 1974 (light), 22 April 1974 (dark), NAGEL SITE, STANDARD RUN

		g 02/m2.hr	g 02∕m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
NET COMMUNITY	Rep 1	. 25 l	3.454	103.61
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	. 124	1.713	51.390
	mean	.188	2:583	77.498
	se	.063	.870	26.108
	cv (7)	47.643	47.643	47.643
		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
COMMUNITY	Rep 1	. 127	<b>3.038</b>	91.152
RESPIRATION	Rep 2	. 151	<b>3.634</b>	109.01
	mean	.139	3.336	100.08
	se	.012	.298	8.928
	cv (7)	12.616	12.616	12.616
		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
GROSS COMMUNITY	Rep 1	.377	5.197	155.90
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	.276	3.798	113.93
	mean	.327	4.497	134.92
	se	.051	.700	20.985
	cv (%)	21.997	21.997	21.997
		g 02∕m2.da	!	PG/R24
NET DAILY METABOLISM	Rep 1 Rep 2	2.158 .164	GROSS COMMUNITY Rep 1 PRODUCTION/ Rep 2 24 HR BESPIRATION	1.710 1.045
	mean	1.161	mean	1.378
	se	.997	se	.333
	cv (%)	121.43	cv (%)	34.139

### Table A-1 (con't).Estimates of Community Metabolism (g 02/m2), Augusta Creek, Michigan.24 April 1974 (light), 22 April 1974 (dark), NAGEL SITE, STANDARD RUN

----

-----

		g_02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
NET COMMUNITY	Rep 1	. 128	1.915	59.381
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	. 173	2.600	80.585
	mean	.150	2.258	69.982
	se	.023	.342	10.602
	cv (%)	21.425	21.425	21.425
		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
COMMUNITY	Rep 1	. 113	2.719	84.295
RESPIRATION	Rep 2	. 119	2.868	88.908
	mean	.116	2.794	86.602
	se	.003	.074	2.306
	cv (%)	3.766	3.767	3.766
		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
GROSS COMMUNITY	Rep 1	.241	3.615	112.06
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2		4.392	136.15
	mean	.267	4.003	124.11
	se	.926	.389	12.043
	cv (7)	13.724	13.724	13.723
		g 02/m2.da		PG/R24
NET DAILY	Rep 1	.896	GROSS COMMUNITY Rep :	1 1.329
METABOLISM	Rep 2	1.524	PRODUCTION/ Rep :	2 1.531
	méan	1.210	l mean	1.430
	se	.314	se	.101
	cv (%)	36.714	cv (%)	9.986

## Table A-1 (con't).Estimates of Community Metabolism (g 02/m2), Augusta Creek, Michigan.29 May 1974 (light), 29 May 1974 (dark), NAGEL SITE, DIEL RUN

		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
NET COMMUNITY	Rep 1	. 133	2,032	62.982
	mean se cv (%)	. 133	2.032	62.982
		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
COMMUNITY RESPIRATION	Rep 1	. 153	3.672	113.83
	mean se cv (%)	. 153	3.672	113.83
		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
GROSS COMMUNITY	Rep 1	.286	4.362	135.22
	mean se cv (%)	. 286	4.362	135.22
		g 02/m2.da	f 1	PG/R24
NET DAILY	Rep 1	. 690	GROSS COMMUNITY Rep 1	1.188
METABOLISM	mean se cv (7)	. 690	24 HR RESPIRATION mean   se   cv (%)	1.188

Table A-1 (con't).Estimates of Community Metabolism (g 02/m2), Augusta Creek, Michigan.01 July 1974 (light), 01 July 1974 (dark), NAGEL SITE, DIEL RUN

		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
NET COMMUNITY PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 1 Rep 2 Rep 3	. 251 . 163	3.564 2.332	111.09 72.302
	mean se cv (%)	.207 .044 29.911	2.958 :626 29.911	91.697 19.394 29.911
		g 01/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
COMMUNITY	Rep 1	.094	2.249	69.713
RESPIRATION	Rep 2 Rep 3	.091	2. 179	67.555
	mean se cv (%)	.092 .091 2.224	2.214 .035 2.223	68.634 1.079 2.223
		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
GROSS COMMUNITY PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 1 Rep 2 Rep 3		4.923	152.63
	mean se cv (%)	.344	4.923	152.63
*********		g 02/m2.da		PG/R24
NET DAILY NETABOLISM	Rep 1 Rep 2 Rep 3	2.675	GROSS COMMUNITY Rep 1 PRODUCTION/ Rep 2 24 HR RESPIRATION Rep 3	2.189
	mean se cv (%)	2.675	mean se cv(%)	2.189

Table A-1 (con't). Estimates of Community Metabolism (g 02/m2), Augusta Creek, Michigan. 05 August 1974 (light), 05 August 1974 (dark), NAGEL SITE, STANDARD RUN

		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
NET COMMUNITY	Rep 1	. 121	1.225	36.742
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	. 197	1.991	59.716
	Rep 3	. 083	.844	25.315
	mean	. 134	1.353	40.591
	se	.033	. 337	10.116
	cv (%)	43.164	43.164	43.164
		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
COMMUNITY	Rep 1	.031	.744	22.320
RESPIRATION	Rep 2	. 966	1.572	47.160
	Rep 3	. 027	.660	19.800
	mean	.041	.992	29.760
	se	.012	. 29 1	8.730
	ev (%)	50.811	50,811	50.811
		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
GROSS COMMUNITY	Rep 1	. 152	1.539	46.162
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	.262	2.654	79.622
	Rep 3	.111	1.122	33.672
	mean	. 175	1.772	53.152
	se	.045	. 457	13.717
	cv (%)	44.700	44.700	44.700
		g 02/m2.da		PG/R24
NET DAILY	Ben 1	795	CROSS COMMINITY Bon 1	2 868
METABOL 1SM	Ben 2	1.082	I PRODUCTION / Rep 1	1.688
	Ben 3	.462	1 24 HB RESPIBATION Ban 3	1.701
	wh a	• • • • • •		1.1.71
	mean	.780	mean	1.819
	se	. 179	se	. 125
	cv (%)	39.773	l ev (%)	11.868

.

Table A-1 (con't). Estimates of Community Metabolism (g 02/m2), Augusta Creek, Michigan. 06 November 1974 (light), 07 November 1974 (dark), NAGEL SITE, STANDARD RUN

•

		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
NET COMMUNITY	Rep 1	.021	.212	6.557
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	.032	.315	9.758
	Rep 3	.028	. 278	8.619
	mean	.027	.268	8.311
	se	.003	.030	.937
	cv (%)	19.525	19.524	19.525
		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
<b>COMMUNITY</b>	Rep 1	.031	.746	23.138
RESPIRATION	Rep 2	. 023	.554	17.186
	Rep 3	.024	. 586	18.154
	mean	.026	. 629	19.493
	se	.002	. 059	1.844
	cv (%)	16.385	16.385	16.385
		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
GROSS COMMUNITY	Rep 1	.052	.520	16.130
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	.055	.544	16.869
	Reр З	.052	. 520	16.130
	mean	.053	.528	16.377
	se	.001	.008	.246
	cv (%)	2.605	2.604	2.604
		g 02/m2.da		PG/R24
NET DAILY	Rep 1	226	GROSS CONMUNITY Rep 1	.697
METABOLISM	Rep 2	-,019	PRODUCTION/ Rep 2	.982
	Rep 3	065	1 24 HR RESPIRATION Rep 3	.838
	mean	101	nean mean	.856
	se	.065	l se	.084
	ev (%)	111.58	1 cv (%)	16.946

Table A-1 (con't). Estimates of Community Metabolism (g 02/m2), Augusta Creek, Michigan. 30 January 1975 (light), 31 January 1975 (dark), NAGEL SITE, STANDARD RUN

•

		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
NET COMMUNITY	Rep 1	.057	. 573	17.772
Productivity	Rep 2	.027		8.221
	mean	.042	.419	12.996
	se	.015	.154	4.775
	cv (%)	51.961	51.961	51.961
		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
COMMUNITY	Rep 1	. 021	.504	15.624
RESPIRATION	Rep 2	. 027	.660	20.460
	mean	.024	.582	18.042
	se	.003	.078	2.418
	cv (%)	18.953	18.953	18.954
		g 02∕m2.hr	g 02∕m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
GROSS COMMUNITY	Rep 1	.079	.783	24.262
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	.054	.539	16.721
	mean	.066	.661	20.491
	se	.912	.122	3.771
	cv (%)	26.023	26.023	26.023
		g 02/m2.da	1	PG/R24
NET DAILY METABOLISM	Rep 1 Rep 2	.279 121	GROSS COMMUNITY Rep 1 PRODUCTION/ Rep 2 24 HB BESPIRATION	1.553 .817
	mean	.079	mean	1.185
	se	.200	se	.368
	cv (%)	357.31	cv (%)	43.896

Table A-1 (con't). Estimates of Community Metabolism (g 02/m2), Augusta Creek, Michigan. 31 January 1974 (light), 01 February 1974 (dark), NAGEL SITE, STANDARD RUN

· · ·

PLEASE NOTE:

Page 212 missing in numbering only. Text follows. Filmed as received.

UNIVERSITY MICROFILMS

$\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $			g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo		
MEL COMMUNITY       Rep 1		<b>D</b> 1					
FRODUCTIVITI       Rep 2       .032	RET COMMUNITY	Rep I	. 109	1.606	49.773		
Rep 3       .100       1.337       48.260         mean       .089       1.307       40.518         se       .019       .275       8.512         ev (%)       36.387       36.367       36.387         g 02/m2.hr       g 02/m2.da       g 02/m2.mo         COMMUNITY       Rep 1       .130       3.115       96.571         RESPIRATION       Rep 2       .113       2.722       84.370         Rep 3       .098       2.342       72.614         mean       .114       2.726       84.513         se       .009       .223       6.916         ev (%)       14.173       14.173       14.173         GROSS COMMUNITY       Rep 1       .239       3.518       109.04         g 02/m2.hr       g 02/m2.da       g 02/m2.da       g 02/m2.mo         g 02/m2.hr       g 02/m2.da       14.173       14.173         GROSS COMMUNITY       Rep 1       .239       3.518       109.04         se       .021       .235       .62.916       .29.2301         se       .021       .314       9.744       9.746         ev (%)       18.267       18.266       18.266       18	FRODUCTIVITI	Rep 2	.052	.759	23.516		
$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$		Кер З	. 196	1.007	48.200		
se       .019       .275       8.512 $cv(3)$ 36.387       36.387       36.387       36.387         g 02/m2.hr       g 02/m2.da       g 02/m2.mo       96.571         RESPIRATION       Rep 1       .130       3.115       96.571         RESPIRATION       Rep 2       .113       2.722       84.376         mean       .114       2.726       34.513         se       .099       .223       6.916         cv(3)       14.173       14.173       14.173         g 02/m2.hr       g 02/m2.da       g 02/m2.mo         cv(3)       14.173       14.173       14.173         g 02/m2.hr       g 02/m2.da       g 02/m2.mo         cv(73)       14.173       14.173         g 02/m2.hr       g 02/m2.da       g 02/m2.mo         g 02/m2.hr       g 02/m2.mo       g 02/m2.mo         g 02/m2.hr       g 02/m2.hr       g 02/m2.mo         g 02/m2.hr       g 02/m2.hr<		mean	. 089	1.397	40.518		
cv (7)         36.387         36.367         36.387           g 02/m2.hr         g 02/m2.da         g 02/m2.mo $g 02/m2.mo$ COMMUNITY         Rep 1         .130         3.115         96.571           RESPIRATION         Rep 2         .113         2.722         84.370           Rep 3         .098         2.342         72.614           mean         .114         2.726         34.518           se         .009         .223         6.916           cv (7)         14.173         14.173         14.173           g 02/m2.hr         g 02/m2.da         g 02/m2.mo           GROSS COMMUNITY         Rep 1         .339         3.518         109.64           PRODUCTIVITY         Rep 2         .165         2.429         75.298           mean         .202         .2960         92.391           se         .021         .314         9.744           cv (7)         18.267         18.266         18.266           g 02/m2.da         f         GROSS COMMUNITY         Rep 1         1.129           mean         .202         .2962         .2963         .2972           se         .021         .314		se	.019	. 275	8.512		
$ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$		cv (%)	36.387	36.387	36.387		
$\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $			g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo		
RESPIRATION       Rep 1       .113       2.722       34.370         Rep 3       .098       2.342       72.614         mean       .114       2.726       34.370         se       .0099       .223       6.916         ev (73)       14.173       14.173       14.173         g 02/m2.hr       g 02/m2.da       g 02/m2.mo         GROSS COMMUNITY       Rep 1       .239       3.518       109.04         PRODUCTIVITY       Rep 1       .203       2.980       92.391         g 02/m2.da       g 02/m2.da       g 02/m2.mo         g 02/m2.da       109.04         Rep 1       .203       .2.980       92.391         g 02/m2.da       1       .2.980       92.391         g 02/m2.da       1       .2.980       92.391       .2.966       .2.92         MET DAILY       Rep 1       .2.92       .2.980 <th <<="" colspan="2" td=""><td>COMMINICTY</td><td>Ben 1</td><td>139</td><td>3 115</td><td>06 571</td></th>	<td>COMMINICTY</td> <td>Ben 1</td> <td>139</td> <td>3 115</td> <td>06 571</td>		COMMINICTY	Ben 1	139	3 115	06 571
Rep 3       .098       2.342       72.614         mean       .114       2.726       04.518         se       .009       .223       6.916         ev (7)       14.173       14.173       14.173         g 02/m2.hr       g 02/m2.da       g 02/m2.mo         GROSS COMMUNITY       Rep 1       .239       3.518       109.04         GROSS COMMUNITY       Rep 1       .239       3.518       109.04         GROSS COMMUNITY       Rep 1       109.04         mean       .292       2.960       92.391         g 02/m2.da       FG/R24         MET DAILY       Rep 1       .402       GROSS COMMUNITY       Rep 1       1.129         MET DAILY       Rep 1       .402         MET DAILY       Rep 1       .402       GROSS COMMUNITY       Rep 1       1.129         MET DAILY       Rep 1       .402       .402 <t< td=""><td>BESPIRATION</td><td>Ben 2</td><td>. 113</td><td>9 799</td><td>84 370</td></t<>	BESPIRATION	Ben 2	. 113	9 799	84 370		
mean       .114       2.726 $04.518$ se       .009       .223       6.916 $cv(7)$ 14.173       14.173       14.173         g 02/m2.hr       g 02/m2.da       g 02/m2.da       g 02/m2.mo         GROSS COMMUNITY       Rep 1       .239       3.518       109.04         PRODUCTIVITY       Rep 2       .165       2.429       75.298         mean       .202       2.980       92.833         mean       .202       2.980       92.391         se       .021       .314       9.744         cv (73)       18.267       18.266       18.266		Ben 3	. 098	2.342	72.614		
mean       .114       2.726 $04.518$ se       .009       .223       6.916         ev (3)       14.173       14.173       14.173         g 02/m2.hr       g 02/m2.da       g 02/m2.mo         GROSS COMMUNITY       Rep 1       .239 $3.518$ 109.04         PRODUCTIVITY       Rep 2       .165 $2.429$ 75.298         mean       .203       2.995       92.833         mean       .2021       .314       9.744         ev (3)       18.267       18.266       18.266         GROSS COMMUNITY Rep 1       1.129         MET DAILY       Rep 1       .402       I GROSS COMMUNITY Rep 1       1.129         MET DAILY       Rep 1       .402       I GROSS COMMUNITY Rep 1       1.129		INP O	.070		12:017		
se       .009       .223       6.916 $cv(\pi)$ 14.173       14.173       14.173         g 02/m2.hr       g 02/m2.da       g 02/m2.mo         GROSS COMMUNITY       Rep 1       .239       3.518       109.04         PRODUCTIVITY       Rep 2       .165       2.429       75.298         mean       .292       2.960       92.391         se       .021       .314       9.744         ev (\pi)       18.267       18.266       18.266         MET DAILY       Rep 1       .402       GROSS COMMUNITY       Rep 1       .129         MET DAILY       Rep 1       .402       GROSS COMMUNITY       Rep 1       1.129         MET DAILY       Rep 1       .402       GROSS COMMUNITY       Rep 1       1.129		mean	. 114	2.726	84.518		
ev (3)       14.173       14.173       14.173         g 02/m2.hr       g 02/m2.da       g 02/m2.mo         GROSS COMMUNITY       Rep 1       .239       3.518       109.04         PRODUCTIVITY       Rep 2       .165       2.429       75.298         mean       .202       2.960       92.391         se       .021       .314       9.744         cv (3)       18.267       18.266       18.266		se	.009	. 223	6.916		
$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$		cv (%)	14.173	14.173	14.173		
GROSS COMMUNITY PRODUCTIVITY       Rep 1       .239       3.518       109.04         PRODUCTIVITY       Rep 2       .165       2.429       75.298         Rep 3       .203       2.995       92.833         mean       .202       2.980       92.391         se       .021       .314       9.744         cv (%)       18.267       18.266       18.266         FG/R24         MET DAILY       Rep 1       .402         METABOLISM       Rep 1       .402       GROSS COMMUNITY       Rep 1       1.129         METABOLISM       Rep 2			g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo		
PRODUCTIVITY       Rep 2       .165       2.429       75.298         Rep 3       .203       2.995       92.833         mean       .202       2.980       92.391         se       .021       .314       9.744         cv (%)       18.267       18.266       18.266         FG/R24         MET DAILY       Rep 1       .402       GROSS COMMUNITY       Rep 1       1.129         METABOLISM       Bap 2	GROSS COMMUNITY	Rep 1	. 239	3.518	109.04		
Rep 3     .203     2.995     92.833       mean     .292     2.980     92.391       se     .021     .314     9.744       ev (%)     18.267     18.266     18.266       FG/R24       MET DAILY     Rep 1     .402     GROSS COMMUNITY     Rep 1     1.129       METABOLISM     Bap 2	PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	. 165	2,429	75.298		
mean     .292     2.980     92.391       se     .021     .314     9.744       ev (%)     18.267     18.266     18.266       FG/R24       MET DAILY     Rep 1     .402     GROSS COMMUNITY     Rep 1     1.129       MET DAILY     Rep 1     .402     PRODUCTION(     Pop 2		Rep 3	. 203	2,995	92.833		
mean         .292         2.980         92.391           se         .021         .314         9.744           cv (%)         18.267         18.266         18.266           g 02/m2.da         I         PG/R24           NET DAILY         Rep 1         .402         I GROSS COMMUNITY         Rep 1         1.129           METABOLISM         Bap 2		III F					
se         .021         .314         9.744           ev (%)         18.267         18.266         18.266           g 02/m2.da         /         PG/R24           NET DAILY         Rep 1         .402         GROSS COMMUNITY         Rep 1         1.129           METABOLISM         Bap 2		mean	. 292	2.960	92.39 i		
cv (%)     18.267     18.266       g 02/m2.da             NET DAILY     Rep 1     .402       METABOLISM     Bap 2		se	.021	.314	9.744		
g 02/m2.da / PG/R24 NET DAILY Rep 1 .402 / GROSS COMMUNITY Rep 1 1.129 METABOLISM Rep 2 - 202 / PRODUCTION/ Rep 2 192		ev (%)	18.267	18.266	18.266		
NET DAILY Rep 1 .402   GROSS COMMUNITY Rep 1 1.129			g 02/m2.da	ļ	PG/R24		
METABOLISM Bop 2 - 202   PROBUCTION/ Pop 2 - 202	NET DAILY	Ben 1	.402	CBOSS COMMUNITY Be	n 1 1.129		
	METABOLISM	Bep 2	- 293	PROBUCTION/ Be	p 2		
Rep 3 .652 24 FR RESPIRATION Rep 3 1.278		Rep 3	.652	24 FR RESPIRATION Re	n 3 1.278		
mean .254 i mean 1.100		mean	.254	i me	an 1.100		
se .283 se .112		se	. 283	l s	e .112		
ev (%) 192.76 ev (%) 17.690		cv (%)	192.76	i ev	(%) 17.690		

Table A-1 (con't).Estimates of Community Metabolism (g 02/m2), Augusta Creek, Michigan.24 July 1975 (light), 25 July 1975 (dark), NAGEL SITE, STANDARD RUN

.

		g 02/m2.hr	g O2/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
NET COMMUNITY	Rep 1	.061	.576	17.293
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	. 133	1.257	37.705
	Rep 3	.046	. 430	12.899
	mean	. 080	.754	22.633
	se	. 027	.255	7.642
بی بی بن بن 7- سر من کار بن <sup>ر</sup> 7- سر من فر ما	ev (%)	58.486	58.486	58.486
		g 02.'m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
COMMUNITY	Rep 1	.020	.470	14.112
<b>RESPIRATION</b>	Rep 2	. 025	.610	18.288
	Rep 3	.011	.252	7.560
	mean	.019	. 444	13.320
	se	. 994	. 104	3.122
	cv (%)	40.598	40.598	40.598
		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g C2/m2.mo
GROSS COMMUNITY	Rep 1	.081	.762	22.859
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	. 158	1.497	44.906
	<b>Кер</b> З	.056	. 529	15.876
	mean	.098	.929	27.878
	se	.031	. 292	8.749
	ev (%)	54.360 	54.360	54.360 
		g 02/m2.da		PG/R24
NET DAILY	Rep 1	. 29 1	GROSS COMMUNITY Rep 1	1.619
METABOLISM	Rep 2	.887	PRODUCTION/ Rep 2	2.456
	<b>Кер З</b>	.277	24 HR RESPIRATION Rep 3	2.100
	mean	. 483	mean	2.058
	se	.201	se	.242
	ev (%)	71.763	I cv (%)	20.392

Table A-1 (con't). Estimates of Community Metabolism (g O2/m2), Augusta Creek, Michigan. 26 November 1974 (light), 27 November 1974 (dark), KELLOGG FOREST, STANDARD RUN

		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
NET COMMUNITY PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 1 Rep 2 Rep 3		.346 .426	 9.682 11.938
	mean se cv (%)	.038 .004 14.759	386 .040 14.759	10.810 1.128 14.758
		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
COMMUNITY RESPIRATION	Rep 1 Rep 2 Rep 3	.013 .014 .013	.302 .338 .317	8.467 9.475 8.870
	mean se cv (%)	.013 .000 5.676	.319 .010 5.677	8.938 .293 5.677
		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
GROSS COMMUNITY PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 1 Rep 2 Rep 3	.048 .055		13.709 15.708
	mean se cv (%)	.052 .003 9.611	.525 .036 9.611	14.708 1.000 9.611
		g 02/m2.da		PG/R24
NET DAILY METABOLISM	Rep 1 Rep 2 Rep 3	. 151 . 244	GROSS COMMUNITY Rep 1 PRODUCTION/ Rep 2 24 HR RESPIRATION Rep 3	1.447 1.771
	mean se cv (%)	. 198 .047 33.263	mean Se Cv (%)	1.609 .162 14.241

Table A-1 (con't). Estimates of Community Metabolism (g 02/m2), Augusta Creek, Michigan. 06 February 1975 (light), 05 February 1975 (dark), KELLOGG FOREST, STANDARD RUN

		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
NET COMMUNITY	Rep 1	.087	1.265	39.205
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	. 107	1.555	48.208
	Rep 3	.077	1.114	34.524
	mean	. 090	1.311	40.646
	se	.009	. 130	4.015
	cv (%)	17.110	17.119	17.110
		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
COMMUNITY	Rep 1	.047	1.135	35.191
RESPIRATION	Rep 2	. 937	.881	27.305
	Rep 3	. 020	. 487	15.103
	mean	. 035	.834	25,866
	se	. 908	. 188	5.843
	ev (%)	39.128	39.128	39.128
		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
GROSS COMMUNITY	Rep 1	. 134	1.951	60.496
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	. 144	2.068	64.727
	Rep 3	.097	1.408	43.662
	mean	. 125	1.816	56.295
	se	.014	.208	6.434
	ev (%)	19.795	19.795	19.795
		g 02/m2.da	!	PG/R24
NET DAILY	Rep 1	.816	GROSS COMMUNITY Rep 1	1.719
METABOLISM	Rep 2	1.207	PRODUCTION/ Rep 2	2.371
	Rep 3	.921	24 HR RESPIRATION Rep 3	2.891
	mean	.982	i mean	2.327
	se	. 117	se	.339
	ev (%)	20.612	cv(7)	25.232

Table A-1 (con't).Estimates of Community Metabolism (g 02/m2), Augusta Creek, Michigan.13 May 1975 (light), 14 May 1975 (dark), KELLOGG FOREST, STANDARD RUN

		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
NET COMMUNITY	Rep 1	.079	1.150	35.665
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	. 116	1.694	52.502
	Rep 3	. 073	1,063	32.949
	mean	. 089	. 1.302	40.372
	se	.014	. 197	6.115
	cv (%)	26.236	26.236	26.236
		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
<b>COMMUNITY</b>	Rep 1	.077	1.843	57.139
RESPIRATION	Rep 2	. 927	.660	20.460
	Rep 3	.073	1.740	53.940
	mean	.059	1.414	43.846
	se	.016	.378	11.730
	cv (%)	46.335	46.335	46.335
· · · ·		g 02/m2.hr	g 02/m2.da	g 02/m2.mo
GROSS COMMUNITY	Rep 1	. 156	2.272	70.425
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	. 144	2.095	64.948
	Rep 3	. 145	2.121	65.763
	mean	. 148	2.163	67.045
	se	.004	.055	1.706
	ev (%)	4.497	4.497	4.40.
		g 02/m2.da	1	PG/R24
NET DAILY	Rep 1	. 429	GROSS COMMUNITY Rep 1	1.233
METABOLISM	Rep 2	1.435	PRODUCTION/ Rep 2	3.174
	Rep 3	.381	24 HR RESPIRATION Rep 3	1.219
	mean	.748	, I mean	1.875
	se	.344	se	.650
	CV (%)	79.033	cv (%)	39.989

Table A-1 (con't). Estimates of Community Metabolism (g 02/m2), Augusta Creek, Michigan. 28 July 1975 (light), 29 July 1975 (dark), KELLOGG FOREST, STANDARD RUN

	g	AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g 02/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g 02/mo.g AFDW
NET COMMUNITY	Rep 1	517.20	000	000	
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	423.19	000	000	005
	Rep 3	379.30	000	000	005
	mean	439.87	000	000	005
	8ê	40.682	. 000	.000	. 000
	cv (%)	16.019	16.294	16.294	16.294
	e	; AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g O2/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g O2/mo.g AFDW
COMMUNITY	Rep 1	517.20	. 000	. 001	.016
RESPIRATION	Rep 2	423.10	. 000	.001	.034
	Rep 3	379.30	. 000	.001	.039
	mean	439.87	. 000	.001	.030
	se	40.682	.000	. 000	.007
	ev (%)	16.019	39.833	39.833	39.833
	E	; AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g O2/hr.g AFDW	g 02/da.g AFDW	g 02/mo.g AFDW
GROSS COMMUNITY	Rep 1	517.20	. 000	. 000	.003
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	423.10	.000	.000	.008
	Rep 3	379.30	.000	.000	.010
	mean	439.87	. 000	. 000	.007
	se	40.682	. 000	. 000	.002
	cv (%)	16.019 	57.222	57.222	57.222
		g O2/da.g AFDW	!		PG/R24
NET DAILY	Rep 1	000	GROSS CO	MMUNITY Repl	. 157
METABOLISM	Rep 2	001	I PRODUC	TION/ Rep 2	. 235
	Rep 3	001	I 24 HR RES	PIRATION Rep 3	.265
	mean	001	F I	mean	.219
	se	.009	1	se	.032
	cv (%)	34.619	I	cv (%)	25.656

.

Table A-2.Estimates of Community Metabolism/g AFDW Detritus, Angusta Creek, Michigan.15 January 1975 (light), 16 January 1975 (dark), SMITH SITE, STANDARD RUN

		g AFDW	DETRITUS/m2	g 02/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g O2/mo.g AFDW
NET COMMUNITY	Rep 1		86.630	090		036
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2		426.30	000	000	005
	Rep 3		247.10	000	001	018
	mean		253.34	000	001	019
	se		98.104	.000	. 000	.009
	cv (%)		67.071	80.967	80.967	80.967
		g AFDW	DETRITUS/m2	g 02/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g O2/mo.g AFDW
COMMUNITY	Rep 1		86.630	.000	.006	. 176
RESPIRATION	Rep 2		426.30	.000	.002	.049
	Rep 3		247.10	.000	.001	.026
	mean		253.34	.000	. 093	. 084
	se		98.104	.000	. 002	.047
	ev (%)		67.071	96.035	96.035	96.035
		g AFDW	DETRITUS/m2	g 02/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g O2/mo.g AFDW
GROSS COMMUNITY	Rep 1		86.630	.000	. 002	.072
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2		426.30	. 000	.001	.026
	<b>Вер</b> З		247.10	000	000	002
	mean		253.34	.000	.001	.032
	se (T)		98.104	.000	.091	.022
						110.40
		(	g O2/da.g AFDW	ł		PG/R24
NET DAILY	Rep 1	-	003	GROSS CON	MMUNITY Rep 1	.411
METABOLISM	Rep 2		001	PRODUCT	TION/ Rep 2	.523
	Rep 3		001	24 HR RESI	PIRATION Rep 3	063
	mean		002		mean	.290
	se		.001	1	se	. 180
	CV (%)		86.978	t I	ev (%)	197.13

Table A-2 (con't).Estimates of Community Metabolism/g AFDW Detritus, Augusta Creek, Michigan.20 May 1975 (light), 21 May 1975 (dark), SMITH SITE, STANDARD RUN

	g	AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g 02/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g O2/mo.g AFDW
NET COMMUNITY	Rep 1	497.30	000	001	018
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	286.10	000	001	019
	Rep 3	355.80	000	001	020
	mean	379.80	000	001	019
	se	62.195	. 000	.000	.001
	cv (%)	28.363	4.762	4.763	4.763
	e	AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g O2/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g O2/mo.g AFDW
COMMUNITY	Rep 1	497.50	.000	.001	.041
RESPIRATION	Rep 2	286.10	.000	. 00 1	.041
	Rep 3	355.80	. 000	. 902	. 049
	mean	379.80	. 000	.001	.044
	se	62.195	. 000	.000	.003
	ev (%)	28.363	10.484	10.484	10.484
	e	g AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g O2/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g O2/mo.g AFDW
GROSS COMMUNITY	Rep 1	497.50	. 000	. 000	. 008
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	286.10	. 000	.000	
	Rep 3	355.80	. 000	.000	.011
	mean	379.80	. 000	.000	.008
	se	62.195	.000	.000	.001
	cv (%)	28.363	26.226	26.226	26.226
		g O2/da.g AFDW	!		PG/R24
NET DAILY	Rep 1	001	GROSS CON	MMUNITY Rep 1	. 189
METABOLISM	Rep 2	001	I PRODUCT	TION/ Rep 2	. 16 1
	Rep 3	001	1 24 HR RESI	PIRATION Rep 3	.222
			•		
	mean	001	I	mean	. 191
	mean	001 .009	l t	mean se	. 191 . 018

Table A-2 (con't).Estimates of Community Metabolism/g AFDW Detritus, Augusta Creek, Michigan.17 July 1975.(light), 18 July 1975 (dark), SMITH SITE, STANDARD RUN

	g A	FDW DETRITUS/m2	g O2/hr.g AFDW	g 02/da.g AFDW	g O2/mo.g AFDW
NET COMMUNITY PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 1 Rep 2	253.60 243.60	. 000 . 000	.000 .000	.010 .010
	mean se cv (%)	248.60 5.000 2.844	.000 .000 2.844	.000 .000 2.844	.010 .000 2.845
	g A	FDW DETRITUS/m2	g O2/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g O2/mo.g AFDW
COMMUNITY RESPIRATION	Rep 1 Rep 2	253.60 243.60	.000	.002 .004	. 073 . 114
	mean se cv (%)	248.60 5.000 2.844	.000 .000 30.463	.003 .001 30.463	.093 .020 30.463
	g /	FDW DETRITUS/m2	g O2/hr.g AFDW	g 02/da.g AFDW	g 02/mo.g AFDW
GROSS COMMUNITY PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 1 Rep 2	253.60 243.60	. 000 . 000 . 000	.002 .003	.054 .079
	mean se cv (%)	248.60 5.000 2.844	.000 .000 26.199	.002 .000 26.199	.066 .012 26.199
		g O2/da.g AFDW			PG/R24
NET DAILY METABOLISM	Rep 1 Rep 2	001 001	GROSS CO PRODUC	MMUNITY Rep 1 TION/ Rep 2 PIBATION	.738 .693
	mean se cv (%)	00 1 . 000 40 . 935		mean se cv (%)	.715 .022 4.438

Table A-2.Estimates of Community Metabolism/g AFDW Detritus, Augusta Creek, Michigan.02August 1973 (light), 01August 1973 (dark), BAVENUE, STANDARD RUN

	g	AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g 02/hr.g AFDW	g 02/da.g AFDW	g 02/mo.g AFDW
NET COMMUNITY RA	Rep 1	260.80	000	000	006
PRODUCTIVITY RA	Rep 2	270.00	000	001	019
	mean	265.40	000	000	013
	se	4.600	.000	.000	.006
	cv (%)	2.451	71.037	71.037	71.036
	8	AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g O2/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g 02/mo.g AFDW
COMMUNITY	Rep 1	260.80	. 000	.002	.052
RESPIRATION	Rep 2	270.00	. 000	.003	
me	mean	265.40	.000	.002	.069
s	se	4.600	.000	.001	.016
cv	cv (%)	2.451	33.917	33.917	33.917
	g	AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g O2/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g 02/mo.g AFDW
GROSS COMMUNITY	Rep 1	260.80	. 000	.001	.023
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	270.00	. 000	.001	.028
c	mean	265.40	.000	.001	.025
	se	4.600	.000	.000	.003
	cv (%)	2.451	15.314	15.314	15.314
		g O2/da.g AFDW	1		PG/R24
NET DAILY METABOLISM	Rep 1 Rep 2	001 002	GROSS COM PRODUCT	MUNITY Rep 1 [ION/ Rep 2 PIRATION	. 433 . 330
	mean se cv (%)	001 .000 44.808		mean se cv (%)	.382 .052 19.091

•

Table A-2 (con't). Estimates of Community Metabolism/g AFDW Detritus, Augusta Creek, Michigan. 29 August 1973 (light), 30 August 1973 (dark), B AVENUE, STANDARD RUN

	8	AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g 02/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g O2/mo.g AFDW
NET COMMUNITY PRODUCTIVITY c	Rep 1 Rep 2	331.50 99.250	000 000	000 002	012 051
	mean • se cv (%)	215.37 116.12 76.251	000 .000 87.557	001 .001 87.557	~.031 .019 87.557
	8	AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g O2/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g O2/mo.g AFDW
COMMUNITY RESPIRATION	Rep 1 Rep 2	331.50 99.250	. 000 . 090	.002 .009	.070 .284
	mean se cv (%)	215.37 116.12 76.251	.000 .000 85.452	.006 .004 85.452	. 177 . 107 85. 452
	E	; AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g O2/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g O2/mo.g AFDW
GROSS COMMUNITY PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 1 Rep 2	331.50 99.250	. 000 . 000	. 001 . 003	. 023 . 09 1
	mean se cv (%)	215.37 116.12 76.251	.000 .000 84.300	.002 .001 84.300	. 057 . 034 84 . 300
		g O2/da.g AFDW	1		PG/R24
NET DAILY METABOLISM	Rep 1 Rep 2		GROSS CON PRODUCT 24 HR RESI	MUNITY Rep 1 FION⁄ Rep 2 PIRATION	. 328 . 320
	mean se cv (%)	004 .002 85.999		mean se cv (%)	.324 .004 1.788

Table A-2 (con't).Estimates of Community Metabolism/g AFDW Detritus, Augusta Creek, Michigan.27 September 1973 (light), 26 September 1973 (dark), B AVENUE, STANDARD RUN

	g A	FDW DETRITUS/m2	g O2/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g O2/mo.g AFDW
NET COMMUNITY I	Rep 1	140.00	-,000	000	
PRODUCTIVITY I	Rep 2	244.20	-,000	000	
	mean	192.10	000	000	008
	Se	52.100	.000	.000	.003
	CV (%)	38.355	59.028	59.028	59.028
	g A	FDW DETRITUS/m2	g 02/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g O2/mo.g AFDW
COMMUNITY	Rep 1	140.00	. 000	.003	. 077
RESPIRATION	Rep 2	244.20	. 000	.001	. 040
	mean	192.10	.000	.002	.058
	Se	52.100	.000	.001	.018
	CV (%)	38.355	44.259	44.259	44.259
	g A	FDW DETRITUS/m2	g O2/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g O2/mo.g AFDW
GROSS COMMUNITY	Rep 1	140.00	.000	.001	.021
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	244.20	.000		.012
	mean	192.10	.000	.001	.017
	Se	52.100	.000	.000	.004
	cv (%)	38.355	37.001	37.001	37.001
		g O2/da.g AFDW	!		PC/R24
NET DAILY METABOLISM	Rep 1 Rep 2	002 001	GROSS COM PRODUCT 24 HR RESP	MUNITY Rep 1 FION/ Rep 2 PIRATION	.273 .306
	mean se cv (%)	001 .000 47.160		mean se cv (%)	.289 .016 7.891

Table A-2 (con't). Estimates of Community Metabolism/g AFDW Detritus, Augusta Creek, Michigan. 05 November 1973 (light), 06 November 1973 (dark), B AVENUE, STANDARD RUN

.

g	AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g 02/hr.g AFDW	g 02/da.g AFDW	g O2/mo.g AFDW
Rep 1 Rep 2	193.20 304.40	000 000	001 000	028 003
mean	248.80	000	000	015
se ev (%)	31.604	.000	111.53	111.53
g	AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g 02/hr.g AFDW	g 02/da.g AFDW	g O2/mo.g AFDW
Rep 1 Rep 2	193.20 304.40	. 000	.001 .001	.043 .022
mean	248.80	.000	.001	.032
se cv (%)	55.600 31.604	.000 46.029	.000 46.029	.010 46.029
g	AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g 02/hr.g AFDW	g 02/da.g AFDW	g O2/mo.g AFDW
Rep 1 Rep 2	193.20 304.40	000 .000	000 .000	011 .005
mean	248.80	000	000	003
se cv (%)	55.600 31.604	.000 368.30	.000 368.30	.008 368.30
<u></u>	g O2/da.g AFDW			PG/R24
Rep 1	002	GROSS COL	MMUNITY Rep 1	265
Rep 2	001	I PRODUCT	FION/ Rep 2 PIRATION	.231
mean	001		mean	017
se	.001	1	se	.248
	Rep 1 Rep 2 mean se ev (%)	$\begin{array}{c} g \ AFDW \ DETRITUS/m2 \\ \hline Rep 1 & 193.29 \\ Rep 2 & 304.40 \\ \hline mean & 248.80 \\ se & 55.600 \\ ev (7) & 31.604 \\ \hline \\ \hline \\ \hline \\ g \ AFDW \ DETRITUS/m2 \\ \hline \\ \hline \\ Rep 1 & 193.20 \\ Rep 2 & 304.40 \\ \hline \\ \hline \\ rean & 248.80 \\ se & 55.600 \\ ev (7) & 31.604 \\ \hline \\ \hline \\ \hline \\ \hline \\ \hline \\ \hline \\ Rep 1 & 193.20 \\ Rep 2 & 304.40 \\ \hline \\ \hline \\ \hline \\ Rep 1 & 193.20 \\ Rep 2 & 304.40 \\ \hline \\ $	g AFDW DETRITUS/m2       g 02/hr.g AFDW         Rep 1       193.20      000         Rep 2       304.40      000         mean       248.80      000         se       55.600       .000         cv (%)       31.604       111.53         g AFDW DETRITUS/m2       g 02/hr.g AFDW         Rep 1       193.20       .000         mean       248.80       .000         se       55.600       .000         g AFDW DETRITUS/m2       g 02/hr.g AFDW         g AFDW DETRITUS/m2       g 02/hr.g AFDW         g AFDW DETRITUS/m2       g 02/hr.g AFDW         Rep 1       193.20      000         mean       248.80       .000         se       55.600       .000 <td>g AFDW DETRITUS/m2         g 02/hr.g AFDW         g 02/da.g AFDW           Rep 1         193.20        000        001           Rep 2         304.40        000        000           mean         248.80        000        000           se         55.600         .000         .000           ev (73)         31.604         111.53         111.53           g AFDW DETRITUS/m2         g 02/hr.g AFDW         g 02/da.g AFDW           Rep 1         193.20         .000         .001           Rep 2         304.40         .000         .001           mean         248.80         .000         .001           mean         248.80         .000         .001           se         55.600         .000         .001           g AFDW DETRITUS/m2         g 02/hr.g AFDW         g 02/da.g AFDW           g AFDW DETRITUS/m2         g 02/hr.g AFDW         g 02/da.g AFDW           cv (73)         31.604         46.023         46.023           g AFDW DETRITUS/m2         g 02/hr.g AFDW         g 02/da.g AFDW           g 02/da.g AFDW        000         .000         .000           g 02/da.g AFDW         .0000         .000         .000</td>	g AFDW DETRITUS/m2         g 02/hr.g AFDW         g 02/da.g AFDW           Rep 1         193.20        000        001           Rep 2         304.40        000        000           mean         248.80        000        000           se         55.600         .000         .000           ev (73)         31.604         111.53         111.53           g AFDW DETRITUS/m2         g 02/hr.g AFDW         g 02/da.g AFDW           Rep 1         193.20         .000         .001           Rep 2         304.40         .000         .001           mean         248.80         .000         .001           mean         248.80         .000         .001           se         55.600         .000         .001           g AFDW DETRITUS/m2         g 02/hr.g AFDW         g 02/da.g AFDW           g AFDW DETRITUS/m2         g 02/hr.g AFDW         g 02/da.g AFDW           cv (73)         31.604         46.023         46.023           g AFDW DETRITUS/m2         g 02/hr.g AFDW         g 02/da.g AFDW           g 02/da.g AFDW        000         .000         .000           g 02/da.g AFDW         .0000         .000         .000

.

#### Table A-2 (con't). Estimates of Community Metabolism/g AFDW Detritus, Augusta Creek, Michigan. 11 December 1973 (light), 12 December 1973 (dark), B AVENUE, STANDARD RUN
	g	AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g 02/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g 02/mo.g AFDW
NET COMMUNITY PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 1 Rep 2	217.50 267.70	.000	. 000 . 000	.000
	mean se cv (%)	242.60 25.100 14.632	.000 .000 141.42	.000 .000 141.42	.000 .000 141.42
	g	AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g 02/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g O2/mo.g AFDW
COMMUNITY RESPIRATION	Rep 1 Rep 2	217.50 267.70	. 000 . 000	. 001 . 001	.037 .034
	mean se cv (%)	242.60 25.100 14.632	.000 .000 4.914	.001 .000 4.913	.036 .001 4.913
	g	AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g 02/hr.g AFDW	g 02/da.g AFDW	g O2/mo.g AFDW
GROSS COMMUNITY PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 1 Rep 2	217.50 267.70	.000	.000	.015 .014
	mean se cv (%)	242.60 25.100 14.632	.000 .000 6.209	.000 .000 6.209	.015 .001 6.209
		g 02/da.g AFDW	!		PG/R24
NET DAILY METABOLISM	Rep 1 Rep 2	001 001	GROSS CON PRODUCT	MUNITY Rep 1 FION⁄ Rep 2 FIRATION	.411 .403
	mean se cv (%)	001 .000 4.002		mean se cv (%)	.407 .004 1.393

Table A-2 (con't). Estimates of Community Metabolism/g AFDW Detritus, Augusta Creek, Michigan. 23 January 1974 (light), 22 January 1974 (dark), B AVENUE, STANDARD RUN

.

 $\checkmark$ 

	g	AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g O2/hr.g AFDW	g 02/da.g AFDW	g O2/mo.g AFDW
NET COMMUNITY PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 1 Rep 2	115.00 316.40	000 .000	000	014 .003
	mean se cv (%)	215.70 100.70 66.023	000 .000 209.43	600 .000 209.43	006 .008 209.43
	g	AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g 02/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g 02/mo.g AFDW
COMMUNITY RESPIRATION	Rep 1 Rep 2	113.00 316.40	. 000	.002	.072
	mean se cv (%)	215.70 100.70 66.023	.000	.002	.072
	g	AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g O2/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g 02/mo.g AFDW
CROSS COMMUNITY PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 1 Rep 2	1 15 . 99 3 16 . 49	.000	. 601	.020
	mean se cv (%)	215.70 100.70 66.023	.000	. 00 1	. 020
		g O2/da.g AFDW	1		PG/R24
NET DAILY METABOLISM	Rep 1 Rep 2	- 002	GROSS CON PRODUCT	MUNITY Rep 1 FION/ Rep 2 FIGATION	.283
	mean se cv (%)	• • • • • • • • • • • • •		mean se cv (%)	.283

Table A-2 (con't). Estimates of Community Metabolism/g AFDW Detritus, Augusta Creek, Michigan. 05 March 1974 (light), 04 March 1974 (dark), B AVENUE, STANDARD RUN

	g A	FDW DETRITUS/m2	g 02/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g 02/mo.g AFDW
NET COMMUNITY	Rep 1	228.30	000	000	010
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	412.30	000	000	011
	mean	320.30	000	000	011
	se	92.000	.000	.000	.000
	cv (7)	40.621	3.589	3.588	3.589
	g A	FDW DETRITUS/m2	g O2/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g O2/mo.g AFDW
COMMUNITY	Rep 1	228.30	. 000	. 003	.078
RESPIRATION	Rep 2	412.30	. 000	. 002	.046
	mean	320.30	.000	.002	.062
	se	92.000	.000	.001	.016
	cv (%)	40.621	35.763	35.763	35.763
	g /	AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g 02/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g O2/mo.g AFDW
GROSS COMMUNITY	Rep 1	228.30	.000	.001	.032
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	412.30	.000	.000	.014
	mean	320.30	.000	.001	. 023
	se	92.000	.000	.000	. 009
	cv (%)	40.621	53.631	53.631	53. 63 1
		g 02/da.g AFDW	1		PG/R24
NET DAILY METABOLISM	Rep 1 Rep 2	002 001	GROSS COM PRODUCT 24 HR RESP	MUNITY Rep 1 NON/ Rep 2 NATION	.413 .311
	mean se cv (%)	001 .000 25.048		mean se cv (%)	,362 ,051 19,768

Table A-2 (con't). Estimates of Community Metabolism/g AFDW Detritus, Augusta Creek, Michigan. 09 April 1974 (light), 10 April 1974 (dark), B AVENUE, STANDARD RUN

	i	g AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g 02/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g O2/mo.g AFDW
NET COMMUNITY	Rep 1	322.80	. 000	. 000	.002
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	230.80	. 000	. 001	.028
	mean	276.80	.000	.000	.015
	se	46.000	.000	.000	.013
	cv (%)	23.502	125.62	125.62	125.62
		g AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g 02/hr.g AFDW	g 02/da.g AFDW	g O2/mo.g AFDW
COMMUNITY	Rep 1	322.80	. 000	.092	.057
RESPIRATION	Rep 2	230.80	. 000	.092	.055
	Méan	276.80	.000	.002	.056
	Se	46.000	.000	.000	.001
	cv (%)	23.502	2.850	2.849	2.850
		g AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g O2/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g O2/mo.g AFDW
GROSS COMMUNITY	Rep 1	322.80	.000	.001	.037
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	230.80		.002	.062
	mean	276.80	. 900	.002	.049
	se	46.000	. 990	.000	.013
	cv (%)	23.502	36 . 496	36.406	36.406
		g O2/da.g AFDW	l t		PG/R24
NET DAILY METABOLISM	Rep 1 Rep 2	001 .000	GROSS CON PRODUCT	TAUNITY Rep 1 FION/ Rep 2 FIRATION	.638 1.124
	mean se cv (%)	000 .000 280.40		mean se cv (%)	. 881 . 243 39. 050

## Table A-2 (con't). Estimates of Community Metabolism/g AFDW Detritus, Augusta Creek, Michigan. 15 May 1974 (light), 16 May 1974 (dark), B AVENUE, STANDARD RUN

		g AFD₩	DETRITUS/m2	g U2/hr.g AFDW	g U2/da.g AFDW	g U2/mo.g AFDW
NET COMMUNITY	Rep 1		623.90	000	000	004
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2		639.40	.000	. 000	.003
	Rep 3		512.70	000	000	002
	mean		592.00	000	000	001
	se		39.902	.000	.000	.002
	ev (%)		11.674	297.57	297.57	297.57
		g AFDW	DETRITUS/m2	g 02/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g O2/mo.g AFBW
COMMUNITY	Rep 1	، سا نظر وی دید رب دند	623.90	. 000	.001	.024
RESPIRATION	Rep 2		639.40	.000	.001	. 025
	Rep 3		512.70	. 000	.001	.035
	mean		592.00	. 000	.001	. 028
	se		39.902	. 909	. 000	. 003
	ev (%)		11.074	20.275	20.275	20.275
		g AFDW	DETR1TUS/m2	g O2/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g O2/mo.g AFDW
GROSS COMMUNITY	Rep 1		623.90	. 000	.000	. 007
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2		639.40	. 000	.000	.014
	Rep 3		512.70	. 000	.000	.014
	mean		592.00	.000	.000	.012
	se (7)		39.902	.000	.000	.002
	ev (%)			02.100	52.407	JZ . 70(
			g O2/da.g AFDW	1		PG/R24
NET DAILY	Rep 1		001	GROSS COL	MUNITY Rep 1	.304
METABOLISM	Rep 2		000	PRODUCT	TION/ Rep 2	. 562
	Rep 3		001	1 24 HR RESI	PIRATION Rep 3	. 396
	mean		001	i i	mean	.421
	se		.000	1	se	.0(0
	CV (%)		30.339	I	CV (7)	91.146

## Table A-2 (con't). Estimates of Community Metabolism/g AFDW Detritus, Augusta Creek, Michigan. 17 October 1974 (light), 18 October 1974 (dark), B AVENUE, STANDARD RUN

		g AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g 02/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g 02/mo.g AFDW
NET COMMUNITY	Rep 1	166.90	000	000	002
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	88,639	000	000	012
	Rep 3	275.40	000	000	001
	mean	176.98	000	000	005
	se	54.151	.000	. 000	.004
	cv (%)	52.997	120.52	120.52	120.52
		g AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g 02/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g O2/mo.g AFDW
COMMUNITY	Rep 1	166.90	. 000	001	019
RESPIBATION	Rep 2	88.639		. 994	. 128
	Bep 3	275.40	. 666	. 00 1	. 927
	mean	176.98	.000	. 002	.058
	se	54.151	.000	. 00 1	.035
	cv (%)	52.997	104.38	104.38	104.38
		g AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g 02/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g 02/mo.g AFDW
GROSS COMMUNITY	Rep 1	166.90	. 090	. 000	. 096
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	88.630	.000	.001	.037
	Rep 3	275.40	.000	.000	.009
	mean	176.98	. 009	.001	.017
	se	54.151	.000	.000	.010
	cv (%)	52.997	99.879	99.879	99.879
		g O2/da.g AFDW	·		PG/R24
NET DAILY	Rep 1	909	CROSS COL	MMINITY Ben 1	.288
METABOLISM	Rep 2	003	PRODUCT	TION/ Rep 2	.290
	Rep 3	001	24 HR RES	PIRATION Rep 3	. 340
	mean	001	l l	mean	. 306
	se	.001	1	se	.017
	cv (%)	106.34	1	cv (%)	9.704

Table A-2 (con't). Estimates of Community Metabolism/g AFDW Detritus, Augusta Creek, Michigan. 09 January 1975 (light), 08 January 1975 (dark), B AVENUE, STANDARD RUN

	g	AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g 02/hr.g AFDW	g 02/da.g AFDW	g 02/mo.g AFDW
NET COMMUNITY	Rep 1	135.89	. 000	. 00 1	. 045
PRODUCTIVITY	Ben 2	115.90	666	- 000	669
	Bep 3	183 20	900	001	. 025
	hep U	100.20	.000		
	mean	144.97		.001	.020
	se	19.961	.000	.001	.016
	cv (%)	23.849	133.42	133.42	133.42
	£	AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g O2/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g O2/mo.g AFDW
COMMUNITY	Ben 1	135.80	.000	. 005	. 169
RESPIRATION	Ben 2	115.90		. 005	. 135
	Ben 3	183.20	. 000	. 003	.087
	imp o	100120			
	mean	144.97	.000	.004	. 127
	se	19.961	.000	.001	.021
	cv (%)	23.849	29.101	29.101	29.101
	 g	AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g O2/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g O2/mo.g AFDW
GROSS COMMUNITY	Ben 1	135.80	.099	. 004	. 134
PRODUCTIVITY	Bep 2	115.90	.000	.002	.967
	Rep 3	183.20	.000	.002	.073
	mean	144.97	.000	. 003	. 09 1
	se	19.961	.000	.001	.021
	cv (%)	23.849	40.494	40.494	40.494
		g O2/da.g AFDW	 [ 1		PG/R24
NET DAILY	Rep I	001	GROSS CO	MMUNITY Rep 1	.838
METABOLISM	Rep 2	002	PRODUC	TION/ Rep 2	.494
	Rep 3	000	24 HR RES	PIRATION Rep 3	.841
	mean	001	1	mean	.725
	se	.091	1	se	. 115
	ev (%)	79.824	l	cv (%)	27.53 t

Table A-2 (con't). Estimates of Community Metabolism/g AFDW Detritus, Augusta Creek, Michigan. 16 April 1975 (light), 17 April 1975 (dark), B AVENUE, STANDARD RUN

	1	g AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g O2/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g O2/mo.g AFDW
NET COMMUNITY	Rep 1	367.20	000	000	001
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	248.10	.000	. 000	.002
	Rep 3	375.30	000	000	001
	mean	330,20	.000	. 000	.000
	se	41.116	. 000	.000	.001
	cv (%)	21.567	2796.1	2796.1	2796.1
		g AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g 02/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g O2/mo.g AFDW
<b>COMMUNITY</b>	Rep 1	367.20	. 000	. 003	.082
RESPIRATION	Rep 2	248.10	.000	. 004	.111
	Rep 3	375.30	.000	.002	.076
	mean	330.20	.000	.003	. 089
	se	41.116	.000	. 000	.011
	cv (%)	21.567	20.858	20.858	20.858
		g AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g 02/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g O2/mo.g AFDW
GROSS COMMUNITY	Rep 1	367.20	.000	. 002	. 050
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	<b>248.</b> 10	. 000	. 002	. 07 1
	Rep 3	375.30	.000	.001	.046
	mean	330.20	.000	.002	.056
	se	41.116	. 900	.000	.008
	ev (%)	21.567	23.941	23.941	23.941
		g 02/da.g AFDW	!		PC/R24
NET DAILY	Rep 1	001	GROSS CO	MMUNITY Rep 1	.616
METABOL ISM	Rep 2	001	PRODUC	TION/ Rep 2	. 644
	Rep 3	001	I 24 HR RES	PIRATION Rep 3	.610
	mean	001	i i	mean	. 623
	se	.000	1	se	.010
	cv (%)	15,709	I	cv (%)	2.868

Table A-2 (con't).Estimates of Community Metabolism/g AFDW Detritus, Augusta Creek, Michigan.14 July 1975 (light), 15 July 1975 (dark), B AVENUE, STANDARD RUN

	g AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g 02/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g 02/mo.g AFDW
Rep 1 Rep 2	263.10 173.60	. 000	.005	. 141 . 348
mean	218.35	. 001	.008	.244
se	44.750	.000	.003	. 104
CV (%)	28.984	09.990 	09.990	09.990
	g AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g O2/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g 02/mo.g AFDW
Rep 1	263.10	.000	.009	.280
Rep 2	173.60	. 00 1	.014	. 428
mean	218.35	. 090	.011	.354
se	44.750	.000	.002	.074
	g AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g O2/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g O2/mo.g AFDW
Rep 1	263.10	. 00 1	.008	.262
Rep 2	173.60	.002	.017	.534
mean	218.35	. 001	.013	. 398
se	44.750	.000	.004	. 136
ev (%)	28.989	46.248	46.240 	40.248
	g O2/da.g AFDW	t i		PG/R24
Rep 1	001	GROSS CON	MUNITY Rep 1	.937
Rep 2	.003	I PRODUCT	FION/ Rep 2 PIRATION	1.248
mean	.001		mean	1.092
se	.002	1	se	. 155
	Rep 1 Rep 2 mean se cv (%) Rep 1 Rep 2 mean se cv (%) Rep 1 Rep 2 mean se cv (%) Rep 1 Rep 2 mean se cv (%)	g AFDW DETRITUS/m2    Rep 1  263.10    Rep 2  173.60    mean  218.35    se  44.750    cv (%)  28.984    g AFDW DETRITUS/m2    Rep 1    Rep 2  173.60    mean  218.35    se  44.750    cv (%)  28.984    g AFDW DETRITUS/m2    Rep 1  263.10    mean  218.35    se  44.750    cv (%)  28.984    g AFDW DETRITUS/m2    Rep 1  263.10    mean  218.35    se  44.750    cv (%)  28.984    g 02/da.g AFDW    g 02/da.g AFDW   001    Rep 1 001    Rep 2  .903    mean  .001    se  .002	g AFDW DETRITUS/m2    g 02/hr.g AFDW      Rep 1    263.10    .000      Rep 2    173.60    .001      mean    218.35    .001      se    44.750    .000      cv (%)    28.984    59.990      g AFDW DETRITUS/m2    g 02/hr.g AFDW      Rep 1    263.10    .000      rev (%)    28.984    59.990      g AFDW DETRITUS/m2    g 02/hr.g AFDW      Rep 1    263.10    .000      mean    218.35    .000      se    44.750    .000      cv (%)    28.984    29.597      g 02/hr.g AFDW      Rep 1    263.10    .000      g 02/hr.g AFDW      Rep 1    263.10    .001      g 02/hr.g AFDW      Rep 1    263.10    .001      se    44.750    .001      se    44.750    .001      g 02/hr.g AFDW      g 02/hr.g AFDW      g 02/hr.g AFDW	g AFDW DETRITUS/m2    g 02/hr.g AFDW    g 02/da.g AFDW      Rep 1    263.10    .000    .000      mean    218.35    .001    .011      mean    218.35    .000    .003      se    44.750    .000    .003      cv (%)    28.984    59.990    59.990      g AFDW DETRITUS/m2    g 02/hr.g AFDW    g 02/da.g AFDW      Rep 1    263.10    .000    .003      Rep 2    173.60    .001    .014      mean    218.35    .000    .009      se    44.750    .000    .009      se    44.750    .000    .002      cv (%)    28.984    29.597    29.597      g 02/hr.g AFDW    g 02/hr.g AFDW    .002      se    .44.750    .000    .002      cv (%)    28.984    .001    .003      se    .44.750    .001    .001      se    .44.750    .001    .004      se    .44.750

Table A-2 (con't).Estimates of Community Metabolism/g AFDW Detritus, Augusta Creek, Michigan.30 October 1974 (light), 31 October 1974 (dark), UPPER 43, STANDARD RUN

	 g	AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g 02/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g O2/mo.g AFDW
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 1	189 10	.000	.001	. V27 021
FRODUCTIVITI	Rep 2	222 60	.000	001	623
	tiep o	320.00	.000	.001	.020
	mean	235.03	.000	. 00 1	.024
	se	35.489	. 000	.000	.002
	cv (%)	26.146	16.970	16.971	16.971
	g	AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g O2/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g O2/mo.g AFDW
COMMUNITY	Rep 1	301.40	.000	. 002	.053
RESPIRATION	Rep 2	189.19	.000	.001	.034
	Rep 3	223.60	.000	. 002	.062
	ma a 7	225 42	000	662	850
	20 mcatt	35,480	.000	. 002	.000
	cv (%)	26.146	29.088	29.088	29.088
	8	AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g 02/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g 02/mo.g AFDW
GROSS COMMUNITY	Rep 1	301.40	.000	. 002	.050
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	180.10	.000	.001	.035
	Rep 3	223.60	.000	. 002	.048
	mean	235.03	. 000	. 00 1	.044
	se	35.480	.000	. 000	.005
	cv (%)	26.146	19.046	19.046	19.046
		g 02/da.g AFDW	ļ		PG/R24
NET DAILY	Rep 1	~.000	GROSS CO	MMUNITY Rep 1	.948
METABOLISM	Rep 2	.000	I PRODUC	TION/ Rep 2	1.020
	Rep 3	000	1 24 HR RES	PIRATION Rep 3	.770
	mean	000	1 	mean	.912
	se	.000	I	se	.074
	cv (%)	143.23	l I	cv (%)	14.071

Table A-2 (con't),	Estimates of Community Metabolism/g AFDW Detritus, Augusta Creek, Michigan.
	21 January 1975 (light), 22 January 1975 (dark), UPPER 43, STANDARD RUN

	g	AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g 02/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g 02/mo.g AFDW
NET COMMUNITY	Rep 1	182.30	. 001	.019	.579
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	180.90	. 66 1	.009	.284
	Bon 3	174 10	000	007	202
	nep o	114.10	.000	.001	. 202
	mean	179.10	.001	.011	.355
	se	2.532	.000	.004	.114
	cv (%)	2.449	55.904	55.904	55.904
		s AFDW DETRITUS∕m2	g O2/hr.g AFDW	g 02/da.g AFDW	g O2/mo.g AFDW
COMMUNITY	Rep 1	182.30	.090	.012	.364
RESPIRATION	Rep 2	180.90	•.000	.009	.284
	Rep 3	174.10	.000	.011	.341
	mean	179.10	.000	.011	.330
	86	2.532	. 900	.001	.024
	cv (%)	2.449	12.538	12.538	12.538
	e	, AFDW DETRITUS∕m2	g 02/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g 02/mo.g AFDW
GROSS COMMUNITY	Rep 1	182.39	.002	. 026	.805
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	189.90	.001	.015	.461
	Rep 3	174.10	.001	.013	.414
	mean	179.10	. 00 1	.018	.560
	se	2.532	. 000	.004	. 123
	cv (%)	2.449	38.180	38.179	38.180
بهی هم <del>از</del> نه میشم باشد. با همیوری		g O2/da.g AFDW	   		PG/R24
NET DAILY	Rep 1	.014	GROSS COM	MUNITY Rep 1	2.212
METABOLISM	Rep 2	.006	PRODUCT	TION/ Rep 2	1.623
	Rep 3	.002	24 HR RESI	PIRATION Rep 3	1.214
	mean	. 907	I I	mean	1,683
	se	. 994	· · · ·	se	.290
	cv (%)	82.457	i	ev (%)	29.822

Table A-2 (con't).	Estimates of Community Metabolism/g AFDW Detritus, Augusta Creek, M	lichigan.
	27 May 1975 (light), 28 May 1975 (dark), UPPER 43, STANDARD RUN	-

	8	AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g O2/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g 02/mo.g AFDW
NET COMMUNITY	Rep 1	347.20	.000	.002	.059
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	376.60	.000	.004	. 134
	Rep 3	260.30	•••••	• • • • •	• • • • • •
	mean	328.03	.000	. 003	.097
	se	34.914	.000	.001	.038
	cv (%)	18.435	55.539	55.539	55.539
	8	; AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g O2/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g O2/mo.g AFDW
COMMUNITY	Rep 1	347.20	.000	. 006	. 181
RESPIRATION	Rep 2	376.60	.000	.007	. 202
Rep	Rep 3	260.30	.000	.012	.360
	mean	328.03	.000	.008	.248
	se	34.914	.000	.002	.057
	cv (%)	18.435	39.573	39.573	39.573
	e	s AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g 02/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g 02/mo.g AFDW
GROSS COMMUNITY	Rep 1	347.20	.000	. 006	. 171
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	376.60	. 00 l	.008	.259
	Rep 3	260.30	• • • • • •	* * * * * *	• • • • •
	mean	328.03	.000	. 007	.215
	se	34.914	.000	.001	.044
	ev (%)	18.435 	29.112	29.113	29.112
		g O2/da.g AFDW	1		PG/R24
NET DAILY	Rep 1	000	GROSS CON	MUNITY Rep 1	.941
METABOLISM	Rep 2	002	PRODUCT	TION/ Rep 2	1.284
	Rep 3	• • • • • •	24 HR RESI	PIRATION Rep 3	• • • • • •
	mean	.001	1	mean	1.112
					170
	se		1	se	+ 16

Table A-2 (con't).Estimates of Community Metabolism/g AFDW Detritus, Augusta Creek, Michigan.21 July 1975 (light), 22 July 1975 (dark), UPPER 43, STANDARD RUN

	g A	FDW DETRITUS/m2	g O2/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g 02/mo.g AFDW
NET COMMUNITY	Rep 1	130.70	.002	.020	.600
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	198.90	.001	.016	.492
	mean	164.80	.001	.018	.546
	se	34.100	.000	.002	.054
	cv (%)	29.262	13.959	13.959	13.959
	g /	AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g O2/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g 02/mo.g AFDW
COMMUNITY	Rep 1	130.70	. 00 1	.021	.622
RESPIRATION	Rep 2	198.90	. 00 1	.013	.386
	mean	164.80	.001	.017	.504
	se	34.100	.000	.004	.118
	cv (%)	29.262	33.121	33.121	33.121
	g /	AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g 02/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g 02/mo.g AFDW
CROSS COMMUNITY	Rep 1	130.70	.002	.031	.938
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	198.90		.023	.702
	mean	164.80	.002	. 027	.820
	se	34.100	.000	. 004	.118
	cv (%)	29.262	20.361	20. 36 1	20.361
		g 02/da.g AFDW	1		PG/R24
NET DAILY METABOLISM	Rep 1 Rep 2	.011 .011	GROSS COM PRODUCT	MUNITY Rep 1 NON/ Rep 2 NATION	1.506 1.816
	mean se cv (%)	.011 .000 .000		mean se cv (%)	1.661 .155 13.207

Table A-2 (con't).Estimates of Community Metabolism/g AFDW Detritus, Augusta Creek, Michigan.04 September 1973 (light), 05 September 1973 (dark), NAGEL SITE, STANDARD RUN

	g	AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g 02/hr.g AFDW	g 02/da.g AFDW	g 02/mo.g AFDW
NET COMMUNITY PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 1 Rep 2	227.60 219.90	.001 .001	.006 .007	. 182 . 202
	mean se cv (%)	223.75 3.851 2.434	. 001 .000 7.420	.006 .000 7.420	. 192 . 010 7. 420
	£	AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g 02/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g O2/mo.g AFDW
COMMUNITY RESPIRATION	Rep 1 Rep 2	227.60 219.90	.000	.005	. 167 . 200
	mean se cv (%)	223.75 3.851 2.434	.000 .000 12.665	.006 .001 12.665	.184 .016 12.666
	g	AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g 02/hr.g AFDW	g 02/da.g AFDW	g O2/mo.g AFDW
GROSS COMMUNITY PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 1 Rep 2	227.60 219.90	.001	.008	.263 .299
	mean se cv (%)	223.75 3.851 2.434	.001 .000 9.083	.009 .001 9.083	.281 .018 9.083
		g 02/da.g AFDW	1		PG/R24
NET DAILY METABOLISM	Rep 1 Rep 2	. 003 . 003	GROSS CON PRODUCT	MUNITY Rep 1 FION⁄ Rep 2 PIRATION	1.570 1.492
	mean se cv (%)	.003 .000 2.292		mean se cv (%)	1.531 .039 3.603

Table A-2 (con't). Estimates of Community Metabolism/g AFDW Detritus, Augusta Creek, Michigan. 04 October 1973 (light), 03 October 1973 (dark), NAGEL SITE, STANDARD RUN

	g	AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g O2/hr.g AFDW	g 02/da.g AFDW	g 02/mo.g AFDW
NET COMMUNITY	Rep 1	334.40	.001	.007	.224
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	238.50	.001	.010	.297
	mean	286.45	.001	.009	.261
	se	47.950	.000	.001	.036
	cv (%)	23.673	19.729	19.728	19.728
-	g	AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g 02/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g 02/mo.g AFDW
COMMUNITY	Rep 1	334.40	. 000	. 006	. 169
RESPIRATION	Rep 2	238.50	. 000	. 006	. 185
	mean	286.45	.000	.006	.177
	se	47.950	.000	.000	.008
	cv (%)	23.673	6.290	6.290	6.290
	g	AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g O2/hr.g AFDW	g 02/da.g AFDW	g 02/mo.g AFDW
GROSS COMMUNITY	Rep 1	334.40	.001	.010	.294
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	238.50		.012	.373
	mean	286.45	. 001	.011	.334
	se	47.950	. 000	.001	.040
	cv (%)	23.673	16 . 786	16.785	16.785
		g O2/da.g AFDW	1		PG/R24
NET DAILY METABOLISM	Rep 1 Rep 2	. 004 . 006	CROSS CO PRODUC 24 HB BESI	MMUNITY Rep 1 TION/ Rep 2 PIRATION	1.741 2.021
	mean se cv (%)	.005 .001 28.613		mean se cv (%)	1.881 .140 10.552

Table A-2 (con't).	Estimates of	Community Me	tabolism/g A	FDW Detritus,	Augusta Cree	k, Michigan.
	12 November	1973 (light),	13 November	· 1973 (dark),	NAGEL SITE,	STANDARD RUN

		g AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g O2/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g O2/mo.g AFDW
NET COMMUNITY	Rep 1	341.90	.000	.004	.114
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	253.50	.000	. 003	.084
	mean	297.70	.000	.003	. 099
	se	44.200	.000	.000	.015
و بروی می این این این می این این این این این این این این این ای	cv (%)	20.997 	21.405 	21.405	21.405 
		g AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g O2/hr.g AFDW	g 02/da.g AFDW	g O2/mo.g AFDW
<b>COMMUNITY</b>	Rep 1	341.90	.000	. 003	.079
RESPIRATION	Rep 2	253.50	.000	.092	.072
₩ 5 CV	mean	297.70	.000	.002	.076
	se	44.200	.000	. 000	.004
	ev (%)	20.997	7.028	7.029	7.029
		g AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g 02/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g 02/mo.g AFDW
GROSS COMMUNITY	Rep 1	341.90	.001	. 005	. 145
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	253.50	.000	.004	.112
	mean	297.70	.000	. 004	. 128
	se	44.200	.000	.001	.016
- مرب میں میں ایک میں میں خود دون <sub>ک</sub> رور کے مثلہ خان کا 199	ev (%)	20.997	18.185 	18.185	18.185
		g O2/da.g AFDW	!		PG/R24
NET DAILY	Rep 1	. 002	I GROSS CON	MMUNITY Rep 1	1.820
METABOLISM	Rep 2	. 00 1	I PRODUCT	FION/ Rep 2 PIRATION	1.552
	mean	. 002		mean	1.686
	se	.000	1	se	. 134
	ev (7)	34.293	1	cv (%)	11.226

Table A-2 (con't). Estimates of Community Metabolism/g AFDW Detritus, Augusta Creek, Michigan. 18 December 1973 (light), 19 December 1973 (dark), NAGEL SITE, STANDARD RUN

	g A	FDW DETRITUS/m2	g 02/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g 02/mo.g AFDW
NET COMMUNITY PRODUCTIVITY	 Rep 1 Rep 2	219.10 379.90	.000 .000	. 003 . 001	.081 .022
	mean se cv (%)	299.50 80.400 37.964	.000 .000 81.852	.002 .001 81.852	.051 .030 81.852
	g A	FDW DETRITUS/m2	g 02/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g O2/mo.g AFDW
COMMUNITY RESPIRATION	Rep 1 Rep 2	219.10 379.90	.000	.002 .002	.071 .054
	mean se cv (%)	299.50 80.400 37.964	.000 .000 19.720	.002 .000 19.720	.063 .009 19.720
	g A	FDW DETRITUS/m2	g 02/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g 02/mo.g AFDW
GROSS COMMUNITY PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 1 Rep 2	219.10 379.90	.000	.004 .001	.111 .044
	mean se cv (%)	299.50 80.400 37.964	.000 .000 60.975	.002 .001 60.975	.077 .033 60.975
		g O2/da.g AFDW	1		PG/R24
NET DAILY METABOLISM	Rep 1 Rep 2	. 00 1 000	GROSS CON PRODUCT	MUNITY Rep 1 [ION/ Rep 2 PIRATION	1.553 .817
	mean se cv (%)	.000 .001 235.53		mean se cv (%)	1.185 .368 43.898

Table A-2 (con't). Estimates of Community Metabolism/g AFDW Detritus, Augusta Creek, Michigan. 31 January 1974 (light), 01 February 1974 (dark), NAGEL SITE, STANDARD RUN

		g AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g 02/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g O2/mo.g AFDW
NET COMMUNITY	Rep 1	223.10	. 00 1	.010	.298
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	497.70	. 000	.003	.106
	mean	360.40	.001	.007	.202
	Se	137.30	.000	.003	.096
	cv (%)	53.877	67.029	67.029	67.029
		g AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g 02/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g 02/mo.g AFDW
COMMUNITY	Rep 1	223.10	.000	.008	.245
RESPIRATION	Rep 2	497.70	.000	.003	.080
	mean	360.40	.000	.005	.163
	se	137.30	.000	.003	.082
	cv (%)	53.877	71.570	71.570	71.570
		g AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g 02/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g 02/mo.g AFDW
GROSS COMMUNITY	Rep 1	223.10	.001	. 0 14	.421
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	497.70		. 005	.147
	mean	360.40	.001	.009	.284
	se	137.30	.000	.004	.137
	cv (%)	53.877	68.342	68.342	68.342
		g O2/da.g AFDW	1		PG/R24
NET DAILY METABOLISM	Rep 1 Rep 2	. 096 . 092	GROSS CON PRODUCT	MUNITY Rep 1 FION/ Rep 2 FIRATION	1.721 1.829
:	mean se cv (%)	.004 .002 64.024		mean se cv (%)	1.775 .054 4.274

÷.

Table A-2 (con't). Estimates of Community Metabolism/g AFDW Detritus, Augusta Creek, Michigan. 20 March 1974 (light), 21 March 1974 (dark), NAGEL SITE, STANDARD RUN

	g /	AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g 02/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g 02/mo.g AFDW
NET COMMUNITY	Rep 1	377.30	.000	. 006	. 169
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	265.40	.000	. 004	. 127
	mean	321.35	.000	.005	. 148
	se	55.950	.000	.001	. 021
	cv (%)	24.623	20.046	20.046	20. 045
	g	AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g 02/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g O2/mo.g AFDW
COMMUNITY	Rep 1	377.30	.000	.008	.242
RESPIRATION	Rep 2	265.40		.014	.411
	mean	321.35	.000	.011	.326
	se	55.950	.000	.003	.085
	cv (%)	24.623	36.669	36.669	36.669
	g	AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g 02/hr.g AFDW	g 02/da.g AFDW	g O2/mo.g AFDW
GROSS COMMUNITY	Rep 1	377.30	. 00 1	.010	.307
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	263.40	. 00 1	.012	.362
	mean	321.35	.001	.011	.334
	se	55.950	.000	.001	.027
	cv (%)	24.623	11.590	11.590	11.590
		g O2/da.g AFDW	!		PG/R24
NET DAILY METABOLISM	Rep 1 Rep 2	.002 002	I CROSS CON I PRODUCT I 24 HB BESI	MUNITY Repl FION/ Rep2 FIRATION	1.270 .889
	mean se cv (%)	.000 .002 997.60		mean se cv (%)	1.075 .195 25.625

Table A-2 (con't).Estimates of Community Metabolism/g AFDW Detritus, Augusta Creek, Michigan.23 April 1974 (light), 22 April 1974 (dark), NAGEL SITE, STANDARD RUN

.

.

		g AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g 02/hr.g AFDW	g 02/da.g AFDW	g O2/mo.g AFDW
NET COMMUNITY	Rep 1	377.30	. 00 1	.009	.275
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	265.40	. 000	.006	.194
	mean	321.35	.001	.008	.234
	se	55.950	.6∶0	.001	.040
	cv (%)	24.623	24.455	24.455	24.455
		g AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g 02/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g O2/mo.g AFDW
COMMUNITY	Rep 1	377.30	. 000	.008	.242
RESPIRATION	Rep 2	265.40	. 001	.014	.411
	mean	321.35	.000	.011	. 326
	se	55.950	.000	.003	. 085
	cv (%)	24.623	36.669	36.669	36 . 669
		g AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g 02/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g 02/mo.g AFDW
GROSS COMMUNITY	Rep 1	377.30	. 00 1	.014	. 413
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	265.40	. 00 1	.014	. 429
	méan	321.35	.001	.014	.421
	se	55.950	.000	.000	.008
	cv (%)	24.623	2.699	2.699	2.699
		g O2/da.g AFDW	!		PG/R24
NET DAILY METABOLISM	Rep 1 Rep 2	. 006 . 001	GROSS CON PRODUCT	MUNITY Rep 1 FION/ Rep 2 FIRATION	1.710 1.045
	mean se cv (%)	.003 .003 113.82		mean se cv (%)	1.378 .333 34.139

Table A-2 (con't). Estimates of Community Metabolism/g AFDW Detritus, Augusta Creek, Michigan. 24 April 1974 (light), 22 April 1974 (dark), NAGEL SITE, STANDARD RUN

	g A	AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g 02/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g O2/mo.g AFDW
NET COMMUNITY PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 1 Rep 2	155.10 306.40	.001 .001	. 012 . 008	 .383 .263
	mean se cv (%)	230.75 75.650 46.364	.001 .000 26.243	.010 .002 26.243	.323 .060 26.243
	g	AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g 02/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g 02/mo.g AFDW
COMMUNITY RESPIRATION	Rep 1 Rep 2	155.10 306.40	.001	.018 .009	.543 .290
	mean se cv (%)	230.75 75.650 46.364	.001 .000 42.973	.013 .004 42.973	.417 .127 42.973
	g	AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g 02/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g O2/mo.g AFDW
GROSS COMMUNITY PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 1 Rep 2	155.10 306.40	.002	.023 .014	.723 .444
	mean se cv (%)	230.75 75.650 46.364	.001 .000 33.713	.019 .004 33.713	.583 .139 33.713
		g O2/da.g AFDW	}		PG/R24
NET DAILY METABOLISM	Rep 1 Rep 2	. 006 . 005	GROSS COL PRODUCT	MUNITY Rep 1 FION⁄ Rep 2 PIRATION	1.329
	mean se cv (%)	.005 .000 10.548		mean Se cv (%)	1.430 .101 9.986

Table A-2 (con't).Estimates of Community Metabolism/g AFDW Detritus, Augusta Creek, Michigan.29 May 1974 (light), 29 May 1974 (dark), NAGEL SITE, DIEL RUN

-

\_\_\_\_\_

NET COMMUNITY PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 1 mean se	g AFDW DETRITUS/m2 lep 1 283.00 mean 283.00		g 02/hr.g AFDW .000 .000	g 02/da.g AFDW .007 .007	g 02/mo.g AFDW .223 .223
COMMUNITY RESPIRATION	Rep 1 mean se cv (%)	g AFDW	DETRITUS/m2 283.00 283.00	g 02/hr.g AFDW .001 .001	g 02/da.g AFDW .013 .013	g 02/mo.g AFDW .402 .402
GROSS COMMUNITY PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 1 mean se cv (%)	g AFDW	DETRITUS/m2 283.00 283.00	g 02/hr.g AFDW .001 .001	g 02/da.g AFDW .015 .015	g 02/mo.g AFDW .478 .478
NET DAILY METABOLISM	Rep 1 mean se cv (%)		g 02/da.g AFDW .002 .002	I CROSS COM I PRODUCT I 24 HR RESP	MUNITY Rep 1 ION/ IRATION mean se cv (%)	PG/R24 1.188 1.188

## Table A-2 (con't). Estimates of Community Metabolism/g AFDW Detritus, Augusta Creek, Michigan. 01 July 1974 (light), 01 July 1974 (dark), NAGEL SITE, DIEL RUN

	g	AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g 02/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g O2/mo.g AFDW	
NET COMMUNITY	Rep 1	252.69	.001	.014	.440	
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	162.90	.001	.014	. 444	
	Rep 3	290.70	• • • • • •	• • • • • •	• • • • • •	
	mean	235.40	.001	.014	. 442	
·	se	37.882	, 000	.000	.002	
	cv (%)	27.873	. 649	. 649	. 647	
	g	AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g 02/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g 02/mo.g AFDW	
COMMUN 1 TY	Rep 1	252.60	. 000	.009	.276	
RESPIRATION	Rep 2	162.90		• • • • • •	• • • • • •	
	Rep 3	290.70	. 999	.007	. 232	
	mean	235.40	. 999	.008	.254	
	se	37.882	.000	.001	. 622	
	ev (%)	27.873	12.127	12.127	12.127	
	g	AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g 02/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g 02/mo.g AFDW	
GROSS COMMUNITY	Repl	252.60	.001	.019	.604	
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	162.90		• • • • • •	• • • • • •	
	Rep 3	290.70	••••		• • • • • •	
	mean	235.40	.001	.019	.604	
	se	37.882				
	cv (%)	27.873				
		g O2/da.g AFDW	!		PG/R24	
NET DAILY	Rep 1	.011	I GBOSS COL	MUNITY Rep 1	2,189	
METABOLISM	Rep 2		PRODUCT	TION/ Rep 2		
	Rep 3	*****	24 HR RESI	PIRATION Rep 3	• • • • •	
	mean	• • • • •	1	mean	2.189	
	se	• • • • •	I	se		
	cv (%)	••••	ł	ev (%)		

Table A-2 (con't).Estimates of Community Metabolism/g AFDW Detritus, Augusta Creek, Michigan.05 August 1974 (light), 05 August 1974 (dark), NAGEL SITE, STANDARD RUN

		g AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g 02/hr.g AFDW	g 02/da.g AFDW	g O2/mo.g AFDW
NET COMMUNITY	Rep 1	312.30	. 000	.004	.118
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	482.30	.000	.004	. 124
	Rep 3	370.10	.000	.002	.068
	mean	388.23	. 000	. 093	. 193
	86	49,905	. 000	.001	.018
	cv (%)	22.265	29.404	29.404	29.404
		g AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g 02/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g 02/mo.g AFDW
COMMUNITY	Rep 1	312.30	.000	. 002	.071
RESPIRATION	Rep 2	482.30	.000	. 003	.098
	Rep 3	370.10	.000	.002	.053
	mean	388.23	.000	.002	.074
	se	49.905	.000	. 000	.013
	cv (%)	22.265	29.996	29.996	29.996
		g AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g O2/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g O2/mo.g AFBW
GROSS COMMUNITY	Rep 1	312.30	.000	. 005	. 148
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	482.30	.001	. 006	. 165
	Rep 3	370.10	.000	. 003	. 091
	mean	388.23	.000	. 004	. 135
	se	49.905	.000	. 00 1	.022
	cv (%)	22.265	28.800	28.800	28.800
		g O2/da.g AFDW	1		PG/R24
NET DAILY	Rep 1	. 003	GROSS CO	MMUNITY Rep 1	2.068
METABOLISM	Rep 2	. 002	I PRODUC	TION/ Rep 2	1.688
	Rep 3	.001	1 24 HR RES	PIRATION Rep 3	1.701
	mean	.002	1	mean	1.819
	se	. 009	1	se	. 125
	cv (%)	33.681	I	cv (%)	11.868

Table A-2 (con't). Estimates of Community Metabolism/g AFDW Detritus, Augusta Creek, Michigan. 06 November 1974 (light), 07 November 1974 (dark), NAGEL SITE, STANDARD RUN

		g AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g 02/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g O2/mo.g AFDW
NET COMMUNITY	Rep 1	384.00	.000	.001	.017
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	408.60	.000	.001	.024
	Rep 3	387.20	. 000	. 001	. 022
	mean .	393,33		.001	. 02 1
	se	7.789	. 000	.000	.002
	cv (%)	3.430	16.855	16.855	16.855
		g AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g 02/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g O2/mo.g AFDW
COMMUNITY	Rep 1	384.00	. 000	.002	. 060
RESPIRATION	Rep 2	408.80	. 000	.001	.042
	Rep 3	387.20	. 000	.002	.047
	mean	393.33	. 000	.002	. 050
	se	7.789	.000	.000	. 005
	cv (%)	3.430	18.972	18.972	18.973
		g AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g 02/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g O2/mo.g AFDW
GROSS COMMUNITY	Rep 1	384.00	. 000	. 001	.042
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	408.80	. 600	.001	.041
	Rep 3	387.20	. 000	.001	.042
	mean	393.33	.000	.001	.042
	se	7.789	.000	.000	. 000
	cv (%)	3.430	. 890	.890	. 889
		g O2/da.g AFDW	1		PG/R24
NET DAILY	Rep 1	00 1	GROSS CO	MMUNITY Rep 1	.697
METABOLISM	Rep 2	000	I PRODUC	TION/ Rep 2	.982
	Rep 3	000	24 HR RES	PIRATION Rep 3	.888
	mean	000		mean	.856
	se	.000	[	se	.084
	cv (%)	112.35	1	cv (%)	16.946

Table A-2 (con't). Estimates of Community Metabolism/g AFDW Detritus, Augusta Creek, Michigan. 30 January 1975 (light), 31 January 1975 (dark), NAGEL SITE, STANDARD RUN

-

•

		g AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g 02/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g 02/mo.g AFDW
NET COMMUNITY	Ben 1	212.90		. 995	. 150
PRODUCTIVITY	Ben 2	332.79	.000	. 002	.055
	Ben 3	431.20	. 000	. 004	133
	Imp U	101.40	.000		1100
	mean	325.69	.000	. 004	.113
	se	63.118	.000	.001	.029
	cv (%)	33.576	45.084	45.084	45.084
		g AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g O2/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g'02/mo.g AFDW
COMMUNITY	Rep 1	212.90	.000	.005	. 144
RESPIRATION	Rep 2	332.70	.000	.002	.056
	Rep 3	431.20	.000	.004	.117
	-				
	mean	325.60	.000	. 003	. 106
	se	63.118	.000	.001	.026
	ev (%)	33.576	42.626	42.626	42.626
	<u>.</u>	g AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g O2/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g 02/mo.g AFDW
GROSS COMMUNITY	Ben 1	212.90	. 00 1	. 008	- 236
PRODUCTIVITY	Ben 2	332.70	. 999	.003	. 088
	Bep 3	431.20	. 000	.007	.203
	10000	101120			
	mean	325.60	. 000	. 006	. 176
	se	63.118	.000	.001	.045
	cv (%)	33.576	44.119	44.119	44.119
		g O2/da.g AFDW	1		PG/R24
NET DAILY	Ben 1	. 903	CROSS CON	MMINITY Ben 1	1.641
METABOLISM	Rep 2		PRODUCT	CION/ Rep 2	1.577
	Rep 3	.003	24 HR BESI	PIRATION Rep 3	1.734
	mean	.002	I	mean	1.651
	se	. 00 1	1	se	.046
	cv (%)	46.942	I	ev (%)	4.782
		ي		مراحد کار از است میں بروان میں	

Table A-2 (con't).	Estimates of Community Metabolism/g AFDW Detritus, Augusta Creek, Mi	chigan.
	06 May 1975 (light), 07 May 1975 (dark), NAGEL SITE, STANDARD RUN	

		; AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g 02/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g 02/mo.g AFDW
NET COMMUNITY	Ben 1	193.90	. 601	. 808	. 257
PRODUCTIVITY	Ben 2	288 80	000	. 003	. 681
1	Bap 2	212 50	000	005	154
	web o	515,30	.000	. 000	. 107
	mean	265.40	.000	.005	. 164
	se	36.454	.000	.002	.051
	cv (%)	23.791	53.690	53.690	53.690
	(	s AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g O2/hr.g AFDW	g 02/da.g AFDW	g 02/mo.g AFDW
COMMUNITY	Rep 1	193.90	.001	.016	.498
RESPIRATION	Rep 2	288.80	.000	.009	.292
	Rep 3	313.50	.000	.007	.232
	mean	265.40	.000	.011	.341
	se	36.454	.000	. 003	.081
	cv (%)	23.791	41.006	41.006	41.006
		g AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g O2/hr.g AFDW	g 02/da.g AFDW	g O2/mo.g AFDW
GROSS COMMUNITY	Rep 1	193,90	. 901	.018	.562
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	288.89	.001	.008	.261
	Rep 3	313.50	. 00 1	.010	.296
	me a n	265 40	. 60 1	.012	. 373
	de	36 454	000	. 663	.895
	ev (%)	29 701	44 197	44 197	44 198
		g O2/da.g AFDW	1		PG/R24
NET DAILY	Rep 1	. 002	i GROSS COL	MMUNITY Rep.1	1.129
METABOLISM	Ben 2	- 001		FION/ Ben 2	. 893
	Ben 3	. 662	1 24 HB RESI	PIRATION Ben 3	1.278
	Incp U			THEFT OF THE POPULATION	112.0
	mean	. 00 1	l	mean	1.100
	se	. 00 1	F	se	. 112
	cv (%)	179.38	1	cv (%)	17.690
			-		

Table A-2 (con't). Estimates of Community Metabolism/g AFDW Detritus, Augusta Creek, Michigan. 24 July 1975 (light), 25 July 1975 (dark), NAGEL SITE, STANDARD RUN

t.

		g AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g 02/hr.g AFDW	g 02/da.g AFDW	g O2/mo.g AFDW
NET COMMUNITY	Ben 1	120.80	. 99 1	. 005	. 143
PRODUCTIVITY	Ben 2	270.10		.005	. 149
11020411111	Ben 3	253 50		002	.051
	nep o				
	mean	214.80	.000	.004	.111
	se	47.244	.000	.001	.030
	cv (%)	38.095	47.006	47.006	47.006
		g AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g O2/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g 02/mo.g AFDW
COMMUNITY	Ben 1	120.80	. 000	. 004	. 117
RESPIRATION	Rep 2	270.10	.000	.002	.968
	Rep 3	253.50	. 000	. 991	.030
		202000			
	mean	214.80	.000	.002	.071
	se	47.244	. 000	.001	. 025
	ev (%)	38.095	61.049	61.049	61.049
——————————————————————————————————————		g AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g 02/hr.g AFDW	g 02/da.g AFDW	g 02/mo.g AFDW
GROSS COMMUNITY	Ren 1	120.80	. 00 1	. 996	. 189
PRODUCTIVITY	Ben 2	279.19	. 00 1	.006	. 166
	Ben 3	253.50		.002	.063
	top v			••••=	
	mean	214.80	. 000	.005	. 139
	se	47.244	. 000	.001	.039
	cv (%)	38.095	48.383	48.383	48.383
<del></del>		g 02/da.g AFDW	   	مراکل کی پر دین کر کر جو سے ۲۰۱۰ میں میں کر ۲۰۱۰ میں میں میں در در اور میں	PG/R24
NET DAILY	Ben 1		i GBOSS CO	MMUNITY Ben 1	1.619
METABOLISM	Ben 2	. 003		TION/ Rep 2	2,456
1021.100.011	Ben 3		I 24 HR BES	PIRATION Ben 3	2.100
	web o	• • • • •		a martine and a	=
	mean	.002	t	mean	2.058
	se	.001	1	se	.242
	ev (%)	48.746	Ì	cv (%)	20.392
					والمتحد المناور ويرجع والمحرب والمرجو المرجو المحد المرجع والمرجع والمرجع والمرجع والمرجع والمرجع والمرجع والم

Table A-2 (con't). Estimates of Community Metabolism/g AFDW Detritus, Augusta Creek, Michigan. 26 November 1974 (light), 27 November 1974 (dark), KELLOGG FOREST, STANDARD RUN

.

.

		AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g O2/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g O2/mo.g AFDW
NET COMMUNITY PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 1 Rep 2 Rep 3	178.60 395.40	.000 .000	. 002 . 001	.054 .030
	mean se cv (%)	2 <b>83.</b> 00 108.40 53.40	.000 .000 40.242	.002 .000 40.243	.042 .012 40.243
	8	AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g O2/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g O2/mo.g AFDW
COMMUNITY RESPIRATION	Rep 1 Rep 2 Rep 3	.000 178.60 395.40	.000	.002 .001	.053 .022
	mean se cv (%)	191.33 114.32 103.49	.000 .000 57.363	.001 .001 57.363	.038 .015 57.363
	2	, AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g O2/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g O2/mo.g AFDW
GROSS COMMUNITY PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 1 Rep 2 Rep 3	.000 178.60 395.40	.000 .000	. 003 . 001	.077 .040
	mean se cv (%)	191.33 114.32 103.49	.000 .000 44.958	.002 .001 44.958	.058 .019 44.958
		g O2/da.g AFDW	}		PG/R24
NET DAILY METABOLISM	Rep 1 Rep 2 Rep 3	. 001 . 001	GROSS COI PRODUCT 24 HR RESI	MUNITY Rep 1 FION⁄ Rep 2 PIRATION Rep 3	1.447 1.771
	mean se cv (%)	.001 .000 . <b>999</b>	1	mean se cv (%)	1.609 .162 14.241

Table A-2 (con't). Estimates of Community Metabolism/g AFDW Detritus, Augusta Creek, Michigan. 06 February 1975 (light), 05 February 1975 (dark), KELLOGG FOREST, STANDARD RUN

		g AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g 02/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g 02/mo.g AFDW
NET COMMUNITY	Rep 1	335.80	.000	.004	. 117
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	379.60	. 000	.004	. 127
	Rep 3	351.00	. 000	.003	. 098
	mean	355.47	. 000	.004	.114
	se	12.839	. 000	.000	.008
·	cv (%)	6.256	12.724	12.724	12.724
		g AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g 02/hr.g AFDW	g 02/da.g AFDW	g O2/mo.g AFDW
COMMUNITY	Rep 1	335.80	. 000	.003	. 105
<b>RESPIRATION</b>	Rep 2	379.60	. 000	.002	.072
-	Rep 3	351.00	.000	.001	.043
	mean	355.47	. 000	.002	. 073
	se	12.839	. 000	.001	.018
	cv (%)	6.256	42.191	42.191	42.191
		g AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g 02/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g O2/mo.g AFDW
GROSS COMMUNITY	Rep 1	335.80	.000	. 006	. 180
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	379.60	. 000	.006	. 171
	Rep 3	351.00	. 000	.004	. 124
	mean	335.47	. 000	. 005	. 158
	se	12.839	.000	.001	.017
	cv (%)	6.256	18.821	18.821	18.821
		g 02/da.g AFDW	1		PG/R24
NET DAILY	Rep 1	. 002	GROSS CO	MMUNITY Repl	1.719
METABOLISM	Rep 2	.003	I PRODUC'	TION/ Rep 2	2.371
	Rep 3	.003	I 24 HR RES	PIRATION Rep 3	2.891
	mean	. 003		mean	2.327
	se	. 000	1	se	.339

Table A-2 (con't). Estimates of Community Metabolism/g AFDW Detritus, Augusta Creek, Michigan. 13 May 1975 (light), 14 May 1975 (dark), KELLOGG FOREST, STANDARD RUN

.

.

.

\_\_\_\_\_

		g AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g 02/hr.g AFDW	g 02/da.g AFDW	g O2/mo.g AFDW
NET COMMUNITY	Rep 1	246.30	.000	.005	. 145
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	293.10	.000	. 006	. 179
	Rep 3	278.40	.000	.004	. 1 18
	mean	272.60	.000	.005	. 147
	se	13.818	.000	.001	.018
	cv (%)	8.780	20.669	20.669	20.669
		g AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g 02/hr.g AFDW	g 02/da.g AFDW	g O2/mo.g AFDW
<b>COMMUNITY</b>	Rep 1	246.30	.000	. 007	.232
RESPIRATION	Rep 2	293.10	.000	.002	.070
	Rep 3	278.40	.000	. 006	. 194
	mean	272.60	.000	. 005	. 165
	se	13.818	.000	.002	.049
	ev (%)	8.780	51.327	51.327	51.327
		g AFDW DETRITUS/m2	g O2/hr.g AFDW	g O2/da.g AFDW	g O2/mo.g AFDW
GROSS COMMUNITY	Rep 1	246.30	.001	. 009	.286
PRODUCTIVITY	Rep 2	293.10	.000	.007	.222
	Rep 3	278.40	.001	. 008	.236
	mean	272.60	.001	.008	.248
	se	13.818	.000	.001	.019
	ev (%)	8.780	13.604	13.694	13.604
		g O2/da.g AFDW	!		PG/R24
NET DAILY	Rep 1	. 992	GROSS CO	MMUNITY Rep 1	1.233
METABOLISM	Rep 2	. 005	I PRODUC	TION/ Rep 2	3.174
	Rep 3	. 001	1 24 HR RES	PIRATION Rep 3	1.219
	mean	.003		mean	1.875
	se	.001	I	se	.650
	cv (%)	72.614	I	cv (%)	59.989

.

Table A-2 (con't).Estimates of Community Metabolism/g AFDW Detritus, Augusta Creek, Michigan.28 July 1975 (light), 29 July 1975 (dark), KELLOGG FOREST, STANDARD RUN

\_----

APPENDIX B

D. 4 00 00			(g 02/m2.hr)			(g 02/m2.da)			
DATES		NCP	CR .	GCP	I NCP	CŘ	GCP	NDM	PC/R24
					1				I
24 Oct. 1974 ()	ight) mean	023	. 035	612	1 - 250	946	197	- 710	1
25 Oct. 1974 (d	ark) se	. 005		004	1 055	.070	• 146	(19	1 .153
	Cv (!	0 38 200	9 970	60 400	1 30 300	.040	.044	.075	.053
	01 ()	00.000	2.010	00.400	1 30.300	9.0.0	00.400	18.178	00.068
15 Jan. 1975 ()	ight) mean	007	.017	010	- 066	469	60.2	- 210	
16 Jan. 1973 (d	ark) se		003	003	1 664	. 401	.072	010	.219
	cv (!	0 9.557	28 160	47 601	1 0 557	00 160	47 (01	.040	.032
	••••		20.100	261001	1 7.000	20.100	47.001	22.602	25.656
20 May 1975 (1)	ght) mean	007	.019	.012	- 162	460	191	- 270	1 900
<b>21 May 1975 (da</b>	rk) se	. 692	096	007	023	125	107		1 100
•	CV (5	39 875	50 066	100 00	1 90 975	ED 066	100 00	17 000	100
		., 0,.010	JU. 700	192.90	1 39.013	90.900	102.00	17.930	107.13
17 July 1975 (1	ight) mear	015	673	607	, – <b>J</b>	505	104	40.1	
18 July 1975 (d	ark) es		002		1	.000	. 104	431	. 191
	ar (*	04 400	06 06 7	.001	.032	- 683	.021	.063	.018
	ev ()	0 29.492	20.809	39.635	1 24.492	26.865	35.636	25.438	15.985

Table B-1. Summary of community metabolism estimates for SMITH SITE, Augusta Creek, Michigan.

				(g 02/m2.hr)			) (g 02/m2.da)				1	
		DATES		NCP	CR	GCP	I NCP	CŘ	GCP	NDM	PG/R24	
							!					
26 J	Jan.	1973 (lig	ht) mean	~.002	.011	.009	023	.274	.088	186	.322	
25 J	Jan.	1973 (dar	k) se				1				1	
		;	cv (%)				1				1	
07 J	June	1973 (lig	ht) mean	.010	. 029	039	.146	.701	. 590	111	.816	
06 J	June	1973 (dar	k) se	.007	. 003	.015	. 101	. 190	.221	.031	1 .094	
			ev (%)	97.456	38.261	52.965	97.456	38.261	52.965	39.797	1 16.361	
07 J	June	1973 (lig	ht) mean	.010	. 028	. 038	1 .146	.668	.569	099	.837	
07 J	June	1973 (dar	k) se	.097	.003	.010	1.101	.078	. 150	.072	.127	
			ev (%)	97.456	16.593	37.335	97.456	16.503	37.335	103.05	21.497	
05 J	July	1973 (lig	ht) mean	012	. 030	.018	1 175	.708	. 272	436	.326	
04 J	July	1973 (dar	k) se	.095	.009	.014	1 .069	.216	. 206	.010	1.191	
			cv (%)	55.711	43.145	106.76	55.711	43.146	106.76	3.376	1 <b>82.</b> 635	
<b>02</b> A	Aug.	1973 (lig	ht) mean	.006	.031	.037	i .082	.746	.531	216	.715	
01 A	Aug.	1973 (dar	k) se	.000	. 006	.006	1.000	. 146	.088	.058	1.022	
•			ev (%)	.009	27.739	23.442	1.000	27.739	23.442	38.313	1 <b>4.</b> 438	
<b>29</b> /	Aug.	1973 (lig	ht) mean	008	. 025	.016	110	. 590	.217	373	.382	
<b>30</b> A	Aug.	1973 (dar	k) se	.004	. 006	.092	1.057	. 151	. 027	. 124	1.052	
			ev (%)	<b>72.8</b> 53	36.218	17.702	1 72.653	36.218	17.732	47.001	19.091	
27 5	Sep.	1973 (lig	ht) mean	013	.036	.023	149	.858	.278	580	.324	
26 5	Sep.	1973 (dar	k) se	. 00 1	. 095	.002	1.018	. 083	.023	.059	.004	
			cv (%)	16.971	13.648	11.261	16.970	13.648	11.861	14.503	1 1.788	
<b>05</b> I	Nov.	1973 (lie	ht) mean	005	.014	.010	046	. 342	.099	243	.289	
06 I	Nov.	1973 (dar	k) se	.091	.001	.000	1 .008	.016	.001	.017	.016	
			ev (%)	23.311	6.431	1.459	23.311	6.451	1.457	9.680	1 7.891	
11 1	Dec.	1973 (lig	ht) mean	011	.010	001	102	.240	011	251	017	
1 <b>2</b> I	Dec.	1973 (dar	k) se	.008	.001	.097	1.070	.026	.060	.086	I .248	
			ev (%)	97.029	15.556	805.49	97.029	15.556	805.49	48.740	1 2111.9	
23.	Jan.	1974 (lig	ht) mean	. 090	.012	.012	.001	.278	.113	165	.407	
22 .	Jan.	1974 (dar	k) se	. 090	. 091	.001	1.001	.019	.007	.012	1.004	
			ev (%)	141.42	9.733	8.461	141.42	9.753	8.461	10.661	1.303	

Table B-2. Summary of community metabolism estimates for B AVENUE, Augusta Creek, Michigan.

				(g 02/m2.hr)			(g 02/m2.da)			
DATES		NCP	CR	GCP	I NCP	CŘ	GCP	NDM	I PG/R24	
				~	!				1	
5 Mar. 1974 (light)	mean	001	.011	. 007	012	.266	.075	.002	.283	
4 Mar. 1974 (dark)	se	.003			.039				1	
	cv (%)	464.67			464.67				1	
9 Apr. 1974 (light)	me o n	- 000	. 026	.017	1 - 114	.616	.222	394	.362	
$\theta$ Apr. 1974 (dork)	ae an	003	601	607	035	623	.623	046	1 .051	
o apro 1704 (dura)	ev (%)	43.589	5.238	14.601	43.689	5.238	14.601	16.407	1 19.768	
5 Max 1974 (limit)	<b>me o m</b>	663	621	029	l 1 115	504	421	- 083	   881	
6 May 1974 (light) $6$	mean	.090	.021	.027	1 607	604	040	124	1 943	
	cv (%)	119.80	26.264	13.430	119.80	26.264	13.430	228.58	39.050	
7 Oct. 1974 (light)	ime a rì	692	622	.020	019	. 529	. 223	305	421	
<b>8</b> Oct. 1974 (dark)	ee an	005	001	004	038	024	.042	.038	076	
	ev (%)	342.32	7.995	32.597	342.32	7.995	32.597	21.700	1 31.147	
9 Jan. 1975 (light)	mean	002	.010	. 608	019	.236	.072	164	1 .306	
8 Jan. 1975 (dark)	86	.001	.003	.092	.008	.076	.022	.054	1 .017	
	ev (%)	75.235	55.443	53.724	75,285	55.443	53.724	56.763	9.704	
6 Apr. 1975 (light)	mean	.008	.025	. 033	. 106	. 592	. 437	155	1.725	
7 Apr. 1975 (dark)	se	.095	.003	. 007	072	.065	. 100	.056	1.115	
	cv (%)	116.52	19.086	39.767	116.52	19.086	39.767	61.969	27.531	
4 July 1975 (light)	mean	000	. 039	.038	002	. 924	. 576	349	· .623	
15 July 1975 (dark)	se	. 691	.001	.001	1 .009	.025	.011	.017	.010	
	cv (%)	808.93	4.395	3.361	808.93	4.595	3.362	8.465	2.868	

.

.

Table B-2 (con't). Summary of community metabolism estimates for B AVENUE, Augusta Creek, Michigan.

	(g 02/m2.lur)			(g 02/m2.da)					
DATES		NCP	CR	GCP	I NCP	CŘ	GCP	NDM	I PG/R24
			`						l
30 Oct. 1974 (light)	mean	. 151	.099	.259	1 1.570	2.384	2.606	.222	1.092
31 Oct. 1974 (dark)	se	. 036	.000	.037	1.377	.011	.382	.371	. 155
	ev (%)	33.958	.641	20.712	33.958	. 640	20.712	236.25	20.085
21 Jan. 1975 (light)	mean	.020	.016	036	1.190	386	.344	042	· .912
22 Jan. 1970 (darg)	se cv (%)	.005 43.358	<b>43</b> .314	41.544	43.358	<b>43</b> .314	41.544	130.87	14.071
27 May 1975 (light) 28 May 1975 (dark)	mean se	. 138 . 046	. 079 . 006	.217	2.064	1.904	3.250	1.346	1.683 290
	ev (%)	57.615	12.741	49.008	57.615	12.741	40.008	83.693	1 29.822
21 July 1975 (light)	mean	. 077	. 104	. 171	1.145	2.502	2.528	.288	1.112
22 July 1975 (dark)	se	.033	.012	.042	1.488	.289	.618	.408	1 .172
	cv (%)	69.321	19.982	34.568	1 69.321	19.982	34.508	200.42	1 21.816

Table B-3. Summary of community metabolism estimates for UPPER 43, Augusta Creek, Michigan.

·······
				$(g \ 02/m2.hr)$		1	(g 02/	'm2.da)	m2.da)	
	DATES		NCP	CR .	GCP	I NCP	CR	GCP	NDM	PG/R24
08 Aug.	1973 (light)	mean	.284	. 093	.377	4.027	2.242	5.353	3,112	2.586
09 Aug.	1973 (dark)	se	.067	.021	.046	.950	.506	.650	1.157	1 .874
		cv (%)	33.361	31.948	17.180	33.361	31.949	17.181	52.573	47.819
04 Sep.	1973 (light)	mean	. 225	. 110	335	2.937	2.636	4.368	1.732	1 1 661
05 Sep.	1973 (dark)	se	.025	. 003	. 022	.324	.076	293	350	1 155
	•	cv (%)	15.623	4.035	9.175	15.623	4.055	9.175	29.315	13.207
04 Oct.	1973 (light)	rean	. 1 19	. 055	. 174	1 1.383	1 325	2 024	600	
03 Oct.	1973 (dark)	se	.004	.004	008	1 040	006	2.027 805	.077	1 1.001
		cv (%)	4.991	10.248	6.657	4.991	10.248	6.657	. 148	3.603
12 Nov.	1973 (light)	mean	.245	. 070	.315	1 2 431	1 676	9 194	1 440	
13 Nov.	1973 (dark)	se	.007	. 009	.016	1 060	200	0.124	4.440	1 1.001
		cv (%)	4. 0:39	17.513	7 027	1 4 020	17 519	7 007	.VƏZ	. 140
							16.010	(.021	ə.113	1 10.552
18 Dec.	1973 (light)	mean	. 107	.031	. 138	.976	.732	1.254	.521	1.686
IV Dec.	1973 (dark)	se	.031	.006	.037	.286	. 144	.341	. 197	1 .134
		ev (%)	41.470	27.821	38.448	41.470	27.620	38.448	53.369	11.226
31 Jan.	1974 (light)	rean	. 642	. 624	066	· <b>410</b>	692	<b>661</b>	070	
01 Feb.	1974 (dark)	se	.015	. 603	019	1 154	200. 270	199	.079	1.185
		cv (%)	51.967	18.953	26 023	1 51 961	10 052	- 1-2-2 96 0-29	.200	1 .308
					20.020	1	10.900	20.023	001.01	1 43.898
20 Mar.	1974 (light)	mean	. 159	.064	. 222	1.924	1.525	2.695	1 170	1 1 775
21 Mar.	1974 (dark)	se	. 018	.019	.028	1 .218	.236	.338	101	1 054
		ev (%)	16.050	21.920	17.729	16.050	21.920	17.729	12.262	4.274
23 Apr.	1974 (light)	mean	. 1 18	139	257	1 1 6 9 9	9 996	9 500	100	
22 Apr.	1974 (dark)	se	. 036	.012	074	1 500	0.000 700	0.027	. 190	1 1.070
-		cv (%)	43.592	12.616	13.221	43.592	12.616	13.221	. 620 458.77	1 25.625
24 100	1074 (1:		100			1				1
27 Apr.	1974 (light)	mean	. 183	. 139	.327	2.582	3.336	4.497	1.161	1.378
ca Apr.	17(9 (dars)	se	. 963	.012	.051	.870	. 298	.700	.997	1.333
		CV (7)	46.043	12.616	21.997	! <b>47.643</b>	12.616	21.997	121.43	34.139
29 May	1974 (light)	mean	. 150	. 116	.267	2.258	2.794	4.003	1.210	1.430
29 fiay	1974 (dar#)	se	.023	.093	.025	1.342	.074	. 339	.314	1.101
		cv (%)	21.425	3.766	13.724	1 21.425	3.767	13.724	36.714	1 9.986

Table B-4. Summary of community metabolism estimates for NAGEL SITE, Augusta Creek, Michigan.

.

. .

			(g 02/m2.h	 r)	 	(g 02/	m2.da)		1
DATES	NCP		CR	GCP	I NCP	CŘ	GCP	NDM	PG/R24
					I				·
01 July 1974 (light)	me a 11	. 133	. 153	. 286	2.032	3.672	4.362	. 690	1,188
01 July 1974 (dark)	se				1				1
-	ev (%)				1				1
05 Aug. 1974 (light)	mean	207	. 692	344	1 2.958	2.214	4.923	.011	1 2.189
<b>05</b> Aug. 1974 (dark)	se	.044	. 001	0.11	1 .626	.035	1.720	••	1
	cv (%)	<b>29</b> .911	2.224		29.911	2.223			1
06 Nov. 1974 (light)	me o 11	124	041	175	1 1.353	. 992	1.779	. 780	1 1.819
07 Nov. 1974 (dark)	Se	. 033	.012	. 045	.337	.291	.457	. 179	1 .125
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	ev (%)	43.164	50.811	44.700	43.164	50.811	44.700	39.773	11.868
30 Jan. 1975 (light)	mean	. 027	. 026	. 053	1 .268	. 629	.528	101	.856
31 Jan. 1975 (dark)	se	.093	.002	.001	.030	.059	.008	.065	.084
	cv (%)	19.525	16.385	2.605	19.524	16.385	2.604	111.58	16.946
<b>06 May 1975 (light)</b>	mean	.081	. 045	. 126	1 1.159	1.071	1.796	.724	1.651
07 May 1975 (dark)	se	. 026	.012	.038	1.371	. 300	.549	.249	I .046
	cv (%)	55.378	48.434	52.913	1 55.378	48.434	<b>52.</b> 913	59.568	4.782
<b>06 May 1975 (light)</b>	mean	017	. 096	012	249	. 134	170	304	-1.262
07 May 1975 (dark)	se				1				I
	cv (%)				1				1
24 July 1975 (light)	mean	, 089	.114	.292	1.307	2.726	2.980	.254	1.100
25 July 1975 (dark)	se	.019	.009	.021	1.275	. 223	.314	. 283	1.112
	cv (%)	36.387	14.173	18.267	1 36.387	14.173	18.266	192.76	17.690
					1				1

Table B-4 (con't). Summary of community metabolism estimates for NAGEL SITE, Augusta Creek, Michigan.

، عنہیں ہے جاتا ہے جاتا ہے جاتا ہے کہ اور بیٹ کا اور پیٹ کا اور پیٹ میں اور		(g 02/m2.1			(g 02/	m2.da)		1
DATES	NCP	CR .	GCP	I NCP	CR	GCP	NDM	I PG/R24
يتن ونه هه هه دي		'		!				
26 Nov. 1974 (light) mea:	n . 089	.019	. 098	.754	. 444	.929	. 485	2.058
27 Nov. 1974 (dark) se	. 027	. 004	.031	1 .255	. 104	.292	.201	.242
ev (	%) 58.436	40.598	54.360	58.486	40.598	54.360	71.763	20.392
<b>06</b> Feb. 1975 (light) mean	n .038	. 013	052	.386	.319	.525	_001	1 1.609
05 Feb. 1975 (dark) se	.004	. 000	.003	040	.010	.036		. 162
ev (	%) 14.759	5.676	9.611	14.759	5.677	9.611		14.241
13 May 1975 (light) mea	n .070	.035	. 125	1 1.311	.834	1.816	.982	2.327
14 May 1975 (dark) se	.009	.008	.014	1 . 130	. 188	.208	.117	.339
ev ()	7) 17.119	39.128	19.795	1 17.110	39.128	19.795	20.612	25.232
28 July 1975 (light) mea	n .089	.059	. 148	1.302	1.414	2.163	.748	1.875
29 July 1975 (dark) se	.014	.016	.004	. 197	.378	.055	.344	1.650
cv (	<b>%) 26.236</b>	46.335	4.407	26.236	46.235	4.407	79.533	59.989
ور این				 			ويتوجيك المرابع بيور التراب	1 

Table B-5. Summary of community metabolism estimates for KELLOGG FOREST, Augusta Creek, Michigan.

-----

\_\_\_\_

\_ ... \_ \_\_\_

Dates		AFDW G/M <sup>-2</sup>	$\frac{\text{NCP}}{\text{GO}_2/\text{G}^{-1}\text{D}^{-1}}$	CR G0 <sub>2</sub> /G <sup>-1</sup> D <sup>-1</sup>	GCP G0 <sub>2</sub> /G-1 <sub>D</sub> -1	$\frac{\text{NDM}}{\text{GO}_2/\text{G}^{-1}\text{D}^{-1}}$
24 Oct. 1974 (light) 25 Oct. 1974 (dark)	mean S.E. C.V. %	479.83 94.38 34.07	- 0.001 0.000 81.13	0.002 0.001 49.73	0.000	- 0.002 0.001 61.17
15 Jan. 1975 (light) 16 Jan. 1975 (dark)	mean S.E. C.V.%	439.87 40.68 16.01	0.000	0.001 0.000 39.83	0.000	- 0.001 0.000 34.62
20 May 1975 (light) 21 May 1975 (dark)	mean S.E. C.V.%	253.34 98.10 67.07	- 0.001 0.000 80.97	0.003 0.002 96.04	0.001 0.001 116.40	- 0.002 0.001 86.98
17 July 1975 (light) 18 July 1975 (dark)	mean S.E. C.V.%	379.80 62.20 28.36	- 0.001 0.000 4.76	0.001 0.000 10.48	0.000	- 0.001 0.000 7.085

Table B - 6. Summary of community metabolism estimates on a detrital AFDW basis for Smith Site, Augusta Creek, Michigan.

i

Dates	AFD G/M	<u>₩</u> 2	$GO_2/G^{-1}D^{-1}$	$G^{CR}_{G0_2/G^{-1}D^{-1}}$	GCP $GO_2/G^{-1}D^{-1}$	$\frac{\text{NDM}}{\text{GO}_2/\text{G}^{-1}\text{D}^{-1}}$
02 Aug. 1973 (light) 01 Aug. 1973 (dark)	mean 248 S.E. 5 C.V.% 2	.60 .00 .84	0.000	0.003 0.001 30.46	0.002 0.000 26.20	- 0.001 0.000 40.94
29 Aug. 1973 (light) 30 Aug. 1973 (dark)	mean 265 S.E. 4 C.V.% 2	• 40 • 60 • 45	0.000	0.002 0.001 33.92	0.001 0.000 15.31	- 0.001 0.000 44.81
27 Sept. 1973(light) 26 Sept. 1973(dark)	mean 215 S.E. 116 C.V.% 76	.37 .12 .25	-0.001 -0.001 87.56	0.006 0.004 85.45	0.002 0.001 84.30	- 0.004 0.002 86.00
05 Nov. 1973 (light) 06 Nov. 1973 (dark)	mean 192 S.E. 52 C.V.% 38	2.10 2.10 3.36	0.000	0.002 0.001 44.26	0.001 0.000 37.00	- 0.001 0.000 47.16
11 Dec. 1973 (light) 12 Dec. 1973 (dark)	mean 248 S.E. 55 C.V.% 31	3.80 5.60 1.60	0.000	0.001 0.000 46.03	0.000	- 0.001 0.001 74.60
23 Jan. 1974 (light) 22 Jan. 1974 (dark)	mean 242 S.E. 25 C.V.% 14	2.60 5.10 4.63	0.000	0.001 0.000 4.91	0.000	- 0.001 0.000 4.00
05 Mar. 1974 (light) 04 Mar. 1974 (dark)	mean 215 S.E. 100 C.V.% 66	5.70 ).70 5.02	0.000	0.002	0.001	- 0.002

Table B - 7. Summary of community metabolism estimates on a detrital AFDW basis for B Avenue Site Augusta Creek, Michigan.

.

Table B - 7 (cont.).

•

	-						
Dates		AFDW G/M <sup>2</sup>	$\frac{NCP}{GO_2/G^{-1}D^{-1}}$	$\operatorname{GO}_2/\operatorname{G}^{-1}\operatorname{D}^{-1}$	$\frac{\text{GCP}}{\text{GO}_2/\text{G}^{-1}\text{D}^{-1}}$	$\frac{\text{NDM}}{\text{GO}_2/\text{G}^{-1}\text{D}^{-1}}$	
09 April 1974(light) 10 April 1974(dark)	mean S.E. C.V.%	320.30 92.00 40.62	0.000	0.002 0.001 35.76	0.001 0.000 53.63	- 0.001 0.000 25.05	
15 May 1974 (light) 16 May 1974 (dark)	mean S.E. C.V.%	276.80 46.00 23.50	0.000	0.002 0.000 2.85	0.002 0.000 36.41	0.000	
17 Oct. 1974(light) 18 Oct. 1974(dark)	mean S.E. C.V.%	592.00 39.90 11.67	0.000	0.001 0.000 20.28	0.000	- 0.001 0.000 30.34	
09 Jan. 1975 (light) 08 Jan. 1975 (dark)	mean S.E. C.V.%	176.98 54.15 53.00	0.000	0.002 0.001 104.38	0.001 99.88	- 0.001 0.001 106.34	
16 April 1975(light) 17 April 1975(dark)	mean S.E. C.V.%	144.97 19.96 23.85	0.001 0.001 133.42	0.004 0.001 29.10	0.003 0.001 40.49	- 0.001 0.001 79.82	
14 July 1975 (1ight) 15 July 1975 (dark)	mean S.E. C.V.%	330.2 41.12 21.57	0.000	0.003 0.000 20.86	0.002 0.000 23.94	- 0.001 0.000 15.71	

. --

Dates		AFDW G/M <sup>2</sup>	$\frac{\text{NCP}}{\text{GO}_2/\text{G}^{-1}\text{D}^{-1}}$	${^{\rm CR}_{{\rm G0}_2/{\rm G}^{-1}{\rm d}^{-1}}}$	GCP $GO_2/G^{-1}D^{-1}$	$\frac{\text{NDM}}{\text{GO}_2/\text{G}^{-1}\text{D}^{-1}}$
30 Oct. 1974 (light)	mean	218.35	0.008	0.011	0.013	0.001
31 Oct. 1974 (dark)	S.E. C.V.%	44.75 28.98	0.003 59.99	0.002 29.59	0.004 48.25	0.002 197.59
21 Jan. 1975 (light)	mean	235.03	0.001	0.002	0.001	0.000
22 Jan. 1975 (dark)	S.E. C.V.%	35.48 26.15	0.000 16.97	0.000 29.09	0.000 19.05	••••
27 May 1975 (light)	mean	179.10	0.011	0.011	0.018	0.007
28 May 1975 (dark)	S.E.	2,53	0.004	0.001	0.004	0.004
	C.V.%	2.45	55.90	12.54	38.18	82.46
21 July 1975(light)	mean	328.03	0.003	0.008	0.007	0.001
22 July 1975(dark)	S.E.	34.91	0.001	0.002	0.001	
	C.V.%	18.44	55.54	39.57	29.11	••••

Table B - 8.	Summary of community metabolism estimates on a detrital AFI	'DW basis	for Upper	43RD Site
	Augusta Creek, Michigan.			

Dates		AFDW G/M <sup>2</sup>	$\frac{\text{NCP}}{\text{GO}_2/\text{G}^{-1}\text{D}^{-1}}$	CR G0 <sub>2</sub> /g <sup>-1</sup> d <sup>-1</sup>	GCP G0 <sub>2</sub> /g <sup>-1</sup> p <sup>-1</sup>	$\frac{\text{NDM}}{\text{GO}_2/\text{G}^{-1}\text{D}^{-1}}$	
04 Sept. 1973(1ight) 05 Sept. 1973(dark)	mean S.E.	164.80 34.10	0.018 0.002	0.017 0.004	0.027 0.004	0.011 0.000	
	C.V.%	29.26	13.96	33.12	20.36	0.00	
04 Oct. 1973 (light) 03 Oct. 1973 (dark)	mean S.E. C.V.%	223.75 3.85 2.43	0.006 0.000 7.42	0.006 0.001 12.67	0.009 0.001 9.08	0.003 0.000 2.29	
12 Nov. 1973 (light) 13 Nov. 1973 (dark)	mean S.E. C.V.%	286.45 47.95 23.67	0.009 0.001 19.73	0.006 0.000 6.29	0.011 0.001 16.79	0,005 0,000 28,61	
18 Dec. 1973 (light) 19 Dec. 1973 (dark)	mean S.E. C.V.%	297.70 44.20 21.00	0.003 0.000 21.41	0.002 0.000 7.03	0.004 0.001 18.19	0.002 0.000 34.29	
31 Jan. 1974 (light) 01 Feb. 1974 (dark)	mean S.E. C.V.%	299.50 80.40 37.96	0.002 0.001 81.85	0.002 0.000 19.72	0.002 0.001 60.98	0.000 0.001 235.53	
20 March 1974(light) 21 March 1974(dark)	mean S.E. C.V.%	360.40 137.30 53.88	0.007 0.003 67.03	0.005 0.003 71.57	0.009 0.004 68.34	0.004 0.002 64.02	
23 April 1974(light) 22 April 1974(dark)	mean S.E. C.V.%	321.35 55.95 24.62	0.005 0.001 20.05	0.011 0.003 36.67	0.011 0.001 11.59	0.000	

Table B - 9. Summary of community metabolism estimates on a detrital AFDW basis for Nagle Site Augusta Creek, Michigan.

Table B - 9 (cont.).

Dates		AFDW G/M <sup>-2</sup>	$\frac{\text{NCP}}{\text{GO}_2/\text{G}^{-1}\text{D}^{-1}}$	$\frac{CR}{GO_2/G^{-1}D^{-1}}$	GCP $GO_2/G^{-1}D^{-1}$	$\frac{\text{NDM}}{\text{GO}_2/\text{G}^{-1}\text{D}^{-1}}$
24 April 1974(light)	mean	321.35	0.008	0.011	0.014	0.003
22 April 1974(dark)	S.E. C.V.%	55.95 24.62	0.001 24.46	0.003 36.67	2.70	0.003 113.82
29 May 1974 (light)	mean	230.75	0.010	0.013	0.019	0.005
29 May 1974 (dark)	S.E. C.V.%	75.65 46.36	0.002 26.24	0.004 42.97	0.004 33.71	0.000 10.55
Ol July 1974(light) (dark)	mean	283.00	0.007	0.013	0.015	0.002
05 Aug. 1974(light)	mean	235.40	0.014	0.008	0.019	0.011
05 Aug. 1974(dark)	S.E.	37.88	0.000	0.001	••••	• • • • •
	C.V.%	27.87	0.649	12.127	••••	••••
06 Nov. 1974 (light)	mean	388.23	0.003	0.002	0.004	0.002
07 Nov. 1974 (dark)	S.E.	49.91	0.001	0.000	0.001	0.000
	C.V.%	22.27	29.40	30.00	28.80	33.68
30 Jan.1975 (light)	mean	393.33	0.001	0.002	0.001	0.000
31 Jan.1975 (dark)	S.E.	7.79	0.000	0.000	0.000	
	C.V.%	3.43	16.86	18.97	0.89	• • • • •
06 May 1975 (light)	mean	325.60	0.004	0.003	0.006	0.002
07 May 1975 (dark)	S.E.	63.12	0.001	0.001	0.001	0.001
	C.V.%	33.58	45.08	42.63	44.12	46.94
24 July 1975(light)	mean	265.40	0.005	0.011	0.012	0.001
25 July 1975(dark)	S.E.	36.45	0.002	0.003	0.003	0.001
	C.V.%	23.79	53.69	41.00	44.20	170.38

Date		AFDW2 G/M	$\frac{\text{NCP}}{\text{GO}_2/\text{G}^{-1}\text{D}^{-1}}$	$\frac{CR}{G0_2/G^{-1}D^{-1}}$	GCP G0 <sub>2</sub> /G <sup>-1</sup> D <sup>-1</sup>	$\frac{\text{NDM}}{\text{GO}_2/\text{G}^{-1}\text{D}^{-1}}$
26 Nov. 1974 (light) 27 Nov. 1974 (dark)	mean S.E. C.V.%	214.80 47.24 38.10	0.004 0.001 47.01	0.002 0.001 61.05	0.005 0.001 48.38	0.002 0.001 48.75
06 Feb. 1975 (light) 05 Feb. 1975 (dark)	mean S.E. C.V.%	191.33 114.32 103.49	0.002 0.000 40.24	0.001 0.001 57.36	0.002 0.001 44.96	0.001 0.000 0.000
13 May 1975 (light) 14 May 1975 (dark)	mean S.E. C.V.%	355.47 12.84 6.26	0.004 0.000 12.72	0.002 0.001 42.19	0.005 0.001 18.82	0.003 0.000 14.17
28 July 1975(light) 29 July 1975(dark)	mean S.E. C.V.%	272.60 13.82 8.78	0.005 0.001 20.67	0.005 0.002 51.32	0.008 0.001 13.60	0.003 0.001 72.61

Table B - 10. Summary of community metabolism estimates on a detrital AFDW basis for Kellogg Forest Site Augusta Creek, Michigan.

## APPENDIX C

+ L 32

		DETRI	TUS	EPILI	THON	TO	TAL
g AFDW/m2	Rep 1 Rep 2 Rep 3	561.7 291.6 586.2 479.8 94.38 34.06		200 272 195	22. 25. 52.	2563. 3016. 2538. 2706. 155.3 9.94	
	mean se cv (%)			222 249 19 .	26 . ) . 7 . 43		
·		16mm	4mm	1 mm	250um	<b>7</b> 5um	0.45um
g DETRITUS/m2	Rep 1	2.62	11.77	57.58	198.3	122.4	169.0
BY	Rep 2	18.34	10.65	24.51	54.41	77.74	105.9
PARTICLE SIZE	Rep 3	6.26	20.36	67.02	205.6	80.01	207.0
	mean	9.07	14.26	49.70	152.7	93.38	169.6
	se	4.74	3.06	12.88	49.22	14.52	29.48
و چو د د ان چو د خان پر مواد این ان دار دار ای پر د	ev (%)	90.62	37.25	44.91	55.81	26.93	31.79
		16mm	4mm	1 mm	250um	75um	
g EPILITHON/m2	Rep 1	722.9	759.0	483.8	30.58	5.56	
BY BARTICLE SUZE	Rep 2 Rep 2	····	1111 1990 4	····	50 30	5 56	
FARITULE SIZE	пер э	041.(	037.0	<i>422.</i> T	J0.37	9.00	
	mean	774.3	799.3	353.1	44.48	5.56	
	se 	51.39	40.29	130.7	13.90	16107	
	ev (%)	9.JO	····	92.34 	44.2V	1016(	
		16mm	4mm	1 mm	250um	75um	
g TOTAL/m2	Rep 1	725.3	779.7	541.3	228.8	127.9	
BY BADTICLE SIZE	Rep 2		····	000 4	····	95 57	
FARITULE SIZE	пер З	031.7	097.7	207.4	200.7	00.01	
	mean	778.7	815.3	415.4	246.4	106.7	
	se	53.22	44.39	125.9	17.55	21.19	
	ev (%)	9.65	7.73	42.88	10.07	28.07	

Table C-1.Organic sediment composition (g AFDW) for selected sites on Augusta Creek, Michigan.24 October 1974 (light), 25 October 1974 (dark), SMITH SITE, STANDARD RUN

		DETR	itus '	EPILI	THON	TO	TAL.
g AFDW/m2	Rep 1 Rep 2 Rep 3	517.2 423.1 379.3 439.8 40.68 16.01		173 133 186	2. 17. 18.	2249. 1760. 2247.	
•	mean se cv (%)			1645. 159.2 16.76		<b>2085.</b> 162.7 13.51	
		16mm	4mm	1 mm	250um	75um	0.45um
g DETRITUS/m2 BY PARTICLE SIZE	Rep 1 Rep 2 Rep 3	.00 .00 39.34	59.15 15.84 25.70	86.70 50.59 59.66	162.1 170.5 118.1	56.19 64.24 29.84	153.0 121.9 106.6
2	mean se cv (7)	13.11 13.11 173.2	33.56 13.10 67.63	65.65 19.84 28.61	150.2 16.24 18.73	50.09 10.38 35.92	127.1 13.65 18.59
		16mm	4mm	1 mm	250um	75um	
g EPILITHON/m2 BY PARTICLE SIZE	Rep 1 Rep 2 Rep 3	989.8 422.6	586.6 636.7	125.1 191.8	27.80 75.07	2.78 11.12	
	mean se cv (%)	706.2 283.6 56.79	611.6 25.04 5.79	158.4 33.35 29.76	51.43 23.63 64.98	6.95 4.17 84.85	
	*****	16mm	4mm	1 mm	250um	75um	·····
g TOTAL/m2 BY PARTICLE SIZE	Rep 1 Rep 2 Rep 3	989.8 422.6	643.7 652.3	211.8 242.3	189.9 245.5	58.97 75.36	
	mean Se CV (%)	706.2 283.6 56.79	649.1 3.38 .73	227.1 15.29 9.52	217.7 27.83 18.07	67.16 8.19 17.25	

Table C-1 (con't). Organic sediment composition (g AFDW) for selected sites on Augusta Creek, Michigan. 15 January 1975 (light), 16 January 1975 (dark), SMITH SITE, STANDARD RUN

.

\_\_\_\_\_

		DETRITUS       Rep 1     86.63       Rep 2     426.3       Rep 3     247.1       mean     253.3       se     98.10       cv (%)     67.07		EPIL	EPILITHON		TOTAL	
g AFDW/m2	Rep 1			1170.		1256.		
	Rep 3			180	35.	21	32.	
-	mean se cv (%)			1480. 211.6 24.75		1734. 255.8 25.55		
		16mm	4mm	L turn	250um	75um	0.45um	
g DETRITUS/m2	Rep 1							
BY	Rep 2	.00	47.08	44.04	64.27	93.06	177.8	
PARTICLE SIZE	Rep 3	.00	5.67	17.67	70.35	54.76	98.63	
	mean	.00	26.37	30.85	67.31	73.91	138.2	
	se		20.70	13.18	3.04	19.15	39.58	
	cv (%)		111.0	60.43	6.38	36.64	40.50	
		16mm	4mm	1 mm	250um	75um		
g EPILITHON/m2	Rep 1	380.9	592.2	144.6	52.82	.00		
BY	Rep 2	636.7	425.4	247.4	72.29	5.56		
PARTICLE SIZE	Rep 3	289.1	1348.	144.6	69.51	33.36		
	mean	435.5	788.5	178.8	64.87	12.97		
	se	104.0	283.8	34.26	6.08	10.31		
	cv (%)	41.35	62.34	33.18	16.23	137.7		
		16nm	4mm	1 mm	250um	75um		
g TOTAL/m2	Rep 1	••••	••••	••••	• • • • •	• • • • •		
BY	Rep 2	636.7	472.4	291.4	136.5	98.62		
PARTICLE SIZE	Кер З	289.1	1353.	162.2	139.8	88.12		
	mean	462.9	913.9	226.8	138.2	93.37		
	se	173.8	449.6	64.58	1.64	5.25		
	cv (%)	53.09	68.24	40.26	1.68	7.95		

Table C-1 (con't).Organic sediment composition (g AFDW) for selected sites on Augusta Creek, Michigan.20 May 1975 (light), 21 May 1975 (dark), SMITH SITE, STANDARD RUN

		DETR	TUS	EPILI	THON	TO	TAL	
g AFDW/m2	Rep 1 Rep 2 Rep 3	p 1   497.5     p 2   286.1     p 3   355.8     an   379.8     e   62.19     (%)   28.36		174 200 136	3. 2. 2.	2240. 2288. 1717.		
	mean se cv (%)			170 185 18.	92. 5.8 91	2082. 182.6 15.19		
		16mm	4mm	1 mm	250um	75um	0.45um	
g DETRITUS/m2 BY PARTICLE SIZE	Rep 1 Rep 2 Rep 3	.00 13.46	<b>4.99</b> <b>27.</b> 35	15.81 31.12	47.70 57.33	55.54 87.92	162.1 138.6	
	mean se cv (%)	6.73 6.73 141.4	16.17 11.17 97.72	23.46 7.65 46.13	52.51 4.81 12.96	71.73 16.19 31.92	150.3 11.75 11.05	
		16mm	4mm	1 mm	250um	75um		
g EPILITHON/m2 BY PARTICLE SIZE	Rep 1 Rep 2 Rep 3	525.5 586.6 172.4	784.0 853.5 697.3	336.4 361.4 344.7	91.75 180.7 136.2	5.56 19.46 11.12		
	mean se cv (%)	428.1 129.0 52.22	778.4 45.03 10.02	347.5 7.35 3.66	136.2 25.67 32.65	12.04 4.03 58.07		
		16mm	4mm	1 mm	250um	75um		
g TOTAL/m2 BY PARTICLE SIZE	Rep 1 Rep 2 Rep 3	586.6 185.8	858.5 725.1	377.2 375.8	228.4 193.5	75.00 99.04		
	mean Se CV (7)	386.2 200.3 73.36	791.8 06.67 11.90	376.5 .70 .26	210.9 17.43 11.68	87.02 12.02 19.53		

Table C-1 (con't).Organic sediment composition (g AFDW) for selected sites on Augusta Creek, Michigan.17 July 1975 (light), 18 July 1975 (dark), SMITH SITE, STANDARD RUN

		DETRI	TUS	EPILI	THON	TO	TAL
g AFD₩/m2	Rep 1 Rep 2 Rep 3	623.9 639.4 512.7		 204 245 226	49. 52. 50.	2672. 3091. 2772. 2845. 126.2 7.68	
	mean se cv (%)	593 39. 11.	90 67	2253. 116.3 8.94			
		16mm	<b>4</b> mm	1 mm	250um	75um	0.45um
g DETRITUS/m2 BY PARTICLE SIZE	Rep 1 Rep 2 Rep 3	.00 .00 .00	32.16 55.00 55.09	 127.6 166.7 79.75	165.0 103.4 126.2	122.6 143.5 120.4	176.7 170.8 131.3
	mean se cv (%)	. 00	47.41 7.62 27.86	124.6 25.14 34.92	131.5 17.98 23.67	128.8 7.36 9.89	159.6 14.23 15.46
		16mm	4mm	1 mm	250um	75um	
g EPILITHON/m2 BY PARTICLE SIZE	Rep 1 Rep 2 Rep 3	925.8  1251.	825.7 786.8	180.7 139.0	111.2  80.63	5.56 2.78	
	mean se cv (%)	1088. 162.6 21.12	806.2 19.44 3.41	159.8 20.85 18.44	95.91 15.28 22.53	4.17 1.39 47.14	
		16mm	4mm	1 mm	250um		
g TOTAL/m2	Rep 1	925.8	857.0	308.3	276.2	128.1	
PARTICLE SIZE	Rep 3	1251.	841.8	218.7	206.8	123.1	
	mean se cv (%)	1088. 162.6 21.12	849.8 7.98 1.02	263.5 44.77 24.02	241.5 34.68 20.31	125.6 2.49 2.80	

## Table C-1. Organic sediment composition (g AFDW) for selected sites on Augusta Creek, Michigan. 17 October 1974 (light), 18 October 1974 (dark), B AVENUE, STANDARD RUN

.

.

		DETRITUS		EPIL	THON	то	TAL
g AFDW/m2	Rep 1			164	¥6.	1812.	
	Rep 2 Rep 3	88.	.63 . A	236	09. 10	24	57. 85
	tiep o	و ۵ شو	· · T	17.		<b>4</b> 1	09.
	mean	176	5 <b>.9</b>	197	75.	21	52.
	se ov (%)	54. 52	. 15 . 09	21	1.2	18	6.8
ه برج من اور معدن کار بور خو کار بور خو کار بور او			. 77 		. Vé 	IJ	
		16 mm	4mm	1 mm	250um	75um	0.45um
g DETRITUS/m2	Rep 1	.00	6.62	15.84	21.88	57.69	64.90
BY /	Rep 2	.00	9.10	12.79	11.07	8.67	46.99
PARTICLE SIZE	Rep 3	. 00	53.17	28.31	40.39	64.42	87.07
	mean	.00	23.63	18.98	24.44	43.59	66.32
	se		15.78	4.74	8.56	17.56	11.59
	cv (%)		115.7	43.32	60.65	69.80	30.27
		16mm	4mm	1 mm	250um	75um	
g EPILITHON/m2	Rep 1	519.9	861.9	155.7	105.6	2.78	
BY	Rep 2	1082.	422.6	725.6	139.0	.00	
PARTICLE SIZE	Rep 3	1090.	630.6	114.0	52.82	2.78	
	mean	897.3	645.0	331.7	99.14	1.85	
	se	188.7	126.8	197.2	25.08	.92	
	ev (%)	36.42	34.06	103.0	43.82	86.60	
		16mm	4mm	1 mm	250um	75um	
g TOTAL/m2	Rep 1	519.9	868.5	171.5	127.4	60.47	
BY	Rep 2	1082.	431.7	738.3	150.0	8.67	
PARTICLE SIZE	Rep 3	1090.	705.7	142.3	93.21	67.20	
•	mean	897.3	668.5	350.7	123.5	45.44	
	se	183.7	127.4	194.0	16.52	18.49	
	cv (%)	36.42	33.01	95.80	23.16	70.46	

Table C-1 (con't). Organic sediment composition (g AFDW) for selected sites on Augusta Creek, Michigan. 09 January 1975 (light), 08 January 1975 (dark), B AVENUE, STANDARD RUN

.

.

		DETRI	TUS	EPILI	THON	<b>TO</b>	TAL	
g AFDW/m2	Rep 1	 135.8 115.9 183.2		250	8.	2643.		
	Rep 2 Rep 3			289	)1.	1892. 3074.		
	mean 14 se 19 cv (%) 23		.9. 96 84	2392. 326.7 23.66		2537. 345.1 23.56		
		16mm	4mm	1 mm	250um	75um	0.45um	
g DETRITUS/m2	Rep 1	.00	15.71	16.48	20.77	33,66	49.14	
BY	Rep 2	.00	4.17	18.62	17.05	15.47	60.62	
PARTICLE SIZE	Rep 3		• • • • •	••••	• • • • •			
	mean	.00	9,94	17.55	18.91	24.56	54.88	
	se		5.77	1.07	1.86	9.09	5.74	
	CV (%)		82.09	8.62	13.91		14.79	
		16mm	<b>4</b> mm	1 mm	250um	75um		
g EPILITHON/m2	Rep 1	1343.	789.6	211.3	155.7	8.34		
BY	Rep 2	319.7	1079.	272.5	100.1	5.56		
PARTICLE SIZE	<b>Кер</b> З	842.4	1429.	347.5	250.2	22.24		
	mean	835.0	1099.	277.1	168.6	12.04		
	se	295.4	184.8	39.38	43.81	5.15		
یں میں بید اور	ev (%)	61.27	<b>29</b> .12	24.61	44.99 	74.17		
		16mm	4mm	1 mm	<b>250um</b>	75um		
g TOTAL/m2	Rep 1	1343.	805.3	227.7	176.4	42.00		
BY	Rep 2	319.7	1083.	291.1	117.1	21.03		
PARTICLE SIZE	Rep 3	• • • • •	• • • • •	• • • • •	• • • • •	• • • • •		
	mean	831.3	944.2	259.4	146.8	31.51		
	se	511.6	138.9	31.67	29.66	10.48		
	cv (%)	87.03	20.20	17.26	28.57	47.05		

.

Table C-1 (con't). Organic sediment composition (g AFDW) for selected sites on Augusta Creek, Michigan. 16 April 1975 (light), 17 April 1975 (dark), B AVENUE, STANDARD RUN

		DETRITUS		EPILI	THON	то	TAL
g AFDW/m2	Rep 1			332	22.	3689.	
	Rep 3	248 375	. 1 . 3	2360. 2752. 2811. 279.2 17.20		2608. 3127. 3141. 312.1 17.21	
	mean se cv (%)	330 41. 21.	).2 11 56				
		16mm	4mm	1 mm	250um	75um	0.45um
g DETRITUS/m2	Rep 1	••••					
BY PARTICLE SIZE	Rep 2 Rep 3	.00 .00	19.75 30.23	$42.51 \\ 73.56$	54.00 79.60	60.76 101.6	71.08 90.31
	mean	. 00	24.99	58.93	66.80	81.18	80.69
	se (T)		5.24	15.52	12.80	20.42	9.61
<del></del>		16mm	4mm	1 mm	250um	75um	
g EPILITHON/m2	Rep 1	1754.	1018.	330.8	216.9	2.78	
BY PARTICLE SIZE	Rep 2 Bop 3	1087.	856.3	305.8	108.4	2.78	
ARTICLE SIZE	nep o	1013.	010.0	100.0	100.0	13.70	
	mean	1485.	908.3 54.83	267.8	143.6	6.48 3.70	
	cv (%)	23.69	10.45	32.99	44.18	98.97	
		16mm	4mm	1 mm	250um	75um	-
g TOTAL/m2	Rep 1						
BY PARTICLE SIZE	Rep 2 Bep 3	1087.	875.9	348.3	162.4	63.54	
	nep o	4010.	901.9	620.9	100 • •	110+0	
	mean	1351.	878.5	294.3	173.8	89.52	
	se ov (%)	204.0	2. +.	03,97 95 qq	11.40	20.90	

Table C-1 (con't). Organic sediment composition (g AFDW) for selected sites on Augusta Creek, Michigan. 14 July 1975 (light), 15 July 1975 (dark), B AVENUE, STANDARD RUN

.

•

		DETR	TUS	EPILI	THON	TO	TAL
g AFDW/m2	Rep 1 Rep 2	263.1 173.6 218.3 44.75 28.98		440 526	 99. 50.	4672. 5433.	
	mean se cv (%)			4834. 425.5 12.44		5052. 380.7 10.65	
		16mm	4mm	1 mm	250um	75um	0.45um
g DETRITUS/m2 BY PARTICLE SIZE	Rep 1 Rep 2	.00 .00	34.68 9.51	39.19 17.30	51.32 38.81	77.51 36.55	60.42 71.41
	mean se cv (%)	. 99	22.09 12.58 80.54	28.24 10.94 54.80	45.06 6.25 19.62	57.03 20.48 50.78	65.91 5.49 11.78
		16mm	4mm	1 mm	250um	75um	
g EPILITHON/m2 BY PARTICLE SIZE	Rep 1 Rep 2	<b>462</b> 4.	<b>514.3</b>	55.60	55.60	11.12	
	mean se cv (%)	4624.	514.3	55.69	55.60	11.12	
		16mm	4mm	1 mm	250um	75um	
g TOTAL/m2 BY PARTICLE SIZE	Rep 1 Rep 2	<b>462</b> 4.	523.8	72.90	94.41	47.67	
	mean se cv (%)	4624.	523.8	72.90	94.41	47.67	

Table C-1 (con't).Organic sediment composition (g AFDW) for selected sites on Augusta Creek, Michigan.30 October 1974 (light), 31 October 1974 (dark), UPPER 43, STANDARD RUN

		DETRI	TUS	EPILI	THON	TOTAL		
g AFDW/m2	Rep 1	301.4 180.1 223.6 235.0 35.48 26.14		. 266	59.	2970.		
	Rep 3			444	• • • •	4587. 223.6		
	mean se cv (%)			3538.		<b>2593.</b> 1273. 85.05		
		16mm	4mm	1 mm	250um	75um	0.45um	
g DETRITUS/m2	Rep 1	.00	33.36	53.37	67.43	64.58	82.60	
BY	Rep 2	.00	3.38	12.48	39.62	54.91	69.68	
PARTICLE SIZE	Кер З	.00	6.47	18.11	45.29	70.53	83.19	
	mean	.00	14.49	27.98	50.78	63.34	78.49	
	se		9.31	12.79	8.48	4.55	4.40	
یو ور سه بی وو رسه و ور سر و رو به نگرو ه	cv (%)		114.±	79.18 	28.93 	12.44	9.72	
		16mm	4mm	1 mm	250um	75um		
g EPILITHON/m2	Rep 1	1588.	578.3	186.3	305.8	11.12		
BY	Rep 2	3281.	639.5	425.4	52.82	8.34		
PARTICLE SIZE	<b>Кер</b> З	• • • • •	• • • • •	••••	• • • • •	• • • • •		
	mean	2434.	608.9	305.8	179.3	9.73		
	se	846.3	30.69	119.5	126.4	1.38		
ر به است این جرد مسالی ورد است کرد مکان کا ا	cv (%)	49.17	7.19	55.27	99.76	20.19		
		16mm	4mm	1 mm	250um	75 um		
m TOTAL/m?	Ret 1	1588.	611 6	229 6	373 9	75.70		
BY	Rep 2	3281.	642.8	437.8	92.44	63.25		
PARTICLE SIZE	Rep 3	• • • • •	• • • • •	• • • • •	••••	* * * * *		
	mean	2434.	627.2	338.7	232.8	69.47		
	se	846.3	15.61	99.10	140.4	6.22		
	ev (%)	49.17	3.51	41.37	85.27	12.67		

Table C-1 (con't).Organic sediment composition (g AFDW) for selected sites on Augusta Creek, Michigan.21 January 1975 (light), 22 January 1975 (dark), UPPER 43, STANDARD RUN

\_\_\_\_\_

\_ - -

	ر بیری میں ایک کری میں یک <del>ایپ کی گر کر ک</del>	DETRI	TUS	EPILI	I THON	TO	 TAL	
g AFDW/m2	Rep 1 Rep 2 Rep 3	182.3 180.9 174.1		 299 608 189	 3.9 96.	3174. 789.8 2070.		
	mean se cv (%)	179 2. 2.	). 1 53 44	1832. 688.6 65.10		2011. 688.9 59.32		
		16mm	4mm	1 mm	250um	75um	0.45um	
g DETRITUS/m2 BY PARTICLE SIZE	Rep 1 Rep 2 Rep 3	.00	 19.07 32.70	27.03 28.50	 24.72 41.34	28.71 56.92	81.35 14.67	
	mean se cv (%)	. 00	25.88 6.81 37.23	27.76 .73 3.74	33.03 8.31 35.58	42.81 14.10 46.59	48.01 33.34 98.20	
		16mm	4mm	1 mm	250um	75um		
g EPILITHON/m2 BY PARTICLE SIZE	Rep 1 Rep 2 Rep 3	2344. 405.9 1499.	408.7 47.26 205.7	200.2 133.5 172.4	36.14 22.24 19.46	2.78 .00 .00		
	mean se cv (%)	1416. 561.0 68.69	229.5 104.6 82.14	168.7 19.34 19.86	25.94 5.15 34.44	.92 .92 173.2		
		16mm	4mm	1 mm	250um	75um		
g TOTAL/m2 BY PARTICLE SIZE	Rep 1 Rep 2 Rep 3	405.9 1499.	 66.33 238.4	 160.5 200.9	 46.96 60.80	 28.71 56.92		
	mean se cv (%)	952.4 546.5 81.15	152.3 86.03 79.85	180.7 20.18 15.79	53.88 6.92 18.16	<b>42.8</b> 1 14.10 46.39		

Table C-1 (con't). Organic sediment composition (g AFDW) for selected sites on Augusta Creek, Michigan. 27 May 1975 (light), 28 May 1975 (dark), UPPER 43, STANDARD RUN

÷

		DETRI	TUS	EPILI	THON	TO	TAL	
g AFDW/m2	Rep 1 Rep 2 Bep 3	347.2 376.6		543 233	38. 30.	5785. 2706.		
	nep 3 mean se cv (%)		3.0 91 43	4030. 909.0 39.06		4358. 4358. 895.8 35.60		
		16mm	4mm	1 mm	250um	75um	0.45un	
g DETRITUS/m2	Rep 1	.00	3.07	18.78	38.01	86.28	201.0	
BY PARTICLE SIZE	Rep 2 Rep 3	. 00	7.91	15.20	29.20	67.89	140.1	
	mean se cv (%)	. 00	5.49 2.42 62.37	16.99 1.79 14.89	33.60 4.40 18.53	77.08 9.19 16.86	170.5 30.45 25.24	
		16mm	4mm	1 mm	<b>2</b> 50um	75um		
g EPILITHON/m2 BY PARTICLE SIZE	Rep 1 Rep 2 Rep 3	4023. 1073. 3873.	989.8 861.9 283.6	358.7 339.2 122.3	52.82 44.48 41.70	13.90 11.12 2.78		
	mean se cv (%)	<b>2989.</b> 959.3 55.57	711.7 217.2 52.86	273.4 75.75 47.99	46.33 3.34 12.49	9.26 3.34 62.45		
		16mm	4.mm	1 mm	250um	75um		
g TOTAL/m2	Rep 1	4023.	992.5	377.4	90.83	100.1		
BY Particle Size	Rep 2 Rep 3	3873.	291.5	137.5	70.90	70.67		
	mean se	3948. 75.00	642.1 350.6	257.4 119.9	<b>80.8</b> 5 9.96	85.42 14.75		

Table C-1 (con't).Organic sediment composition (g AFDW) for selected sites on Augusta Creek, Michigan.21 July 1975 (light), 22 July 1975 (dark), UPPER 43, STANDARD RUN

		DETR	ntus	EP IL 1	THON			
g AFDW/m2	Rep 1 Rep 2 Rep 3	312.3 482.3 370.1		280 223 395	98. 24. 51.	3120. 2706. 4321.		
	mean se cv (%)	388 49 22	3.2 .90 .26	299 507 29.	94. 7.1 .33	33 48 24	82. 14.2 1.79	
		16 mm	4mm	1 mm	250um	75um	0.45um	
g DETRITUS/m2 BY PARTICLE SIZE	Rep 1 Rep 2 Rep 3	.00 .00 .00	 51.97 52.20 40.57	 33.98 81.07 41.67	62.60 151.8 128.3	73.87 88.02 66.62	89.91 109.2 92.96	
	mean se cv (%)	. 00	48.24 3.83 13.78	52.24 14.58 48.35	114.2 26.69 40.47	76.17 6.28 14.28	97.35 5.98 10.65	
		16mm	4mm	l mm	250um	75um		
g EPILITHON/m2 BY PARTICLE SIZE	Rep 1 Rep 2 Rep 3	1607. 3292.	 347.7 417.9	16.68 136.2	52.82 195.6	 . 00 . 00		
	mean se cv (%)	2449. 842.5 48.64	482.3 63.35 19.16	76.44 59.76 110.5	79.21 26.39 47.11	. 00		
		16mm	4mm	1 mm	250um	75um		
g TOTAL/m2 BY PARTICLE SIZE	Rep 1 Rep 2 Rep 3	,1607. 3292.	 599.3 457.5	97.75 177.8	204.6 233.9	88.02 66.62		
	mean se cv (%)	2449. 842.3 48.64	528.7 71.16 19.03	137.8 40.06 41.11	219.2 14.64 9.44	77.32 10.70 19.57		

Table C-1 (con't). Organic sediment composition (g AFDW) for selected sites on Augusta Creek, Michigan. 06 November 1974 (light), 07 November 1974 (dark), NAGEL SITE, STANDARD RUN

•

4

		DETRI	TUS	EPILI	THON	T0	TAL		
g AFDW/m2	m2 Rep 1 384.0		F. 0	4145.			4529.		
	Rep 2	408	3.8	494	6.	5354.			
	Rep 3	387	7.2	2967.		3354.			
	mean se cv (%)	393 7. 3.	3.3 .78 .43	401 574 24	9. 1.7 76	4412. 580.4 22.78			
		16mm	4mm	1 mm	250um	75um	0.45un		
g DETRITUS/m2	Rep 1		32.89	67.97	109.1	86.41	87.65		
BY	Ben 2	. 66	90.93	74.83	77.55	63.48	102.0		
PARTICLE SIZE	Rep 3	33.58	117.8	60.14	81.72	36.47	57.47		
	mean	11.19	80.54	67.64	89,45	62.12	82.37		
	se	11.19	25.05	4.24	9.89	14.43	13.12		
	cv (%)	173.2	53.88	10.86	19.15	40.24	27.59		
		16mm	4mm	1 mm	250um	75um			
- EDILITHON	D			41 70		 F			
g LFILIINUM/m2	Rep I	JU(J) 4607	300.4	41.(0	03,90	00,6			
PARTICLE SIZE	Rep 3	2638.	166.8	63.95	88.97	8.34			
	mean	3640.	239.7	62.09	81.55	4.63			
	se	568.6	63.96	11.27	8.84	2.45			
	ev (%)	27.06	48.01	31.45	18.77	91.65			
		16mm	4mm	1 mm	250um	75um			
g TOTAL/m2	Rep 1	3675.	391.5	109.6	173.0	91.97			
BY	Rep 2	4697.	257.7	155.4	169.3	63.48			
PARTICLE SIZE	Rep 3	2671.	284.6	124.0	170.6	44.81			
	mean	3651.	311.3	129.7	171.0	66.75			
	se	558.8	<b>40.3</b> B	13.51	1.09	13.71			
	cv (%)	26.51	22.74	13.04	1.11	35.57			

Table C-1 (con't).Organic sediment composition (g AFDW) for selected sites on Augusta Creek, Michigan.30 January 1975 (light), 31 January 1975 (dark), NAGEL SITE, STANDARD RUN

. •

.

		DETRI	TUS	EPILI	THON	то	TAL	
g AFDW/m2	Rep 1 Rep 2 Rep 3	kep 1 212.9   kep 2 332.7   kep 3 431.2   mean 325.6   se 63.11   y (%) 33.57		484 542 484	49. 21. 26.	5061. 5753. 5277.		
	mean se cv (%)			5038. 191.1 6.57		5364. 204.3 6.60		
		16mm	4mm	1 mm	250um	75um	0.45um	
g DETRITUS/m2 BY PARTICLE SIZE	Rep 1 Rep 2 Rep 3	.00 70.32	33.53 8.03	25.68 18.10	47.44 47.06	35.78 99.35 	70.52 89.81	
	шеац se cv (%)	35.16 35.16 141.4	20.78 12.74 86.72	21.89 3.79 24.48	47.25 .19 .56	67.56 31.78 66.53	80.16 9.64 17.01	
		16 mm	4mm	1 mm	250um	75um		
g EPILITHON/m2 BY PARTICLE SIZE	Rep 1 Rep 2 Rep 3	4104. 4921. 4265.	561.6 338.7 436.5	63.95 83.41 47.26	114.0 55.60 94.53	5.56 2.78 2.78		
	mean se cv (%)	4430. 249.8 9.76	452.2 59.10 22.63	64.87 10.44 27.88	88.04 17.16 33.77	3.70 .92 43.30		
		16mm	4mm	1 mm	250um	75um		
g TOTAL/m2 BY PARTICLE SIZE	Rep 1 Rep 2 Rep 3	4104. 4991.	595.1 366.7	39.63 101.5	161.4 102.6	41.34 102.1		
	mean se cv (7)	4547. 443.6 13.79	489.9 114.2 33.58	95.57 5.94 8.79	132.0 29.39 31.47	71.73 30.39 59.92		

Table C-1 (con't). Organic sediment composition (g AFDW) for selected sites on Augusta Creek, Michigan. 06 May 1975 (light), 07 May 1975 (dark), NAGEL SITE, STANDARD RUN

		DETRI	TUS	EPILI	THON	то	TAL	
g AFDW/m2	Rep 1 Rep 2 Rep 3	Rep 1     193.9       Rep 2     288.8       Rep 3     313.5		 326 115 150	36. 51. 91.	3479. 1439. 1814.		
	mean se cv (%)	265 36. 23.	5.4 . .45 .79	197 661 57.	79. 1.1 85	22 62 48	44. 6.9 .37	
		16mm	4mm	1 mm	250um	75um	0.45um	
g DETRITUS/m2 BY PARTICLE SIZE	Rep 1 Rep 2 Rep 3	.00 .00	25.61 16.86	6.51 36.80	26.38 98.68	67.27 77.08	163.0 83.85	
	mean se cv (%)	.00	21.23 4.37 29.13	21.65 15.14 98.89	62.63 36.25 81.85	72.17 4.90 9.61	123.4 39.57 45.34	
		16mm	4mm	1 mm	250um	75um		
g EPILITHON/m2 BY PARTICLE SIZE	Rep 1 Rep 2 Rep 3	2492. 1029. 803.3	<b>508.3</b> 52.82 586.6	316.9 33.36 80.63	52.82 30.58 27.80	5.56 5.56 2.78		
	mean se cv (7)	1411. 499.5 61.29	382.7 166.4 75.34	143.6 87.70 105.7	37.06 7.91 36.99	4.63 .92 34.64		
	· ·	16mm	4mm	1 mm	250um	75um		
g TOTAL/m2 BY PARTICLE SIZE	Rep 1 Rep 2 Rep 3	1029. 803.5	73.43 603.4	39.87 117.4	56.96 126.6	72.83 79.86		
	mean se cv (%)	916.2 112.7 17.40	340.7 262.3 108.8	78.65 38.77 69.72	91.82 34.86 53.69	76.34 3.51 6.51		

Table C-1 (con't). Organic sediment composition (g AFDW) for selected sites on Augusta Creek, Michigan. 24 July 1975 (light), 25 July 1975 (dark), NAGEL SITE, STANDARD RUN

		DETRI	TUS	EP ILI	THON	TO	TAL	
g AFDW/m2	Rep 1 Rep 2	Rep 1     120.8       Rep 2     270.1       Rep 3     253.5		 442 25 1	 9. 13.	4549 <b>.</b> 2783.		
R	Rep 3			322	20.	3473.		
	mean	214	•.B	338	37.	36	02.	
	se cv (%)	38.	09 	28.	.69	24	.71	
		16mm	4mm	1 mm	250um	75um	0.45um	
g DETRITUS/m2	Rep 1	.00	3.48	11.59	14.66	39.81	51.26	
BY	Rep 2	.00	12.84	21.62	80.22	48.03	107.4	
PARTICLE SIZE	Rep 3	.00	23.05	15.80	31.20	102.1	81.32	
	mean	. 00	13.12	16.33	42.02	63.31	79.99	
	se		5.64	2.90	19.68	19.53	16.22	
	cv (%)		74.55	30.62	81.12	53.45	35.12	
		16mm	4mm	1 mm	250um	75um		
g EPILITHON/m2	Rep 1	• • • • •				••••		
BY	Rep 2	1248.	1051.	150.1	52.82	11.12		
PARTICLE SIZE	Rep 3	1799.	870.2	364.2	177.9	8.34		
	mean	1523.	960.6	257.1	115.3	9.73		
	se	275.5	90.40	107.0	62.54	1.38		
	cv (%)	25.57	13.00	58.87	76.66	20.19		
		16mm	4mm	1 mm	250um	7511m		
g TOTAL/m2	Rep 1	•••••				# +		
BY	Rep 2	1248.	1063.	171.7	133.0	59.15		
PARTICLE SIZE	Rep 3	1799.	893.2	380.0	209.1	110.4		
	mean	1523.	978.5	275.8	171.0	84.79		
	se	275.5	85.29	104.1	38.03	25.64		
	ev (%)	25.57	12.32	53.38	31.43	42.77		

Table C-1 (con't).Organic sediment composition (g AFDW) for selected sites on Augusta Creek, Michigan.26 November 1974 (light), 27 November 1974 (dark), KELLOGG FOREST, STANDARD RUN

		DETRI	TUS	EPILI	THON	TO	TAL	
g AFDW/m2	Rep 1 Rep 2 Rep 3	335.8 379.6 351.0 355.4 12.83 6.25		110 217 157	9.	1440. 2553. 1930.		
	mean se cv (%)			1619. 309.2 33.07		1974. 322.0 28.24		
		16mm	4mm	1 mm	250um	75um	0.45um	
g DETRITUS/m2	Rep 1	.09	7.39	29.03	85.93	74.65	138.8	
BY PARTICLE SIZE	Rep 2 Rep 3	.00	12.91	43.79	130.1	64.82	99.32	
وي وي و معروف و معرف الم	mean se cv (%)	. 00	10.15 2.75 38.39	36.41 7.38 28.66	108.0 22.08 28.91	69.73 4.91 9.96	119.0 19.74 23.44	
		16mm .	4mm	l nim	250um	75um		
g EPILITHON/m2 BY PARTICLE SIZE	Rep 1 Rep 2 Rep 3	471.3 1207. 1065.	508.8 825.7 350.3	97.31 83.41 125.1	27.80 50.04 36.14	.00 8.34 2.78		
	mean se cv (%)	914.4 225.3 42.68	561.6 139.7 43.10	101.9 12.25 20.82	37.99 6.48 29.57	$3.70 \\ 2.45 \\ 114.5$		
		16mm	4mm	1 mm	250um	<b>7</b> 5um		
g TOTAL/m2	Rep 1	471.3	516.2	126.3	113.7	74.65		
BY PARTICLE SIZE	Rep 2 Rep 3	1065.	363.2	168.8	166.2	67.60		
	mean se cv (%)	768.1 296.8 54.65	439.7 76.49 24.60	147.6 21.27 20.38	139.9 26.25 26.52	71.12 3.52 7.00		

,

Table C-1 (con't). Organic sediment composition (g AFDW) for selected sites on Augusta Creek, Michigan. 13 May 1975 (light), 14 May 1975 (dark), KELLOGG FOREST, STANDARD RUN

			ITUS	EPILI	THON	TO	TAL	
g AFD₩/m2	Rep 1 Rep 2 Rep 3	178.6 395.4 287.0 108.4 53.4		224 317 270		2419. 3570. 2994.		
	mean se cv (%)			467 24.	<b>00</b> 38	575.5 27.17		
		16mm	4mm	1 mm	250um	75um	0.45um	
g DETRITUS/m2 BY PARTICLE SIZE	Rep 1 Rep 2 Rep 3	.00 .09	.00 7.68	20.06 27.29	57.48 109.8	45.11 109.8	56.00 140.8	
	mean se cv (%)	.00	3.84 3.84 141.4	23.67 3.61 21.59	83.64 26.16 44.23	77.45 32.34 59.05	98.40 42.40 60.93	
		16mm	4mm	1 mm	250um	75um		
g EPILITHON/m2 BY PARTICLE SIZE	Rep 1 Rep 2 Rep 3	1479. 2388.	494.9 614.4	183.5 91.75	83.41 72.29	.00 8.34		
	mean se cv (%)	1933. 454.5 33.24	554.6 59.75 15.23	137.6 45.87 47.14	77.85 5.56 10.10	4.17 4.17 141.4		
	سک برایی (پادی و. چ، سان)	16mm	4mm	1 mm	250um	75um		
g TOTAL/m2 BY PARTICLE SIZE	Rep 1 Rep 2 Rep 3	1479. 2388.	494.9 622.0	203.5 119.0	140.8 182.0	45.11 118.1		
	mean Se cv (%)	1933. 454.3 33.24	558.4 63.59 16.19	161.3 42.26 37.05	161.4 20.60 13.04	81.62 36.51 63.26		

Table C-1 (con't). Organic sediment composition (g AFDW) for selected sites on Augusta Creek, Michigan. 06 February 1975 (light), 05 February 1975 (dark), KELLOGG FOREST, STANDARD RUN

,

· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		DETR	ITUS	EPILI	THON	TO	TAL
g AFDW/m2	Rep 1 Rep 2 Rep 3	Rep 1     246.3       Rep 2     293.1       Rep 3     278.4		2789. 1474. 4696.			 35. 67. 74.
	mean se cv (%)	27 13 8	2.6 . .81 .78	298 935 54.	36. 5.3 24	32 93 49	58. 2.5 .56
		16mm	4mm	1 mm	250um	75um	0.45um
g DETRITUS/m2 BY PARTICLE SIZE	Rep 1 Rep 2 Rep 3	.00 .00	12.07 .87	12.51 11.08	107.3 108.9	51.18 60.07	110.0 97.48
	mean se cv (%)	. 00	6.47 5.59 122.2	11.79 .71 8.57	108.1 .79 1.04	55.62 4.44 11.30	103.7 6.26 8.53
		16mm	4mm	1 mm	250um	75um	
g EPILITHON/m2 BY PARTICLE SIZE	Rep 1 Rep 2 Rep 3	1212. 586.6 1721.	1176. 689.5 2619.	355.9 164.0 322.5	41.70 33.36 30.58	2.78 .00 2.78	
	mean se cv (%)	1173. 328.0 48.43	1494. 579.3 67.13	280.8 59.19 36.51	35.21 3.34 16.43	1.85 .92 86.60	
		16mm	4mm	1 mm	250um	75um	
g TOTAL/m2 BY PARTICLE SIZE	Rep 1 Rep 2 Rep 3	586.6 1721.	701.5 2619.	176.5 333.5	140.6 139.4	51.18 62.85	
	mean se cv (7)	1153. 567.2 69.52	1669. 959.1 81.67	255.0 78.53 43.54	140.0 .59 .59	57.01 5.83 14.47	

Table C-1 (con't).Organic sediment composition (g AFDW) for selected sites on Augusta Creek, Michigan.28 July 1975 (light), 29 July 1975 (dark), KELLOGG FOREST, STANDARD RUN

APPENDIX D

.

	ranga	9 (G) Mean	UXYGEN (mg/	liter)	INCIDENT LIGHT	(1ux)
	1 duge		I ange		I ange	
24 Oct. 1974 (light)	5.1 - 11.8	8.2		• • • •	161 - 25800	10940
20 Uct. 1974 (dark)	8.0 - 9.9	8.9			1069 - 24800	12350
15 Jan. 1975 (light)	.2 - 1.7	1.0 .			181 - 23700	7926
16 Jan. 1975 (dark)	.9 - 1.9	1.5	•••• - •••	••••	646 - 19400	9846
20 May 1975 (light)	13.0 - 19.0	16.5		• • • •	42 - 77500	19083
21 May 1975 (dark)	15.5 - 19.2	17.6			7970 - 49500	<b>2</b> 3358
17 July 1975 (light)	12.8 - 19.9	16.8			99 - 40900	6268
18 July 1975 (dark)	13.6 - 16.3	15.3	•••• - ••••	••••	2589 - 11800	6680

Table D-1.	Summary	of phys	sical	parameters	for	selected	riffle	sections	of	SMITH	SITE,
	Augus ta	Creek,	Michi	gan.							

	TEMPERATURE	(Ċ)	OXYGEN (mg/1	iter)	INCIDENT LIGHT	(lux)
DATE	range	mean	range	mean	range	mean
26 Jan, 1973 (light)					538 - 23700	12320
25 Jan. 1973 (dark)					502 - 26900	13560
A7 Imag 1070 (11.1.1.)						
06 June 1973 (light) 06 June 1973 (dark)	15.6 - 17.3	16.3	···· <b>-</b> ····	••••	147 - 21500 538 - 19400	7102
		1010				
07 June 1973 (light)	••••			• • • •	147 - 21500	7102
05 July 1973 (light)	13.1 - 18.1	15.8	9.1 - 10.3	9.7	108 - 43100	6107
04 July 1973 (dark)	14.3 - 17.2	15.5	9.5 - 10.0	9.9	861 - 34400	7782
02 Ang. 1973 (light)	15.2 - 17.7	16 4	9 2 - 10 0	9.6	108 - 64600	8017
01 Aug. 1973 (dark)	15.9 - 19.1	17.0	9.0 - 9.8	9.5	1610 - 91500	14607
	15 0 10 0		<b>=</b> 0 10 0			
29 Aug. 1973 (light) 30 Aug. 1973 (dork)	15.2 - 19.9 15.3 - 17.9	17.5	7.8 - 10.0	9.2	101 - 38200 861 - 9900	9440 5400
oo Aug. 1710 (dark)	10.0 11.2	10	0.0 7.0	7.0	601 9900	J770
27 Sep. 1973 (light)	14.3 - 17.1	15.9	6.8 - 8.0	7.9	108 - 15100	4795
26 Sep. 1973 (dark)	14.1 - 17.7	15.8	6.7 - 9.2	7.4	2489 - 23760	9799
05 Nov. 1973 (light)	5.0 - 5.6	5.0	9.3 - 9.6	9.4	123 - 21500	8523
06 Nov. 1973 (dark)	3.5 - 5.5	4.7	10.1 - 10.6	10.3	495 - 38800	16931
11 Dec. 1973 (light)	1.8 - 3.9	2.8	11.0 - 11.7	11.4	266 - 17200	8893
12 Dec. 1973 (dark)	.5 - 3.0	2.1	10.4 - 11.8	10.7	861 - 21500	12013
23 Jan. 1974 (light) 29 Jan. 1074 (Jonk)	.7 = 1.8	1.1	10.8 - 11.4	11.1	158 - 30100	8979
22 Jan. 1974 (dark)	1.0 - 1.0	1	10.9 - 11.2	11.0	1290 - 0090	4140
05 Mar. 1974 (light)	1.6 - 6.9	4.5	9.6 - 11.5	10.4	••••• – •••••	
<b>04</b> Mar. 1974 (dark)	2.3 - 2.9	2.4	10.5 - 11.0	10.7	••••• - ••••	• • • • •
09 Apr. 1974 (light)	1.4 - 9.7	5.9	9.7 - 12.0	10.9	269 - 86100	37387
10 Apr. 1974 (dark)	2.0 - 12.5	7.4	8.9 - 11.8	10.5	9690 - 81800	47709
15 Nov 1974 (licht)	10.5 - 15.0	12 9	78 - 85	8.2	256 - 88300	25558
16 May 1974 (dark)	9.6 - 10.2	9.9		8.7	200 - 00000	
-						

Table D-2. Summary of physical parameters for selected riffle sections of B AVENUE, Augusta Creek, Michigan.

......

DATE	TEMPERATURE	(C)	OXYGEN (mg/	liter)	INCIDENT LIGHT	(lux)
17 Oct. 1974 (light)	6.8 - 10.6	8.7			227 - 38800	17181
18 Oct. 1974 (dark)	4.9 - 6.9	5.8		• • • •	2580 - 25800	14156
09 Jan. 1975 (light)	1.0 - 2.1	1.6 .			55 - 6670	3088
98 Jan. 1975 (dark)	1.7 - 2.0	2.0	••••	• • • •	409 - 5170	2391
16 Apr. 1975 (light)	3.3 - 10.8	7.1		••••	207 - 90400	23764
17 Apr. 1975 (dark)	3.5 - 12.8	9.0		• • • •	11200 - 95800	43430
14 July 1975 (light)	12.7 - 14.3	13.4			47 - 9470	3493
15 July 1975 (dark)	12.4 - 17.0	14.0			1729 - 15100	6301

Table D-2 (con't), Summary of physical parameters for selected riffle sections of B AVENUE, Augusta Creek, Michigan.

.

	· · ·					
DATE	TEMPERATURE range	(C) mean	OXYGEN (mg/ range	liter) mean	INCIDENT LIGHT range	(lux) mean
30 Oct. 1974 (light)	10.9 - 13.8	12.4		••••	215 - 34400	16885
31 Oct. 1974 (dark)	13.2 - 15.8	14.6	•••• - ••••	• • • •	7840 - 49500	24456
21 Jan. 1975 (light)	.16	.4	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		215 - 32300	12208
22 Jan. 1975 (dark)	.3 - 1.7	.9	···· <del>-</del> ····	• • • •	3010 - 33400	20458
27 May 1975 (light)	18.3 - 24.4	21.7			54 - 98500	54077
28 May 1975 (dark)	16.8 - 21.7	19.0	8.0 - 8.4	8.3	1060 - 96900	90213
21 July 1975 (light)	17.7 - 24.8	21.4			108 - 96900	45652
22 July 1975 (dark)	16.7 - 23.9	20.2		• • • •	1000 - 92600	85024

Table D-3.	Summary of physical parameters for selected riffle sections of UPPER 43	•				
	Augusta Creek, Michigan.					
	TEMPERATURE	(Ċ)	OXYGEN (mg/1	iter)	INCIDENT LIGHT	(lux)
-----------------------------	-------------	------	--------------	---------	-----------------	-------
DATE	range	mean	range	mean	range	mean
<b>08</b> Aug. 1973 (light)	20.2 - 24.4	22.6			 818 - 79700	36262
09 Aug. 1973 (dark)	21.7 - 23.4	22.6	8.6 - 10.4	9.7	7000 - 68900	37803
04 Sep. 1973 (light)	20.6 - 24.0	22.6	8.8 - 11.3	10.2	392 - 60300	31201
05 Sep. 1973 (dark)	20.0 - 22.8	21.5	9.4 - 10.8	10.2	8630 - 53800	29198
04 Oct. 1973 (light)	15.2 - 16.3	15.6	7.1 - 7.7	7.5	646 ~ 24800	10239
<b>03 Oct. 197</b> 3 (dark)	15.0 - 16.8	15.8	7.6 - 8.4	8.1	15100 - 38800	23752
12 Nov. 1973 (light)	4.7 - 6.5	5.8	11.8 - 13.2	12.5	108 - 40900	15938
13 Nov. 1973 (dark)	6.3 - 8.2	7.3	10.8 - 12.1	11.4	2480 - 29100	13758
18 Dec. 1973 (light)	.1 - 2.0	1.2	12.0 - 12.3	12.3	108 - 4310	2824
31 Jan. 1974 (light)	2.6 - 3.4	3.9	10.9 - 12.0	11.3	108 - 64600	22106
01 Feb. 1974 (dark)	.00	.0	12.0 - 12.3	12.1	••••• - •••••	
20 Mar. 1974 (light)	2.6 - 6.1	4.4	11.1 - 12.1	11.6	431 - 96900	38169
21 Mar. 1974 (dark)	3.2 - 6.0	4.2	11.2 - 12.1	11.8	13600 - 92600	53139
23 Apr. 1974 (light)	9.0 - 10.0	9.8	8.4 - 11.1	10.0	108 - 71000	17774
22 Apr. 1974 (dark)	13.6 - 16.7	15.9	7.3 - 10.9	9.2	2690 - 86100	48734
24 Apr. 1974 (light)	6.8 - 10.6	8.7	11.5 - 12.1	11.8	32000 - 88300	81822
22 Apr. 1974 (dark)	13.6 - 16.7	15.0	7.8 - 10.9	9.2	2690 - 86100	49226
29 May 1974 (light)	15.1 - 19.1	16.6	7.4 - 8.3	8.1	215 - 71000	21849
29 May 1974 (dark)	16.8 - 19.1	17.9	6.4 - 7.8	7.1	0 - 309	
01 July 1974 (light)	17.0 - 23.0	20.3	6.9 - 8.2	7.3	46 - 91500	49025
01 July 1974 (dark)	19.2 - 22.0	20.7	5.5 - 6.2	5.7	0 - 635	
<b>05</b> Aug. 1974 (light)	14.2 - 19.7	17.3	6.6 - 8.6	7.7	215 - 98000	47598
05 Aug. 1974 (dark)	14.2 - 19.7	17.3	6.6 - 8.6	7.7	1510 - 98000	50359
<b>06</b> Nov. 1974 (light)	6.4 - 7.4	6.9			280 - 26900	12624
07 Nov. 1974 (dark)	4.9 - 6.9	5.3	•••• - ••••	• • • •	10800 - 49500	36217

# Table D-4. Summary of physical parameters for selected riffle sections of NAGEL SITE, Augusta Greek, Michigan.

----

	TEMPERATURE	C)	OXYGEN (mg/	liter)	INCIDENT LIGHT	f (lux)	
DATE	range	mean	range	mean	range	mean	
Jan. 1975 (light)	18	.4		 	 54 - 40900	17803	
Jan. 1975 (dark)	.2 - 2.3	1.5		• • • •	323 - 10800	5015	
May 1975 (light)	12.5 - 17.5	14.8			251 - 86100	45092	
May 1975 (dark)	11.9 - 17.6	15.9	····· <del>-</del> ·····	• • • •	2000 - 96900	84631	
May 1975 (light)	12.5 - 17.5	14.8	···· - ····		251 - 86100	45092	
May 1975 (dark)	11.9 - 17.6	14.8	••••	• • • •	5000 - 94700	82817	
July 1975 (light)	20.5 - 23.9	22.1			207 - 99000	34324	
5 July 1975 (dark)	18.0 - 21.5	19.5			3000 - 99000	64382	

Table D-4 (con't). Summary of physical parameters for selected riffle sections of NAGEL SITE, Augusta Creek, Michigan.

DATE	TEMPERATURE (C) range mean		OXYGEN (mg/ range	liter) mean	INCIDENT LIGHT range	
26 Nov. 1974 (light) 27 Nov. 1974 (dark)	1.0 - 2.0 1.0 - 1.7	$1.5 \\ 1.4$	···· <del>-</del> ····	••••	375 - 24890 861 - 15100	12664 6406
06 Feb. 1975 (light) 05 Feb. 1975 (dark)	1.0 - 1.1 1.8 - 1.8	1.1 1.8	···· – ····	••••	366 - 23700 484 - 17200	9229 7837
13 May 1975 (light) 14 May 1975 (dark)	12.2 - 18.7 13.5 - 15.3	$15.4 \\ 14.2$	···· – ····	• • • •	280 - 98000 4950 - 73200	56725 32203
28 July 1975 (light) 29 July 1975 (dark)	16.4 - 22.2 16.3 - 21.9	19.0 18.2	···· - ····	••••	161 - 96900 7000 - 98000	33392 71840

Table D-5. Summary of physical parameters for selected riffle sections of KELLOCG FOREST, Augusta Creek, Michigan.

#### APPENDIX E

P= level of significance (P=0.05 significant)

Dependent Variable	Independent Variable	N	R	S.E.	M <sup>2</sup> Reg	M <sup>2</sup> Res	F Ratio	Р
 X NCP	Order	103	0,740	0.056	0 380	0.003	121.9	0.000
<b>-</b>	X Light	101	0.517	0.071	0.183	0.005	36.0	0.000
	X Temperature	102	0.328	0.079	0.075	0.006	12.0	0.001
	<b>X</b> AFDW	96	0.117	0.077	0.008	0,006	1.3	0.255
	X EAFDW	85	0.419	0.064	0.073	0.004	17.6	0.000
	X TAFDW	85	0.410	0.065	0.070	0.004	16.8	0.000
X CR	Order	104	0.519	0.033	0.042	0.001	37.5	0.000
	X Temperature	103	0.640	0.030	0.063	0.001	70.0	0.000
	X AFDW	96	0.081	0.039	0.001	0,002	0.6	0.435
	X EAFDW	85	0.306	0.038	0.013	0.001	8.6	0.004
	X TAFDW	85	0.302	0,384	0.012	0.001	8.3	0.005
X GCP	Order	101	0.722	0.078	0.660	0.006	108.1	0.000
	X Light	100	0.565	0.093	0.401	0.009	46.0	0.000
	X Temperature	100	0.414	0.103	0.216	0.011	20.3	0.000
	X AFDW	94	0.100	0.107	0.011	0.012	0.9	0.335
	X EAFDW	83	0.393	0.094	0.130	0.009	14.8	0.002
	X TAFDW	83	0.386	0.094	0.125	0.009	14.2	0.000
X NDM	Order	101	0.655	0.639	30.323	0.409	74.2	0.000
	X Light	100	0.534	0.717	20.146	0.514	39.2	0.000
	X Temperature	100	0.339	0.800	8.123	0.639	12.7	0.001
	X AFDW	94	0.121	0.735	0.742	0.540	1.4	0.244
	X EAFDW	83	0.296	0.673	3.511	0.453	7.8	0.007
	X TAFDW	83	0.286	0.675	3.274	0.456	7.2	0.009

Table E - 1. Regression parameters for average NCP, CR, GCP and NDM versus various independent variables from data collected in Augusta Creek, Michigan riffle sections.

Depen <mark>dent</mark> Variable	Independent Variable	N	R	S.E.	M <sup>2</sup> Reg	M <sup>2</sup> Res	F Ratio	P
NCP	Light Temperature	666 1957	0.598 0.182	0.086 0.105	8.014 0.744	0.007 0.011	1089.7 67.1	0.000 0.000
	T + L *	1957	0.598	0.086	4.007	0.007	544.6	0.000
	L		0.597					
	Т		0.005					
CR	Temperature	1189	0.523	0.035	0.558	0.001	447.1	0.000
	T + L	1189	0.567	0.034	0.328	0.001	281.5	0.000
	L		0.241					
	Т		0.425					

Table E - 2. Regression parameters for individual rates of NCP and CR versus various independent variables from data collected in Augusta Creek, Michigan riffle sections.

\_

/ariable	Variable	N	R	S.E.	M <sup>2</sup> Reg	$M^2$ Res	F Ratio	P
X NCP	X Light	12	0.270	0.008	0.000	0.000	0.786	0.396
	X Temperature	12	0.0003	0.009	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.999
	X AFDW	12	0.131	0.009	0.000	0.000	0.175	0.684
	X EAFDW	12	0.759	0.006	0,000	0.000	13.601	0.004
	X TAFDW	12	0.728	0.006	0.000	0.000	11.244	0.007
CR	X Temperature	12	0.013	0.010	0.000	0.000	0.002	0.968
	X AFDW	12	0.354	0.009	0.000	0.000	1.434	0,259
	X EAFDW	12	0.381	0.009	0.000	0.000	1.699	0.222
	X TAFDW	12	0.456	0.009	0.000	0.000	2.618	0.137
K GCP	X Light	12	0.255	0.007	0.000	0.000	0.695	0.424
	X Temperature	12	0.022	0.007	0.000	0.000	0.005	0.946
	X AFDW	12	0.316	0.007	0.000	0.000	1.112	0.316
	X EAFDW	12	0.405	0.007	0.000	0.000	1.966	0.191
	X TAFDW	12	0.268	0.007	0.000	0.000	0.771	0.401
R NDM	X Light	12	0.233	0.203	0.024	0.041	0.573	0.467
	X Temperature	12	0.133	0.207	0.008	0.043	0.180	0.680
	X AFDW	12	0.318	0.198	0.044	0.039	1.126	0.314
	X EAFDW	12	0.660	0.157	0.189	0.025	7.696	0.020
	X TAFDW	12	0.696	.150	0. 211	0.022	9.393	0.012

Table E - 3. Regression analyses for various sites of Augusta Creek, Michigan

------

# **B** AVENUE

Dependent Variable	Independent Variable	N	R	S.E.	M <sup>2</sup> Reg	M <sup>2</sup> Res	F Ratio	P
X NCP	X Light	33	0.160	0.009	0.000	0.000	0.812	0.374
		30	0.047	0,008	0.000	0.000	0.072	0.790
	X EAFDW X EAFDW X TAFDW	24 24	0.206 0.174	0.007 0.007	0.000	0.000	0.979 0.686	0.333 0.416
X CR	X Temperature	34 29	0.785	0.007	0.002	0.000	51.292	0.000
	X EAFDW X EAFDW X TAFDW	23 23	0.191 0.271	0.010 0.010 0.010	0.000	0.000	0.796 1.668	0.372 0.382 0.211
X GCP	X Light X Temperature X AFDW X EAFDW X TAFDW	33 34 29 23 23	0.072 0.600 0.117 0.239 0.277	0.014 0.011 0.013 0.014 0.013	0.000 0.002 0.000 0.000 0.000	0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000	0.162 17.861 0.372 1.270 1.739	0.690 0.000 0.547 0.273 0.201
X NDM	X Light X Temperature X AFDW X EAFDW X TAFDW	33 34 29 23 23	0.121 0.368 0.181 0.101 0.022	0.149 0.138 0.146 0.112 0.119	0.010 0.096 0.019 0.003 0.000	0.022 0.019 0/021 0.014 0.014	0.457 5.002 0.917 0.215 0.011	0.504 0.032 0.347 0.648 0.919

\_\_\_\_

مة الأور هذه مشاركين ويد حالة جرم رعم مثل هي ه

\_\_\_\_\_

#### UPPER 43RD

Dependent Variable	Independent Variable	N	R	S.E.	M <sup>2</sup> Reg	M <sup>2</sup> Res	F Ratio	Р
X NCP	X Light	10	0.405	0.070	0.008	0.005	1.569	0.246
	X Temperature	10	0.547	0.064	0.014	0.004	3.413	0.102
	X AFDW	10	0.281	0.074	0.004	0.005	0.687	0.431
	<b>X</b> EAFDW	9	0.039	0.076	0.000	0.006	0.007	0.935
	X TAFDW	9	0.048	0.076	0.000	0.006	0.016	0.902
X CR	X Temperature	11	0.898	0.018	0.012	0.000	37.649	0.000
	X AFDW	11	0.194	0.041	0.001	0.002	0.351	0.568
	X EAFDW	10	0.159	0.039	0.000	0.001	0.206	0.662
	X TAFDW	10	0.166	0.038	0.000	0.001	0.226	0.648
X GCP	X Light	10	0.484	0.095	0.020	0.009	2.444	0.157
	X Temperature	10	0.677	0.080	0.043	0.006	6.768	0.032
	X AFDW	10	0.135	0.108	0.002	0.012	0.149	0.710
	X EAFDW	9	0.004	0.105	0.000	0.011	0.000	0.992
	X TAFDW	9	0.005	0.105	0.000	0.011	0.000	0.990
X NDM	X Light	10	0,609	0.711	2.381	0.505	4.713	0.062
	X Temperature	10	0.519	0.766	1.728	0.587	2.944	0.125
	X AFDW	10	0.340	0.843	0.742	0.710	1.045	0.337
	X EAFDW	9	0.372	0.861	0.835	0.742	1.126	0.324
	X TAFDW	9	0.388	0.855	0.905	0.732	1.237	0.303

\_\_\_\_

\_\_\_\_

\_\_\_\_\_

-----

- - - -

#### NAGEL

De Va	pendent riable	Independent Variable	N	R	S.E.	M <sup>2</sup> Reg	M <sup>2</sup> Res	F Ratio	Р	
x	NCP	X Light X Temperature X AFDW X EAFDW	35 35 33 29	0.241 0.377 0.179 0.083	0.078 0.075 0.071 0.063	0.012 0.030 0.005 0.001	0.006 0.006 0.005 0.004	2.035 5.453 1.031 0.189	0.163 0.026 0.318 0.667	
		X TAFDW	29	0.080	0.063	0.001	0.004	0.175	0.679	
x	CR	X Temperature X AFDW X EAFDW X TAFDW	34 33 29 29	0.742 0.308 0.198 0.213	0.029 0.042 0.045 0.045	0.034 0.006 0.002 0.003	0.001 0.002 0.002 0.002	39.298 3.243 1.104 1.286	0.000 0.081 0.303 0.267	
x	GCP	X Light X Temperature X AFDW X EAFDW X TAFDW	34 34 32 28 28	0.383 0.529 0.254 0.066 0.074	0.099 0.091 0.098 0.095 0.095	0.054 0.102 0.020 0.001 0.001	0.010 0.008 0.010 0.009 0.009	5.496 12.417 2.062 0.113 0.141	0.025 0.001 0.161 0.740 0.710	
x	NCP	X Light X Temperature X AFDW X EAFDW X TAFDW	34 34 32 28 28	0.263 0.417 0.131 0.181 0.182	0.930 0.876 0.740 0.705 0.705	2.050 5.171 0.287 0.437 0.440	0.864 0.766 0.548 0.496 0.496	2.373 6.747 0.524 0.881 0.887	0.133 0.014 0.475 0.357 0.355	

# KELLOGG FOREST

Deg Va:	pendent riable	Independent Variable	N	R	S.E.	M <sup>2</sup> Reg	M <sup>2</sup> Res	F Ratio	P
x	NCP	X Light X Temperature X AFDW X EAFDW X TAFDW	11 10 11 11 11	0.425 0.361 0.271 0.381 0.372	0.030 0.031 0.032 0.031 0.031	0.002 0.001 0.001 0.001 0.001	0.001 0.001 0.001 0.001 0.001	1.984 1.200 0.711 1.523 1.447	0.193 0.305 0.421 0.248 0.260
x	CR	X Temperature X AFDW X EAFDW X TAFDW	12 11 11 11	0.765 0.056 0.168 0.177	0.016 0.024 0.024 0.024	0.003 0.000 0.000 0.000	0.000 0.001 0.001 0.001	14.079 0.029 0.260 0.291	0.004 0.869 0.510 0.603
x	GCP	X Light X Temperature X AFDW X EAFDW X TAFDW	11 10 11 11 11	o.531 0.660 0.225 0.186 0.175	0.039 0.034 0.052 0.046 0.046	0.005 0.007 0.001 0.001 0.001	0.002 0.001 0.002 0.002 0.002	3.533 6.157 0.478 0.321 0.283	0.093 0.038 0.507 0.585 0.608
x	NCP	X Light X Temperature X AFDW X EAFDW X TAFDW	11 10 11 11 11	0.637 0.512 0.473 0.564 0.625	0.353 0.398 0.403 0.352 0.357	0.765 0.500 0.422 0.773 0.737	0.124 0.158 0.168 0.124 0.128	6.146 <b>2.838</b> 2.598 6.254 5.769	0.035 0.131 0.141 0.034 0.040

.

APPENDIX F



Figure F - 1. Net community productivity at various light intensities for combined sites of Augusta Creek, Michigan (1973-1975).



Figure F - 2. Net community productivity at various light intensities for Smith site, Augusta Creek, Michigan (1975 - 1975).

306



Figure F - 3. Net community productivity at various light intensities for B Avenue site, Augusta Creek, Michigan (1973 - 1975).





Figure F - 5. Net community productivity at various light intensities for Nagel site, Augusta Creek, Michigan (1973 - 1975).



Figure F - 6. Net community productivity at various light intensities for Kellogg Forest site, Augusta Creek, Michigan (1974 - 1975).



Figure F - 7. Net community productivity within the 0 - 5 C temperature range for combined sites of Augusta Creek, Michigan (1973 - 1975).



Figure F - 8. Net community productivity within the 5 - 10 C temperature range for combined sites of Augusta Creek, Michigan (1973 - 1975).



Figure F - 9. Net community productivity within the 10 - 15 C temperature range for combined sites of Augusta Creek, Michigan (1973 - 1975).



temperature range for combined sites of Augusta Creek, Michigan (1973 - 1975).



Figure F - 11. Net community productivity within the 20 - 25 C temperature range for combined sites of Augusta Creek, Michigan (1973 - 1975).

APPENDIX G



Figure G - 1. Rates of community respiration at various temperatures for combined sites of Augusta Creek, Michigan (1973 - 1975).



Figure G - 2. Rates of community respiration at various temperatures for Smith site, Augusta Creek, Michigan (1974 - 1975).



Figure G - 3. Rates of community respiration at various temperatures for B Avenue site, Augusta Creek, Michigan (1973 - 1975).



Figure G - 4. Rates of community respiration at various temperatures for Upper 43rd site, Augusta Creek, Michigan (1974 - 1975).



Figure G - 5. Rates of community respiration at various temperatures for Nagel site, Augusta Creek, Michigan (1973 - 1975).



Figure G - 6. Rates of community respiration at various temperatures for Kellogg Forest site, Augusta Creek, Michigan (1973 - 1975).



Table G - 7. Net community productivity at various temperatures for combined sites of Augusta Creek, Michigan (1973 - 1975).

322











Figure G - 11. Net community productivity at various temperatures for Nagel site of Augusta Creek, Michigan (1973 - 1975).



Figure G -12. Net community productivity at various temperatures for Kellogg Forest site of Augusta Creek, Michigan (1974 - 1975).
APPENDIX H

NCP = NET COMMUNITY PRODUCTIVITY
GCP = GROSS COMMUNITY PRODUCTIVITY
CR = COMMUNITY RESPIRATION
NDM = NET DAILY METABOLISM

SEDIMENT	PARTICLE	AFDW			
TYPE	SIZE	G/M-2	$X U U 2^{/G}$	X UIU <sub>2</sub> /G <sup>-</sup> H <sup>-</sup>	
DETRITIS	//	9.06	- 27 8000	28 5000	
DETRITUS		16 76	- 57 1000	40 4000	
DETRITUS	250 um	28 11	= 118 5000	33 0000	
DETRITUS	250 Juni 75 Juni	31.77	- 70,5000	27.3000	
DETRITUS	0.45 µm	145.04	- 128.3000	37.3000	
EPILITHON	4 mm	1883.83	7.5000	8.7000	
EPILITHON	1 mm	426.76	- 19.3000	1.6000	
EPILITHON	250 jim	95.40	- 102.4000	0.0000	
EPILITHON	mسر 75	13.67	- 116.8000	20.2000	
COMBINED	4 mm	1892,89	7.3310	8,7948	
COMBINED	1 mm	443.51	- 20.7283	3.0661	
COMBINED	mu 250	123.51	- 106.0640	7.5108	
COMBINED	mu, 75	45.44	- 84.4321	25.1635	
DETRITUS	<b>سبر 0.45</b>	145.04	- 128.3000	37.3000	
DETRITUS	TOTAL	230,74	~ 110.030	35,2788	
EPILITHON	TOTAL	2419.66	- 2.2622	7.1697	
COMBINED	TOTAL	2650.40	- 11.6443	9.6169	

Table H - 1. Estimates of mean hourly rates of community metabolism based on Gilson Respirometery from five riffle sites of Augusta Creek, Michigan.

26 February 1975

SITE:

SMITH

DATE:

.

### SITE: SMITH DATE: 09 June 1975

SEDIMENT TYPE	PARTICLE SIZE	AFDW G/M <sup>-2</sup>	$\bar{x}$ $ulo_2/g^{-1}H^{-1}$	CR X U10 <sub>2</sub> /G <sup>-1</sup> H <sup>-1</sup>	
DETRITUS	4 mm	10, 30	-110.8000	92.8000	
DETRITUS		38.67	-113,8000	72,6000	
DETRITUS	250 um	71.71	- 68,7000	42,1000	
DETRITUS	75 um	62.93	- 73,2000	46.7000	
DETRITUS	0.45 µm	136.65	-128.6000	87.9000	
EPILITHON	4 mm	1036.36	- 6.3000	4.2000	
EPILITHON	1 mm	321.18	- 11,8000	19,1000	
EPILITHON	250 µm	96.35	- 78,8000	43.2000	
EPILITHON	75 jum	15.39	- 27.3000	87.6000	
COMBINED	4 mm	1046.67	- 7,3287	5.0722	
COMBINED	1 mm	359.85	- 22,7608	24.8490	
COMBINED	250 µm	168.06	- 74.4905	42,7307	
COMBINED	75 jum	78.32	- 64,1803	54.7372	
DETRITUS	0.45 Jum	136.65	-128,6000	87.9000	
	TIOTAT	200.07	101 0/2	67 8500	
DEIRIIUS	TOTAL	320.27	-101.943	67.8598	
EFILITHON	TOTAL	1469.29	- 12.4767	10.8883	
COMBINED	TOTAL	1789.55	- 28.4880	21.0842	

. \_\_\_\_

## SITE: SMITH DATE: 13 August 1975

SEDIMENT TYPE	PARTICLE SIZE	AFDW G/M <sup>-2</sup>	NCP X U10 <sub>2</sub> /g <sup>-1</sup> H-1	CR x u10 <sub>2</sub> /g <sup>-1</sup> H <sup>-1</sup>	
DETRITUS	4 mm	17.20	-263,1000	108,4000	
DETRITUS	1 mm	20.48	-114.6000	88.6000	
DETRITUS	250 µm	20.45	- 49.7000	51.3000	
DETRITUS	75 jim	12.56	-205.1000	114,9000	
DETRITUS	0.45 µm	124.74	-220.7000	156.5000	
EPILITHON	4 mm	1523.54	- 2,6000	17.7000	
EPILITHON	1 mm	297.01	- 25,1000	15,8000	
EPILITHON	250 µm	86.81	-189,1000	147,2000	
EPILITHON	75 µm	7.63	-321.0000	159.0000	
COMBINED	4 mm	1540.74	- 5,5087	18.7127	
COMBINED	1 mm	317.49	- 30,8730	20,4958	
COMBINED	250 µm	107.26	-162.5260	128,9184	
COMBINED	75 µm	20.19	-248,9050	131.5677	
DETRITUS	0.45 Jum	124.74	-220,7000	156.5000	
NETPITTIC	TOTAL	105 43	10/ /210	131 4703	
DETUTION DETUTION		193.43	-194.421U	131.4702	
EFILITHUN	TUTAL	1915.00	- 13.8134	23.8372	
COMBINED	TOTAL	2110,43	- 32.3531	33.8062	

### SITE: B AVENUE DATE: 24 February 1975.

SEDIMENT TYPE	PARTICLE SIZE	AFDW G/M <sup>-2</sup>	$\bar{x}$ $u10^{NCP}_{2/G^{-1}H^{-1}}$	CR x u10 <sub>2</sub> /G <sup>-1</sup> H <sup>-1</sup>	
DETRITUS	4 mm	10.02	- 42,9000	45,9000	
DETRITUS	1 mm	27 03	- 88 7000	41.7000	
DETRITUS	250 Jum	26.71	- 85 5000	26.8000	
DETRITUS	75 um	30 56	-108 9000	39 8000	
DETRITUS	0.45 AUTR	82.45	-160.8000	69.4000	
EPILITHON	4 mm	1824.18	4,4000	4.5000	
EPILITHON	1 mm	428.22	- 8,8000	1,7000	
EPILITHON	250 µm	258.28	3,9000	3.7000	
EPILITHON	75 µm	11.29	- 97.4000	4.7000	
COMBINED	4 mm	1834.19	4.1417	4.7261	
COMBINED	1 mm	455.25	- 13.5440	4.0750	
COMBINED	mu 250	284.99	- 4.4794	5.8651	
COMBINED	75 Jum	41.85	-105.798	30.3315	
DETRITUS	0.45 Jum	82.45	-160.8000	69.4000	
הבייסדידופ	TOTAT	176 77	- 199 769	52 2778	
EDIT TTUON	TOTAL	2521 06	-122.742	2 0425	
COMBINED	TOTAL	2698.73	- 6.4960	7, 1094	

-

## SITE: B AVENUE DATE: 02 June 1975

SEDIMENT TYPE	PARTICLE SIZE	AFDW G/M-2	NCP x u10 <sub>2</sub> /g <sup>-1</sup> н <sup>-2</sup>	$\bar{\mathbf{x}}$ ulo <sub>2</sub> /g <sup>-1</sup> H <sup>-1</sup>	
DETRITUS	4 mm	72.15	- 43.8000	41,2000	
DETRITUS	1 mm	125.67	- 75.9000	56,5000	
DETRITUS	mu 250	94.67	- 68.2000	52.0000	
DETRITUS	75 Jum	100,23	- 90.1000	78.2000	
DETRITUS	0.45 µm	109.44	-159.5000	153.0000	
EPILITHON	4 mm	2541.46	- 7,6000	19.5000	
EPILITHON	1 mm	284,29	- 15,0000	21.9000	
EPILITHON	250 µm	125.29	-110,6000	125.0000	
EPILITHON	mىر 75	9.20	-128.8000	162.9000	
COMBINED	4 mm	2613.61	- 8,5994	20.0991	
COMBINED	1 mm	409.97	- 33,9461	32,5065	
COMBINED	250 um	219.96	- 92,3515	93,5816	
COMBINED	75 Jum	109.44	- 93, 3544	85.3227	
DETRITUS	0.45 Jum	109.44	-159.5000	153.0000	
DETRITUS	TOTAL	502.17	- 90.8897	78.8152	
EPILITHON	TOTAL	2960.24	- 13.0853	24.6416	
COMBINED	TOTAL	3462.41	- 24.3697	32.4986	

SITE: B AVENUE DATE: 11 August 1975

SEDIMENT TYPE	PARTICLE SIZE	AFDW G/M <sup>-2</sup>	$\bar{\mathbf{x}}$ $\mathrm{U10}_{2}^{\mathrm{NCP}}\mathrm{H}^{-1}$	$\bar{x} u10^{CR}_{2/G^{-1}H^{-1}}$	
DETRITUS	4 mm	26,49	-108.8000	78,2000	
DETRITUS	1 mm	113.27	-108,7000	93,7000	
DETRITUS	250 Jum	72.69	-245,4000	206.0000	
DETRITUS	75 am	64.14	-191,4000	117.5000	
DETRITUS	0.45 µm	107.17	-319,7000	259.6000	
EPILITHON	4 mm	2586.29	- 21,7000	34.0000	
EPILITHON	1 mm	237.55	- 52.4000	56,9000	
EPILITHON	250 um	149.14	- 77,5000	96,1000	
EPILITHON	75 Jum	11.77	- 62.7000	144.3000	
COMBINED	4 mm	2612.78	- 22,5830	34.4481	
COMBINED	1 mm	350.82	- 70,5781	68.7819	
COMBINED	mu 250	221.84	-132,5200	132.1137	
COMBINED	75 µm	75.91	-171.4510	121.6542	
DETRITUS	0.45 µm	107.17	-319.7000	259.6000	
DETRITIS	TOTAL	383 76	-207 346	164 2083	
EPILITHON	TOTAL	2984.75	- 27.0931	39.3604	
COMBINED	TOTAL	3368.51	- 47.6287	53.5838	

### SITE: UPPER 43RD DATE: 28 February 1975

SED IMENT TYPE	PARTICLE SIZE	AFDW G/M <sup>-2</sup>	NCP x u102/G-1H-1	CR X U10 <sub>2</sub> /G <sup>-1</sup> H <sup>-1</sup>	
DETRITUS	4 mm	8,55	- 33,2000	78,6000	
DETRITUS	1 mm	11.58	10,2000	43,8000	
DETRITUS	250 µm	34.82	- 32,4000	38,3000	
DETRITUS	75 Jm	31.23	- 52,2000	35.1000	
DETRITUS	0.45 jum	67.65	- 39.7000	77.4000	
EPILITHON	4 mm	4334.02	177.3000	1,9000	
EPILITHON	1 mm	354.25	59,4000	4.6000	
EPILITHON	250 Am	67.73	169.9000	0.0000	
EPILITHON	75 µm	5.72	404.2000	0.0000	
COMBINED	4 mm	4342.58	176.8853	2,0511	
COMBINED	1 mm	365.83	57.8433	5.8403	
COMBINED	mu 250	102.56	101.2121	13,0042	
COMBINED	75 µm	36.95	18.4988	29.6628	
DETRITUS	0.45 jum	67.65	- 39.7000	77.4000	
DETIDITIE	TOTAL	152 82	- 36 /687	57 5003	
DETATION DETATION	TOTAL	122.03		2 0716	
CFILITHUN	IOTAL	4/01./3	100-0202	2.0/16	
COMBINED	TOTAL	4915.56	162.2759	3.8061	

÷

#### SITE: UPPER 43RD DATE: 12 June 1975

SEDIMENT TYPE	PARTICLE SIZE	AFDW G/M <sup>-2</sup>	$\bar{\mathbf{x}}$ $\mathbf{U10}_{2}^{NCP}/G^{-1}H^{-1}$	$\bar{\mathbf{x}}$ U10 $_{2}^{CR}/G^{-1}H^{-1}$		
DETRITUS	4 mm	30.97	-130,7000	127.7000		
DETRITUS	1 mm	23, 12	-105,8000	172,7000		
DETRITUS	250 um	10.43	- 28,2000	199,5000		
DETRITUS	75 µm	16.43	- 49,4000	257.5000		
DETRITUS	0.45 µm	32.53	1687,6000	738.8000		
EPILITHON	4 mm	1162,61	72,8000	72.8000		
EPILITHON	1 mm	27.03	111.1000	111.1000		
EPILITHON	250 µm	27.03	205,9000	205,9000		
EPILITHON	75 µm	2,23	211,0000	211.0000		
COMBINED	4 mm	1193.58	131.6118	74.2247		
COMBINED	1 mm	50.15	29,4885	139.4977		
COMBINED	mu 250	37,46	265,9547	204.1180		
COMBINED	75 µm	18.25	32.6975	251.8292		
DETRITUS	0.45 Jum	32,53	1687.6000	738.8000		
	TOTAT	112.00	100 ((00	227 7295		
DEIRIIUS	TOTAL	113.08	423.0038	33/./225		
EPILITHON	TOTAL	1218.89	144.4912	/6.8533		
COMBINED	TOTAL	1331.98	168.1921	99.0004		

SITE: UPPER 43RD DATE: 15 August 1975

SEDIMENT TYPE	PARTICLE SIZE	AFDW G/M-2	NCP X U10 <sub>2</sub> /G <sup>-1</sup> H <sup>-1</sup>	$\tilde{\mathbf{x}}$ $\mathbf{u10}_{2}^{CR}/G^{-1}H^{-1}$	
DETRITUS	4 mm	6.17	-101.9000	214.9000	
DETRITUS	1 mm	20.00	-154.8000	119.1000	
DETRITUS	250 jum	32.50	-145.7000	139,3000	
DETRITUS	75 µm	71.61	24.7000	96.6000	
DETRITUS	0.45 µm	81.31	-191,9000	236.8000	
EPILITHON	4 mm	4676,19	33.1000	12,3000	
EPILITHON	1 mm	222.92	20,7000	13,4000	
EPILITHON	250 µm	19.40	117.7000	44.1000	
EPILITHON	75 µm	7.31	130.1000	119,9000	
COMBINED	4 mm	4682.36	32,9221	12,5669	
COMBINED	1 mm	242,92	6.2492	22,1034	
COMBINED	250 µm	51,90	- 47.2478	103.7167	
COMBINED	75 µm	78.93	34.4671	98.7591	
DETRITUS	0.45 jum	81.31	-191,9000	236.8000	
DETRITIS	ጥጥል፤	211 60	-105 366	162 6104	
EPILITHON	TOTAL	4925.82	33.0160	12.6348	
COMBINED	TOTAL	5137.42	27.3164	18.8119	
					and the second se

SITE:	NAGEL	DATE:	03 Ma:	rch 1975

SEDIMENT TYPE	PARITCLE SIZE	AFDW G/M <sup>-2</sup>	NCP X U10 <sub>2</sub> /G <sup>-1</sup> H-1	CR x v10 <sub>2</sub> /g <sup>-1</sup> H <sup>-1</sup>	
DETRITUS		27,03	- 6,0000	15,1000	
DETRITUS	1 mm	25.15	- 43,8000	19,8000	
DETRITUS	250 Jum	29.13	- 38,0000	16,2000	
DETRITUS	75 um	30.37	- 49,4000	20,5000	
DETRITUS	0.45 µm	75.46	- 52.1000	28.9000	
EPILITHON	4 mm	7098.30	22,4000	1.4000	
EPILITHON	1 mm	273.67	11,5000	0,2000	
EPILITHON	250 Jum	289.63	152,1000	0.0000	
EPILITHON	75 µm	3.24	193.4000	0.9000	
COMBINED	4 mm	7125.33	22,2923	1.4520	
COMBINED	1 mm	298.82	6.8451	1.8498	
COMBINED	250 um	318.76	134.7285	1.4804	
COMBINED	75 µm	33.61	- 25.9699	18.6086	
DETRITUS	0.45 µm	75.46	- 52.1000	28,9000	
NETRITIS	TOTAL	197 14	- 41 6031	22 2/38	
FPILITHON	TOTAL	7666 95	- 41.0751	1 3040	
LI IDIIIION	IUIAL	/004.05	20.9042	1.3040	
COMBINED	TOTAL	7851.99	25.3474	1.8055	

SITE: NAGEL DATE: 04 June 1975

SEDIMENT TYPE	PARTICLE SIZE	AFDW G/M <sup>-2</sup>	$\bar{\mathbf{x}}$ U10 $\frac{NCP}{2/G^{-1}H^{-1}}$	CR X U10 <sub>2</sub> /G-1H <sup>-1</sup>	
DETRITUS	4 mm	35,17	- 51,9000	44,2000	
DETRITUS	1 mm	20.64	- 69,9000	48,5000	
DETRITUS	250 um	32.18	- 85,7000	57,0000	
DETRITUS	75 um	10.53	-124.5000	103.2000	
DETRITUS	0.45 µm	85.89	-159.6000	225.1000	
EPILITHON	4 mm	4442.46	26,4000	28,9000	
EPILITHON	1 mm	442.02	59.3000	32,9000	
EPILITHON	mu 250	167.90	153.6000	96.7000	
EPILITHON	75 jum	10.53	211.4000	137.8000	
COMBINED	4 mm	4477.63	25.7850	29.0202	
COMBINED	1 mm	462,66	53,5367	33,5959	
COMBINED	250 um	200.09	115.1112	90.3147	
COMBINED	75 µm	20.86	44,9861	120.6582	
DETRITUS	0.45 µm	85.89	-159.6000	225.1000	
DETDITUS	TOTAT	19/ 22	114 1100	1/2 5720	
EDILITION	TOTAL	104.22	-114.1100	143.J/43	
EFILITION	IUIAL	5062.91	33.8734	31.7241	
COMBINED	TOTAL	5247.13	28.6799	35.3349	
		· ·			

÷

.

.

### SITE: NAGEL DATE: 18 August 1975

SEDIMENT TYPE	PARTI SIZE	CLE	AFDW <sub>2</sub> G/M <sup>2</sup>	NCP X U10 <sub>2</sub> /G <sup>-1</sup> H <sup>-1</sup>	ск х u10 <sub>2</sub> /g-1 <sub>H</sub> -1
DETRITUS	4	mm	9.86	- 11.4000	43.6000
DETRITUS	1	mm	35.49	- 7.1000	34.0000
DETRITUS	250	лт	28.33	- 39.0000	52.8000
DETRITUS	75	um	34.63	-110.4000	90.7000
DETRITUS	0.45	mu	69.83	- 40.0000	218.8000
EPTLITHON	4	mm .	3491.64	58.5000	24,9000
EPILITHON	1		181.26	- 10,7000	39,7000
EPTLITHON	250	11TD	43.25	14.3000	49.7000
EPILITHON	75	mu	5.72	212.6000	241.9000
COMBINED	4	mm	3501,50	58, 3032	24,9527
COMBINED	1	inm	216.75	- 10,1106	38,7667
COMBINED	250	1100	71.58	- 6,7974	50.9271
COMBINED	75	Lim	40.35	- 64-5844	112,1468
DETRITUS	0.45	mu	69.83	- 40.0000	218.8000
DETRITUS	TOTAI		178.14	- 45.3895	120.9857
EPILITHON	TOTAI		3721.87	54.8533	26.2427
COMBINED	TOTAI	2	3900.02	50.2744	30.5703

339

=

SITE: KELLOGG FOREST

DATE: '05 March 1975

SEDIMENT TYPE	PARTIC SIZE	LE AFI G/I	<sup>2</sup> <del>x</del>	NCP U102/G-1H-1	CR X U10 <sub>2</sub> /G <sup>-1</sup> H <sup>-1</sup>
DETRITUS	4 π	ran d	3.01 -	1,3000	93.7000
DETRITUS	1 1	<b>m</b> 21	L.37 –	33,8000	104,2000
DETRITUS	250 L	um 4:	3.50 -	28,0000	41,5000
DETRITUS	75 1	um 55	5.94 -	47.1000	71.0000
DETRITUS	0.45	.m 110	5.60 -	47.2000	142.7000
EPILITHON	4 n	mm 2174	4.17	57,3000	22,2000
EPILITHON	1 m	m 120	0.08	50,5000	34.3000
EPILITHON	250 μ	um 3.	1.48	111.5000	28,5000
EPILITHON	بر 75	m	3.18 -	50.0000	34.0000
COMBINED	4 п	mm 218	2.18	57.0848	22,4626
COMBINED	1 n	m 14	1.45	37.7640	44.8604
COMBINED	250 )	um 74	4.98	30,5687	36.0420
COMBINED	75 1	um 51	9.12 -	47.2560	69.0097
DETRITUS	0.45	.m 110	5.60 -	47.2000	142.7000
	TOTAT		- / 0	(1.100)	100 / / 70
DETRITUS	TOTAL	24	<b>5.</b> 42 -	41.1084	103.4678
EPILITHON	TOTAL	232	8.90	57.5356	22.9251
COMBINED	TOTAL	257	4.33	48.1314	30.6037

SITE: KELLOGG FOREST

DATE: 06 June 1975

SEDIMENT TYPE	PARTICLE SIZE	AFDW G/M <sup>-2</sup>	$\overline{x}$ U10 $^{NCP}_{2/G^{-1}H^{-1}}$	$\overline{\mathbf{X}}$ $\mathbf{U10}_{2}^{CR}/\mathbf{G}^{-1}\mathbf{H}^{-1}$	
DETRITUS	4 mm	5.98	- 81.8000	65.0000	
DETRITUS	1 mm	34.79	- 84.8000	78.7000	
DETRITUS	<b>سىر 250</b>	52.57	- 63.6000	43.8000	
DETRITUS	75 µm	40.55	-117.7000	105.8000	
DETRITUS	mu 0.45	61.69	-102.8000	358.8000	
EPILITHON	4 mm	1884.47	97.0000	41.6000	
EPILITHON	1 mm	154.55	33,9000	36,9000	
EPILITHON	250 µm	36,57	333.9000	190.6000	
EPILITHON	۳5 m	34.41	421.2000	214.5000	
COMB1NED	4 mm	1890.45	96.4346	41,6740	
COMBINED	1 mm	189.34	12.0898	44.5804	
COMBINED	<u>سر</u> 250	89.14	99.4842	104.0283	
COMBINED	75 µm	74.95	129.6864	155.6996	
DETRITUS	muر 0.45	61.69	-102.8000	358.8000	
DETRITUS	τοται.	105 57	- 91 5089	162 8758	
EPILITHON	TOTAL	2109.99	101.7708	46.6577	
COMBINED	TOTAL	2305.56	85.3758	56.5159	

SITE: KELLOGG FOREST

DATE: · 20 August 1975

SEDIMENT TYPE	PARTICLE SIZE	AFDW G/M-2	$\bar{x} u10^{VCP}_{2/G^{-1}H^{-1}}$	$\bar{x} \text{ ulo}_{2}^{CR}/G^{-1}H^{-1}$	
DETRITUS	4 mm	0,95	-239,0000	489.6000	
DETRITUS	1 mm	14.21	- 61.6000	189.4000	
DETRITUS	250 AIM	37.33	- 96,2000	107.5000	
DETRITUS	75 Jum	25.47	- 94.5000	98.6000	
DETRITUS	0.45 µm	78.75	-194.8000	284.5000	
EPILITHON	4 mm	3136.43	- 12,5000	19.1000	
EPILITHON	1 mm	146.28	17.5000	20,1000	
EPILITHON	mmر 250	30.21	7.2000	103.7000	
EPILITHON	חנג 75	10.49	219.5000	147.1000	
COMBINED	4 mm	3137.39	- 12,5689	19.2431	
COMBINED	1 mm	160.49	10.4943	35.0945	
COMBINED	250 µm	67.54	- 49.9480	105.8002	
COMBINED	75 um	35.96	- 2.8658	112.7537	
DETRITUS	mu 0.45	78.75	-194.8000	284.5000	
DETRITUS	TOTAL	156.71	-143,2020	204.7524	
EPILITHON	TOTAL	3323.42	- 10,2679	20.3172	

SEDIMENT	PARTICLE	NCP	GCP	CR	P/R	NDM
TYPE	SIZE	$GO_2/M^{-2}D^{-1}$	G0 <sub>2</sub> /M <sup>-2</sup> D <sup>-1</sup>	G0 <sub>2</sub> /M <sup>-2</sup> D	-1 <sup>'G' **</sup>	G0 <sub>2</sub> /M-2D-1
DETRITUS	4 mm	-0.0032	0.0001	0.0071	0.01	-0.0070
DETRITUS	1 mm	-0.0121	-0.0036	0.0187	-0.19	-0.0222
DETRITUS	<u>س</u> ر 250	-0.0423	-0.0305	0.0256	-1.19	-0.0561
DETRITUS	75 µm	-0.0284	-0.0174	0.0239	-0.73	-0.0413
DETRITUS	0.45 µm	-0.2363	-0.1676	0.1492	-1.12	-0.3168
EPILITHON	4 mm	0.1794	0.3875	0,4520	0.86	-0.0645
EPILITHON	1 mm	-0.1046	-0.0959	0.0188	-5.09	-0.1147
EPILITHON	250 um	-0.1240	-0.1240	0.0000	0.00	-0.1240
EPILITHON	75 µm	-0.0203	-0.0168	0.0076	-2.20	-0.0244
COMBINED	4 mm	0,1762	0.3876	0,4591	0.84	-0.0715
COMBINED	1 mm	-0.1167	-0.0995	0.0375	-2.65	-0.1370
COMBINED	250 µm	-0.1663	-0.1545	0.0256	-6.04	-0.1801
COMBINED	mسر 75	-0.0487	-0.0342	0.0315	-1.08	-0.0657
DETRITUS	<b>0.45 میں</b>	-0.2363	-0.1676	0.1492	-1.12	-0.3168
DETRITUS	TOTAL	-0.3223	-0.2190	0,2245	-0.98	-0.4435
EPILITHON	TOTAL	-0.0695	0.1508	0.4784	0.32	-0.3276
COMBINED	TOTAL	-0.3918	-0.0682	0.7029	-0.10	-0.7711

Table H - 2. Areal estimates of community metabolism based on Gilson Respirometery experiments from five riffle sites of Augusta Creek, Michigan .

.

Table	H	-	2	(co	nt.)	•

SITE:	SMITH
-------	-------

DATE: 09 June 1975

SEDIMENT TYPE	PARTICLE SIZE	GO2/M-2D-1	GCP GO <sub>2</sub> /M <sup>-2</sup> D-1	CR G0 <sub>2</sub> /M <sup>-2</sup> D-1	P <sub>G</sub> /R	NDM G0 <sub>2</sub> /m <sup>-2</sup> d <sup>-1</sup>
DETRITUS	4 mm	-0.0199	-0.0032	0.0264	-0.12	-0:0296
DETRITUS	1 mm	-0.0769	-0.0278	0.0774	-0.36	-0.1052
DETRITUS	250 µm	-0.0860	-0.0333	0.0833	-0.40	-0.1166
DETRITUS	75 um	-0,0805	-0.0291	0.0810	-0.36	-0.1102
DETRITUS	0.45 um	-0.3069	-0.0971	0.3312	-0.29	-0.4284
EPILITHON	4 mm	-0.1140	-0.0380	_0_1200	-0.32	-0.1580
EPILITHON	1 mm	-0.0662	0.0409	0.1692	0.24	-0.1282
EPILITHON	250 um	-0.1326	-0.0599	0.1148	-0.52	-0.1747
EPILITHON	75 µm	-0.0073	0.0162	0.0372	0.44	-0.0210
COMBINED	4 mm	<b>-0.13</b> 40	-0.0412	0.1464	-0.28	-0.1876
COMBINED	1 mm	-0.1430	0.0131	0.2466	0.05	-0.2335
COMBINED	250 µm	<b>-0.218</b> 6	-0.0932	0.1980	-0.47	-0.2913
COMBINED	mבע 75	-0.0878	-0.0129	0.1182	-0.11	-0.1311
DETRITUS	0.45 µm	-0.3069	-0.0971	0.3312	-0,29	-0.4284
DETRITUS	TOTAL	-0.5702	-0.1906	0,5993	-0.32	-0.7900
EPILITHON	TOTAL	-0.3202	-0.0408	0.4412	-0.09	-0.4819
COMBINED	TOTAL	-0.8904	-0.2314	1.0405	-0.22	-1.2719

-----

.

.

Table	H	- 2	(cont.).
-------	---	-----	----------

SITE: SMITH DATE: 13 August 1975	SITE:	SMITH	DATE:	13 August 1975
----------------------------------	-------	-------	-------	----------------

.

PARTICLE SIZE	NCP G02/M-2D-1	GCP G02/M-2D-1	CR G0 <sub>2</sub> /m <sup>-2</sup> d-1	P <sub>G</sub> /R	$\frac{\text{NDM}}{\text{GO}_2/\text{M}^{-2}\text{D}^{-1}}$
4 mm	-0.0728	-0.0428	0.514	-0.83	-0.0942
1 mm	-0.0378	-0.0086	0.0500	-0.17	-0.0586
m ر 250	-0.0163	0.0005	0.0289	0.02	-0.0284
75 jum	-0.0414	-0.0182	0.0398	-0.46	-0.0580
0.45 Jun	-0.4429	-0.1288	0.5383	-0.24	-0.6672
1 4 mm	-0.0637	0.3701	0.7436	0.50	-0.3736
l mm	-0.1199	-0.0444	0.1294	-0.34	-0.1733
mu 250 ا	-0.2641	-0.0585	0.3524	-0.17	-0.4109
175 jum	-0.0394	-0.0199	0.0335	-0.59	-0.0534
4 mm	-0,1365	0.3273	0.7951	0.41	-0.4678
1 mm	-0.1577	-0.0530	0.1794	-0.30	-0.2324
mu 250	-0.2804	-0.0580	0.3813	-0,15	-0.4393
75 Jum	-0.0809	-0.0381	0.0733	-0.52	-0.1114
0.45 jum	-0.4429	-0.1288	0.5383	-0.24	-0.6672
morest	0 6112	0 1070	0 7095	0.79	0.0064
IUIAL	-0.0112	-0.1979	0.7003	-0.20	-0.9004
1 TOTAL	-0.48/1	0.2472	1.2589	0.20	-1.0117
TOTAL	-1.0983	0.0493	1.9674	0.03	-1.9181
	PARTICLE SIZE 4 mm 1 mm 250 jim 75 jim 0.45 jim 4 mm 1 mm 250 jim 75 jim 4 mm 1 mm 250 jim 75 jim 0.45 jim 0.45 jim TOTAL N TOTAL	PARTICLENCP $GO_2/M^{-2}D^{-1}$ 4 mm-0.07281 mm-0.0378250 µm-0.016375 µm-0.04140.45 µm-0.44294 mm-0.06371 mm-0.1199250 µm-0.264175 µm-0.03944 mm-0.13651 mm-0.1577250 µm-0.280475 µm-0.08090.45 µm-0.4429TOTAL-0.6112N TOTAL-0.4871TOTAL-1.0983	PARTICLENCPGCPSIZE $G0_2/M^{-2}D^{-1}$ $G0_2/M^{-2}D^{-1}$ 4 mm $-0.0728$ $-0.0428$ 1 mm $-0.0378$ $-0.0086$ 250 µm $-0.0163$ $0.0005$ 75 µm $-0.0414$ $-0.0182$ $0.45 µm$ $-0.4429$ $-0.1288$ N4 mm $-0.0637$ $0.3701$ 1 mm $-0.1199$ $-0.0444$ 250 µm $-0.2641$ $-0.0585$ N75 µm $-0.0394$ $-0.0199$ 4 mm $-0.1365$ $0.3273$ 1 mm $-0.1577$ $-0.0530$ 250 µm $-0.2804$ $-0.0580$ 75 µm $-0.0809$ $-0.0381$ $0.45 µm$ $-0.4429$ $-0.1288$ TOTAL $-0.6112$ $-0.1979$ N TOTAL $-0.4871$ $0.2472$ TOTAL $-1.0983$ $0.0493$	PARTICLE SIZENCP $C0_2/M^{-2}D^{-1}$ CCP $C0_2/M^{-2}D^{-1}$ CR $C0_2/M^{-2}D^{-1}$ 4 mm-0.0728-0.04280.5141 mm-0.0378-0.00860.0500250 µm-0.0414-0.01820.03980.45 µm-0.4429-0.12880.53830.45 µm-0.4429-0.12880.53830.45 µm-0.66370.37010.74361 mm-0.1199-0.04440.1294250 µm-0.2641-0.05850.35247 75 µm-0.0394-0.01990.03354 mm-0.13650.32730.79511 mm-0.1577-0.05300.1794250 µm-0.2804-0.05800.381375 µm-0.0809-0.03810.07330.45 µm-0.4429-0.28840.5383TOTAL-0.6112-0.19790.7085N TOTAL-0.48710.24721.2589TOTAL-1.09830.04931.9674	PARTICLE SIZENCP $C0_2/M^{-2}D^{-1}$ GCP $C0_2/M^{-2}D^{-1}$ CR $C0_2/M^{-2}D^{-1}$ Pg/R4 mm-0.0728-0.04280.514-0.831 mm-0.0378-0.00860.0500-0.17250 $\mu$ m-0.0414-0.01820.0398-0.460.45 $\mu$ m-0.4429-0.12880.5383-0.244 mm-0.06370.37010.74360.501 mm-0.2641-0.05850.3524-0.174 mm-0.0394-0.01990.0335-0.594 mm-0.13650.32730.79510.411 mm-0.1577-0.05300.1794-0.30250 $\mu$ m-0.2804-0.05800.3813-0.1575 $\mu$ m-0.0809-0.12880.5383-0.244 mm-0.13650.32730.79510.411 mm-0.1577-0.05300.1794-0.30250 $\mu$ m-0.2804-0.05800.3813-0.1575 $\mu$ m-0.0809-0.03810.0733-0.520.45 $\mu$ m-0.4429-0.12880.5383-0.24TOTAL-0.48710.24721.25890.20TOTAL-1.09830.04931.96740.03

Table	H	- 3	2 (	(	cont.	)	•
-------	---	-----	-----	---	-------	---	---

SITE: B AVENUE DATE: 24 February 1975

SEDIMENT TYPE	PARTICLE SIZE	NCP G02/M-2D-1	$\operatorname{GO}_2^{\operatorname{GCP}}/\operatorname{M}^{-2}\operatorname{D}^{-1}$	$G0_2/M^{-2}D^{-1}$	P <sub>G</sub> /R	NDM G02/M-2D-1
•						
DETRITUS	4 mm	-0.0054	0.0004	0.0127	0.03	-0.0123
DETRITUS	1 mm	-0.0302	-0.0160	0.0311	-0.52	-0.0471
DETRITUS	mىر 250	-0.0288	-0.0198	0.0197	-1.00	-0.0395
DETRITUS	75 µm.	-0.0419	-0.0266	0.0335	-0.79	-0.0601
DETRITUS	0.45 µm	-0.1671	-0.0950	0.1578	-0.60	-0.2527
EPILITHON	1 4 mm	0,1011	0.2046	0.2264	0.09	-0.0218
EPILITHON	1 mm	-0.0475	-0.0383	0.0201	-1.91	-0.0584
EPILITHON	I 250 µm	0.0127	0.0247	0.0264	0.94	-0.0016
EPILITHON	m 75 آ	-0.0139	-0.0132	0.0015	-9.01	-0.0146
COMBINED	4 mm	0.0957	0,2050	0.2390	0.86	-0.0341
COMBINED	1 mm	-0.0777	-0.0543	0.0512	-1.06	-0.1055
COMBINED	250 µm	-0,0161	0,0050	0,0461	0.11	-0.0411
COMBINED	75 µm	-0.0558	-0.0398	0.0350	-1.14	-0.0748
DETRITUS	0.45 jum	-0.1671	-0.0950	0.1578	-0.60	-0.2527
DETRITUS	TOTAL	-0.2734	-0.1570	0.2548	-0.62	-0.4118
EPILITHON	I TOTAL	0.0525	0.1778	0.2743	0.65	-0.0964
COMBINED	TOTAL	-0.2209	0.0209	0.5291	0.04	-0.5082

.

,

TABLE H - 2 (cont.).

# SITE: B AVENUE DATE: 02 June 1975

SEDIMENT TYPE	PARTICLE SIZE	NCP GO2/M-2D-1	GCP $GO_2/M^{-2}D^{-1}$	CR G0 <sub>2</sub> /M <sup>-2</sup> D <sup>-1</sup>	P <sub>G</sub> /R	$\frac{\text{NDM}}{\text{GO}_2/\text{M}^{-2}\text{D}^{-1}}$
DETRITUS	4 mm	-0.0548	-0.0033	0.0820	-0.04	-0.0852
DETRITUS	1 mm	-0 1653	-0.0423	0.1958	-0.22	-0 2381
DETRITUS	250 um	-0 1119	-0.0266	0 1358	-0.20	-0.1623
DETRITUS	75 um	-0.1565	-0.0200	0.2161	-0 10	-0.2368
DETRITUS	0.45 um	-0.3025	-0.0123	0.4617	-0.03	-0.4741
EPILITHON	4 mm	-0.3347	0.5241	1.3666	0.38	-0.8425
EPILITHON	1 mm	-0.0759	0.0320	0.1717	0.19	-0.1397
EPILITHON	250 µm	-0.2402	0.0313	0.4319	0.07	-0.4006
EPILITHON	mىر 75	-0.0205	0,0054	0.0413	0.13	-0.0359
COMBINED	4 mm	-0.3895	0.5209	1.4486	0.36	-0.9277
COMBINED	1 mm	-0.2412	-0.0102	0.3675	-0.03	-0.3777
COMBINED	250 µm	-0.3521	0.0047	0.5676	0.01	-0.5629
COMBINED	75 Jum	-0.1771	-0.0152	0.2575	-0.06	-0.2727
DETRITUS	0.45 µm	-0.3025	-0.0123	0.4617	-0.03	-0.4741
DETRITUS	TOTAL	-0.7910	-0.1051	1.0914	-0.10	-1.1965
EPILITHON	TOTAL	-0.6713	0.5929	2.0115	0.29	-1.4187
COMBINED	TOTAL	-1.4623	0.4878	3.1030	0.16	-2.6152

SITE:	<b>B</b> AVENUE	DATE:	11	August	1975
-------	-----------------	-------	----	--------	------

SEDIMENT TYPE	PARTIC	$\begin{array}{c} \text{LE} & \text{NCP} \\ \text{G0}_2/\text{M}^{-2}\text{D}^{-1} \end{array}$	GCP G0 <sub>2</sub> /M <sup>-2</sup> I	$b^{-1}$ $G0_2^{CR}/M^{-2}b^{-1}$	1 <sup>P</sup> G <sup>/R</sup>	NDM G0 <sub>2</sub> /M <sup>-2</sup> D <sup>-1</sup>
DETRITUS	4 m	m -0.0466	-0.0131	0.0571	-0.23	-0.0702
DETRITUS	1 m	m -0.1992	-0.0275	0.2927	-0.09	-0.3202
DETRITUS	250 m	m -0.2887	-0.0463	0.4130	-0.11	-0.4593
DETRITUS	75 u	m -0.1987	-0.0767	0.2078	-0.37	-0.2845
DETRITUS	0.45 m	m -0.5544	-0.1042	0.7672	-0.14	-0.8714
EPILITHON	4 ш	m -0.9082	0.5148	2.4249	0.21	-1.9101
EPILITHON	1 m	m -0.2014	0.0173	0.3727	05	-0.3554
EPILITHON	250 µ	m -0.1870	0.0449	0.3952	0.11	-0.3503
EPILITHON	75 µ	m -0.0119	0.0155	0.0468	0.33	-0.0313
COMBINED	4 m	m -0.9548	0.5016	2,4820	0.20	-1.9803
COMBINED	1 m	m -0.4007	-0.0102	0.6654	-0.02	-0.6756
COMBINED	250 µ	m –0.4757	-0.0015	0.8082	-0.00	-0.8096
COMBINED	75 µ	m -0.2106	-0.0612	0.2546	-0.24	-0.3158
DETRITUS	0.45 µ	m -0.5544	-0.1042	0.7672	-0.14	-0.8714
						0.000
DETRITUS	TOTAL	-1.2876	-0.2679	1.73778	-0.15	-2.0056
EPILITHON	TOTAL	-1.3086	0.5925	3,2396	0.18	-2.6472
COMBINED	TOTAL	-2.5962	0.3246	4.9774	0.07	-4.6528

Table	Н -	2	(cont.)	).
-------	-----	---	---------	----

<b>ዓ</b> ተጥፑ•	IIDDFP	43PD	DATE.	28	February	1975
9116:	ULLEV	4310	DAIE:	20	rebluary	7212

SEDIMENT TYPE	PARTICLE SIZE	NCP G0 <sub>2</sub> /m <sup>-2</sup> d <sup>-1</sup>	GCP G02/M-2D-1	CR G0 <sub>2</sub> /m <sup>-2</sup> d <sup>-1</sup>	₽ <sub>G</sub> /R	$G0_2/M^{-2}D^{-1}$
DETRITUS	4 mm	-0.0036	0.0050	0.0185	0.27	-0.0136
DETRITUS	1 mm	0.0015	0,0080	0.0140	0.57	-0.0060
DETRITUS	250 µm	-0.0145	0,0026	0.0368	0.07	-0.0341
DETRITUS	75 um	-0.0344	-0.0068	0.0302	23	-0.0371
DETRITUS	0.45 µm	-0.0344	0.0327	0.1444	0.23	-0.1117
EPILITHON	4 mm	9.8445	9,9500	0.2271	43.82	9.7229
EPILITHON	1 mm	0.2696	0.2905	0.0449	6.46	0.2455
EPILITHON	mu 250	0.1474	0.1474	0.0000	0.00	0.1474
EPILITHON	mu 75	0.0296	0.0296	0.000	0.00	0.0296
COMBINED	4 mm	9.8409	9.9550	0.2456	40.53	9,7094
COMBINED	1 mm	0.2711	0,2985	0.0589	5.07	0.2396
COMBINED	250 µm	0.1330	0.1501	0.0368	4.08	0.1133
COMBINED	75 µm	0.0088	0.0228	0.0302	0.75	-0.0074
DETRITUS	0.45 µm	-0.0344	0.0327	0.1444	0.23	-0.1117
חביים דייזופ	TOTAT	0 0710	0.414	0 2620	0 17	0 2025
DEINIIUS EDII ITUON	TOTAL		0.414	0.2439	29 20	-0.2025
EFILITION	IUIAL	10.2912	10.4176	0.2720	30.30	10,1455
COMBINED	TOTAL	10.2193	10.4590	0.5159	20.27	9.9431

SITE: UPPER 43RD DATE: 12 June 1975

SEDIMENT TYPE	PARTICLE SIZE	$G0_2/M^{-2}D^{-1}$	GCP $GO_2/M^{-2}D^{-1}$	CR G0 <sub>2</sub> /M <sup>-2</sup> D <sup>-1</sup>	P <sub>G</sub> /R	$MDM = G0 (M^{-2}D^{-1})$
DETRITUS	4 mm	-0.0709	-0.0016	0,1091	-0.01	-0.1107
DETRITUS	1 mm	-0.0428	0.0271	0.1101	0.25	-0.0830
DETRITUS	250 um	0.0051	0.0416	0.0574	0.72	-0.0158
DETRITUS	75 um	-0.0139	0.0584	0.1138	0.51	-0.0554
DETRITUS	0.45 µm	0.9609	1.3816	0.6628	2.08	0.7188
EPILITHON	4 mm	2.8204	4,3018	2.3340	1.84	1,9679
EPILITHON	1 mm	0.0687	0.1213	0.0828	1.46	0.0384
EPILITHON	250 µm	0.1692	0,2666	0.1535	1.74	0.1132
EPILITHON	75 µm	0.0243	0.0325	0.0130	2.51	0.0196
COMBINED	4 mm	2.7495	4,3002	2.4430	1.76	1.8572
COMBINED	1 mm	0,0259	0.1483	0.1929	0.77	-0.0446
COMBINED	250 µm	0.1744	0.3082	0.2109	1.46	0.0974
COMBINED	75 jum	0,0104	0.0909	0.1268	0.72	-0.0359
DETRITUS	0.45 jum	0.9606	1.3816	0.6628	2.08	0.7188
DETRITUS	TOTAL	0.8385	1.5070	1.0531	1.43	0.4539
EPILITHON	TOTAL	3.0826	4.7223	2.5832	1.83	2.1390
COMBINED	TOTAL	3.9212	6.2292	3.6363	1.71	2.5929

SITE: UPPER 43RD DATE: 15 August 1975

SEDIMENT TYPE	PARTICLE SIZE	NCP G02/M-2D-1	GCP $GO_2/M^{-2}D^{-1}$	CR G0 <sub>2</sub> /M <sup>-1</sup> D <sup>-1</sup>	P <sub>G</sub> /R	NDM G02/M <sup>-2</sup> D <sup>-1</sup>
DETRITUS	4 mm	-0.0101	0.0111	0.366	0.30	-0.0254
DETRITUS	1 mm	-0.0495	-0.0114	0.0657	-0.17	-0.0771
DETRITUS	mu 250	-0.0757	-0.0033	0.1248	-0.03	-0.1282
DETRITUS		0.0283	0.1389	0.1908	0.73	-0.0519
DETRITUS	سىر 0.45	-0.2495	0.0584	0.5310	0.11	-0.4726
EPILITHON	4 mm	2.4750	3.3947	1.5861	2.14	1.8086
EPILITHON	1 mm	0.0738	0.1215	0.0824	1.48	0,0392
EPILITHON	250 µm	0,0365	0.0502	0.0236	2.13	0,0266
EPILITHON	75 µm	0.0152	0.0292	0.0242	1.21	0.0051
COMBINED	4 mm	2.4649	3,4059	1.6227	<b>2.10</b> <sup>-</sup>	1.7832
COMBINED	1 mm	0.0243	0.1101	0.1481	0.74	-0.0379
COMBINED	m يو 250	-0.0392	0.0469	0.1484	0.32	-0.1016
COMBINED	75 jum	0.0435	0.1681	0.2149	0.78	-0.0468
DETRITUS	0.45 jum	<b>-0.249</b> 5	0.0584	0.5310	0.11	-0.4726
חדייזיכ	TOTAT	.0.2565	0 1027	0 0499	0.20	0 7551
DEINIIUS	TOTAL	-0.3303	0.1937	0.9400	0.20	-0.7551
EFILITHON	TOTAL	2.0005	3.5957	1./162	2.10	1.8/82
COMBINED	TOTAL	2.2440	3.7894	2.6651	1.42	1.1243

SITE: NAGEL

DATE: 03 March 1975

SEDIMENT TYPE	PARTIC SIZE	CLE NCP GO <sub>2</sub> /M <sup>-2</sup> I	GCP D-1 G0 <sub>2</sub> /м-2	D-1 G02/M-2D	-1 <sup>P</sup> G <sup>/R</sup>	NDM G0 <sub>2</sub> /M <sup>-2</sup> D <sup>-1</sup>
DETRITUS	4 m	um -0.0021	0.0032	0.0113	0.28	-0.0081
DETRITUS	1 n	man -0.0143	-0.0079	0.0137	-0.57	0216
DETRITUS	250 µ	um -0.0144	-0.0083	0.0130	-0.64	-0.0213
DETRITUS	75 p	ım -0.0195	-0.0114	0.0172	-0.67	-0.0286
DETRITUS	0.45 µ	m -0.0512	-0.0228	0.0601	-0.38	-0.0829
EPILITHON	4 π	m. 2.0705	2,1999	0,2740	8.03	1,9259
EPILITHON	1 n	mm 0.0410	0.0417	0.0015	27.62	0.0402
EPILITHON	250 µ	im 0.5737	0.5737	0,0000	0.00	0,5737
EPILITHON	75 µ	m 0.0082	0.0082	0.0001	101.95	0.0081
COMBINED	4 🛛	m 2.0684	2,2031	0,2853	7,72	1,9178
COMBINED	1 n	mm 0.0266	0.0338	0.0152	2.22	0.0186
COMBINED	250 L	um 0.5592	0.5654	0.0130	43.45	0.5524
COMBINED	75 r	- <b>0.011</b> 4	-0.0032	0.0172	-0.19	-0.0206
DETRITUS	TOTAL	-0.1016	-0.0472	0.1153	-0.41	-0.1625
EPILITHON	TOTAL	2.6933	2.8235	0.2756	10.24	2.5479
COMBINED	TOTAL	2.5917	2.7763	0.3909	7.10	2.3854

352

### SITE: NAGEL DATE: 0

DATE: 04 June 1975

SEDIMENT TYPE	PARTICLE SIZE	NCP G0 <sub>2</sub> /M <sup>-2</sup> D <sup>-1</sup>	GCP $GO_2/M^{-2}D^{-1}$	$GO_2/M^{-2}D^{-1}$	P <sub>G</sub> /R	$\frac{\text{NDM}}{\text{GO}_2/\text{M}^{-2}\text{D}^{-1}}$
DETRITUS	4 mm	-0.0317	-0,0047	0.0429	-0.11	-0.0476
DETRITUS	1 mm	-0.0251	-0.0077	0.0276	-0.28	-0.0353
DETRITUS	חוג 250	-0.0480	-0.0161	0.0506	-0.32	-0.0666
DETRITUS	75 µm	-0.0224	-0.0038	0.0294	-0.13	-0.0332
DETRITUS	0.45 Jum	-0.2384	0.0978	0.5332	0.18	-0.4353
EPILITHON	4 mm	2.0393	4,2717	3,5404	1.21	0,7313
EPILITHON	1 mm	0.4558	0,7086	0.4010	1.77	0.3076
EPILITHON	250 µm	0,4484	0.7308	0.4477	1.63	0.2830
EPILITHON	75 um	0.0387	0.0639	0.0400	1.60	0.0239
COMBINED	4 mm	2.0076	4.2670	3,5833	1.19	0.6837
COMBINED	1 mm	0.4307	0.7010	0.4286	1.64	0.2723
COMBINED	250 µm	0.4005	0.7147	0.4983	1.43	0.2164
COMBINED	75 jum	0.0163	0.0601	0.0694	0.87	-0.0093
DETRITUS	0.45 µm	-0.2384	0.0978	0.5332	0.18	-0.4353
DETRITUS	TOTAL	-0.3655	0.0655	0.6836	0.10	-0.6181
EPILITHON	TOTAL	2.9822	5.7750	4.4292	1.30	1.3459
COMBINED	TOTAL	2.6167	5.8406	5.1128	1.14	0.7278

,

Table H - 2. (cont.)

.

SITE: NAGEL

DATE: 18 August 1975

SEDIMENT TYPE	PARTIC SIZE	LE NCP G0 <sub>2</sub> /M <sup>-2</sup> D	$-1 \qquad \qquad \begin{array}{c} GCP \\ GO_2/M^{-2}D^{-2} \end{array}$	$\begin{array}{c} CR\\ GO_2/M^{-2}D^{-1}\end{array}$	₽ <sub>G</sub> /R	$\frac{\text{NDM}}{\text{GO}_2/\text{M}^{-2}\text{D}^{-1}}$
DETRITUS	4 m	m –0.0018	0.0050	0.0119	0.42	-0.0068
DETRITUS	1 m	m -0.0040	0.0151	0.0333	0.45	-0.0182
DETRITUS	ىر 250	m -0.0175	0.0062	0.0413	0.15	-0.0351
DETRITUS	75 µ	m -0.0605	-0.0108	0.0866	-0.12	-0.0974
DETRITUS	0.45 µ	<b>m</b> -0.0442	0.1975	0.4213	0.47	-0.2238
EPILITHON	4 ш	m 3.2310	4.6062	2.3975	1.92	2.2087
EPILITHON	1 m	m <b>-0.0307</b>	0.0831	0.1984	0.42	-0.1153
EPILITHON	250 µ	m 0.0098	0.0438	0.0593	0.74	-0.0155
EPILITHON	75 µ	m 0.0192	0.0412	0.0382	1.08	0.0030
COMBINED	4 m	m 3.2292	4.6112	2.4094	1.91	2.2019
COMBINED	1 m	m -0.0347	0.0982	0.2317	0.42	-0.1335
COMBINED	250 p	um -0.0077	0.0500	0.1005	0,50	-0.0506
COMBINED	ىر 75 µ	m -0.0412	0.0304	0.1248	0.24	-0.0944
DETRITUS	0.45 µ	-0.0442	0.1975	0.4213	0.47	-0,2238
DETRIC	TOTAT	0 1070	0.0100		0.00	0.0010
DEIRITUS	TOTAL	0.12/9	0.2130	0.5943	0.36	-0.3813
EPILITHON	TOTAL	3,2293	4.7743	2.6934	1.77	2.0809
COMBINED	TOTAL	3.1014	4.9873	3.2877	1.52	1.6996

SITE: KELLOGG FOREST DATE: 06 March 1975

SEDIMENT TYPE	PARTICLE SIZE	NCP G02/m-2D-1	GCP G0 <sub>2</sub> /M <sup>-2</sup> D <sup>-1</sup>	CR G0 <sub>2</sub> /M <sup>-2</sup> D <sup>-1</sup>	P <sub>G</sub> /R	$G0_2/M^{-2}D^{-1}$
DETRITUS	4 mm	-0.0085	-0.0018	0-0107	-0.16	-0.0125
DETRITUS	1 mm	-0.0514	-0.0037	0.0755	-0.05	-0.0792
DETRITUS	250 Jum	-0.0583	-0.0181	0.0635	-0.29	-0.0816
DETRITUS	75 auto	-0.0832	-0.0084	0.1183	-0.07	-0.1267
DETRITUS	0.45 Jum	-0.1105	0.2752	0.6104	0.45	-0.3352
<b>ΓΡΤΙ ΤΤΗΟΝ</b>	/ mm	3 1854	6 5516	2 1619	2 11	2 3808
FPTI TTHON	1 mm	0 0013	0 1907	0 1573	1 21	0 0336
FPTL TTHON	250	0.2128	0 3343	0.1973	1 74	0.1620
EPILITHON	75 µm	0.2526	0.3812	0.2035	1.87	0.1776
	-					
COMBINED	4 mm	3.1769	4.598	2.1725	2.09	2.3773
COMBINED	1 mm	0.0399	0.1870	0.2328	0.80	-0.0458
COMBINED	250 µm	0.1545	0.3161	0.2557	1.24	0.0604
COMBINED	75 jum	0.1694	0.3728	0.3218	1.16	0.0509
DETRITUS	0.45 µm	-0,1105	0.2752	0.6104	0.45	-0.3352
DETRITUS	TOTAL	-0.3119	0.2432	0.8784	0.28	-0.6352
EPILITHON	TOTAL	3.7421	5.4577	2.7148	12.01	2.7429
COMBINED	TOTAL	3.4302	5.7009	3.5932	1.59	2.1077

,

SITE: KELLOGG FOREST DATE: 05 June 1975

SEDIMENT TYPE	PARTICLE SIZE	G02/M-2D-1	GCP GO <sub>2</sub> /M <sup>-2</sup> D <sup>-1</sup>	G0 <sub>2</sub> /M <sup>-2</sup> D <sup>-1</sup>	₽ <sub>G</sub> /R	$GO_2/M^{-2}D^{-1}$
DETRITUS	4 mm	-0.0001	0.0097	0.0207	0.47	-0.0110
DETRITUS	1 mm	-0.0095	0.0197	0.0614	0.32	-0.0417
DETRITUS	mu 250	-0.0160	0.0077	0.0498	0.15	-0,0421
DETRITUS	75 um	-0.0346	0.0175	0.1095	0.16	-0.0920
DETRITUS	0.45 Jum	-0.0722	0.1461	0.4588	0.32	-0.3128
EPILITHON	4 mm	1.6342	2,2674	1.3310	1.70	0,9364
EPILITHON	1 mm	0.0795	0.1336	0.1136	1.18	0.0200
EPILITHON	250 µm	0,0460	0.0578	0.0247	2.34	0.0331
EPILITHON	mu 75	-0.0021	-0.0007	0.0030	-0.22	-0.0036
COMBINED	4 mm	1.6341	2.2771	1.3517	1.68	0.9254
COMBINED	1 mm	0.0701	0.1533	0.1750	0.88	-0.0217
COMBINED	<u>سب</u> 250	0.0301	0.0655	0.0745	0.88	-0.0090
COMBINED	75 µm.	-0.0366	0.0169	0.1125	0.15	-0.0956
DETRITUS	0.45 Jum	-0.0722	0.1461	0.4588	0.32	-0.3128
DETRITUS	TOTAL	-0.1323	0.2008	0.7002	0.29	-0.4995
EPILITHON	TOTAL	1.7577	2.4581	1.4723	1.67	0.9858
COMBINED	TOTAL	1.6254	2.6588	2.1725	1.22	0.4863